Contract ID#: COPT}1 6000007

Contract Details

POLICE E- iwm‘b

Department:

SERVICE Entrance/ Promotional Exams

NIFS 1D #: COPD16000007 NIFS Entry Date: APRIL 15,2016  Term: from 5/1/16 to 5/1/18
New X Renewal [ 1) Mandated Program: Yes[] | No
Amendment ] 2) Comptroller Approval Form Attached: Yes No []
Time Extension  [] 3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance Attached: Yes[] | No
Addl. Funds 1 4) Vendor Ownership & Mgmt. Disclosure Attached: Yes No []
Blank luti
RES:; Resolution [ ] 5) Insurance Required Yes ] | No []

Agency Information

Name Vendor ID#

Depariment Contact

AON Consulting Inc. Aon Consulting Inc NCPD Personnel and Accounting
22-2232264
Addresses: Contact Person Address
Seymour Adler 1490 Franklin Ave., Mineola, NY
200 E. Randolph St.,Chicago, IL 60673 11501

Phone 212-441-2065

‘ Seymour.adlet@@aonhewitt.com

Phone 516-573-7150
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Contract ID#: COPD 16000097 Department: POLICE

Contract Summary

Description: New Contract for Services with AON for the development and validation of an examination or selection of incoming police officers and
promotion to Sergeant.

Purpose: For AONto design, develop and validate the police officer examination and Sergeant examination to be administered by the County in
2017, in order to have certified lists to hire prior to expiration of the current lists in June, 2018.

Method of Procurement: Sole Source/ Special Circumstance pursuant to Executive Order 1 of 1993. See attached memorandum for detailed
explanation,

Procurement History: Vendor provided similar services in the past and originalty this Vendor was selected through RFP process in 2002,

Description of General Provisions: The County entered into a Consent Decree with the U.S. Department of Justice on April 21, 1982, in United
States v. Nassau County. et al., 77 Civ. 1881 (E.D.N.Y.), which provides that the County will develop and administer written examinations for entry
level police officers and promotional examinations that either: (i) do not have discriminatory impact upon Afiican-Americans, Hispanics, or females, or
(ii) have been validated in accord with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, ag amended, and the Federal Uniform Guidelines on Employee
Selection Procedures. The services to be provided by AON undet this Agreement shall consist of preparation and administration of a written
examination to incoming police officers and Scrgeants consistent with the Consent Decree, which Services are more fully described in the Agreement.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: The Maximum Amount to be paid by the Police Department/Cousty shall be One Million One Hundred Ninety
Seven dollars ($1,197,000.00), which shall involve partial encumbrances for milestones as set forth in paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Agreement, The
initial encumbrance will be $600,000.00 for work to be done in 2016,

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

| certify that his document was accapied inlo NIFS,

EptroNor  erfihicAnDL
I certify that an unencumberad balanes sufficiant to oover this contract ls

present in the apprapriation to be chaiged,

Fund: Revenue Contract  [_] 1 PDPDH1135/DESQ0 $600,000.00
Control: PDH1100 County $600,000.00 2 $
Resp: PDH1135 Federal $ 3 $
Object: DES00 State $ 4 $
Transaction: 103 Capital % 5 $
Other 3 6 $
o TOTAL | $600,000.00 TOTAL | $600,000.00
%% Increase '
% Decrease Docurment Prepared ny: | TATUM FOX patee  APRIL 15,2016

Name

Name

Date y /2‘ 0 //6

Date

Date

E #:
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Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: AON CONSULTING INC.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: § 800,000

Amount to be encumbered: $ 600,000

This is a v New Contract Advisement Amendment

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract

If advisement — NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

a. Contract Term: 5/1/2016 TO 5/1/2018

Has work or services on this coniract commenced? Yes v No

If yes, please explain:

4. Funding Source:
___ General Fund (GEN) ____ Grant Fund (GRT)
___ Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %
_v Other State %
County %
Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract? \/ Yes No
If not, will it require a future borrowing? Yes No
Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? Yes No N/A
Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? Yes No N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

AON will design and validate the PO exam and Sergeant exam to be administered by the County
in 2017, in order to have certified lists fo hire prior to expiration of the current lists in June, 2018.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassan County Attorney as to form Yes No N/A
Nassau County Commiitee and/or Legislature Yes No N/A

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all coniracts (with dollar ameunts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:
None.







AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approval
Request Form and any additional information submittad in connection with this request is true and
accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in
conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County
Multi-Year Financial Plan. I understand that NTFA will rely upon this information in its official
deliberations.

Aa0a DLQQW % 5'// é

Signature Title Date

Print Name

COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is in
conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County
Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

if this is a capital project:
I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.
Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

Signature Title Date

Print Name

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:

Signature Title Date

Print Name

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County’s own routing slip, current
NIFS printouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature
communication documents and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the
item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being
submitted to NIFA for review,

NIFA reserves the right to request additional infermation as needed.






George Maragos
Comptroller

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
240 Old Country Road
Mineola, New York 11501

COMPTROLLER APPROVAL FORM FOR PERSONAL,
PROFESSIONAL OR HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTS

Attach this form along with all personal, professional or human services contracts, contract rencwals, extensions
and amendments.

CONTRACTOR NAME: AON

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS:__ 200 E. Randolph Street, Chicago, 1L, 60673-1230

FEDERAL TAX ID #:22-2232264

Instructions: Please check the appropriate box (“M”) after one of the following
roman numerals, and provide all the requested information.

I. [0 The contract was awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder after advertisement
for sealed bids. The contract was awarded after a request for sealed bids was published
in [newspaper| on
[date]. The sealed bids were publicly opened on [date]. [#] of
sealed bids were received and opened.

I1. 00 The contractor was selected pursuant to a Request for Proposals.
The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on
[date]. Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the RFP by

[newspaper advertisement, posting on website, mailing, etc.]. [#] of potential proposers requested
copies of the RFP. Proposals were due on [date]. [#] proposals were
received and evaluated. The evaluation comumittee consisted
of:

[list members]. The proposals were scored and
ranked. As a result of the scoring and ranking (attached), the highest-ranking proposer was selected.







IIL. OO This is a renewal, extension or amendment of an existing contract,
The contract was originally executed by Nassau County on [date]. This is a
renewal or extension pursuant to the contract, or an amendment within the scope of the contract or RFP

(copies of the relevant pages are attached). The original contract was entered into
after

[describe
procurement method, i.e., RFP, three proposals evaluated, etc.] Attach a copy of the most recent evaluation
of the contractor’s performance for any contract to be renewed or extended. If the contractor has not
received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must explain why the contractor should nevertheless be
permitted to continue to contract with the county.

IV. OO Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993, as amended, at least three
proposals were solicited and received. The attached memorandum from the
department head describes the proposals received, along with the cost of each
proposal.

0 A. The contract has been awarded to the proposer offering the lowest cost proposal; OR:

O B. The attached memorandum contains a detailed explanation as to the reason(s)why the
contract was awarded to other than the lowest-cost proposer. The attachment includes a specific
delineation of the unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a proposal is deemed
superior, and/or why the proposer has been judged to be able to perform more quickly than other
proposers.

V. X Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993 as amended, the attached
memorandum from the department head explains why the department did not
obtain at least three proposals.

X A. There are only one or two providers of the services sought or less than three providers
submitted proposals. The memorandum describes how the contractor was determined to be the
sole source provider of the personal service.needed or explains why only two proposals could be
obtained. If two proposals were obtained, the memorandum explains that the contract was
awarded to the lowest cost proposer, or why the sclected proposer offered the higher quality
proposal, the proposer’s unique and special experience, skill, or expertise, or its availability to
perform in the most immediate and timely manner.

O B. The memorandum explains that the contractor’s selection was dictated by the terms of a
federal or New York State grant, by legislation or by a court order. (Copies of the relevant
documents are attached).

O C. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 104, the department is purchasing the services
required through a New York State Office of General Services coniract
no. ", and the attached memorandum explains how the purchase is
within the scope of the terms of that contract.







] D. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 119-o, the department is purchasing the services
required through an inter-municipal agreement.

VI. O This is a human services contract with a not-for-profit agency for which a

competitive process has not been initiated. Attached is a memorandum that explains the reasons
for entering into this contract without conducting a competitive process, and details when the department
intends to initiate a competitive process for the future award of these services. For any such contract, where
the vendor has previously provided services to the county, attach a copy of the most recent evaluation of
the vendor’s performance. If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must
explain why the contractor should nevertheless be permitted to contract with the county.

In certain limited circumstances, conducting a competitive process and/or completing performance
evaluations may not be possible because of the nature of the human services program, or because of a
compelling need to continue services through the same provider. In those circumstances, attach an
explanation of why a competitive process and/or performance evaluation is inapplicable.

VII. O This is a public works contract for the provision of architectural, engineering

or surveying services. The attached memorandum provides details of the department’s compliance
with Board of Supervisors’ Resolution No.928 of 1993, including its receipt and evaluation of annual
Statements of Qualifications & Performance Data, and its negotiations with the most highly qualified
firms.

In addition, if this is a contract w:tk an individual or with an entity that has only one or

two employees.

[J a review of the criteria set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Revenue Ruling No. 87-41, 1987-1
C.B. 296, attached as Appendix A to the Comptroller’s Memorandum, dated February 13, 2004,
concerning independent contractors and employees indicates that the contractor would not be considered
an employee for federal tax purposes.

Sz
Department Head Signature

ﬁf/t? } le
Date

NOTE: Any information requested above, or in the exhibit below, may be included in the county’s
“staff summary” form in lieu of a separate memorandum,

Compt. form Pers./Prof. Services Contracts: Rev. 02/04
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George Maragos
Comptroller

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
240 01d Country Road
Mineola, New York 11501

COMPTROLLER APPROVAL FORM FOR PERSONAL,
PROFESSIONAL OR HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTS

Attach this form along with all personal, professional or human services contracts, contract renewals, extensions
and amendments,

CONTRACTOR NAME: AON

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS: _200 E. Randolph Street Chicago IL 60673

FEDERAL TAXID #: 22-2232264

Instructions: Please check the appropriate box (“&2”) after one of the following
roman numerals, and provide all the requested information.

L. O The contract was awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder after advertisement
for sealed bids. The contract was awarded after a request for sealed bids was published
in [newspaper] on
[date]. The sealed bids were publicly opened on jdate]. [#] of
sealed bids were received and opened.

IL. 0 The contractor was selected pursuant to a Request for Proposals.
The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on
{date]. Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the RFP by

advertisement in [newspaper], posting on industry websites, via
email to interested parties and by publication on the County procurement website. Proposals were due
on |date]. [state #] proposals were received and evaluated. The

evaluation committee consisted of:

_ (list # of persons on
committee and their respective departments). The proposals were scored and ranked. As a result of the
scoring and ranking, the highest-ranking proposer was selected.







IIL. O This is a renewal, extension or amendment of an existing contract.
The contract was originalty executed by Nassau County on [date]. This is a
renewal or extension pursuant to the contract, or an amendment within the scope of the contract or RFP

(copies of the relevant pages are attached), The original contract was entered into
after

[describe
procurement method, i.e., RFP, three proposals evaluated, etc.] Attach a copy of the most recent evaluation

of the confractor’s performance for any contract to be renewed or extended. If the contractor has not
received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must explain why the contractor should nevertheless be
permitted to continue to contract with the county.

IV. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993, as amended, at least three
proposals were solicited and received. The attached memorandum from the
department head describes the proposals received, along with the cost of each
proposal.

L0 A. The contract has been awarded to the proposer offering the lowest cost proposal; OR:

[ B. The attached memorandum contains a detailed explanation as to the reason(s)why the
contract was awarded to other than the lowest-cost proposer. The attachment includes a specific
delineation of the unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a proposal is deemed
superior, and/or why the proposer has been judged to be able to perform more quickly than other
proposers.

V. X Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993 as amended, the attached
memorandum from the department head explains why the department did not
obtain at least three proposals.

X A. There are only one or two providers of the scrvices sought or less than three providers
submitted proposals. The memorandum describes how the contractor was determined to be the
sole source provider of the personal service needed or explains why only two proposals could be
obtained. If two proposals were obtained, the memorandum explains that the contract was
awarded to the lowest cost proposer, or why the selected proposer offered the higher quality
proposal, the proposer’s unique and special experience, skill, or expertise, or its availability to
perform in the most immediate and timely manner.

[l B. The memorandum explains that the contractor’s selection was dictated by the terms of a
federal or New York State grant, by legislation or by a court order. (Copies of the relevant
documents are attached).

[0 C. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 104, the department is purchasing the services
required through a New York State Office of General Services contract
no. , and the attached memorandum explains how the purchase is
within the scope of the terms of that contract.







O D. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 119-o0, the department is purchasing the services
required through an inter-municipal agreement.

VL. O This is a human services contract with a not-for-profit agency for which a

competitive process has not been initiated. Attached is a memorandum that explains the reasons
for entering into this contract without conducting a competitive process, and details when the department
intends to initiate a competitive process for the future award of these services, For any such contract, where
the vendor has previously provided services to the county, attach a copy of the most recent evaluation of
the vendor’s performance. If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must
explain why the contractor should nevertheless be permitted to contract with the county.

In certain limited circumstances, conducting a competitive process and/or completing performance
evaluations may not be possible because of the nature of the human services program, or because of a
compelling need to continue services through the same provider. In those circumstances, attach an
explanation of why a competitive process and/or performance evaluation is inapplicabie.

VIL O This is a public works contract for the provision of architectural, engineering

or surveying services. The attached memorandum provides details of the department’s compliance
with Board of Supervisors’ Resolution No. 928 of 1993, including its receipt and evaluation of annual
Statements of Qualifications & Performance Data, and its negotiations with the most highly qualified
firms.

Instructions with respect to Sections VIII, IX and X: All Departments must check the box for VIIL.
Then, check the box for either IX or X, as applicable,

VIIL X Participation of Minority Group Members and Women in Nassau County

Contracts. The selected contractor has agreed that it has an obligation to utilize best efforts to hire
MWBE sub-contractors. Proof of the contractual utilization of best efforts as outlined in Exhibit “EE”
may be requested at any time, from time to time, by the Comptroller’s Office prior to the approval of
claiin vouchers,

IX. O Department MWBE responsibilities. To ensure compliance with MWBE requirements
as outlined in Exhibit “EE”, Department will require vendor to submit list of sub-contractor
requirements prior to submission of the first claim voucher, for services under this contract being
submitted to the Comptroller.

X. X Vendor will not require any sub-contractors.

In addition, if this is a contract with an individual or with an entity that has only one or two employees: [ a review of the
criteria set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Revenue Ruling No. 87-41, 1987-1 C.B. 296, attached as Appendix A to the
Comptroller’s Memorandum, dated February 13, 2004, concerning independent contractors and employees indicates that the
contractor would not be considered an employee for federal tax purposes.

A 4
Department Head Sigfiature

‘ v 4
Date

NOTE: Any information requested above, or in the exhibit below, may be included in the county’s “staff summary” form
in liex of a separate memorandum,
Compt. form Pers./Prof. Services Contracts: Rev. 03/16 3






COUNTY OF NASSAU
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL MEMO

DATE: April 15,2016
TO: Carnell T. Foskey
County Attorney

FROM: Thomas C. Krumpter
Acting Police Commissioner
Nassau County Police Department

SUBJECT: JUSTIFICATION FOR SELECTING AON HEWITT CONSULTING AS THE
' VENDOR FOR THE POLICE ENTRANCE AND PROMOTIONAL EXAMS

This memorandum is prepared pursuant to Executive Order 1 of 1993, as amended, to explain why the
Police Department (the “Department™) did not obtain at least three proposals for a consultant to
administer a police entrance and a promotional examination in 2016. The Department seeks to use AON
based upon AON’s unique experience, expertise, and the special circumstances concerning
administration of the police entrance and promotional exams.

The last entrance examination was administered 12/9/2012, and an eligible list was

established 6/25/2014, The last promotional Sergeant Exam was administered 9/28/2013, and an
eligible list was established 6/13/2014. The duration of the eligible lists shall be no more than four
years. Accordingly, the current lists expire in 2018. For this reason, the examinations must be
administered in advance, and validated in time to certify new lists prior to the expiration of the current
lists.

Background

In 1982, the County of Nassau (“County”) and the United States Department of Justice (“DOJ”) entered
into a Consent Decree in which the County agreed, among other things, to utilize entrance exams that
either had been determined to have no discriminatory impact on minority applicants or had been
validated as job related in accordance with Title VII of the Federal Civil Rights Act. From 1982, until
the early 1990s, DOJ challenged the tests given by the County, requiring the County to enter into two
additional Consent Decrees.

In 1994, the County in conjunction with the DOJ and a consultant, AON (then known as Ashton HR
Consulting and selected through the request for proposal process) successfully administered a job related
police entrance exam. To date, AON has been used a total of nine times, in 1994, 2003, 2007 and 2012
for the police entrance examinations and in 1994, 1999, 2005, 2008, and 2013 for the sergeant
examinations, All of these examinations passed the scrutiny of DOJ and lists were established.

The County presently continues to operate under the Consent Decree and the Department therefore secks
to continue to use AON based on their successful record with the Department and DOJ,







Justification
Validation

In 2002, the Department solicited proposals from several vendors for a new entrance exam and selected
AON based upon their unique experience, expertise and the special circumstance of AON’s historical
relationship with the DOJ mentioned above. An additional determining factor was that even if another
qualified vendor was able to establish a test, the new vendor would cost the County hundreds of
thousands more in additional money for a comprehensive new validation study. Reason being, while the
County owns the past examinations, AON has a proprietary interest in the methodology behind the
questions on the examinations, which is what validates the examination.  Therefore, even if a new
vendor used the questions developed by AON, the new vendor would have to do an extensive validation
of the fest to support its job relatedness. AON however already has the majority of documentation to
support its validation, Therefore, AON only needs to update the validity as necessary to existing content
and validate any new areas of content. Meaning, we do not have to pay for the same validation twice by
having a new firm do the validation study. In any event, going forward, this current Agreement provides
that the Right to Work for the validation for the next examination will belong to the County (see
paragraph 8 of the Agreement).

Experience

AON’s extensive experience in meeting DOJ requirements will expedite DOJ approval under the
Consent Decree, which is quite involved and time consuming. This expertise provides the County with
less risk of being in a situation where the current lists have expired prior to certification of a new list,
AON’s proprietary methodology in test development is designed to measure judgment, comprehension,
background experiences, work orientation, and job-related personality factors. The methodology
predicts both on-the-job performance and training performance of officers and has been carefully
designed to minimize adverse impact on ethnic minority and female candidates. Moreover, with over a
decades experience in examination development for the County, AON has established a professional
relationship with the DOJ that furthers AON’s understanding and appreciation of the County’s specific
needs in examination development. All of these factors uniquely qualify AON.

Conclusion

AON’s proprietary methodology in examination design, AON’s demonstrated success in validating
and/or defending all prior examinations, the cost savings derived from an established practice, and the
special circumstances created by the outstanding Consent Decree, render AON uniquely qualified to
provide the services required by the County, Accordingly, we submit that pursuant to Executive Order
1 of 1993 AON is justified as the sole source provider for these services.

= s

Thomas C. Krumpter

Acting Commissioner

Nassau County Police Department






POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two
years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the
campaign commitiees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County
Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptrofler, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?
If yes, to what campaign committee?

(2

5 VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or
Vendor authorized as a signatory of the fitm for the purpose of exec uting Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned fusther certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees
identified above were mads freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental
benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration.

Vendor A AN

oy / I / . Signed: @Mﬂ AS
Print ‘I:iz?:?e: “}!{ﬁ% l/&

Title: m

Rev, 3-2016






Page 1 of 4

COUNTY OF NASSAU
LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

I, Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term
“[obbyist™ means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any
client to influence - or promate a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open
Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are
not Limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to
County regulation, procurements. The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, divector,
trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when
discharging his or her official duties,

/A

2. List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (¢.g., Nassau
County. New York State):

(2.

3. Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the

Jobbyist is retained, employed or designated:

A{/A

Rev. 3-2016






Page 2 of 4

4. Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify
client(s) for each activity listed. Sce page 4 for a complete description of lobbying activitics.

/A

5. The name of persons. organizations or governmental entitics before whom the lobbyist
expects o lobby:

ALIA

Rev, 3-2016






Page 3 of 4

6. If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or
employment, you must attach a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or
employment is oral, attach a written statement of the substance thereof. If the written agresment
of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the client by whem you
have been authorized to lobby, separately attach such & written authorization from the client.

7. Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign
contributions pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1,
2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period
beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure,
o the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the
campaign commitiees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices;
the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County
Legislator? If yes, to what campaign committee?

Ao

| understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of
Information Technology €:1T") to be posted on.the County’s website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation 1 must
give written notice (o the County Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that hefshe has read and understood
the foregoing statements and they are, to histher knowledge, true and accurate.

mdersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution
listed above were made fieely and without duress, threat or
benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration,

‘//zx / e S

Print Name:

The undersigned

Title:

Rev, 3-2016






Aon Consulting, Inc. ("Aon Hewitt") is owned by Aon Plc., a publicly traded corporation.
Information provided is based on the corporation and not individuals.

PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and ary individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer, Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. if you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire,

AWARD

1. Principal Name __Aon Ple

Date of birth / /

Home address  Sce Annual Report
City/statelzip
Business address
City/state/zip
Telephone
Other present address(es)
Clty/state/zip
Telaphone
List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions heid In submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President / / Treasurer / /
Chairman of Board / / Shargholder { /
Chief Exsc. Officer / / Secretary ! /
Chief Financial Officer { / Partnar f/ !
Vice President / / / /
{Other)

See Annual Report
3. Do you have an equily interest in the husiness submitting the questionnaire?
YES ___ NO .. HYes, provide details.

;L Are there any oufstanding loansg, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO ___ If Yes, provide details,

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-

for-profit organization other than the one submitting the guestionnaire? YES . NO___;
If Yes, provide details.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES ____ NO ____
if Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.,

Provide a detailed response fo all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you andfor any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?
YES NO _X  If Yes, provide details for each such instance,

Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any
contracts cancelled for cause? YES NO X If Yes, provide details for each
such Ingtance.

Been denied the award of a confract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including, but not limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? YES
NO x  [If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it;
and/for is any action pending that could formally debar oy otherwise affect such
business's abllity to bid or propose on contract? YES NO _X_ i Yes, provide
detalls for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed In response to Question 5 filed a
pankruptey petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period, been In a state of
pankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy preceedings initlated more than 7 vears ago andfor is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptoy proceedings, whenever
initiated? If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to all
yuestions checked "YESB", if you nead more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a)

b)

c}

N/A
1s there any felony charge pending against you? YES ___ NO
details for each such charge.

If Yas, provide

Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO__ if
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

is there any administrative charge pending against you? YES _NO K
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which related to the conduct of buslness? YES __ NO __ If Yes, provide
detaills for each such conviction.
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9.

10.

1.

12.

@) In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?
YES ___ NO ____  If Yes, provide details for sach such conviction.

f) Inthe past § years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES _ NO ___  If Yes, provide details for each such
pceurrence.

In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 8
years, have you been the sublect of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affillated business listed in
response to Question 57 YES ____ NO ___  If Yes, provide detalls for each such

investigation. See below

In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization
listed In response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were a
principal owner or officer? YES NO ___ if Yes; provide details for each such
investigation. see below

In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated businass listed in
response to Question 5 had any sanction imposed as & result of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES __ NO X IfYes;
provide details for each such instance.

For the past 5 tax years, have you falled to fife any required tax returns or faited to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, Including but not limited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO X__  If Yes, provide details for each such
year,

Questions 9 and 10 - As might be expected, an organization the size and complexity of Aon plc (formerly
Aon Corporation) and its subsidiaries has a range of litigation pending in the ordinary course of its
business. Additional details of litigation filed against Aon are available in Aon Corporation's annual Form
10-k filing (Note 16) and Aon plc's quarterly Form 10-Q filing (Note 16) which is available on Aon's
website (www.aon,com). Although the ultimate outcome of all such matters cannot be ascertained, it is the
position of Aon plc that the disposition or ultimate determination of such claims will not have a material
effect on the financial position of Aon plc or any of its subsidiaries.
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Aon Consulting, Inc,

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMiNAL CHARGES.

i, 2‘ RPN j i #W"w being duly swarn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the axecution of
the contract, and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

. ,
Sworn to before me this ﬁ;’ﬁfday of At i 20/

_. {ificiat Seal
_ﬁ,m"’&;&mmm »'*3‘ MA/? .ﬁ/’f {f - Ann i Olszewski
Notary Public Notary Public State of liools &
Ky Commission Expires 05/0B/2016 4

Acon Consulting, Inc.
Name of submitting business e

”’K}"? cone bIA @%W S

. Print name

B TSI

Signature

\/é;ii«’ (mﬁ.ﬁg_}.t;ﬁ f

Title

A S

Date
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PARTI

Item 1. Business.

OVERVIEW

Aon ple's strategy is to be the preeminent professional service firm in the world, focused on the topics of risk and people. Aon plc (which may be teferred to
ag "Aon," "the Company," "we," "us,” or "our") is the leading global provider of risk management services, insurance and reinsurance brokerage, and human
regource consulting and outsourcing, delivering distinctive client value via innovative and effective risk management and workfarce productivity selutions. Our
predecessor, Ao Corporation, was incorporated in 1979 under the laws of Delaware, In 2012, we reincorporated in the UK. and moved our corporate headquarters
to London. As a result of this reorganization of our corporate structure, Aon plc became the publicly-held parent company of the Aon group, We sometimes refer
to this transaction hetein as the Redomestication.

We have approximately 69,060 employees and conduct our operations through various subsidiaries in more than 120 countries and sovercigntics.

We setve ¢lients through the following reportable segtments:

+ Risk Solutions acts ns an advisor and insurance and teinsurance broker, helping clients manage their risks via consultation, as well as negotiation and
placement of insurance risk with insurance carriers through our global distribution network,

+ HR Solutions partners with organizations to solve their most complex human capital and related financial challenges in the areas of health,
retireiment and talent. We are dedicated to improving business performance and our client's employees, experience by designing, implementing,
communicating and administering a wide range of huma capital, retitement, investment consulting, health care, compensation and talent
management strategies.

Our clients are globally diversified and include all segments of the economy (individuals through personal lines, mid-market companies and large global

companies) and almost every industry in the economy in over 120 countries and sovereignties globally. This diversification of our customer base provides stability
in different economic scenarios that may affect specific industries, customer segments or geographies.

We have continued to focus our portfolio on higher margin, capital light professional services businesses that have high recurring revenue streams and strong
cash flow peneration. Aon drives its capital allocation decision making process around return on invested capital ("ROIC"),

In 2015, 64% of vur consolidated total revenues were in Risk Solutions and 37% of our consolidated total revenues were in HR Solutions, before
intersegment eliminations.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Risk Solutions

The Risk Solutions segment generated approximately 64% of out consolidated total revenues in 2015 , and has approximately 32,000 employees worldwide.
We provide risk and insurance, as well as reinsurance, brokerage and related services in this segment.

Principal Products and Services

We operate in this segment through two similar transactional product lines: retail brokerage and reinsuwrance brokerage. In addition, a key compoitent of this
business is our risk consulting services.

Retail brokerage encompasses our retail brokerage services, affinity products, managing general underwriting, placement, captive management services and
our Inpoint data and analytics solutiens, including the Global Risk Insight Platform ("GRIP"). Our Americas operations provide products and services to clients in
North, Centrat and South America, the Caribbean, and Bermuda, Our International operations in the UK., Europe, Middle East and Africa; and Asia Pacific offer
these products and services to clients throughout the rest of the world.

Our employces draw upon our global network of resources, sophisticated data and analytics, and specialized expertise o deliver value to clients ranging from
small and mid-sized businesses to multi-tational corporations. We work with clients to identify their business needs and help them assess and understand their total
cost of risk. Once we have gained an understanding of our clients' risk management needs, we seek to leverage our global network and implement a customized
risk approach with local Aon resources, The outcome is intended to be a comprehensive risk solution provided locally and




personally, The Aon Client Promise® enables our colleagues around the globe to deseribe, benchmark and price the value we deliver to clients in a unified
approach, based on the most important criteria that are ¢ritical to our ¢lients ability manage their total cost of risk.

Our knowledge and foresight, benchmarking and carrier knowledge are keys te providing professional services excellence. We intend to deliver superior
value to clients and differentiation from competitors through our key Aon Broking initiatives, which positions us to provide our clients and insurers with additional
market insight as well as new product offerings and facitities.

As a retail broker, we serve as an advisor to clients and facilitate a wide spectrum of risk management solutions for property liability, general liability,
professional and directors' and officers' liability, workers' compensation, and various healthcare products, as well as other exposures. Our business is comprised of
several specialty areas structured around specific product and industry needs.

We offer specialized advice and services in such industries as technology, financial services, agribusiness, aviation, construction, health care and energy,
armong others, Through cur global affinity business, we provide products for professional liability, life, disability income and petsonal lines for individuals,
associations and businesses arpund the world,

In addition, we are a major provider of risk consulting services, including captive management, that provide our clients with alternative vehicles for
managing risks that would be cost-prohibitive or unavailable in traditional insurance markets,

Our health and benefits consulting practice advises clients about structuring, funding, and administering employee benefit programs, which attract, retain,
and metivate employees. Benefits consulting and brokerage ineludes health and welfare, executive benefits, workforce strategies and productivity, absence
management, data-driven health, compliance, employee commitment, and elective benefits services.

Reinsurance brokerage offers saphisticated advisory serviees in program design and claim recoveries intended to enhance the risk/return characteristics of
insurance policy porifolios, improve capital utilization, and evaluate and mitigate catastrophic loss exposures worldwide, An ingurance or refnsurance company
may seek reinsurance or other risk-fransfer solutions on all or a portion of the risks it insures, To accomplish this, our reinsurance brokerage services use dynamic
financial analysis and capital market alternatives, such as transferring catastrophe risk through securitization, Reinsurance brokerage also offers capital
management transaction and advisory services,

We act as a broker or intermediary for all classes of reinsurance. We place two main types of property and casualty reinsurance: (reaty reinsurance, which
involves the transfer of a portfolio of risks, and facultative reinsurance, which entails the fransfer of part or all of the coverage provided by a single insurance
policy. We also place specialty lines such as professional liability, workers' compensation, accident, life and health,

We also provide actuarial, enterprise risk management, catastrophe inanagement and rating agency advisory services. We have developed tools and models
that help our clients understand the financial implications of natural and man-made catastrophes around the world. Aon Securities Inc. provides global capital
management (ransaction and advisory services for insurance and reinsurance clients. In this capacity, Aon Securities Inc. is recognized as a leader in:

+  the structuring, underwriting and trading of insurance-linked securities;
«  the arrangement of financing for insurance and reinsurance companies, including Lloyd's syndicates; and

»  providing advice on strategic and capital alternatives, including mergers and acquisitions.

In addition, our Inpoint business is a leading provider of consulting services to the insurance and reinsurance indusiry, helping carriers improve their
petformance to achieve growth and profitability.

Revenye and Compensation

Our Risk Solutions segment generates revenues primarily through commissions, fees from clients, and compensation from insurance and reinsurance
companies for services we provide to them. Commission rates and fees vary depending upen several factors, which may include the amount of premium, the type
of insurance or reinsurance coverage provided, the particular services provided to a client, insurer or reinsurer, and the capacity in which we act. Payment terms are
consistent with current industry practice.




Fiductary Funds

We typically hald funls on behalf of clients such as premiums received from clients and claims due to clients that are in transit to and from insurers. These
funds held on behalf of clients are genarally invested in interest-bearing premium trust accounts and can fluctuate significantly depending on when we collect cash
from our clients and when premiums are remitted to the insurance carriers. We earn interest on these accounts; however, the principal is segregated and not
available for general operating purposes.

Campetition

Our Risk Solutions business operates in an environment that is highly competitive and very fragmented. We compete with other global insurance brokers,
including Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., Willis Towers Watson Public Limited Company, Arthur ] Galtagher & Company, and Jardine Lloyd Thompson
Group ple, as well as numerous specialist, regional and local firms in almost every area of our business. We also compete with insurance and reinsurance
companies that market and service their insurance products without the assistance of brokers or agenis; and with other businesses that do not fall into the categories
above, including commercial and investment banks, accounting firms, and consultants that provide risk-related services and products.

Seasonality

Qur Risk Solutions segment typically experiences higher revenues in the first and fourth quarters of each year, primarily due to the timing of policy
renewals,

HR Selutions

Our HR Solutions segment generated approximately 37% of our consolidated total revenues in 2015 , and has approximately 31,000 employees worldwide
with operations in the U.S., Canada, the U.K., Europe, and the Asia Pacific regions.

Principal Prodncts and Services
We provide products and services in this segment primarily under the Aon Hewitt brand.

Qur HR Solutions segrment works to maximize the value of clients' human resources spending, increase employee productivity, and improve employee
performance. Qur approach addresses a trend towards more diverse workforces (demographics, nationalities, cultures and work/lifestyle preferences) that require
more choices and flexibility among employers so that they can provide benefit options suited to individual needs.

We waork with our clients to identify options in human resource outsourcing and process improveinenis. The primary areas where companies choose to use
outsourcing services include benefits administration, core human resource processes, and workforce and talent management.

HR Solutions offers a broad range of human capital services in the following practice areas:

Retirement specializes in providing global actuarial services, defined contribution consulting, pension de-risking, tax and ERISA consulting, and pension
administration,

Compensation focuses on compensation advisory/counsel including: compensation planaing design, executive reward strategies, salary survey and
benchmarking, market share studies and sales force effectiveness assessments, with special expertise in the financial services, technology, and life science
industries.

Strategic Human Capital delivers advice to complex global organizations on talent, change and organizational offectiveness issues, including talent strategy
and acquisition, executive on-boarding, performance management, leadership assessiment and development, communication strategy, workforce training and
change management.

Investment consulting provides public and private companies, other institutions and trustees with advice on developing and maintaining investment
programs across a broad range of plan types, including defined benefit plans, defined contribution plans, endowments and foundations. In certain instances, we also
perform delegated management services in relation to these plans.

Benefits Administration applies our HR expertise primarily through defined benefit, defined contribution, and health and welfare administrative services. We
also provide other complementary services such as flexible spending, dependent audit and participant advocacy. Our model replaces the resource-intensive
processes once required to administer benefit plans with more efficient, effective and less costly solutions.




Exchanges is building and operating health care exchanges that provide employers with a cost effective alternative to traditional employee and retiree
healthcare, while helping individuals select the insurance that best meets their needs.

Human Resource Business Process Outsourcing ("HR BPC") provides market-leading traditional and cloud based solutions to deploy systems, manage
employee data; administer benefits, payroll and other human resources processes; and record and manage talent, workforce and other core HR process transactions.

Revenue und Compensation

HR Solutions revenues are principally derived from fees paid by clients for advice and services. In addition, insurance companies pay us commissions for
placing individual and group insurance contracts, primarily life, health and accident coverage, and pay us fees for consulting and other services that we provide to
them. Payment terms ate consistent with current industry practice.

Competition

Cur HR Solutions business faces strong competition from other worldwide and national consulting companies, including Marsh & McLennan Companies,
Inc. and Willis Towers Watson Public Limited Company. as well as regional and local firms. Competitors include independent consulting firms and consulting
organizations affiliated with accounting, informatien systems, technology and financial services firms, large financial institutions and pure play cutsourcers. Some
of our competitors provide administrative or consulting services as an adjunct to other primary services, We believe that we are one of the leading providers of
human capital serviges in the world.

Seasonality
Due to buying patterns and delivery of certain products in the markets we serve, revenues tend to be highest in the fourth quarter of each fiscal vear.
Licensing and Regulation

Our business activities are subject to licensing requirements and extensive regulation under the laws of countries in which we operate, as well as U S, federal
and state laws. Sce the discussion contained in the "Risk Factors" section in Part I, Item 1A of this report for information regarding how actions by regulatory
authorities or changes in legislation and regulation in the jurisdictions in which we operate may have an adverse effect on our business.

Risk Solutions

Regulatory authorities in the countries or states in the U.S, in which the operating subsidiaries of our Risk Solutions segment conduct business may require
individual or company licensing to act as producers, brokers, agents, third party administrators, managing general agents, reinsurance intermediaries, or adjusters,

Under the laws of most countries and states, regulatory authorities have relatively broad discretion with respect to granting, renewing and revoking
producers’, brokers' and agents' licenses to transact business in the country or state. The operating terms may vary according to the licensing requirements of the
particular country or state, which may require, among other things that a firm operates in the country or state through a local corporation. In a few countries and
states, licenses may be issued only to individual residents or locally owned business entities. In such cases, our subsidiaries either have such licenses or have
arrangetnents with residents or business entities licensed 1o act in the country or state.

Our subsidiaries must comply with laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which they do business. These laws and regulations are enforced by the
Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™) in the UK, by federal and state agencies in the U.S., and by various regulatory agencies and other supervisory authorities in
other countries through the granting and revoking of licenses to do business, licensing of agents, monitoring of trade practices, policy form approval, limits on
comumission rates and mandatory remuneration disclosure requirements.

Insurance authorities in the UK., U.S. and certain other jurisdictions in which our subsidiaries operate also have enacted laws and regulations governing the
investment of funds, such as premiums and claims procecds, held in a fiduciary capacity for others. These laws and regulations generally require the segregation of
these fiduciary funds and limit the types of investments that may be made with them.

Further, certain of our business activities within the Risk Solutions segment are governed by other regulatory bodies, including investment, securities and
futures licensing authorities. For example, in the U.S., we use Aon Securities, Inc., a U.S.-registered broker-dealer and investment advisor, member of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") and Securities Invester Protection Corporation, and an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Aen, for capital
management




transaction and advisory services and other broket-dealer activities. Similar operations exist in other jurisdictions outside of the U .S.

HR Solutions

Certain of the retitement-related consulting services provided by Aen Hewitt and its subsidiaries and affiliates are subjest to the pension and financial laws
and regulations of applicable jurisdictions, including oversight and/or supervision by the FCA in the UK., the Securities and Exchange Commission (" SEC") in the
1.8, and regulators in other countries. Aon Hewiit subsidiaries that provide investment advisory services are regulated by various U S, federal authorities
including the SEC and FINRA, as well as authorities on the state level. In addition, other services provided by Aon Hewitt and its subsidiaries and affiliates, such
as trustee services and retirement and employee benefit program administrative services, are subject in various jurisdictions to pension, investment and securities
and/or insurance laws and regulations and/ot supervision by national regulators. ’

Clientele

Qur clients operate in many businesses and industries throughout the wotld, No one clieat accounted for more than 1% of our consolidated total revenues in
2015 . Additionally, we place insurance with many insurance carriers, none of which individually accounted for more than 10% of the total premiums we placed on
behalf of our clients in 2015 .

Segmentation of Aciivity by Type of Service and Geographic Area of Operation

Financial information relating to the types of services provided by us and the geographic areas of our operations is incorporated herein by reference to
Note 15 "Segment Information" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this report.

Employees
At December 31, 2015, we employed approximately 69,000 employess.
Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This report and in reports we subsequently file or furnish and have previously filed or furnished with the SEC contains certain statements related to future
results, or states ow intentions, beliefs and expectations or predictions for the future which are forward-looking statements as that term is defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Forward-looking statements relate to expectations or forecusts of future events, They use words such as "anticipate,”
"believe," “estimate," "expect,” "foracast," "projeet,” "intend,” "plan," "probably," "potential," "looking forward," and other similar terms, and future or conditional
tense vetbs like "could," “may," "might,” "should,” "will" and "would." You can also identify forward-looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly
to historical or current facts. For example, we may use forward-looking statements when addressing topics such as: market and industry conditions, including
competitive and pricing trends; changes in our business strategies and methods of generating revenue; the development and performance of our services and
products; changes in the composition or level of our revenues; our cost structure and the outcome of cost-saving or restructuring initiatives; the outcome of
contingencies; dividend policy; the expected impact of acquisitions and dispositions; pension obligations; cash flow and liquidity; expected effective tax rate;
future agtions by regulators; and the impact of changes in accounting rules, These forward-locking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from either historical or anticipated results depending on a variety of factors. Potential factors, which may be revised
or supplemented in subsequent reports filed or furnished with the SEC, that could impact results include:

+  general economic and political conditions in different countries in which we do business around the world;

+  changes in the competitive environment;

+  fluctuations in exchange and interest rates that conld influence revenue and expense;

+  changes in global equity and fixed income markets that could affect the return on invested assets;

«  changes in the funding status of our various defined benefit pension plans and the impact of any increased pension funding resulting from those changes,
«  the level of our debt limiting financial flexibility;

+ rating agency actions that could affect our ability to borrow funds;




* changes in estimates or assumptions on our financial statements;
+  limits on our subsidiaries fo make dividend and other payments to us;
«  the impact of lawsuits and ether contingent liabilities and loss contingencies arising from errors and omissions and other claims against us;

+  the impact of, and potential challenges in complying with, legislation and regulation in the jurisdictions in which we operate, particularly given the global
scope of our businesses and the possibility of conflicting regulatory requirements across jurisdictions in which we do business;

+  the effect of the change in global headquarters and jurisdiction of incorporation, including differences in the anticipated henefits;
+ the impact of any investigations brought by regulatory authorities in the U.S., UK, and other countries;

+  the impact of any inguiries relating to compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and non-U,S. anti-cotruption laws and with U.S. and non-
U.S. trade sanctions regimes;

+  failure to protect intellectual property rights or allegations that we infringe on the intellectual property rights of others;

+ the effects of English law on our operating flexibility and the enforcement of judgments against us,

*  the failure to retain and attract gualified personnel,

»  international risks associated with our global operations;

+  the effoct of natural or man-made disasters;

« the potential of a system or network breach or disruption resulting in operational interruption or improper disclosure of personal data;
+  our ability to develop and implement new tachnology;

+  the damage to our reputation among clients, markets or third parties;

« the actions taken by third parties that preform aspects of our business operations and client services;

+  the extent to which we manage certain risks created in connection with the various services, including fiduciary and investments and other advisory
services and business process outscurcing services, among others, that we currently provide, or will provide in the future, to clients;

< our ahility to grow, develop and integrate campanies that it acquires or new lines of business;
+  changes in commercial property and casualty markets, commercial premium rates or methods of compensation;
»  changes in the health care system or our relatienships with ingsurance carriers; and

«  our ability to implement initiatives intended to yield cost savings and the ability to achieve those cost savings.

Any or all of our forward-looking statements may tutn out to be inaccurate, and there are no guarantees about our performance. The factors identified above
are not exhaustive. Aon and its subsidiaries operate in a dynamic business environment in which new risks may emerge frequently. Accordingly, readers should not
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the dates on which they are made. We are under no obligation (and expressly disclaim
any obligation) to update or alter any forward-looking statement that we may make from time to time, whether as a resuli of new information, future events or
otherwise, Further information about factors that could materially affect Aon, including our results of operations and financial condition, is gontained in the "Risk
Factors” section in Part I, Item 1A of this report.




Website Access to Reports and Other Information

Our Antual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Crirrent Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports are made available
free of charge through our website (http://www.aon.com) as soon as practicable after such material is electrenically filed with or furnished to the SEC.
Additionally, the SEC maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information, The address of the SEC's wehsite is
www.sec.gov, Also posted on our website are the charters for our Audit, Compliance, Organization and Compensation, Governance/Nontinating and Finance
Committees, our Governace Guidelines and our Code of Business Conduct, Within the time period required by the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange
("NYSE"), we will post on our website any amendment to or waiver of the Code of Business Conduct applicable to any exccutive officer or director. The
information provided on our website is not part of this report and is therefore not incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A, Risk Factors.

The risk factors set forth below reflect taterial risks associated with existing and potential lines of business and contain "forward-looking statements” as
discussed in the "Business" Section of Part I, Item 1 of this report. Readers should consider them in addition to the other information contained in this report as our
business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected if any of these risks were to actually occur.

The following are material risks related to our businesses specifically and the industries in which we operate generally that could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations and cause sur actual results to differ materially from those stated in the forward-looking statements in this
document and clsewhere. These risks are not presented in order of importance or probability of occutrence.

Risks Relating to the Company Generally
Competltive Risks
An overall decline in economic activity could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition and resulls of operations of our businesses.

The demand for property and casualty insurance generally rises as the overall level of economic activity increasss and generally falls as such activity
decreases, affecting both the commissions and fees generated by our Risk Solutions business. The economic activity that impacts property and casuaity insurance is
most closely cotrelated with employment levels, corporate revenue and asset values. Downward fluciuations in the yeas-over-year insurance premium chatged by
insurers to protect against the same risk, referred to in the industry as softening of the insurance market, could adversely affect our Risk Solutions business as a
significant portion of the earnings are determined as a percentage of premium charged to our clients. A growing number of insolvencies and cousolidation
associated with an economic downturn, especially insolvencies in the insurance industry, could adversely affect our brokerage business through the loss of clients,
by hampering our ability to place insurance and reinsurance business. Also, error and omission claims against us, which we refer to as E&O claims, generally
increase in economic downturns, also adversely affecting our brokerage business.

The results of our HR Selutions business are generally =ffected by the level of business activity of our clients, which in turn is affected by the level of
economic activity in the industries and markets these clients serve. Economic downturns in some markets may cause reduetions in technology and discretionary
spending by our clients, which may result in reductions in the growth of new business as well as reductions in existing business. If our clients become financially
less stable, enter bankruptey, liquidate their operations or censolidate, our revenues and/or collectability of teceivables could be adversely affected. In addition, our
revenues frorm many of our cutsourcing contracts depend upon the number of our clienis' employees or the number of participants in our clients' employee benefit
plans and could be adversely affected by layoffs, We may also experience decreased demand for our serviees as a result of postponed or terminated outsourcing of
human resources functions. Reduced demand for our services could increase price competition,

We face significant competitive pressures in each of our businesses.

We believe that competition in our Risk Solutions segment is based on service, product features, price, commission structure, financial strength, ability to
access certain insurance markets and name recognition. In this regatd, we cotnpete with a large number of global, national, regional and local insutance companies
and othet financial services providers and brokers.

Our HR Solutions segment competes with a large number of independent firms and consulting organizations affiliated with accounting, information systems,
technology and financial services firms around the world. Many of our competitors in this area are expanding the services they offer ot reducing prices in an
attempt to gain additional business, Additionally, some competitors have established, and ate likely to continue to establish, cooperative relationships among
themselves or with third parties to increase their ability to address client needs.




Our competitors may have greater financial, technical and marketing resources, larger customer bases, greater name recognition, stronger presence in certain
geographies and more established relationships with their customers and suppliers than we have. In addition, new competitors, alliances among competitors or
mergers of competitors could emerge and gain significant market share, and some of our competitors may have or may develop a lower cost structure, adopt more
aggressive pricing policies or provide services that gain greater market acceptance than the services that we offer or develop. Large and well-capitalized
competitors may be able to respond to the need for technological changes and innovate faster, or price their services more aggressively. They may also compeie for
skilled professionals, finance acquisitions, fund internal growth and compete for market share more effectively than we do. To respond to in¢reased competition
and pricing pressure, we imay have to lower the cost of our services or decrease the level of service provided to clients, which could have an adverse effect on our .
financial condition or results of operations.

Financial Risks
We are exposed 1o fluctuations in currency exchange rates that could negatively impact our financial resulls and cash flows.

We face exposure to adverse movements in exchange rates of currencies other than our reporting currency, the U.S. Dollar, as a significant portion of our
business is located outside of the United States. These exposures may change over time, and they could have a material adverse imipact on our financial results and
cash flows, Our five largest non-U.S. Dollar exposures are the British Pound, Euro, Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar and Indian Rupee; however, we also have
exposures to other currencies which can have significant currency volatility, These currency exchange risks are present in both the translation of the financial
results of our global subsidiaries into U.S. Dollars for our consolidated financial statements, as well as those of our operations that receive revenue and incur
expenses other than in their respective local currencies which can reduce the profitability of our operations based on the direction the respective currencies'
exchange rates move. A decrease in the value of certain currencies relative to other currencies could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our
competitors that benefit to a greater degree from a specific exchange rate move and can, as a result, deliver services af a lower cost or receive greater revenues from
such a transaction. Although we use various derivative financial instruments to help protect against adverse foreign exchange rate fluctuations, we cannot eliminate
such risks, and, a3 a result, changes in exchange rates may adversely affect our results, For example, the strengthening of the value of the U.S. dollar versus other
currencies might adversely affect the value of cur products and services when translated to 1L.S. dollar, even if the value of such products and services has not
changed in their original currency,

Changes in interest rates and deterioration of credit quality could reduce the value of our cash balances and investment portfolios and adversely affect our
Jinancial condition or resulls,

Operating funds available for corporate use were $740 million at December 31, 2015 and are reported in Cash and cash equivalents and Short-term
investments, Funds held on hehalf of clients and insurers were $3.4 billion at December 31, 2015 and are reported in Fiduciary assets. We also carry an investment
portfolio of other long-term investments. As of December 31, 2015 , these long-term investments had a carrying value of $135 million . Adverse changes in
interest rates and counterparty credit quality, including default, could reduce the value of these funds and investments, thereby adversely affecting our financial
condition or results. We may continue to experience reduced investment earnings on our cash and short-term investments of fiduciary and operating funds if the
yields on investments deemed to be low risk remain at or near their current low levels, or if negative yields on deposits or investments, as we have experienced in
Japan and certain jurisdictions in the European Union, continue or arise in the jurisdictions in which we operate. On the other hand, higher interest rates could
result in a higher discount rate used by investors to value our future cash flows thereby resulting in a lower valuation of the Company. In addition, during times of
stress in the banking industry, counterparty risk can quickly escalate, potentially resulting in substantial losses for us as a result of our cash or other investments -
with such counterparties, as well as substantial losses for our clients and the insurance companies with which we work.

Our pension obligations could adversely affect owr shareholders’ equity, net Income, cash flow and liguidity.

To the extent that the pension obligations asseciated with our pension plans continue to exceed the fair value of the assets supporting those obligations, our
financial position and results of operations may be adversely affected. [n particular, lower interest rates and investment returns could result in the present value of
plan liabilities increasing at a greater rate than the value of plan assets, resulting in higher unfunded positions in our major pension plans. In addition, the periodic
revision of pension assumptions or variances of actual results from our gssumptions can materially change the present value of expected future benefits, and
therefore the funded status of the plans and resulting ret periodic pension expense. As a result, we may experience future changes in the funded status of our plans
that could require us to make additional cash contributions beyond those that have been estimated which could adversely affect shareholders’ equity, net income,
cash flow and liquidity.




The significance of our worldwide pension plans means that our pension contributions and expense are comparatively sensitive to various market and
detnographic factors, These facters include equity and bond market returas, the assumed interest rates we use fo discount our pension liabilities, foreign exchange
rates, rates of inflation, mortality assumptions, potential regulatory and legal changes and counterparty oxposure from various investments and derivative contracts,
including annuities. Variations in any of these factors could cause significant changes to our financial position and results of opetations from year to year.

We currently plan to contribute approximately $150 million to our major pension plans in 2016, aithough we may elect to contribute more. Total cash
contributions to these pension plans in 2015 were $194 million , which was a decrease of $122 million compared to 2014 .

We have debt owistanding that could adversely affect our financial flexibility.

As of December 31, 2015 , we had total consolidated debt outstanding of approximately $5.7 billion . The level of debt outstanding could adversely affect
our financial flexibility by reducing our ability to use cash from operations for other purposes, inchading working capital, dividends to shareholdets, share
repurchases, acquisitions, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. We also are subject to risks that, at the time any of our outstanding debt matures, we
will not be able to retire ot refinance the debt on terms that ate acceptable to us, ot at all.

As of December 31, 2015, we had two committed credit facilities outstanding: our $400 million U.S. credit facility expiring in March 2017 (the "2017
Facility") and our $900 million multi-currency U.S. credit facility expiring in February 2020 {the "2020 Facility"). Bach of these facilities is intended to support
our commercial paper obligations and our general working capital needs. In addition, each of these facilities included customary representatiofis, warranties and
covenants, inchuding financial covenants that require us to maintain specificd ratios of adjusted consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interzat expense and
consolidated debt to adjusted consolidated EBITDA, tested quarterly. During 2015 , we had no borrowings under, and were in compliance with these financiai
covenants and all ather covenants contained in, the 2017 Facility and 2020 Facility,

A substantial portion of our outstanding debt, including certain intercompany debt obligations, contains financial and other covenants. The terms of these
covenants may limit our ability to obtain, or increase the costs of obtaining, additional financing to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acguisitions or
general corporate requirements. This in turn may have the impact of reducing our flexibility to respond to changing business and ecohomic conditions, thereby
placing us at a relative disadvantage compared to competitors that have less indebtedness (or fewer or less onerous covenants associated with such indebtedness)
and making us more vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions,

If we cannot service our indebtedness, we may have to take actions such as selling assets, seeking additional equity or redueing or delaying capital
expenditures, strategic acquisitions, investments and alliances, any of which could impede the implementation of our business strategy or prevent us from entering
into transactions that would otherwise benefit our business. Additionally, we may not be able to etfect such actions or refinance any of our debt, if necessary, on

commercially reasonable terms, or at all.
A decline in the credit vatings of our senior debt and commercial paper may adversely affect our borrowing costs, access (o capital, and financial flexibifity.

A downgrade in the credit ratings of our senior debt and commercial paper could increase our borrowing costs, reduce or eliminate our acoess to capital,
reduce our financiat flexibility, and limit our ability to implement on corporate strategy. Cur senior debt ratings at December 31, 2015 were - with a stable
outlook {Standard & Poor's), BRB+ with a stable outlook (Fiteh, Inc), and Baa2 with a stable outlock (Moody's Investor Services). Qur commercial paper ratings
were A-2 (S&P), F-2 (Fitch) and P-2 (Moody's). During 2014, Moody's Investor Services changed their outlook from positive to stable.

Real or anticipated changes in our credit ratings, will generally affect any trading market for, or trading value of, our securities. Such changes could result
from any number of factors, including the modification by a credit rating agency of the criteria or methodology it applies to particular issuers, as a result of a
change in the agency's view of us, its industry outlook, or as a consequence of actions we take to implement our corporate strategies, and could adversely limit our
access to capital and our competitive position,

The economic and political conditions of the countries and regions in which we operate could have an adverse impact on our business, Jinancial condition,
operating resulls, liquidity and prospects for growth,

Qur aperations in countries undergoing political change or experiencing economic instability are subject to uncertainty and risks that could materially
adversely affect our business. These risks include, particularly in emerging markets, the possibitity we would be subject to undeveloped o evolving legal systems,
unstable governments and economies, and potential
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governmental actions affecting the flow of goods, services and currency. Furthermare, seemingly nationally or regionally localized political and economic changes
could have a wider, negative impact on our businesses that expands beyond our operations in the immediately affected jurisdiction. The continued concerns
regarding the ability of certain European countries to service their outstanding debt have given rise to instability in the global credit and financial markets. This
instability has in turn led to guestions regarding the future viability of the Eure as the common currency for the area as various scenarios could result in some
countries choosing to refurn to their former local currencies in an effort to regain control over their domestic economies and monetary policies. This uncertainty
has had a dampening effect on growth potential in Europe, and if it deteriorates, may have a material negative impact on our European business as well as that of
our clients. Further, any development that has the effect of devaluing or replacing the Euro could meaningfully reduce the value of our assets or profitability
denominated in that currency, potentially result in charges to our statement of operations and reduce the usefulness of liquidity alternatives denominated in that
currency such as our multicurrency U.S. credit facility. We also deposit some of our cash, including cash held in a fiduciary capacity, with cettain European
financial institutions. While we continuously monitor and manage exposures associated with those deposits, to the extent the uncertainty surrounding economic
stability in Europe and the future viability of the Euro suddenly and adversely impacts those financial institutions, some or all of those cash deposits could be at
risk,

The benefils of our Redomestication may not be realized or may be offset in whole or in part by factors that we do not control,

There can be no assurance that all of the goals of our Redomestication will be achievable, particularly as the achievement of the benefits are, in many
important respects, subject to factors that we do not control, These factors would include such things as the reactions of third parties with whom we enter into
contracts and do business and the reactions of investors, analysts, and UK. and U.S. taxing and other autherities.

Our offective tax rates and the benefits from our Redomestication are also subject to a variety of other factors, many of which are beyond our ability to
control, such as changes in the rate of economi¢ growth in the UK. and the U.S. and other countries, the financial performance of our business in various
jurisdictions, currency exchange rate fluctuations (especially as between the British pound and the U.S, dollar), and significant changes in trade, monetary or fiscal
policies of the UK. or the U.S,, including changes in interest rates. The impact of these factors, individually and in the aggregate, is difficult to predict, in part
because the occurrence of the events or ¢ircumsiances described in such factors may be (and, in fact, often seem to be) interrelated, and the impact to us of the
oceurrence of any one of these events or circumstances could be compounded or, alternatively, reduced, offset, or more than offset, by the occurrence of one or
more of the other events or circumstances described in such factors,

On September 4, 2013, we received from the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") an executed Closing Agreement pursuant to which the Company and the IRS

agreed that the merger (pursuant to which the Redomestication occurred) did not cause Aon plo o be treated as a U.S. domestic corporation for federal tax

_purposes, This agreement substantially reduced the risk that actions taken to date might cause Aon ple to be treated as a U.S. demestic corporation for federal tax
purposes undsr the current tax statute and regulations. However, the United States Congress, the IRS, the United Kingdom Parliament or UK. tax authorities may
enact new statutory of regulatory provisions that could adversely affect our status as a non-U.S. corporation, or otherwise adversely affect our anticipated global
tax position. Retroactive statutory or regulatory actions have ocourred in the past, and there can be no assurance that any such provisions, if enacted or
promulgated, would not have retroactive application to us, the Redomestication or any subsequent actions. Our net income and cash flow would be reduced if we

“were to be subject to U.S. corporate income tax as a domestic corporation. In addition, any future amendments to the current income tax treaties between the
United Kingdom and other jurisdictions (including the United States), or any new statutory or regulatory provisions that might limit our ability te take advantage of
any such treaties, could subject us to increased taxation.

Our global effective tax rate is subject to a variety of different factors, which could create volatility in that rate, expose us to greater than aniicipated tax
liahilities and couse us to adjust previously recognized tax assets and liabilities.

We are subject to income taxes in the UK., U.S. and many other jurisdictions. As a result, our global effective tax rate from period to period can be affected
by many factors, including changes in tax legislation, our global mix of earnings, the tax characteristics of our income, the transfer pricing of revenues and costs,
acquisitions and dirpositions and the portion of the income of non-U.8. subsidiarics that we expect to remit to the U.8, Significant judgment is required in
determining our worldwide provision for income taxes, and our determination of our tax liability is always subject to review by applicable tax authorities.

We believe that our Redomestication and related transactions should support our ability to maintain a competitive global tax rate because the UK. has
implemented a dividend exemption system that generally does not subject non-U.K. earnings to UK. tax when such earnings are repatriated to the UK. in the form
of dividends from non-U K. subsidiaries. This should allow us to optimize our capital allocation and deploy efficient fiscal structures. However, we cannot provide
any assurances as to
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what our tax rate will be in any period because of, among other things, uncertainty regarding the nature and extent of our business activities in any particular
jurisdiction in the fature and the tax laws of such jurisdictions, as well as changes in U.S. and other tax laws, treatics and regulations, Our actual global tax rate
may vaty from our expectation and that variance may be material. Additionalty, the tax laws of the UK. and other jurisdictions could change in the future, and
such changes could cause a material change in our tax rate.

We also could be subject to future andits conducted by foreign and domestic tax authorities, and the resolution of such andits could impact our tax rate in
future periods, as would any reclassification or other matter (such as changes in applicable accounting rules) that increases the amounts we have provided for
income taxes in our congolidated financial statements. There can be no assurance that we would be successful in attempting to mitigate the adverse impacts
resulting from any changes in law, audits and other matters. Our inability to mitigate the negative consequences of any changes in the law, audits and other matters
could cause our global tax rats to increase, our use of cash to increase and our financial condition and results of operations to suffer.

Changes in our accounting esiimates and assumptions cowld negatively affect owr financial position and results of operatios.

We prepare our consolidated financial statetents in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These accounting principles require us to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of our financial statements. We are also
required to make certain judgments that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during each reporting period. We periodically evaluate our estimates
and assumptions including, but not limited to, those relating to restructuring, pensions, recoverability of assets ineluding customer receivables, contingencies,
share-based payments, income taxes and estimates and assumptions used for our long term outsourcing contracts, We base our estimates on historical experience
and various assumptions that we belisve to be reasonable based on specific circumstances. These assumptions and estimates involve the exercise of judgment and
discretion, which may evolve over time in Light of operational experience, regulatory direction, developments in accounting principles and other factors. Actual
results couid differ from these estimates, or changes in assumptions, estimates or policies or the developments in the business or the application of accounting
principles related to long-term contracts may change our initial estimates of future contract results, which could materially affect the Conselidated Staternents of
Income, Comprehensive Income, Financial Position, Shareholders' Equity and Cash Flows.

Wa may be required to record goodwill or other long-lived asset impairment charges, which conld result in a significant charge to earnings.

Under generally accepted aceousting principles, we review our long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may ot be recoverable. Goodwill is assessed for impairment at least annually. Factors that may be considered in assessing whether goodwill or
intangible assets may not be recoverable include a decline in our share price or market capitalization, reduced estimates of future cash flows and slower growth
rates in our industry. We may experience unforeseen citcumstances that adversely affect the value of our goodwill or intangible assets and (rigger an evaluation of
the recoverability of the recorded goodwill and intangible assets. Future goodwill or other long-lived asset impairment charges could materially impact our
consolidated financial statements.

We are a holding company and, thevefore, may not be able to receive dividends or other payments in needed amounts from our subsidiaries.

Our principal assets are the shares of capital stock and indebtedness of our subsidiaries. We rely on dividends, interest and other payments from these
subsidiaries to meet our obligations for paying principal and interest on outstanding debt obligation, paying dividends to sharsholders, repurchasing ordinary shares
and cotporate expenses. Certain of our subsidiaries are subject to regulatory requitements of the jurisdictions in which they operate or other restrictions that may
limit the amounts that these subsidiaries can pay in dividends or other payments to us. Ne assurance can be given that there will not be further changes in law,
regulatory actions or other circumstances that could resttict the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends. In addition, due to differences in tax rates, repatriation
of funds from certain countries into the UK. through the U.S. could have unfavorable tax ramifications for us. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that our
subsidiaries may be able to make timely payments to us in order for us to mest our obligations.
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Legal and Regulatory Risks

We are subject to E&Q claims against us as well as other contingencies and legal proceedings, some of which, if determined unfavorably to us, could have g
material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of a business line or the Company as a wh)le,

We assist our clients with various matters, including placing of insurance and reinsurance coverage and handling related claims, consulting on various hunian
resources matters, providing actuarial services, investment consulting and asset management services, and outsourcing various human resources fumctions. E&O
claims against us may allege our potential liability for damages arising from these services. E&O claims could include, for example, the failure of our employees
or sub-agents, whether negligently or intentionally, to place coverage correctly or notify carriers of claims on behalf of clients or to provide insurance carriers with
complete and accurate information refating to the risks being insured, the failure to give error-free advice in our consulting business or the failure to correctly
execute transactions in the human resources outsourcing and benefits administration businesses. It is not always possible to prevent and detect errors and
omissions, and the precautions we take may not be effective in all cases. In addition, we are subject to other types of claims, litigation and proceedings in the
ordinary course of business, which along with E&Q claims, may seek damages, including punitive damages, in amounts that could, if awarded, have a material
adverse impact on the Company's financial position, eatnings, and cash flows. In addition to potential liability for monetary damages, such claims or outcomes
could harm our reputation or divert management resources away from operating our business.

We have historically purchased, and intend to continue to purchase, insurance to cover E&O claims and other insurance to provide protection against certain
losses that arise in such matters, However, we have exhausted or materially depleted our coverage under some of the policies that protect us for certain years and,
consequently, are self-insured or materially self-insured for some historical claims. Accruals for these exposures, and related insurance receivables, when
applicable, have been provided to the extent that losses are deemed probable and are reasonably estimable. These aceruals and receivables are adjusted from time
to time as developments warrant, and may also be adversely affected by disputes we may have with our insurers over coverage. Amounts related to settlement
provisions are recorded in Other general expenses in the Consolidated Statemtents of Income. Discussion of some of these claims, lawsuits, and proceedings are
contained in the notes (o the conselidated financial statements.

In addition, we provide a variety of guarantees and indemnifications to our customers and others. The maximum potential amount of future payments
represents the notional amounts that could become payable under the guarantees and indemnifications if there were a total default by the guaranteed parties,
without consideration of possible recoveries under recourse provisions or other methods. Any anticipated payment amounts under guarantees and indemnifications
that are deemed to be probable and reasonably estimable are included in our consolidated financial statements, These smounts may not represent actual future
payments, if any, for these guarantees and indemnifications.

The ultimate putcome of these claims, lawsuits, proceedings, guarantees and indemnifications cannot be ascertained, and liabilities in indeterminate amounts
may be imposed on us. I¢ is possible that future Statements of Financtal Position, resulis of operations or cash flows for any particular quarterly or annual period
could be materially affected by an unfavorable resolution of these matters,

Qur businesses are subject to extensive governmental regulation, which could reduce our profitability, limit our growth, or increase compelition.

Our businesses are subject to extensive legal and regulatory oversight throughout the world, . Iuding the UK. Companies Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated by the FCA, the U.5. securities [aws, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC, and a variety of other laws, rules and regulations addressing, among other things, licensing, data
privacy and protection, wage-and-hour standards, employment and labor relations, anti-competition, anfi-corruption, curtency, reserves, government contracting
and the amount of local investment with respect to our operations in certain countries, This legal and regulatory ovetsight could reduce our profitability or limit our
growth by increasing the costs of legal and regulatory compliance; by limiting or restricting the products or services we sell, the markets we enter, the methods by
which we sell our products and services, or the prices we can charge for our services, and the form of compensation we can accept from our clients, carriers and
third parties; or by subjecting our businesses to the possibility of legal and regulatory actions or proceedings.

The global nature of our pperations increases the complexity and cost of compliance with laws and regulations, including training and employee expenses,
adding to our cost of doing business. In addition, many of these laws and regulations may have differing or conflicting legal standards across jurisdictions,
increasing further the complexity and cost of compliance, In emerging markets and other jurisdictions with less developed legal systems, local laws and regulations
may not be established
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with sufficiently clear and reliable guidance to provide us adequate assurance that we are operating our business in a compliant manner with all required licenses or
that our rights are otherwise protected. In addition, certain laws and regulations, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act {"FCPA") and the Foreign Account Tax
Compliance provisions of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act ("FATCA") in the U.S. and the Bribery Act of 2010 {"U.K. Bribery Act") inthe UK.,
impact our operations outside of the legislating country by imposing requitements for the conduct of overseas operations, and in a number of cases, requiring
compliance by foreign subsidiaries.

For example, FATCA has resulted in, and will likely continue to tesult in, increased compliance cosis. FATCA requires certain of our subsidiaties, affiliates
and other entities to obtain valid FATCA docurentation from payees prior to remitting certain payments to such payees. [n the event we do not obtain valid
FATCA documents, we may be obliged to withhold a portion of such payments. This obligazion is shared with our customers and clients who may fail to comply,
in whole or in part. In such circumstances, we may ineur FATCA compliance costs including withholding taxes, interest and penalties, [n addition, regulatory
initiatives and changes in the regulations and guidance promulgated under FATCA may increase our costs of operations, and could adversely affect the market for
our services as intermediaries, which could adversely affect our operations, results of operations and financial condition,

In addition (o the complexity of the laws and regulations themselves, the development of new laws and regulations, changes in application o interpretation
of taws and regulations and our continued operational changes and development into new jurisdictions and new service offerings also increases our legal and
tegulatory compliance complexity as well as the type of governmental oversight to which we may be subject. These changes in laws and regulations could mandate
significant and costly changes to the way we implement our services and solutions or could impose additional Heensure requitements ot costs to our operativns and
services, Furthermore, as we enter new jurisdictions or lines of businesses and other developments in our services, we may become subject to additional types of
laws and policies and governmental oversight and supervision such as those applicable to the financial lending or other service institutions.

In all jurisdictions, the applicable laws and regulations are subject to amendment or interpretation by regulatory authorities. Generally, such authorities are
vested with relatively broad discretion to grant, renew and revoke licenses and approvals and to implement regulations, Accordingly, we may have a license
tevoked, be unable to obtain new licenses and be precluded or temporarily suspended from carrying on or developing some or all of our activities or otherwise
fined or penalized in a given jurisdiction. No assurances can be given that our business can further develop or continue to be conducted in any given jurisdiction as
it has been conducted in the past.

1n addition, new regulatory or industry developments could create an increase in competition that could adversely affect us. These developments include:

«  the selling of insurance by insurance companies directly to insureds;

+  changes int our business compensation mode! as a result of regulatory actions or changes;

«  the establishment of programs in which state-sponsored entities provide property insurance in catastrophe prene areas or other alternative types of
coverage;

«  changes in regulations relating to health and welfare plans, defined contribution and defined benefit plans, and investment consulting and asset
management,

+  additional regulations promulgated by the FCA in the U.K., or other regulatory bodies in jurisdictions in which we operate; or

«  additional requirements respecting data privacy and data usage in jurisdictions in which we operate that may increase our ¢osts of compliance ahd
potentially reduce the manner in which data can be used by us to develop or further our product offerings.

Changes in the regulatory scheme, or even changes in how existing regulations are interpreted, could have an adverse impact on our results of operations by
timiting revenue streams or increasing costs of compliance. Likewise, increased government involvement in the insurance or reinsurance markets could curtail or
teplace our opportunities and negatively affuut our resuits of operations and financial condition.

With respect to our Risk Solutions segment, our business' regulatory oversight generally also includes the licensing of insurance brokers and agents,
managing general agency or managing general underwriting operations and thied party administrators and the regulation of the handling and investment of client
fuds held in a fiduciary capacity. Our continuing ability to provide insurance broking and thitd party administration in the Jjurisdictions in which we currently
operate depends on our compliance with the rutes and tegulations promulgated from time to time by the regulatory authorities in cach of these jurisdictions, Also,
we can be affected indirectly by the governmental regulation and supervision of insurance companies, For instance, if we are providing ot managing gencral
underwriting services for an insurer, we may have to contend with ’
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regulations affecting our client. Further, regulation affecting the insurance companies with whom our brokers place business can affect how we conduct those
operations.

Services provided in our HR Solutions segment are also the subject of ever-evolving government regulation, either because the services provided to or
businesses conducted by our clients are regulated directly or because third parties upor whom we rely to provide services to clients are regulated, thereby indirectly
impacting the maunner in which we provide services to those clients. In particular, our health care exchange business depends upon the private sector of the United
States insurance system, its role in financing heatth care delivery, and insurance carriers’ use of, and payment of commissions to, agents, brokers and other
organizations to market and sell individual and family health insurance products and plans. Uncertainty regarding, or any changes to, state or federal law, or the
interpretation of such law by applicable regulatory agencies, including the effects of health care reform by the U.S. government, could delay client adoption of our
healthcare exchanges, impair our ability to retain clients who have adopted our healthcare exchanges or cause insurance carriers to alter or eliminate the products
and plans that they offer or atiempt to move members into new products or plans for which we receive lower commissions. In addition, more generally within our
HR Solutions segment, changes in laws, government regulations or the way those regulations are interpreted in the jurisdictions in which we operate could affect
the viability, value, use or delivery of benefits and human resources programs, including changes in regulations relating to health and welfare (such as medical}
plans, defined contribution (such as 401(k)) plans, defined benefit (such as pension) plans or payrol! delivery, may adversely affect the demand for, or profitability
of, our services.

If we violate the laws and regulation to which we are subject, we could be subject to fines, penalties or criminal sanctions and could be prohibited from
conducting business in one or more countries. There can be no assurance that our employees, contractors or agents will not violate these laws and regulations,
causing an adverse effect on our operations and financial condition.

In addition, our businesses and operations are subject to heightened regulatory oversight and scrutiny, which may lead to additional regulatory investigations
or enforcement actions. As regulators and other government agencies continue to examine the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, there is no assurance
that consent orders or other enforcement actions will not be issued by them in the future. These and other initiatives from naiional, state and local officialy may
subject the Company to judgiments, settlements, fines or penalties, or cause the Company to be required to restructure its operations and activities, all of which
could lead to reputational issues, or higher operational costs, thereby adversely affecting our business, financial condition or operating results,

Failure to protect our intellectual property rights, or allegations that we have infringed on the intellectual property rights of others, could harm our
reputation, ability to compete effectively and financial condition.

To protect our intellectual property rights, we rely on a combination of trademark laws, copyright laws, patent laws, trade secret protection, confidentiality
agreements and other contractual arrangements with our affiliates, employees, clients, strategic partners and others, However, the protective steps that we take may
be inadequate to deter misappropriation of our proprietary information, In addition, we may be unable to detect the unauthorized use of, or take appropriate steps to
enforce, our inteilectual property rights. Further, effective trademark, copyright, patent and trade secret protection may not be available in every country in which
we offer our services or competitors may develop products similar to our products that do not conflict with our related intellectual property rights. Failuse to
pratect our intellectual property adequately could harm our reputation and affect our ability to compete effectively.

In addition, to protect or enforce our intellectual property rights, we may initiate [itigation against third parties, such as infringement suits or interference
proceedings. Third parties may assert intellectual property rights claims against us, which may be costly to defend, could require the payment of damages and
could limit our ability to use or offer cerfain technologies, products or other intellectual property. Any intellectual property claims, with or without merit, could be
expensive, take significant time and divert management's attention from other business concerns, Successful challenges against us could require us to modify or
discontinue our use of technology or business processes where such use is found to infringe or violate the rights of others, or require us to purchase licenses from
third parties, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

As a result of increased shareholder approval requirements, we have less flexibility as an English public limited company with respect to certain aspecis of
capital management.

English law imposes some restrictions on certain corporate actions by which previously, as a Delaware corporation, we were not constrained. For example,
English law provides that a board of directors may only allot, or issue, securities with the prior authorization of shareholders, such authorization being up to the
aggregate nontinal amount of shares and for a maximum period of five years, each as specified in the articles of association or relevant shareholder resolution. The

current authorization is effective until the earlier of our next annual general meeting or August 31, 2016, This authorization will need to be renewed by our
sharcholders periodically and we intend to renew this authorization at each annual general meeting.

15




English law also generally provides shareholders with preemptive rights when new shares are issued for cash; however, it is possible for the articles of
association, or shareholders in general meeting, to exclude preemptive rights. Such an exclusion of preemptiva rights may be for a maximum period of up to five
years as specified in the articles of association or relevant shareholder resolution. The current exclusion is efféctive until the-garlier of our next annual general
meeting or August 31, 2016, This exclusion would need to be renewed by our sharchelders periodically and we intend to renew this exclusion at each antual
general meeting,

English law also generally prohibits a company froim repurchasing its own shares by way of "off market purchases" without the prior apptoval of our
shareholders, Such approval lasts for a maximum period of up to five years, Our shares are traded on the NYSE, which is not a recognized investinent exchange in
the U K. Consequently, any repurchase of our shares is currently considered an "off market purchase." The current authorization expires on June 17, 2020,
Renewal of this authorization will be sought periodicatly.

The enforcement of civil liabilities against us may be more difficult.

Because we are a public limited company incorporated under English law, investors could ¢xperience more difficulty enforcing judgments obtained against
us in U.S, courts than would have been the case for U.S. judgments obtained against Aon Corporation. In addition, it may be more difficult {or impossible) to bring
some types of claims against us in courts in England than it would be to bring similar claims against a U.S, company in a U.S. court.

We are a public limited compony incorporated under the laws of England and Wales. Therefore, it may not be possible to effect service of process upon us
within the United States in order to enforce judgments of U.S. courts against us based on the civil linbility provisions of the U.S. federal securities laws.

There is doubt as to the enforceability in England and Wales, in original actions or in actions for enfercement of judgments of U.S. courts, of civil liabilities
solely based on the U.S. federal securities laws. The English courts will, however, treat any amount payable by us under the U.S. judgment as a debt and new
proceedings can be commenced in the English courts to enforce this debt against us. The following criteria must be satisfied in order for the English court to
enforce the debt created by the U.S. judgment:

+  the U.S. judgment must be for a debt or definite sum of money;
+  the U.S. judgment must be final and conclusive,
+  the U.S. court must, in the circumstances of the case, have had jurisdiction according to the English rules of private international law,

+  the U.S, judgment must not have been obtained by fraud;
+  the enforcement of the U.S. judgment must not be contrary to UK. public pelicy; and
+  the proceedings in which the U,S. judgment was obtained must not have been conducted contrary to the rules of natural justice.

Operational and Commercial Risks

Qur success depends on our ability to retain and attract experienced and qualified personnel, including our senior management team and other professional
personnel,

We depend, in material part, upon the members of our senior management team who possess extensive knowledge ai.. a deep understanding of our business
and our strategy. The unexpected loss of services of any of our senior managetnent team could have a disruptive effect adversely impacting our ability to manage
our business effectively and execute our business strategy. Competition for experienced professional personnel is intense, and we are constantly working to retain
and attract these professionals. If we cannot successfully do so, our business, operating results and financial condition could be adversely affected. We must
develop our personnel {o provide succession plans capable of maintaining continuity in the midst of the inevitable unpredictability of personnel retention. While we
have plans for key management succession and long-term compensation plans designed to retain our senior employees, if our succession plans do not operate
effectively, our business could be adversely affected,

Our global operations expose us to various international risks that could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are conducted globally. Accordingly, we are subject to legat, economic and market risks associated with operating in, and sourcing from,
foreign countries, including;

« difficulties in staffing and managing our foreign offices, including due to unexpected wage inflation or job turnover, and the increased travel,
infrastructure and legal and compliance costs associated with muitiple international locations;

+  hyperinflation in certain foreign countries;

+  imposition or incrzase of investment and other restrictions by foreign governments;
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» longer payment cycles;

+  preater difficulties in accounts receivable collection;

+ insufficient demand for our services in foreign jurisdictions;

+ our ability to execute effective and efficient cross-border sourcing of services on behalf of our clients;
+  restrictions »m the import and export of technologies; and

*  trade barriers.

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could result in declines in business and increases in claims that could adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.

We are exposed to various risks arising out of natural disasters, including earthquakes, hurricanes, fires, floods, ternadoes, climate events or weather
patterns, such as El Ni i o and the recent significant winter storm events in the UK. and U.S., and pandemic health events, as well as man-made disasters,
including acts of terrorism, military actions and cyber-terroristm. The continved threat of terrorism and ongoing military actions may cause significant volatility in
global financial markets, and a natural or man-made disaster could trigger an economic downturn in the areas directly or indirectly affected by the disaster, These
consequences could, among other things, resull in a decline in business and increased claims from those areas. They could also result in reduced underwriting
capacity, making it more difficult for our Risk Solutions professionals to place business. Disasters also could disrupt public and private infrastructure, including
communications and financial services, which could disrupt our normal business operations.

A natural or man-made disaster also could disrupt the operations of our counterparties or result in increased prices for the products and services they provide
to us. In addition, a disaster could adversely affect the value of the assets in our investment portfolio. Finally, a natural or man-made disaster could increase the
incidence or severity of E&O claims against us,

Our inability to successfully recover should we experience a disaster or other business continuity problem could cause material financial loss, loss of humarn
capital, reguiatory actions, reputational harm or legal liability.

Our operations are dependent upon our ability to protect our personnel, offices and technology infrastructure against damage from business continuity events
that could have a significant disruptive effect on our operations. Should we experience a local or regional disaster or other business continuity problem, such as an
earthquake, hurricane, terrorist attack, pandemic, security breaches, power loss, telecommunications failure or other natural or man-made disaster, our continued
success will depend, in part, on the availability of our personnel, our office facilities, and the proper functioning of existing, new or upgraded computer systems,
telecomumunications and other related systems and operations. In events like these, while our operational size, the multiple locations from which we operate, and
our existing back-up systems provide us with some degree of flexibility, we still can experience near-term operational challenges with regard to particular areas of
our operations. We could potentially lose access to key executives and personnel, client data or experience material adverse interruptions to our operations or
delivery of services to our clients in a disaster recovery scenario,

We regularly assess and take steps to improve upon our existing business continuity plans and key management succession. However, a disaster on 2
significant scale or affecting certain of our key operating areas within or across regions, or our inability to successfully recover should we experience a disaster or
other tusiness continuity problem, could materially interrupt our business operations and cause material financial loss, loss of human capital, regulatory actions,
reputational harm, damaged client relationships or legal liability.

We rely on complex information technology systems and networks fo operate our business. Any significant system or network disruption due to o breach in
the security of our information technology systems could have a negative impact on our reputation, operations, sales and operating resulls.

We rely on the efficient, uninterrupted and secure operation of complex information technology systems and networks, some of which are within the
conpany and some are outsourced. All information technology systems are potentially vulnerable to damage or interruption from a variety of sources, including
but not limited to cyber-attacks, computer viruses and security breaches, We regularly experience attacks to our systems and networks and have from time fo time
experienced cybersecurity breaches, such as computer viruses, unauthorized parties gaining access to our information technology systems and similar incidents,
which to date have not had a material impact on our business, If we are unable to efficiently and effectively maintain and vpgrade our system safeguards we may
incur unexpected costs and certain of our systems may become more vulnerable to unauthorized access, In the future, these types of incidents could result in
intellectual property er other confidential information being lost or stolen, including client, employee or company data. In addition, we may not be able to detect
breaches in our information technology systems or assess the severity or impact of a breach in a timely manner.

We have implemented various measures to manage our risks related to system and network security and disruptions, but a security breach or a significant and
extended disruption in the fumctioning of our information technology systems could damage

17




our reputation and cause us to lose clients, adversely impact our operations, sales and operating results and require us to incur significant expense to address and
remediate or otherwise resolve such issues, Additionaily, in erder to maintain the level of security, service and reliability that our clients require, we may be
tequired to make significant additional investments in our online methods of delivering our services.

Improper disclosure of confidential, personal or proprietary data could result in reguintory scrutiny, legal liability or harm our reputation.

One of our significant responsibilities is to maintain the security and privacy of our employees’ and clienis' confidential and proprietary information and, in
the case of our HR Solutions clients, confidential information about clients' employees’ compensation, medical information and other personally identifiable
information, We maintain policies, procedures and technological safeguards designed to protect the security and privacy of this information. Nonetheless, we
cannot eliminate the risk of human error ot inadequate safeguards against employee or vender malfeasance or cyber-attacks that could result in improper access to
ot disclosure of confidential, personal or proprietary information. Such-access or disclosure could harm our reputation and subject s to Liability under our contracts
and laws and regulations that protect personal data, tesulting in increased costs or loss of revenue, Furthermore, our clients may not be receptive to services
delivered through our information technology systems and netwotks due to concerns regarding transaction security, user privacy, the reliability and quality of
internet service and other reasons. The release of confidential information as a result of & security breach could also lead to litigation or other procecdings against
us by affected individuals or business partaers, or by regulators, and the outcome of such proceedings, which could include penalties or fines, could have a
significant negative impact on our business,

In many jurisdictions, including in the European Union and the United States, we are subject to laws and regulations relating to the collection, use, retention,
security and transfer of this information. These laws and regulations are frequently changing and are becoming increasingly complex and sometimes conflict
among the various jurisdictions and countries in which we provide services bath in terms of substance and in terms of enforceability. This makes compliance
challenging and expensive, Our failure to adhere to or successfully implement processes in response to changing regulatory requirements it this area could result in
legal liability or impairiment to our reputation in the marketplace. Further, regulatory initiatives in the area of data protection are more frequently including
provisions allowing authorities to impose substantial fines and penalties, and therefore, failure to corply could also have a significant financial impact.

Our business performance and growth plans could be negatively affected if we are not able 1o effectively apply technology in driving value for our clients
through technology-based solutions or gain internal efficiencies through the effective application of lechnology and related tools, Conversely, investmenis in
innovative product afferings may fail to yield sufficient return to cover their investinents.

Our success depends, in patt, on our ability to develop and implement technology solutions that anticipate and keep pace with rapid and continuing changes
in technology, industry standards and client preferences. We may not be successful [n anticipating or responding to these developments on a timely and cost-
effective basis, and our ideas may not be accepted in the marketplace. Additionally, the effort to gain technological expertise and develop new technologies in our
businiess requites us to incur significant expenses. If we cannot offer new technologies as quickly as our competitors or if our competitors develop more cost-
effective technologics, it could have a material adverse effect on our ability to obtain and complete client engagements. For example, we have invested
significantly in the development of Inpoint and GRIP, repositories of global insurance and reinsurance placement information, which we use to drive results for our
clients in the insurance and reinsurance placement process. Qur competitors are developing competing databases, and their success in this space may impact our
ability to differentiate our services to our clients through the use of unique technelogical solutions. Likewise, we have invested significantly in our HR BPO
business and platform. Innovations in software, cloud computing or other technologies that alter how these services are delivered could significantly undermine our
investment in this business if we are slow or unable to take advantage of these developments.

We are continually developing and investing in innovative and novet service offerings that we betieve will address needs that we identify in the markets,
Nevertheless, for those efforts to produce meaningfil value, we are teliant on a number of other factars, some of which our outside of our control. For example, our
HR Solutions segment has invested substantial time and resources in launching health care exchanges under the belief that these exchanges will serve a useful role
i helping corporations and individuals in the U.S. manage theit growing health care expenses. In crder for these exchanges to be successful, health care insurers
and corporate and individual participants have to deem them suitable, and whether those parties will (ind them suitable will be subject to their own particular
circumstances.
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I owr clients or third parties are not satisfied with our services, we may face additional cosi, loss of profit opportunities and damage to owr reputation or
fegal lability.

We depend, fo a large exten?, on our relationships with our clients and our reputation for high quality broking, risk management and HR solutions, so that we
can understand our clients' needs and deliver solutions and services that are tailored to satisfy these needs. If a client is not satisfied with our services, it may be
maore damaging to our business than to other businesses and could cause us o incur additional costs and impair profitability. Many of our clients are businesses that
band together in industry groups and/or trade assogiations and actively share information among themselves about the quality of service they receive from their
vendors. Accordingly, poor service to one client may negatively impact our relationships with multiple other clients. Moreover, if we fail to meet our ¢ontractual
obligations, we could be subject to legal liability or loss of client relationships.

The nature of much of our work, especially our actuarial services in our HR Solutions business, involves assumptions and estimates ¢oncerning future
events, the actual outcome of which we cannot know with certainty in advance, Similarly, in our investment consulting business, we may be measured based on
our track record regarding judgments and advice on investments that are susceptible to influences unknown at the time the advice was given, In addition, we could
make computational, software programming or data entry or management srrors. A client may claim it suffered losses due to reliance on our consulting advice. In
addition to the risks of liability exposure and increased costs of defense and insurance premiums, claims arising from our professional services may produce
publicity that could hurt our reputation and business and adversely affect our ability to secure new business,

Damage to our reputation could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our reputation is a key assef of the Company, We advise our clients on and provide services related to a wide range of subjects and our ability to attract and
retain clients is highly dependent upon the external perceptions of our level of service, trustworthiness, business practices, financial condition and other subjective
qualities, Negative perceptions or publicity regarding these matters or others could erode trust and confidence and damage our reputation among existing and
potential clients, which could make it difficult for us to attract new clients and maintain existing ones as mentioned above. Negative public opinion could also
result from actual or alleged conduct by us or those currently or formerly associated with us in any number of activities or circumstances, including operations,
regulatory compliance, and the use and protection of data and systems, satisfaction of client expectations, and from actions taken by regulators or others in
response to such conduct, This damage to our reputation could further atfect the confidence of our clients, rating agencies, regulators, stockholders and the other
parties in a wide range of transactions that are important to our business having a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results,

We rely on third parties to perform key functions of our business operations and lo provide services to our cllents. These third parties may act in ways thai
could harm our business.

We rely on third parties, and in some cases subcontractors, to provide services, data and information such as technology, information security, funds
transfers, data processing, and administration and support functions that are critical to the operations of our business. These third parties in¢lude correspondents,
agents and other brokerage and intermediaries, insurance markets, data providers, plan trustees, payroll service providers, sofiware and system vendors, health plan
providers, investment managers and providers of human resource functions such as recruiters and trainers, ameng others. As we do not fully control the actions of
these third parties, we are subject to the risk that their decisions may adversely impact us and replacing these service providers could create significant delay and
expense. A failure by the third parties to comply with service level agreement or regulatory or legal requirements, in a high quality and timely manner, particularly
during periods of our peak demand for their services, could result in economic and reputational harm to us. In addition, these third parties face their own
technology, operating, business and economic risks, and any significant failures by tiem, including the improper use or disclosure of our confidential client,
emnployee, or company information, could cause harm to our reputation, An interruption in er the cessation of service by any service provider as a result of systems
failures, capacity constraints, financial difficulties or for any other reason could disrupt our operations, impact our ability to offer ¢ertain products and services, and
result in contractual or regulatory penalties, liability claims from clients and/or employees, damage to our reputation and harm to our business.

Our business is exposed to risks associated with the handling of client funds.

Our Risk Solutions business collects premiums from insureds and remits the premiums to the respective insurers. We also collect ciaims or refunds from
insurers on behalf of insureds, which are remitted to the insureds. Similarly, part of our HR Solutions' eutsourcing business handles payroll processing and
retirement and pension administration for several of cur clients. Consequently, at any given time, we may be holding and managing funds of our clients and, in the
case of HR Solutions, their employees, while payroll, retirement plan funds or pension payments are being processed. This function creates a risk of loss
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arising from, among other things, fraud by ermployees or third parties, execution of unauthorized transactions or erfors relating to transaction processing. We are
also poteatially at risk in the event the financial institution in which we hold these funds suffery any kind of insolvency or liquidity event. The occurrence of any of
these types of events in connection with this function could cause us financial loss and reputational harm,

In conpection with the implementation of our corporate sirategies, we face risks associated with the acquisition or disposition of businesses, the entry inlo
new lines of business, ihe integration of acquired businesses and the growth and development of these businesses.

In pursuing our corpotate sirategy, we may acquire ather businesses or dispose of or exit businesses we currently own. The success of this strategy is
dependent upon our ability to identify appropriate acquisition and disposition targets, negotiate transactions on favorable terms, complete transactions and, in the
cage of acquisitions, successfully integrate them into our existing businesses. If a proposed transaction is niot consumutated, the time and resources spent in
researching it could adversely result in missed opportunities to locate and acquire another business. If acquisitions are made, there can be no assurance that we will
realive the anticipated benefits of such acquisitions, including, but not limited to, revenue growth, operational efficiencies or expected synergies, If we dispose of
of otherwise exit certain businesses, there can be no assurance that we will not incur certain disposition retated charges, or that we will be able to reduce overhead
related to the divested assets,

From time to time, either through acquisitions or internal development, we enter lines of business or offer new products and services within existing lines of
business. These new lines of business or new products and services present the Company with additional risks, particutarly in instances where the markets are not
fully developed. Such risks include the investment of significant time and resoutces; the possibility that these efforis will be not be successful; the possibility that
marketplace does not accept our products of services, or that we are unable to retain clients that adopt our new products or services; and the risk of additional
liabilities associated with these efforts, In addition, many of the businesses that we aequire and develop will likely have significantly smaller scales of operations
prior to the implementation of our growth strategy. If we are not able to manage the growing complexity of these businesses, including improving, refining or
revising our systems and operational practices, and enlarging the scale and scope of the businesses, our business may be adversely affected, Other risks include
developing knowledge of and experience in the new business, integrating the acquired business into cur systems and culture, recruiting professionals and
developing and capitalizing on new relationships with experienced market participants. External factors, such as compliance with new or revised regulations,
competitive alternatives and shifting market preferences may also impact the successful implementation of a new line of business, Failure to manage these risks in
the acquisition or development of new businesses could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks relating Primarily to our Risk Selutions Segment

Results in our Risk Solutions segment mey fluctuate due to many factors, including cyclical or permanent changes in the insurance and reinsurance markets
outside of onr control,

Results in our Risk Solutions segment have historically been affected by significant fluctuations arising from uncertainties and changes in the industries in
which we operate. A significant portion of our revenue consists of commissions paid to us out of the premiurms that insurers and reinsurers charge our clients for
coverage. We have no control over premium rates, and our revenues and profitability are subject to change to the extent that premium rates fluctuate or trend ina
particular direction, The potential for changes in premium rates is significant, due to pricing cyclicality in the commercial insurance and reinsurance markets,

In addition to movements in premium rates, our ability to generate premium-based commission revenue may be challenged by:

+  the growing availability of alternative methods for clients to meet their risk-protection needs, including a greater willingness on the part of corperations to
"self-ingure,” the use of so-called "captive" insurers, and the development of capital markets-based solutions and other alternative capital sources for
traditional insurance and reinsurance needs that increase matket capacity, increase competition and put pressure on pricing;

+  fluctuation in the need for insurance as the economic downtum continues, as clients either go out of business or scale back their operations, and thus
reduce the amount of insurance, they procure;

«  the level of compensation, as a percentage of premium, that insurance carriers are willing to compensate brokers for placement activity;

«  the growing desire of clients to move away from variable commission rates and instead compensate brokers based upon flat fees, which can negatively
impact us as fees are not generally indexed for inflation and do not automatically increase with premium as does commission-based compensation; and
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»  competition from insurers seeking to sell their products directly to consumers, including online sales, without the involvement of an insurance broker.

In addition, our increasing focus on new product offerings within the Risk Solutions space exposes us to additional risks, For example, Inpoint and GRIP are
relatively new offerings, which may face challenges within the insurance industry or conversely, if successful, may face increasing pressure from compstitors who
develop competing offerings. As our business, like the economy as a whole, becomes more technology focused, the speed at which our products are subject to
challenge or becoming outdated is consistently increasing.

Qur results may be adversely qffected by changes in the mode of compensation in the inswrance industry,

In the past, the Attorney General of New York brought charges against members of the insurance brokerage community, These actions have created
uncertainty concerning longstanding methods of compensating insurance brokers, Given that the insurance brokerage industry has faced scrutiny from regulators in
the past over its compensation practices, it is possible that regulators may choose to revisit the same or other practices in the future. If they do so, compliance with
new regulations along with any sanctions that might be imposed for past practices deemed improper could have an adverse impact on our future results of
operations and inflict significant reputational harm on our business.

Rr‘slks retuting Primarily to our HR Solutions Segment

The profitability of our outsourcing and consulting engagements with clienis may not meet our expectations due to unexpected costs, cost overruns, early
contract terminations, wnreglized assumptions used in our contract bidding process or the inability to maintain our prices.

In our HR Solutions segment, our profitability is highly dependert upon our ability to controf our costs and improve our efficiency. As we adapt to change in
our business, adapt to the regulatory environment, enter into new engagements, acquire additional busingsses and take on new employees in new locations, we may
not be able to manage ouwr large, diverse and changing workforce, control our costs oy improve our efficiency.

Most new outsourcing arrangements undergo an implementation process whereby our systems and processes are customized to match a client's plans and
programs, The cost of this process is estimated by us and often partially funded by our clients. If our actual lmplementat:on expense exceeds our estimate or if the
ongoing service cost is greater than anticipated, the client contract may be less profitable than expected.

Even though outsourcing clients typically sign long-term contracts, some of these contracts may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by our
client upon 90 to 360 days' written notice. Our outsourcing clients are generally required to pay a termination fee; however, this amount may not be sufficient to
offset the costs we incurred in connection with the implementation and system set-up or fully compensate us for the profit we would have received if the contract
had not been cancelled. A client may choose to delay or terminate a current or anficipated project as a result of factors unrelated to our work product or progress,
such as the business or financial condition of the client or general economic conditions. When any of our engagements are terminated, we may not be able to
eliminate associated ongoing costs or redeploy the affected employees in a timely manner to minimize the impact on profitability. Any increased or unexpected
costs or unanticipated delays in connection with the performance of these engagements, including delays caused by factors outside our control, could have an
adverse effect on our profit margin.

Our profit margin, and therefore our prafitability, is largely a function of the rates we are able to charge for our services and the staffing costs for our
personnel. Accordingly, if we are not able to maintain the rates we charge for our services or appropriately manage the staffing costs of our personnel, we may not
be able to sustain our profit margin and our profitability will suffer, The prices we are able to charge for our services are affected by a number of factors, including
competitive factors, cost of living adjustment provisions, the extent of ongoing clients' perception of our ability to add value through our services and general
econemic conditions. Qur profitability in providing HR BPO services is largely based on our ability to drive cost efficiencies during the term of our contracts for
such services, If we cannot drive suitable cost efficiencies, our profit margins will suffer. Our cost efficiencics may be impacted by factors such as our ability to
transition consultants from completed projects to new assignments, our ability to secure new consulting engagements, our ability to forecast demand for consulting
services (and, consequently, appropriately manage the size and location of our workforee), employee attrition, and the need to devote time and resources fo training
and professional and business development,

We might not be able to achieve the cost savings required to sustain and increase our profif margins in our IR Solutions business.

We provide our outsourcing services over long terms for variable or fixed fees that generally are less than our clients' historical costs to provide for
themselves the services we contract to deliver. Also, clients' demand for cost reductions may
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increase over the term of the agreement. As a result, we beur the risk of increases in the cost of delivering HR outsourcing services to our clients, and our margins
associated with patticular contracts will depend on our ability to control our costs of performance under those contracts and meet our service commitments cost-
effectively. Over time, some of our operating expenses will increase as we invest in additional infrastructure and implement new technologies to maintain our
competitive position and meet out client setvice commitments. We must anticipate and respond to the dynamics of our industry and business by using quality
systems, process management, improved asset utilization and effective supplier management toals. We must do this while cantinuing to grow our business so that
our fixed costs are spread over an increasing revenue base. If we are not able to achieve this, our ability to sustain and increase profitability may be reduced.

In our investment consulting business, we advise or act on behalf of clients regarding their invesiments. The resulls of these investmenis are unceriain and
subject to numerous factors, some af which are within our control and some which are not, Clients that experience logses or lower than expected investmert
returns may leave us for competitors and/or assert claims against us.

Our investiment consulting business provides advice to clients on; investment strategy, which can include advice on setting investment objectives, asset
allocation, and hedging strategics; selection (or removal) of investment managers; the investment in different investiaent instruments and products; and the
selection of other investment service providers such as custodians and transition managers. For some clients, we are responsible for making decisions on these
matters and we may implement such decisions in a fiduciary/agency capacity albeit without assuming title or custody over (ke underlying funds or assets invested.
Asset classes may experience peor absolute performance; third parties we recommend or select, such as investment managers, may underperform their benchmarks
due to poor market performance, negligence or other reasons, resulting in poor investment retutns or fosses of some, or all, of the capital that has been invested.
These losses may be attributable in whole or in part to failutes on our part or to events entirely outside of our control. Regardless of the cause, clients experiencing
losses may assett claims against us, and these claims may be fot significant ameunts, Defending against these claims can involve potentially significant costs,
including legal defense costs, as well as cause substantial distraction and diversion of other resources. Furthermore, our ability to limit ot potential [iability is
restricted in certain jurisdictions and in connection with claims involving breaches of fiduciary/agency duties or other alleged errors or omissions. Client
experiencing losses or lower than expected investment returns may also leave us for our competitors.

Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares

Transfers of the Class A Ordinary Shares may be subject to stamp duty or SDRT in the UK., which would increase the cost of dealing in the Class A
Ordinary Shares.

Stamp duty and/or SDRT are imposed in the U.K. on certain transfers of chargeable securities (which include shares in companies incorporated in the U.K.)
at a rate of 0.5 percent of the consideration paid for the transfer. Certain transfers of shares Lo depositacies or into clearance systems are charged at a higher rate of
1.5 percent.

Our Class A Ordinary Shares are eligible to be held in beok entry form through the facilities of Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). Transfers of shares held
in book entey form thiough DTC will not attract a charge to stamp duty or SDRT in the UK, A transfer of the shares from within the DTC system out of DTC and
any subsequent transfers that occur entitely outside the DTC system will attract 2 charge to stamp duty at a rate of 0.5 percent of any consideration, which is
payable by the teansteree of the shares, Any such duty must be paid (and the relevant transfer document stamped by HMRC) before the transfer can be registered in
the books of Aon UK, If those shares are redeposited into DTC, the redeposit will attract stanp duty or SDRT at a rate of 1.5 percent of the value of the shares.

We have put in place arrangements to require that shares held in certificated form cannot be transferred into the DTC system until the transforor of the shares
has first delivered the shares to a depository specified by us so that SDRT may be collected in connection with the initial delivery to the depository. Any such
shares will be evidenced by a receipt issued by the depository. Before the transfer can be registered in our books, the transferor will also be required to put in the
depository funds to settle the resultant liability to SDRT, which will be charged at a rate of 1.5 percent of the value of the shares,

Follewing the decision of the First Tier Tribunal {Tax Chamber} in HSBC Holdlings ple, The Bant- of New York Mellon Corporation v HMRC 2012 UKFTT
163 (TC) and the announcement by HMRC that it will not seek to appeal the decision, HMRC is no longer enforcing the charge to SDRT on the issue of shares

into either EU or nen-EU depository receipt or clearance systems.

If the Class A Ordinary Shaves are not eligible for continved deposit and clearing within the facilities of DTC, then transactions in our securitles may be
disrupted.

The facilities of DTC are a widely-used mechanism that atlow for rapid electronic transfers of securities between the participants in the DTC system, which
include many large banks and brokerage firms. We believe that prior to the merger
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approximately 99% of the cutstanding shares of common stock of Aon Corporation were held within the DTC system, The Class A Ordinary Shares of Aon plc
are, at present, eligible for deposit and clearing within the DTC system, In connection with the closing of the Redomestication, we entered into arrangements with
DTC whereby we agreed to indemnify DTC for any stamp duty and/or SDRT that may be assessed upon it as a result of its service as a depository and clearing
ageny for our Class A Ordinary Shares. In addition, we have obtained a ruling from HMRC in respect of the stamp duty and SDRT consequences of the
reorganization, and SDRT has been paid in accordance with the terms of this ruling in respect of the deposit of Class A Ordinary Shares with the initial depository.
DTC will generally have discretion to cease to act as a depository and clearing agency for the Class A Ordinary Shares. IFDTC determines at any time that the
Class A Ordinary Shares are not eligible for continued deposit and clearance within its facilities, then we believe the Class A Ordinary Shares would not be eligible
for continued listing on a U,S, securities exchange or inclusion in the S&P 500 and trading in the Class A Ordinary Shares would be disrupted. While we would
pursue alternative arrangements to preserve our listing and maintain trading, any such disruption could have a material adverse effect on the trading price of the
Class A Ordinary Shares,

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments,

None.

Item 2, Properties,

We have offices in various locations throughout the world. Substantially all of our offices are [ocated in leased premises. We maintain our corporate
headquarters at 122 [_eadenhall Street, London, England, where we occupy approximately 190,000 square feet of space under an operating lease agreement that
expires in 2034, We own one significant building at Pallbergweg 2-4, Amsterdam, the Netherlands (150,000 square feet), The following are additionatl significant
leased properties, along with the occupied square footage and expiration. ‘

Occupied Lease

Property: Square Footage Expiration Dates
4 Overlook Point and other locations, Lincolnshire, inois = - .~ LT 1,089,000 T 201952024
Tikri Campus and Unil:eéh Cyber Park, Gurgaon, India . - 440 000 ' 2015 -~ 2019
200 E. Randolph Street, Chicago, Ilinpis C L s e o000 2008
2601 Research Forest Drive, The Woodlands, Texas . - ‘ 414,000 2020
2300 Discovery Drive, Orlando, Florida S T e e S 364000 20200
199 Water Street, New York, New York - . ) - 319,ﬁb0 2018
7201 Hewitt Associatos Diive; Charlotie, North Cawoliia ~ ~ o7 5 8 i L S g 000 e 008

The locations in Lincotnshire, Illinois, Gurgaon, India, The Woodlands, Texas, Orlando, Fiorida, and Charlotte, North Carolina, are primarily dedicated to
our HR Solutions segment. The other locations listed above house personnel from both of our reportable segments.

In general, no difficulty is anticipated in negotiating renewals as leases expire or in finding other satisfactory space if the premises become unavailable, We
believe that the facilities we currently occupy are adequate for the purposes for which they are being used and are well maintained. In certain circumstances, we
may have utiused space and may seek to sublet such space to third parties, depending upon the demands for office space in the locations involved. See Note 7
"Lease Commitments" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I1, Item 8 of this report for information with respect to our lease commitments as
of December 31, 2015,

Item 3, Legal Proceedings.

We hereby incorporate by reference Note 14 "Commitments and Contingencies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IT, Ttem 8 of this
report.

Item 4, Mine Safety Disclosure.

Not applicable.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of Aon, their business experience during the last five years, and their-ages and positions held are set forth below.

Position

Name Ape
Gregory C. Case 53
Christa Dévies 44

Peter Lieb - ;- - 60.

Streph.enl."‘ McG}ill 58

Laurel Meissner . - 58

kKri'sti Al Savécbo] 56

President and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer M. Case became President and Chief Executive Officer of Aon in April 2005.

'~ Prier to joinifig Aor, Mr, Case was a pariner with McKinsey & Company, the international management conisulting firm,
.. for 17 yoars, most recently serving as head of the Pinancial Services Practice. He prewously was respensible for
'McKmsey's Global Insutarice Practice, and was 2 member of McKinsey's governing Shareholders’ Committee. Prior to

Jommg MeKingey, Mr. Case was w1th the mvestment banking firm of Plper, Jafﬁray and Hopwood and the Federal

- Reserve Bank of Kansas City.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Davies became E!xecutlve Vice President — Global Finance in
November 2007. In March 2008, Ms, Davies assumed the additional role of Chief Financial Cfficer. Prior to joining Aon,
Ms. Davies served for 5 years in various capacities at Microsoft Corporation, an international software company, most
recently serving as Chief Financial Officer of the Platform and Services Division. Before joining Microsofl in 2002,

Ms. Davies served at ninetnsn, an Australian joint venture with Microsoft.

: ‘Executive Vme President, Cienerai Counsel and Company Secretaty. Mr Lleb was named Aon's Executive Vice
* President and General Counsel int July 2009 and Comipany Secretary in ‘November 2013, Prior to joining Aon, Mr; Lieb
“served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of NCR Corperation, a fechnology company focused on

assisted and self-service solutions, from May 2006-to July 2009, and as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and

- Secretary of Symbel Technologiss, Inc, from Octaber 2003 to February 2006. From October 1997 te October 2003,
" Mr.Lieb served in various senior legal positions at International Paper Company, including Vice President and Dieputy
: General Counsel Eartier in his career Mr Lish servcd as a law clerk to the Honorabie Wirren E Burger Chief Justlce

of the United States: . .

Group Presndent A(m ple and Chmrman and Chlef Executlve Ofﬁcer Rlsk Solutmns Mr McGlII Jmned Aun in May
2005 as Chief Executive Officer of the Global Large Corporate business unit, which is now part of Aon Global, and was
named Chief Executive Officer of Aon Risk Services Americas in January 2006 prior to being named to his current
position in February 2008 and as Group President in May 2012. Previously, Mr. MeGill served as Chiel Executive
Officer of Jardine Lioyd Thompson Group ple.

Senior Vice President and Global Conirotler. Ms, Meissner joitied Aon in February. 2009, and wes appointed Senior Vice

Presjdent and Glebal Confroller and designated as Aon's principal accounting officer in March 2009, Prior to joining

* Aon, Ms. Meissner served from July 2008 through January 2009 as Senior Vice President, Finance, Chief Accounting
" Officet of Matorala, Inc., an international communications company, Ms. Meissner joined Motorola in 2000 and served
“in vanous senmr finaricial pesmons, 1ncludmg (,erporate Vice President, l“mance Chief Aceountmg Odficer.

Chief Executive Offi icer, Aon Hewitt. Ms, Savacool joined Aon upon the completion of the merger between Aon and
Hewitt Associates, Inc. and was named Chief Executive Officer of Aon Hewitt in February 2012. Prior to assuming this
role, Ms. Savecool served as Co-Chief Executive Officer of Aon Hewitt from May 2011 and, prior to that, Chief
Executive Officer of Benefits Administration for Aon Hewitt, At Hewitt, Ms, Savacool served in several senior executive
positions, including Senior Vice President, Total Benefit Administration Outsourcing. Ms. Savacool joined Hewitt in July
2003, Priot ta July 2005, Ms. Savacool held a number of executive management positions at The Boeing Company since
1985,
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PART II
I¢em 5.  Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities,

Our Class A Ordinary Shares, $0.01 nominal value per share, are traded on the New York Stock Exchange. We hereby incorporate by reference the
"Dividends paid per share" and "Price range" data in Note 17 "Quarterly Financial Data" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11, Item 8 of this
report.

We have approximately 241 holders ef record of our Class A Crdinary Shares as of February 5, 2016 .
We hereby incorporate by reference Note 9, "Shareholders' Equity" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I1, Item 8 of this report,

The following information relates to the repurchases of equity securities by Aon or any affiliated purchaser during any month within the fourth guarter of the
fiscal year covered by this report: :

Total Number of Shares Maximum Dollar Value of
Purchased as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Shares Average Price Paid per Announcer Plans or Purchased Under the Plans or
Period Purchased Shatre Programs (I} Programs (1)
10/1/15 - 10/31/15 o e S e e T AT 09 L4 L
H1/1/15 - 11/30/15 3,450,500 94,16 _ 3,450_,500 7 4,149,191,389
12115123118 0 786,040 S TRSAT T TRG040 Y L 4,074,199,018
4,236,540 § 94.39 4,236,540 $ 4,074,199,018

(1 In April 2412, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program under which up to $5 billion of Class A Ordinary Shares may be repurchased.
In November 2014, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $5 billion of Class A Ordinary Shares for repurchase. Under each program, shares may be
repurchased through open market or privately negotiated transactions, based on prevailing market conditions, funded from available capital, During 2015 , we
repurchased 16.0 million shares at an average price per share of $97.04 for a total cost of $1.6 billion . The remaining authorized amount for share repurchase
under our Share Repurchase Programs is $4.1 billion.

Information relating to the compensation plans under which equity securities of Aon are authorized for issuance is set forth under Part I11, Item 12 "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters” of this report and is incorporated herein by reference,

We did not make any sales of unregisiered equity in 2015,
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected Financial Data

(ml]lions except shareholders, cmployees and per share dnta) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
lnmmé Statement mta ’ ’ '
Commlsswns fees and other 11,661 12019 5§ 11,787 11,476 11,235
F1ducxmy mvestmem income 21 . 26 ' - 28 38 52
Total revenue 11,682 12,045 § 11,815 11,514 11,287
et ineome < < L4227 1481 dase 1,020 £,010
Less Net income aﬁnhutahle to noncontmlhng mteresl 37 34 35 X7 31
" Nel indome dtibutable to Aor sharcholders Tiagsl 5 Ay § iy 003 979
Bassc Net Income (Loss) Per Share Atlnbuiable to Aon Shareholdem 493 47 8 3,57 3.02 2.92
448 486 § . 253 ! 299 2.87
Balance Sheet Data _ ) )
Fldumary assels (1) 9,932 ’ 11,638 % 11,87 12,214 . 10,838
Imanglble assets mcludmg goodwﬂl 10,628 11,380 11,575 11,918 12,046
* Totalassefs ' 164 977 36,250 30,485 19,552
Long—term debt» 5,175 4,799 3,586 3,713 4,155
- Total equity © _ CHI63 - 6631 3,195 7,805 8,120
Class A Ordinary Shares and Other Data
Dmdends pald pet share . .1..l;5 - 092 § 008 .62 0.60
Price mange, per share
- High LT.08 . 9810 § 8433 57.92 54.58
Low 86.38 76.49 54.65 45,04 39.68
At year—end ' . '
Market price, pel share 92,21 9483 % 83.89 55,61 46.80
. '"'Commen shareho!ders ofrecord 242 L C AL 740 - 8,107
Shares out_sta_nghr_n_g 269.8 280.0 300.7 3109 3244
Numbe: . cmigloyees 68,790 58,633 65,547 64,725 62,443

(1) Represents insurance premium receivables from clients as well as cash and investments held in a fiduciary capacity.
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Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF 2015 FINANCIAL RESULTS

During 2015, we continued to face headwinds that had adversely impacted our business in prior periods. In our Risk Solutions segment, these headwinds
included adverse changes in foreign currency exchange rates, economic weakness in continental Europe and a negative market impact in our Reinsurance business.
In our HR Solutions segment, these headwinds included price compression in our benefits administration business and economic weakness in continental Europe,

The following is a summary of our 2015 financial results;

Revenue decreased $363 million , or 3% , compared to the prior year to $11.7 billion in 2015 due primarily to a 6% unfavorable impact from changes
in foreign currency exchange rates, partially offset by organic revenue growth of 3% in the Risk Solutions segment and 4% in the HR Solutions
segment. Organic revenue for the year was driven by strong new business generation and solid management of the renewal book portfolio across our
Risk Solutions segment, as well as solid growth in both our Congulting and Outsourcing businesses within HR Solutions,

Operating expenses decreased $245 million , or 2% , compared to the prior year to $9.8 billion in 2015 due primarily to a $598 million favorable
impact from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, a decrease in intangible asset amortization of $38 million , and a $35 million decrease in
expense related to legacy litigation incurred in the prior year, partially offset by a $176 million increase in expense related to legacy litigation in the
current year, a $19 million increase in expense resulting from acquisitions, net of divestitures, and an increase in expense associated with 3% organic
revenue growth,

Operating margin decreased to 15.8% in 2015 from 16.3% in 2014 , The decrease in operating margin from the prior year is primarily related to
expense related to legacy litigation and the unfavorable impact from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, partially offset by organic revenue
growth of 3% and return on investments across the portfolio. Risk Solutions operating margin decreased to 20.3% in 2015 from 21.0% in 2014 . HR
Solutions operating margin increased to 12.5% in 20135 from 11.4% in 2014,

Net income attributable to Aon sharcholders was $1.4 billion , a decrease of $12 million |, or 1%, from $1.4 billion in 2014 _ Diluted earnings per
share increased 5% to $4.88 in 2015 from $4.66 in 2014

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $2.0 billion in 2015, an increase of $197 million , or 11% , from $1.8 billion in 2014 , due primarily
to declines in pension contributions, restructuring related payments, and cash paid for taxes, as well as working capital improvements, partially offset
by cash paid to settle legacy litigation, and strong organic revenue growth in the fourth quarter,

We focus on four key non-GAAP metrics that we communicate to shareholders: organic revenue, adjusted operating margins, adjusted diluted earnings per
share, and free cash flow. The following is our measure of performance against these four metrics for 2015 :

Organic revenue growth, a non-GAAP metric as defined under the caption "Review of Consolidated Results — Organic Revenue," was 3% in 2015 ,
Organic revenue growth was driven by growth across our businesses in both Risk Solutions and HR Solutions, In Risk Solutions, organic revenue
growth was driven by strong new business generation and solid management of the renewal book portfolio across our Retail business, partially offset
by an unfavorable market impact in our Reinsurance business. In HR Solutions, organic growth was primarily driven by health care exchanges and
HE. BPQ for cloud based solutions in the Qutsourcing business, and growth across the Consulting business.

Adjusted operating margin, a non-GAAP metric as defined under the caption "Review of Consolidated Results — Adjusted Operating Margin," was.
20.0% for Aon overall, 23.6% for the Risk Solutions segment, and 18.1% for the HR Solutions segment in 2015 . In 2014 , adjusted operating margin
was 19.5% for Aon overall, 22.9% for the Risk Solutions segment, and 17.1% for the HR Solutions segment. The increase in adjusted operating
margin for the Risk Solutions segment reflects solid organic revenue growth and refurn on investments in data and analytics. The ingrease in adjusted
operating margin for the HR Selutions segment reflects solid organic revenue growth, partially offset by costs associated with continued investment
in long-term growth opportunities.

Adjusted diluted earnings per share from net income attributable to Aon's sharcholders, a non-GAAP metric as defined under the caption "Review of
Consolidated Results — Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share," was $6.18
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pet shate in 2015 , an increase of $0.47 per share, or 8%, from 35.71 per share in 2014 . The increase demonsirates solid operational performance
and effective capital management, highlighted by $1.6 billion of share repurchase during 2015,

+  Free cash flow, a non-GAAP metric as defined under the caption "Review of Consolidated R 2sults —— Free Cash Flow," was $1.7 billion in 2015, an
increase of $163 million , or 10% , from $1.6 billion in 2014 , The increase in free cash flow from the prior yeur was driven by record cash flow from
operations of $2.0 billion , offset, in part, by a 13% , or $34 million , increase in capital expenditures.

REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

General

In our discussion of operating results, we sometimes refer to certain non-GAAP supplemental information derived from consolidated financial information
specificaily related to organic revenue growth, adjusted operating margin, adjusted diluted earnings per share, free cash flow, and the impact of foreign exchange

rate fluctuations on operating results.

Organic Revenue

We use supplemental information related to organic revenue to help us and our investors evaluate business growth from existing operations. Organic revenue
is a non-GAAP measure and excludes the impact of foreign exchange rate changes, acquisitions, divestitures, transfers between business units, fiduciary
investment incame, reimbursable expenses, and eertain unusual items. Supplemental information refated to organic revenue growth represents a measure not in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and should be viewed in addition to, not instead of, our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto, Industry peers provide
similar supplemental information about their revenue performance, although they may not make identical adjustments. Reconciliations of this non-GAAP measure,
organic revenue growth percentages, to the reported Commissions, fees and other revenue growth percentages, have been provided under the "Review by Segment"

caption below.

Adjusted Operating Margins

We use adjusted operating margins as a non-GAAP measure of core operating performance of our Risk Solutions and HR Solutions segments. Adjusted
operating margiis exctude the impact of certain items, including intangible asset amortization, litigation settlements, and restructuring charges because
management does not believe these expenses reflect our core operating performance. This supplemental information refated to adjusted operating margin represents
a measure not in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and should be viewed in addition to, not instead of, our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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A reconciliation of this non-GAAP measure to reported operating margins is as follows (in millions):

Total Risk HR
Year Ended December 31, 2015 Aon (1} Solutions Solutions
Revenue — U.S. GAAP ' , S8 11682 0§ 746§ - A303 .
Operating income — U.S, GAAP $ 1,848 § 1,506  § 536
Intangible asset amortization o . P n ' 34 0 205
Legacy litigation 176 137 39
Operating income — a3 adjusted - o . _ Lo Y U338 % 1752 0
Operating margins — U.S, GAAP 15.8% 20.3% 12.5%
Operating marging — asadjusted -, - T PRI R e . 6% I8A%
Total Risk HR
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Aon (1) Solutions Solutions
Revenue — U8, GAAP B ' ' ' $ 12045 8 78 % 4264
Operating income ~- U8, GAAP $ 1,966 % 1,648 $ 485
Intangible asset amortization o o R R SR S - 'f_352_"- e 109 L T
Legacy litigation 35 35
Operating income — a4 adjusted ST $..2353 % L2 %
Operating margins — U.S. GAAP 16.3% 21.0%
Operating masgins — as adjusted St T e T e g
Total Risk HR
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Aon {1) Solutions Solutions
Revenue — 1.8, GAAP . I S R co§ MRS 87189 o 4087
Operating income — 1.8, GAAP $ 1671 & 1,540 § 318
Restructuring charges B S e e R g T g
Intangible asset amortization 395 11s 289
Headquarters relocation costs . o . P . S
Operating income — as adjusted $ 2245 § 1,749 § 678
Operating margins — U.8. GAAP _ ] ' : : o M1% 0 s 19.8% - T8%
Operating margins — as adjusted 19.0% 22.5% 16.7%

(1) Includes unaliocated expenses and the elimination of inter-segment revenus.

Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share

We also use adjusted diluted earnings per share as a non-GAAP measure of our core operating performance. Adjusted diluted earnings per share excludes the
iimpact of intangible asset amortization and legacy litigation in 2015 and 2014 and restructuring charges and headquarter relocation costs in 2013, along with
related income taxes because management does not believe these expenses are representative of our core earnings. This supplementat information related to
adijusted diluted earnings per share represents a measure not in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should be viewed in addition to, not instead of, our Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

The effective tax rates used in the U.S, GAAP {inancial statements were 15.8% and 18,9% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, Reconciling items are generally taxed at the effective tax rate. However, after adjusting the underlying annual tax rate to exclude the impact
associated with expenses for legacy litigation in the second quarter of 20135, the adjusted effective tax rate for the full year of 2015 was 17.9%.
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Reconciliations of this non-GAAP measure to the reported diluted earnings per share are as follows (in millions except per share data):

Weighted average erdinary shares outstaniding -~ diluted

Year Ended Decemher 31, 2015 U.S. GAAP Adjustinents As Adjusted
Operatmg income ' ' ¥ 1,348 - §. 490 % 2,338
Iuterest mcome 14 — : 14
_Interest expense @1 —_— (273)
Other income 100 — 100
Income before income taxes - - 1,689 490 2,179
Income téxes e 267 122 380
Net inconie - i . . 1,422 © 368 L790
Less; Net income atmbuta le to noncontrolhng mterests 37 — 37
Net incorrie attributable to Aon shareholders ~ 3 185§ . 368 °$ 0 L753-
Diluted earnings per share 3 4,88 130 % 6.18
‘Weighted average ordinary sliares outstanding — diluted ' 7838 o 2838
Year Ended December 31 2{] 14 U 8. GAAP Adjustments A8 Adjusted
Operatmg income. -+ $ 1,966, $ - 387§ 2,353
Interest ircome 10 —_ 10
Intelest expense (255) - - (253)
Cther income 44 — 44
Iricome before incorie taxos: 1,765 387 2,152
Income taxes 334 73 407
Net income 1,431 34 1,745
Less: Net income attrlbutable o noncontmllmg interests 34 s 34
Net_.mc_g_me attnbutab_le_ tq.A_on sharehol_c__ler_s, ) : ¥ - L3397 3k.4' b ' 1,711
Diluted earnings per share 5 4.66 1.05 5.71
Weighied average ofdiniary shares oustandirig — diluted 1299.6 | 2996
Year Ended December 31, 2013 U.S. GAAP Adjustments As Adjusted
Operaung ifcome: $ - V77 U . v - 2,245
Interest i income g 7 — . 9
Interest expense {210) —_ 210y
Other income 68 o 68
Ingome before income taxes. - - 1,538 . 574 2,112
Incmne taxes . 390 146 536
o R , 1,148 " 428 1,576
Less: Net income atmbutable to noncontrolhng mtercsts 35 — 35
Netificome atu_'lbx_l_tabl__c to'Aon sharcholders’ L 5 L3 % 428 1,541
Diluted earnings per share $ 353 % 136 8 4,89
3154 ' R 3154

Free Cash Flow

We use fres cash flow, defined as cash flow provided by operations minus capital expenditures, as a non-GAAP measure of our core operating performance.
This supplemental information related to free cash flow represents a measure not in accordance with 1.5, GAAP and should be viewed in addition to, not instead
of, our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto, The use of this nen-GAAP measure does not imply or represent the residual cash flow for

discretionary expenditures.




A reconciliation of this non-GAAP measure to cash flow provided by operations is as follows (in millions):

Years Ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013

Cash flow provided by operating activities - U.S. GAAP - - Ve T s 39 S TR 8 5
Less: Capital expenditures ‘ ‘ - (290) o {256) B .(2(?;9)
Free cash flow ' 7 ' 8 M98 1,55 . 15

Impact of Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Because we conduct business in more than 120 countries, foreign exchange rate fluctuations have a significant impact on our business. Foreign exchange rate
movements may be significant and may distort true period-to-period comparisons of changes in revenue or pretax income. Therefore, to give financial statement
users meaningful information about our operations, we have provided an illustration of the impact of foreign currency exchange rates on our financial results. The
methodology used to calculate this impact isolates the impact of the change in currencies between periods by franslating last year's revenue, expenses, and net
income using the current year's foreign exchange rates.

Translating prior year results at current year foreign exchange rates, currency fluctuations had an unfavorable impact of $0.41 on adjusted net income per
diluted share during the year ended December 31, 2015 ; currency fluctuations had unfavorable impacts of $0.11 and $0.04 in the vears ended 2014 and 2013,
respectively, when prior year results were translated at rates prevalent in those years, These translations are performed for comparative purposes only and do not
impact the accounting policies or practices for amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

Summary of Resulis

Our consolidated results of operations follow (in millions):

Years ended December 31, ’ 2015 2014 2013
Revehue: : . . B . -- L . : R ._ ::' :;-:13':_.-'_‘:._.
Commissions, fees and ﬁther 5 11,66i $ ]2,019 b 11,787
Fiduciary investment income ' _ 21 _ 26 28
Total revenue _ 11,682 12,045 11,815
Expenses: . T ' : . . , i EUEE B
Compensation and benefits 6,837 7,014 6,945
Other general expenses _ ' - _ 29973068 3199
Total operating expenses 9,834 10,079 10,144
Operating income . ' o : ' : AR 1848 19660 . L LET
Interest income ' 14 10 . 9
Interest expetise AT - ' o o _ Sl sy (a8s) ey
Other income 100 44 68
Income hefore income taxes : . 1,689 L7650 T 15380
Income taxes 267 134 390
Netincome . ° T R R - - R 7 Y DR R 7T
Less: Net income attributable to noncentrolling interests 37 34 . 35
Net income attributable to Aon shareholders = ' T8 UAss § 1397 § - LA1B .

Consolidated Results for 2015 Compared to 2014
Revenue

Revenue decreased by $363 million , or 3% , to $11.7 billion in 2015 , compared to $12.0 bilkion in 2014 . The decrease was driven by a 6% impact from
unfavorable foreign exchange rates, partially offset by organic revenue growth of 3% in the Risk Solutions segment and 4% in the HR Solutions segment. Organic
revenue growth in the Risk Sclutions segment was driven by selid growth across both the Americas and International businesses. Growth across all regions and
product lines, including strong new business generation in US Retail, drove organic revenue growth in the Americas. International organic revenue growth was
driven by solid growth across Asia, the Pacific, and emerging markets, and strong management of the renewal book portfolio in continental Europ= despite
economic weakness. Reinsurance was down medestly due to an unfavorable market

3t




impact in treaty and a decline in capital markets transactions and advisory business, which more than offset strong net new business growth in treaty placements
globally and modest growth in facultative placements. Organic growth in the HR Solutions segment was driven by solid growth in both Consulting and
Outsoureir g. Consulting organic revenue growth was driven by retirement solutions, including investment consulting and delegated investment solutions, and
compensation consulting. Strong growth in health care exchanges, new client wins in HR BPO for cloud based solutions, and project-related revenue in benefits

administration drove organic revenue growth in Qutsourcing.

Compensation and Benefils
Compensation and benefits decreased $177 million , or 3% , compared to 2014 . The decrease was drivet by a $432 million favoraBle itnpact from changes

in foreign currency exchange rates, partially offset by a $14 million increase in expenses resulting from acquisitions, net of divestitures and an increase in expense
agsociated with 3% organic revenue growth,

Other General Expenses
Other general expenses decreased $68 miilion , or 2% , compared to 2014 due largely to a $166 million favorable impact from changes in foreign cutrency

exchange rates, a $38 miltion decrease in intangible amortization, and a $35 million reduction {n expense related to legacy litigation incurred m the prior year,
partially offset by a $176 million increase in expense related to legacy litigation incurred in the current year and an increass in expense to support 3% organic

growth,
Interest Income

Interest income represents income earned on operating cash balances and other income-producing investments. It does not include interest earned en funds
held on behalf of clients, Interest ingome increased $4 million , or 40% , from 2014 | due to marginally higher average interest rates globally.

Interest Expense

Interest expense, which represents the cost of our worldwide debt obligations, increased $18 million , or 7% , from 2014 . The increase in interest expense
primarily reflects an increase in total debt outstanding,

Other Income

Other income  increased $56 million from $44 million in 2014 to $100 million in 2015 . Other income in 2015 includes, among other things, $82 million in
net gains on disposal of businesses, foreign exchange gaing of $30 million , and equity earnings of $13 million , partially offset by a $19 million loss from
derivatives and a $5 million net loss on certain long term investments. Other income in 2014 include $24 millien in net gains on disposal of businesses, foreign

exchange gains of $18 million , equity earnings of $12 million , and a $4 million net gain on certain long term investments, partially offset by a $19 million loss
from derivatives.

Income before Income Taxes

Income before incotne taxes was $1.7 billion in 2015 , a decrease of $76 million , or 4%, from $1.8 biltion in 2014 due to drivers identified above.

Income Taxes

The effective tax rate on net income was 15.8% in 2015 and 18.9% in 2014 . The 2015 and 2014 rates reflect changes in the geographical distribution of
income, a reduction in UJ.S. income resulting from the seitlement of a legacy legal matter in the second quarter of 2015, and the impact of certain discrete items,
none of which were individually material.

Net Income Attributable to Aon Sharcholders

Net income decreased to $1.39 biltion { $4.88 diluted net income per share} in 2015 , compared to $1.40 billion ( $4.66 diluted net income per share) in 2014

Consolidated Results for 2014 Compared to 2013

Revenue

Revenue increased by $230 million, or 2%, to $12.0 billion in 2014, compared to $11.8 billion in 2013. The increase was driven by organic revenue growth
0f 2% in the Risk Solutions segment and 5% in the HR Solutions segment. Organic revenue growth in the Risk Solutions segment was driven by solid growth
across both the Americas and International businesses. Growth across all regions and product lines, including record new business generation in US Retail, drove
orgatiic revenue growth in the Americas, International organic revenue growth was driven by solid growth across Asia, the Pacific, and
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emerging markets, partially offset by a modest decline in continental Europe. Reinsurance was down modestly as a significant unfavorable market impact more
than offset net new business growth in treaty placements globally and growth in capital markets transactions and advisory business, as well as facultative
placements, Organic growth in the HR Solutions segment was driven by solid growth in both Consulting and Oufsourcing. Consulting organic re-'enue growth was
driven by retirement consulting, project-related revenue, and businesses in Asia. Strong growth in health care exchanges and new client wins in HR BPO drove
organic revenue growth in Outsourcing,

Compensation and Beneflts

Compensation and benefits increased $69 million, or 1%, compared to 2013. The increase was driven by an increase in expense associated with 3% organic
revenue growth, partially offset by a $79 million decrease in restructuring costs and a $46 million favorable impact from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates.

Other General Expenses

Other general expenses decreased $134 million, or 4%, compared to 2013 due largely to a $93 million decrease in formal restructuring costs and a $43
million decrease in intangible amortization, partially offset by $35 million of expense related to legacy litigation,

Inrterest Income

Interest income represents income carned on operating cash balances and other income-producing investments. It does not include interest carned on funds
held on behalf of clients. Interest income increased $1 million, or 11%, from 2013, due to marginally higher average interest rates globally.

Interest Expense

Interest expense, which represents the cost of our worldwide debt obligations, increased $45 million, or 21%, from 2013. The increage in interest expense
primarily reflects an increase in total debt outstanding.

Other Income

Other income decreased $24 million from $68 million in 2013 fo $44 million in 2014, Other income in 2014 includes $24 million in gains on disposal of
businesses, foreign exchange gains of $18 million, equity earings of $12 million, and $4 million in gains on investments, partially offset by a $19 million loss
from derivatives, Other income in 2013 includes $28 million in gains on investments, equity earnings of $20 millien, foreign exchange gains of $13 million, and
$10 million in gains on disposal of busingsses, partially offset by $10 million loss from derivatives.

Income befare Income Taxes
Income before income taxes was $1.8 billion in 2014, an increase of $227 million, or 13%, from $1.5 biltion in 2013,
Income Taxes

The effective tax rate on net income was 18.9% in 2014 and 25.4% in 2613, The 2014 and 2013 rates reflect certain discrete tax adjusttnents and changes in
the geographic distribution of income, primarily the benefit from global funding structures and benefits from lower-taxed global operations,

Net Income Attributable to Aon Shaveholders

Net income increased to $1.4 billion ($4.66 diluted net income per shhre) in 2014, compared to $1.1 billien {$3.53 diluted net income per share) in 2013,
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity
Executive Summary

We believe that our balance sheet and strong cash flow provide us with adequate liquidity. Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flow from operations,
available cash reserves, committed credit facilities, and debt capacity available through public debt markets, both short and long-ierm. Our primary uses of
liquidity are operating expenses, capilal expenditures, acquisitions, share repurchases, pension obligations, and sharcholder dividends. We believe that cash flows
from operations and available debt financing will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs, including principal and interest payments on debt
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obligations, capital expenditures, pension contributions, cash testructuring costs, and anticipated working capital requirements, for the foreseeable future.

Cash on cur balarce sheet includes funds available for general corporate purposes, +s well as amounts restricted as to their use, Funds held on behalf of
clients in a fiduciary capacily are segregated and shown together with uncollected insurance premiums in Fiduciary assets in the Consolidated Staternent of
Finatcial Position, with a corresponding amount in Fiduciary liabilities. Fiduciary funds generally cannot be used for general corporate purposes, and are nota
source of liquidity for us.

Cash and cash equivalents and Short-term investments decreased $28 million to $740 million in 2015 . During 2015 , cash flow from operating activities
increased $197 million to $2.0 billion . Additional sources of funds in 2015 included net sales of shott term investments of $9 million , $205 miltion of proceeds
from the sale of businesses, and issuances of debt, net of repayments of $253 million . The primary uses of funds in 2015 included share repurchases of $1.6 billion
, cash contributions to our major defined benefit plans of $194 million , acquisition of businesses of $16 million , dividends paid to shareholders of $323 million ,
and capital expenditures of $290 million .

Our investment grade rating is important to us for a number of reasons, the most important of which is preserving our financial flexibility. If our eredit
ratings were downgraded to below investment grade, the inferest expense on any outslanding balances on our credit facilities would increase and we could ineur
additional requests for pension contributions. To manage unforeseen situations, we have committed credit lines of approximatety $1.3 billion and we endeavor to
manage our obligations to ensure we maintain our current investment grade ratings. At December 31, 2015 , we had no borrowings on these credit lines.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2015, the Company reciassified certain cash flows related to employee shares withheld for taxes to align itsell with
peers and industry prastice. This resulted in a reclassification of $227 million and $170 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
from Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and Other assets and liabilities within Cash Flows from Operaling Activities, to Issuance of shares for employee
benefit plans within Cash Flows from Financing Activities resulting in a corresponding increase in Cash Flows From Operating Activities.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities during 2015 increased $197 million , or 11% , to $2.0 biflion . This amount represents net income repotted by the
Company, as adjusted for gains or losses on sales of businesses, financial instruments and foreign exchange, and our nen-cash expenses, which include share-based
compensation, depreciation, and amortization, as well as changes in working capital that relate primarily to the timing of payments of accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and collection of receivables. The increase from the prior year was primarily driven by reductions in pension contributions, cash taxes paid, and
restructuring payments, as wel! as working capital improvements, partially offset by an increase in payments for legacy litigation.

Pension contributions were $194 miltion during 2015 compared to $316 million during 2014 . In 2016 , we expect to contribute approximately $150 million
to our pension plans, with the majority atributable to non-U.S, pension plans, which are subject to changes in foreign exchange rates

We expect cash generated by operations for 2015 to be-sufficient to service our debt and contractual obligations, fund the cash requirements of our
restructuring programs, finance capital expenditures, continue purchases of shares under our share repurchase program, and continue to pay dividends to our
sharehoiders. Although cash from operations is expected to be sufficient *> service these activities, we have the ability to access the commercial paper markets or
botrow under out credit facilities to accommodate any timing differences in cash flows. We have committed credit facilities of approximately $1.3 billion , of
which all was available at December 31, 2015 , and can access these facilitics on a same day of next day basis. Additionally, under current market conditions, we
believe that we could access capital markets to obtain debt financing for longer-term funding, if needed.

Investing Activities
Cash used for investing activities in 2015 was $138 million . The primary drivers of the cash flow used for investing activitics were $290 mitlion for capital

expenditures, $16 million for acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired and $46 million of net purchases of leng-term investments, partiatly offset by net
sales of short-term investments of $9 million , and sale of businesses of $205 million .

Cash used for investing activities in 2014 was $545 million. The primary drivers of the cash flow used for investing activities were $479 million for
acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired and $256 miilion for capital expenditures, partially offset by net sales of short-term investments of 110 million,
sale of businesses of $48 million, and $32 million for net sales of long-term investments.
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Cash used for investing activities in 2013 was $339 million. The primary drivers of the cash flow used for investing activities were capital expenditures of
$229 million, net purchases of short term investments of $174 million, and acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired, of $54 million, partially offset by sales
of long term investments of $93 million.

Financing Activities

Cash used for financing activities during 2015 was $1.7 billion . The primary drivers of the cash used for financing activities were share repurchases of $1.6
billion , dividends paid to shareholders of $323 million , and nat cash payments of $30 million related to issuance of shares, partially offset by issuances of debt,
net of repayments , of $253 million .

Cash used for financing activities during 2014 was $1.3 billion. The primary drivers of the cash flow vsed for financing activities were share repurchases of
$2.3 billion, dividends paid to shareholders of $273 mitlion, and issuance of shares for employee benefit plans of $105 million, partially offset by issuances of debt,
net of repayments, of $1.3 billion,

Cash used for financing activities during 2013 was $1.1 billion. The primary drivers of the cash flow used for financing activities were share repurchases of
$1.1 billion, dividends paid to shareholders of $212 million, and issuance of shares for employee benefit plans of $22 million, partially offset by issuances of debt,
net of repayments, of $227 million,

Cash and Short-Term Investments

At December 31, 2015 , our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments were $740 million , a decrease of $28 million from December 31, 2014,
primarily related to share repurchages of $1.6 billion and dividends of $323 million , partially offset by $2.0 billion in cash flow from operating activities and the
net isstiances of debt of $253 million . Of the total balance as of December 31, 2015, $105 million was restricted as to its use, which was comprised of $65 million
of operating funds in the UK., as required by the FCA, and $40 million keld as collateral for various business purposes. At December 31, 2015 , $2.6 billion of
cash and cash equivalents and short-term invesiments were held in the U.S. and overdrawn cash and cash equivalents and shori-term investments of $1.9 biltion
were held in other couniries. Due to differences in tax rates, the repatriation of funds from certain countries into the U.S,, if repatriated, could have an unfavorable
tax impact.

At December 31, 2014, our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments were $768 million, a decrease of $232 million from December 31, 2013,
primarily refated to share repurchases of $2.3 billion and dividends of $273 million, partially offset by the net issuances of debt of $1,3 billion. Of the total balance
as of December 31, 2014, $169 million was restricted as to its use, which was comprised of $65 million of operating funds in the U.K., as required by the FCA, and
$106 million held as collateral for various business purposes. At December 31, 2014, $3.5 billion of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments were
held in the U.5. and overdrawn cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $2.7 billion were held in other countries.

We maintain a malticurrency cash pool with a third party bank in which various Aon entities participate. Individual Aon entities are permiited to overdraw
on their individual accounts provided the overall balance does not fall below zero, At December 31, 2015 and 20614 , non-U.S. cash balances of one or more entities
were negative; however, the overall batance was positive.

In our capacity as an insurance broker or agent, we collect premiums from insureds and, after deducting our commission, remit the premiums to the
respective insurance underwriter. We also collect claims or refunds from underwriters on behalf of insureds, which are then requrned to the insureds. Unremitted
insurance premiums and claims are held by us in a fiduciary capacity. In addition, some of our outsourcing agreements require us to hold funds on behalf of clients
to pay obligations on their behall. The levels of fiduciary assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly, depending on when we cellect the premiums, claims and
refiinds, make payments to underwriters and insureds, collect funds from clients and make payments on their behalf, and foreign currency movements, Fiduciary
assets, because of their nature, are generally invested in very liquid securities with highly-rated, credit-worthy financial institutions, In our Consolidated Statements
of Financial Position, the amount we report for Fiduciary assets and Fiduciary liabilitics are equal, Qur Fiduciary assets included cash and investments of $3.4
billion and $4.0 billion and fiduciary receivables of $6.5 billion and $7.7 billion at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. While we earn investment income
on the fiduciary assets held in cash and investments, the cash and investments are not ewned by us, and cannot be used for general corporate purposes.

As disclosed in Note 13 "Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the majority of our
investments catried at fair value are money market fimds. Money market funds are carried at cost as an approximation of fair value. Consistent with market
convention, we consider cost a practical and expedient measure of fair value. These money market funds are held throughout the world with various financial
institutions. We are not aware of any market liguidity issues that would materially impact the fair value of these investments.




As of December 31, 2015 , our investmenis in money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments had a fair value of $1.4 billion and are reported as
Short-term investments or Fiduciary assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Pesition depending on their nature and initial maturity.

The following table summarizes our Fiduciary assets and non-fiduciary Cash and cash equivalents and Shori-term investments as of December 31, 2015 (in
millions); :

Statement of Financial Position Classification

Cash and Cash Short-term Fiduciary

Asset Type Equivalents Investments Assets Totzl

Certificates of deposit, bank deposits ertime deposits .~ = $. 384§ SR 2354 § 2,738
Moniey market funds ' — 356 1,040 1,396
Highly liquid debt inserofments .~ .-~ . - = D e e e
Other investments due within one year - — — o
Cih andl Investients = -~ o 0 .o k.o e oot agd oo o 8560 o 3394 4134
Fiduciary receivables ' — — 6,538 6,538
Total - L L L Tn R 34§ L3356 $ . 99§ 10672

Share Repurchase Pragrom

Tn Aptil 2012, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program (the "2012 Share Repurchase Program") under which up to §5.0 billien of
Class A Ordinary Shares may be repurchased. In November 2014, our Board of Directors authotized a share repurchase program (“the 2014 Share Repurchase
Program" and togsther, the "Share Repurchase Programs") pursuant to which $5.0 billion may be repurchased program in addition to the $5.0 billion of Class A
Ordinary Shares authorized under the 2012 Share Repurchase Program. Under each program, shares may be repurchased through the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions, based on prevailing market conditions, funded from available capital.

During 2015 , the Company repurchased 16.0 million shares at an average price per shate of $97.04 for a total cost of $1.6 billion . During 2014, we
tepurchased 25.8 million shares at an average price per share of $87.18 for a total cost of $2.3 billion. In August 2015, the $5.0 billion of Class A Ordinary Shares
authorized under the 2012 Share Repurchase Program was exhausted, At December 31, 2015, the remaining authorized amount for share repurchase under the
2014 Share Repurchase Program is $4.1 billion , Under the Repurchase Programs, the Company has repurchased a total of 78.1 million shares for an aggregate cost
of $5.9 billion .

For information regarding share repurchases made during the fourth quarter of 2015, see Item 5. "Market for Registrant's Common Bquity, Related
Stockholdet Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities" as previously described.

Dividends

During 2015, 2014 , and 2013 , we paid dividends on our Class A Ordinary Shares of $323 million , $273 million , and $212 million , respectively.
Dividends paid per Class A Ordinary Share were $1.15, $0.92 , and $0.68 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 , respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As a UK. incorporated company, we are required under UK. law have available "distributable reserves" to niake share repurchases or pay dividends to
shareholders. Distributable reserves may be created through the earnings of the U K. parent company, Distributable reserves are not linked to aU.S. GAAP
reported amount (e.g., retained earnings). As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 , we had distributable reserves in excess of $2.1 billion and $4.0 billion,
respectively. We believe that we will have sufficient distributable reserves to fund sharcholder dividends for the foreseeable future.

Borrowings
Total debt at December 31, 2015 was $5.7 billion , which represents an increase of $155 million compared to December 31, 2014 . This increase is primarily

due to issuances of debt, net of repayments , of $253 million , which is net of a decrease in commercial paper outstanding of $1 18 million compared to
December 31, 2014
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On May 20, 2015, Acn ple issued $600 million of 4.750% Senior Notes due May 2045. The 4.750% Notes due May 2045 are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by Aon Corporation. We used the proceeds of the issuvance for general corporate purposes.

On September 30, 20135, $600 million of 3.50% Senior Notes issued by Aon Corporation matured and were repaid.

On November 13, 2015, Aon plc issued $400 million of 2.80% Senior Notes due March 2021, The 2.80% Notes due March 2021 are fully- and
unconditionally guaranteed by Aon Corporation. We used the proceeds of the issuance for general corporate purposes,

Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2015, we had two committed credit facilities outstanding: our $400 million U.8. credit facility expiring in March 2017 {the "2017
Facility") and $900 million multi-currency U.S. credit facility expiring in February 2020 (the "2020 Faeility"). The 2020 Facility was entered into on February 2,
2015 and replaced the previous €650 million European credit facility. Each of these facilities is intended to support cur commercial paper obligations and our
general working capital needs. In addition, each of these facilities includes customary representations, warranties and covenants, including financial covenants that
require us to maintain specified ratios of adjusted consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense and consolidated debt to adjusted consolidated ERITDA,
tested quarterly, At December 31, 2015, we did not have borrowings under either the 2017 Facility or the 2020 Facility, and we were in compliance with the
financial covenants and all other covenants contained therein during the twelve months ended December 31, 2015,

Effective February 2, 2016, the 2020 Facility terms were extended for 1 year and will expire in February 2021

Qur total debi-te-EBITDA ratio at December 31, 2013 and 2014 | is calculated as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2015 2014

Net income R _ L S 1) e TASE

Interest expense _ _ _ 273 7 255

Income taxes o SRR L e 26T e 334

Depregiation of fixed assets S o - 7 229 242

Amortization of intangible assets ; SR LoD e e T R g gen
Total EBITDA ! - 2,505 2,614
Total Debt ' ' " O smT s
Total debi-to-EBITDA ratio 23 2.1

We use ERITDA, as defined by our financial covenants, as a non-GAAP measure. This supplemental information related to EBITDA represents a measure
not in accordance with U.S. GAAP and should be viewed in addition to, not instead of, our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto,

Shelf Registration Statement

On September 3, 2015, we filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC, registering the offer and sale from time to time of an indeterminate amount of,
among other securities, debt securities, preference shaves, Class A Ordinary Shares and convertible securities. Our ability to access the market as a source of
liguidity is dependent on investor demand, market conditions and other factors.
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Rating Agency Ratings

The major rating agencies' ratings of our debt at February 22, 2016 appear in the table below.

Ratings
Senior
Long-term Debt Commercial Paper  Outlook
Standard & Poor's ' A~ : A2 Stable
Moody's Investor Services Baal P-2 Stable
Fiteh I, - - o0 5 . BBB+ F2 Stable

A downgrade in the credit ratings of our senicr debt and comumercial paper could increase our borrowing costs, teduce of eliminate our access (o debt capital,
reduce out financial flexibility, increase our commercial paper interest rates, ot restrict our access to the commercial paper market altogether, and/or impact future
pension contribution requirements.

Letters of Credit and Other Guarantees

We had total letters of credit ("LOCs") outstanding of approximately $58 million at December 31, 2015 , compared to §95 million at December 31,2014 .
These letters of credit cover the beneficiaries related to certain of our U.S. and Canadian non-qualified pension plan schemes and secure deductibie retentions for
our own wotkets campensation program. We also have issued LOCs to cover contingent payments for taxes and other business obligations to third parties, and
other guarantees for miscellaneous purposes at our intsrnational subsidiaries.

We have certain contractual contingent guarantees for premium payments owed by clients to certain insurance companics. The maximum exposure with
respect to such contractual contingent guarantees was approximately $104 million at December 31, 2015, compared to $112 million at December 31,2014 .

We have provided commitments to fund eertaitt limited partnerships in which we have an interest in the event that the general partners request funding,

Somne of these commitments have specific expiration dates and the maximum potential funding under these commitments was $12 million at December 31, 2015
compared to $14 million at December 31, 2014 . During 2015 , we funded $2 million of these commitments.

Other Liguidity Matters ¥

We do not have exposure related to off balance sheet arrangements. Our cash flows from operations, borrowing availability and overall liquidity are subject
to risks and uncertainties. See Item 1, "Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” and Item 1A, "Risk Factors."

Contractual Obligaiions

Summarized in the table below ate our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2013 {in millions):

Payments due in

2017 - 2019 2021 and
2016 2018 2020 beyond Total
Short- and long-term borrowings . s 562§ - 0 a4 8- 599 % 4302 8 5,737
Interest expense on debt o - 248 478 459 2,651 3,836
Operating leases. ==~~~ T ;s s A g8 2,145
Pension and other pbstretirement benefit plans (1) (2) . 120 384 351 700 1,555
Purchase obligations (3) (4) (5) - - ST S sga T s o 213 134 1,389
Tnsurance premiums payable ' 9,932 — — — 9,932

(1) Pension and other postretiremnent benefit plan obligations include esiimates of our minimum funding requirements, pursuant to ERISA and other
regulations and minimum fending requirements agreed with the trustees of our UK. pension plans. Additional amounts may be agreed to with, er
tequired by, the UK. pension plan trustees. Nonqualified pension and other postretirement benefit obligations are based on estimated future benefit
payments, We may make additional discretionary contributions.
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(2) 1n 2013, our principal UK subsidiary agreed with the trustees of one of the UK, plans to contribute an average of$11 million per year fo that pension plan
for the next three years. The trustees of the plan have certain rights to request that our UK. subsidiary advance an amount equal to an actuarially
determined winding-up deficit. As of December 31, 2015 , the estimated winding-up deficit was £240 million ($360 million at December 31, 2015
exchange rates). The trustees of the plan have accepte:d in practice the agreed-upon schedule of contributions detailed # sove and have not requested the
winding-up deficit be paid.

(3} Purchase obligations are defined as agreements to purchase goods and services that are enforceable and legally binding on us, and that specifies all
significant terms, including what is to be purchased, at what price and the approximate timing of the transaction. Most of our purchase obligations are
related to purchases of information technology services or other service contracts.

(4) Excludes $12 million of unfunded commitments related to an investment in a limited partnership due to our inability to reasonably estimate the period(s)
when the limited partnership will request funding.

(5) Excludes $218 million of liabilities for uncertain tax positions due to our inability to reasonably estimate the period(s) when potential cash settlements
will be made.

Financial Condition
At December 31, 2015 | our net assets were $6.2 billion , representing total assets minus {otal liabilities, a decrease from $6.6 billion at December 31, 2014,
The decrease was due primarily to share repurchases of $1.6 billion , dividends of $323 million , and an increase in Accumulated other comprehensive loss of $289

million related primarily to an increase in the post-retirement benefit obligation, partially offset by Net income of $1.4 billion for the year ended December 31,
2015 . Working capital increased by $77 million from $80% million at December 31, 2014 to $886 million at December 31, 2015 .

Accumulated other comprehensive loss increased $289 million at December 31, 2015 as compared to December 31, 2014 , which was primarily driven by
the following:

»  negative net foreign currency translation adjustments of $436 million , which are attributable to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against certain
foreign currencies,

«  adecrease of $155 million in net post-retirement benefit obligations, and
»  net financial instrument fosses of 38 million .

REVIEW BY SEGMENT
‘General

We serve clients through the following segments:

«  Risk Salutions acts as an advisor and insurance and reinsurance broker, helping clients manage their rigks, via consultation, as well as negotiation and
placement of insurance risk with insurance carriers through our global distribution network.

+ HR Solutions partners with organizations to solve their most complex benefits, talent and related financial challenges, and improve business performance
by designing, implementing, communicating and administering a wide range of human capital, retirement, invesiment management, health care,
compensation and talent management stratogics.

Risk Solutions

Years ended December 31 (millions, except percentage data} 2015 2014 2013
Revenue , . o . ' o $7426 . §7834 --.7__;'j.;-$_7,,7g_'9_"‘
Operating income 1,506 1,648 1,540
Operating margin =~ . o - _ : S W% 2% - 19.8%.

The demand for property and casualty insurance generally rises as the overall level of economic activity increases and generally falls as such activity
decreases, affecting both the commissions and fees generated by our brokerage business, The economic activity that impacts property and casualty insurance is
described as exposure units, and is most closely correlated

39




with employment levels, corporate revenue and asset values. During 2015 , pricing was modestly negative on average globally, and we still consider this a "soft
market." In a soft market, premium rates flatten or decrease, along with comtnission revenues, due to increased competition for markef share among insurance
carriers or increased underwriting capacity, Changes in premiums have a direct and potentially material impact on the insurance brokerage industry, as commission
revenues are generally based on a percentage of the premiums paid by insoreds,

Additienally, continuing through 2015 , we faced difficult conditions as a result of continued weaknesy in the global economy, and the repricing of credit
risk. Weak economic conditions in many markets around the globe have réduced our customers' demana for our retail brokerage and reinsurance brokerage
products, which have had a negative impact on our operational results,

Risk Solutions generated approximately 64% of our consolidated total revenues in 2015 . Revenues are generated primarily through fees paid by clients,
comrmissions and fees paid by insurance and reinsurance companies, and investiment income on funds held on behalf of clients. Our revenues vary from quarter to
quarter throughout the year as a result of the timing of our clients' policy renewals, the net effect of new and lost business, the timing of services provided to our
clients, and the income we earn on investments, which is heavily influenced by short-term interest rates,

We operate in & highly competitive industry and compete with many retail insurance brokerage and agency firms, as well as with individual brokers, agents,
and direct writers of insurance coverage, Specifically, we address the highly specialized product development and risk management needs of commercial
enterprises, professional groups, insurance companies, governments, health care providers, and non-profit groups, among others; provide affinity products for
professional Liability, life, disability income, and persosial lines for individuals, associations, and businesses; provide products and serviges via GRIP Solutions;
provide reinsurance services to insurance and reinsurance companies and other risk assumption entitics by acting as brokers or intermediaries on all classes of
reinsurance; provide capital managetent transaction and advisory products and services, including mergers and acquisitions and other financial advisory services,
capital raising, contingent capital financing, insurance-linked securitizations and derivative applications; provide managing underwriting to independent agents and
brokers as well as corporate clients; provide risk consulting, actuarial, loss prevention, and administrative services to businesses and consumers; and manage
captive insurance companies.

Revenue

Commissions, fees and other revenue for Risk Solutions wete as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Retail brokerage: © - -~ S S : o ' o S _ '
Americas ' ' $ 329§ 3288 8 3,191
“Intertiational (1) . - o T e L 270 3046 3,065
Total retail brokerage 6,044 6,334 6,256
Reinsurance brokerage. - - . - _ S : ' L 1361 - 1474 1,505
Total 3 7,405 $ 7808 $ 7,761

(1 Includes the UK., Europe, Middle East, Africa and Asia Pacific.

In 2015 , commissions, fees and other revenue decreased $403 million , ot 5% , cotnpared to 2014 due to an 8% unfavorable impact from foreign currency
exchange rates, partially offset by 3% organic revenue growth.

Reconciliation of organic revenue growth to reported commissions, fees and other revenue growth for 2015 versus 2014 is as follows:
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Less;

Less: Acquisitions,
Percent Currency Divestitures Organic
Change Impact & Other Revenue
Retail brokerage: _ o _ T D e LT T
Americas —% ()% P 4%
International (1) : I ' : R R 1 1), oy m RET R
Total retail brokerage _ ' (_5) _ _ (_8) _ )] - 4 .
Reinsurance brokerage ) R . N s W W
Totat (5)% {8)% —% 3%

(1) Includes the UK., Europe, Middle East, Africa and Asia Pacific.

Retait brokerage Commissions, fees and other revenus decreased 5% in 2015 driven by an 8% impact from unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates and
a 1% decrease in commissions and fees resulting from acquisitions, net of divestitures, partially offset by 4% organic revenue growth, reflecting revenue growih in
both the Americas and International businesses,

Americas Commissions, fees and other revenue was flat in 20135 reflecting 4% organic revenue growth driven by strong growth across all regions and
product lines, including strong new business generation in US Retail, offset by a 4% impact from unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates,

International Commissions, fees and other revenue decreased 10% in 2015 reflecting a 12% impact from unfaverable foreign currency exchange rates and a
1% decrease in commissions and fees resulting from acquisitions, uet of divestitures, partially offset by 3% organic revenue growth driven by solid growth across
Asia, the Pacific, and emerging markets, and strong management of the renewal book portfolio in continental Europe despite economic weakiiess.

Reinsuranee Commissions, fees and other revenue decreased 8% in 2015 reflecting a 6% impact from from unfavorable foreign currency exchangs rates, a
1% decrease in commissions and fees resulting from acquisitions, net of divestitures, and a 1% decline in organic revenue due primarily to an unfavorable market
impact in treaty and a decline in capital markets iransactions and advisory business, partially offset by net new business growth in treaty placements globally and
modest growth in facultative placements,

Operating Income

Opetating income decreased $142 million , or 9% , from 2014 to $1.5 billion in 2015 . In 2015 , operating income margins in this segment were 20.3% , a
decrease of 70 basis points from 21.0% in 2014 . The decline in operating margin was driven by an increase in expense related to legacy litigation, which more
than offset solid organic revenue growth for the year.

HR Solutions

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Revenue B o ' S e Sa308 L R 84087
Qperating income 536 485 B VT
Operating margin - T Co - T R T e v S o d

Our HR Solutions segment generated approximately 37% of our consolidated total revenues in 2015 and provides a broad range of human capital services, as
follows:

*  Retirement specializes in global actuarial services, defined contribution consulting, tax and ERISA consulting, and pension administration,

»  Compensation focuses on compensatory advisory/counsel including: compensation planning design, executive reward strategies, salary survey and
benchmarking, market share studies and sates force effectiveness, with special expertise in the financial services and technolegy industries.

+  Strategic Human Capital delivers advice to complex global organizations on talent, change and organizational effectiveness issues, including talent

strategy and acquisition, executive on-boarding, performance management, leadership assessment and development, communication strategy,
workforce training and change management.
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»  Investment consuiting advises public and private companies, other institutions and trustees on develeping and maintaining investment programs
across a broad range of plan types, including defined benefit plans, defined contribution plans, endowments and foundations.

»  Benefits Administration applies our human resource expertise primarily *hrough defined benefit (pension), defined contribution (401(k)), 'md health
and welfare administrative services. Our model replaces the resource-intensive processes once required to administer benefit plans with mote
efficient, effective, and less costly solutions.

»  Exchanges is building and operating healthcare exchanges that provide employers with a cost effective alternative to traditional employee and retiree
healthcare, while helping individuals select the insurance that best meets their needs.

s Humar Resowrce Business Processing Ouisourcing provides market-leading solutions to manage employee data; administers benefits, payroll and
other human tesources processes; and records and manages talent, workforce and other core human resource process transactions as well as other
complementary services such as flexible spending, dependent audit and participant advocacy.

Revenue

Commissions, fees and other revenue were as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Consulting services =~ B o o _ & - 168 S L1700 % 1,626
Outsourcing ' S ' 2,658 2,607 2,469
Intersegment = - - SRS 7 7_ E L o Ty 4% 38
Total § 4303 3§ 4264 % 4,057

Commissions, fees and other revenue for HR Solutions increased $39 million , ox 1%, in 2015 compared to 2014 due to 4% organic growth in commissions
and fees, partially offset by a 3% impact from unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates.

Reconciliation of organic revenue growth fo reported commissions, fees and other revenue growth for 2615 versus 2014 is as follows:

Less:
Less: Acquisitions,
Percent Currency Divestitures Organic
Year ended December 31 Change Impact & Other Revenue
Comsulting Setices -~ ¢ o T o T T Y T (5% 1% - 3%
Qutsourcing 2 )] (1} 4
fatel o _ I 1% . % . . % _ 4%

Consulting services revenue decreased $14 million , or 1% , due primarily to a 5% impact from unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates, partiaily offset
by organic revenue growth of 3% driven by strong growth in retirement solutions, including investment consulting and delegated investment solutions, as well as
compensation consulting, and a 1% increase in cornmissions and fees resulting from acquisitions, net of divestitures.

Outsourcing revenue increased $51 million , or 2%, due to 4% organic revenue growth driven by strong growth in heaith care exchanges, new client wins in
HR BPO for cloud based solutions, and project related revenue in benefits administration, partially offset by a 1% decrease in commissions and fees resulting from
acquisitions, net of divestitures, and a 1% impact from unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates.

Operating Income

Operating income was $536 million , an inerease of $51 million , or 11%, from 2014 . Margins in this segiment for 2015 were 12.5%, an increase of 110
basis points from 11.4% in 2014 . Operating margin impravement was driven by solid organic revenue growth and return on investments, partially offset by
investments in long-term growth opportunities.

Unallocated Income and Expense

A reconciliation of our operatitg income to income before income taxes is as follows {in millions):
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Years ended December 31 . 2015 2014 2013

Operating income (loss). S : e T T e
Risk Solutions $ 1,506 § 1,648 b 1,540

HR Solutions ' : : o ' ) 536 485 . - 318

Unallocated expense (1%4) (f 67) (187)
Operating income ' - I o . e L
Intercst income 14 10 . 9
Interest expense. ' ey sy (21
Other income . 100 . 44 . 68

Income before income taxes o o R U8 LeBY §e 17687 §770T1538

Unallocated operating expense includes corporate governance costs not allocated to the operating segments, Net unallocated expenses increased $27
million in 2015 compared to 2014 due to the timing of certain employee incentive and employes benefit related expenses, as well as certain investments in shared
services,

Inierest income, Interest expense and Other income . For a discussion of the components of Interest income, Interest expense and Other income, see
Management’s Discussion of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Review of Consolidated Results,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. To prepare these financial statements, we
made estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect what we report as our assets and liabilities, what we disclose as contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented.

In accordance with our policies, we regularly evaluate our estimates, assumptions and judgments, including, but not limited to, those concetning revenue
recognition, restructuring, pensions, goodwill and other intangible assets, contingencies, share-based payments, and income taxes, and base our estimates,
assumptions, and judgments on our historical experience and on factors we believe reasonable under the circumstances, The results involve judgments about the
carrying values of assets and ligbilities not readily apparent from other sources. If our assumptions or conditions change, the actual results we report may differ
from these estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant estimates, assumptions, and judgments we used to prepare
these Consolidated Financial Statements,

Revenue Recognition

Risk Solutions segment revenues primatity include insurance commissions and fees for services rendered and investment income on funds held on behalf of
clients, Revenues are recognized when they are eamed and realized or realizable. We consider revenues to be earned and realized or realizable when ail of the
following four conditions are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2} the arrangement fee is fixed or determinable, (3) delivery or performance
has occurred, and (4) collectability is reasonably assured. For brokerage commissions, revenue is typically recognized at the completion of the placement process,
assuming all four criteria required to recognize revenue have been met, The placement process is typically considered complete on the effective date of the related
policy. Commission revenues are recorded net of allowances for estimated policy cancellations, which are determined based on an evaluation of historical and
current cancellation data, ‘

HR Solutions segment revenues consist primarily of fees paid by clients for consulting advice and outsourcing contracts, Fees paid by clients for consulting
services are typically charged on an hourly, project or fixed-fee basis. Revenues from time-and-materials or cost-plus arrangements are recognized as services are
performed, assuming all four criteria to recognize revenve have been met. Revenues from fixed-fee contracts are recognized as services are provided using a
proportional-performance model or at the completion of a project based on facts and circumstances of the client arrangement. Revenues from health care exchange
arrangements are typically recognized upon successful enrollment of participants, net of a reserve for estimated cancellations, assuming all four eriteria to
recognize revenue have been met, Reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses are recorded ag a component of revenues. Our outsourcing contracts
typically have three-to-five year terms for benefits services and five-to-ten year terms for human resources business process outsourcing ("HR BPO") services, We
recognize revenues as services are performed, assuming all four criteria to recognize revenue have been met. We may also receive implementation fees from
clients either up-front or over the ongoing services period as a component of the fee per participant. Lump sum implementation fees received from a client are
typically deferred and recognized ratably over the ongoing contract services period. If a client terminates an outsourcing services arrangement prior to the end of
the contract, a
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loss on the contract may be recorded, if necessaty, and any remaining deferred implementation revenues would typically be recognized over the remaining service
peried thirough the termination date.

In connection with our long-term outsourcing service agreements, highly customized implementation efforts are often necessary to set up clients and their
human rescutce ot benefit programs on our systems and operating processes. For outsourcing services sold separately or accounted for as a separate unit of
accounting, specific, incremental and direct costs of implementation incurred prior to the services commencing are generally deferred and amortized over the
petiod that the related ongoing services revenue is recognized. Deferred costs are assessed for recoverability on a periodic basis to the extent the deferred cost
exceeds related deferred revenue.

Pensions

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans throughout the world, Our most significant plans are located in the U.S., the UK., the Netherlands and Canada.
Our significant U.S., UK., Nether!ands and Canadian pension plans are closed to new entrants. We have ceased crediting future benefits relating to salary and
service for our U.S., UK., Netherlands and Canadian plans to the extent statutorily permitted.

In 2016, we estimate pension ans post-retirement net periedic benefit cost for major plans to increase by $15 million (o a benefit of approximately $54
million. The increase in the benefit is primarily due to a change in our approach to measuring service and interest cost, Effective December 31, 2015 and for 2016
expense, we have elected to utilize a full yield curve approach in the estimation of the service and interest cost components of net periodic pension and post-
retirement benefit cost for our major pension and other post-retirement benefit plans by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the
determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. In 20135 and prior years, we estimated these components of net periodic pension and
post-retirement benefit cost by applying a single weighted-average discount rate, derived from the vield curve used to measure the benefit obligation at the
beginning of the period, We have made this change to improve the correlation between projected benefit cash flows and the corresponding yield curve spot rates
and to provide a more precise measurement of service and interest costs, This change does not affect the measurement of the projected bensfit obligation as the
change in the service cost and interest cost is completely offset in the actuarial (gain) loss recorded in other comprehensive income. We accounted for this change
as a change in estimate and, accordingly, will account for it prospectively.

Recognition of gains and losses and prior service

Certain changes in the value of the obligation and i the value of plan assets, which may occur due to various factors such as changes in the discount rate and
actuarial assumptions, actual demographic experience and/or plan asset performance are not immediately recognized in net income. Such changes are recognized in
Other comprehensive income and are amortized into net income as part of the net periodic benefit cost.

Unreeognized gains and losses that have been deferred in Other comprehensive income, a3 previously deseribed, are amortized into Compensation and
benefits expense as a component of periodic pension expense based on the average life expectancy of the U.5., the Netherlands, Canada, and UK. plan members.
We amortize any prior service expense or credits that arise as a result of plan changes over a perind consigtent with the amortization of gains and losses,

As of December 31, 2015 , our pension plans have deferred losses that have not yet been recognized through income in the Consolidated Finansial
Statements. We amortize unrecognized actuarial losses outside of a corridor, which is defined as 10% of the greater of market-related value of plan assets or
projected benefit obligation. To the extent not offset by future gains, incremental amortization as calculated above will continue to affect future pension expense
similarty until fully amortized.

The following table discloses our unrecognized actuarial gains and losses, the number of years aver which we are amortizing the experience loss, and the
estimated 2016 amortization of loss by country (amounts in miilions):

UK. .S, Other
Untocognized aotuarial galns and losses T § 150 s L@z s a8
Amortization period (ir{years) o ‘ . 10-32 7.28 15 -41
‘Estimated 2016 amottizationofloss - T o Lol e $° - 3 0§ 52§ 10

The unrecognized prior servies cost (income) at December 31, 2015 was $9 million, $46 million, and $(7) million in the U.S., UK. and Other plans,
respectively.

For the U.S. pension plans we use a market-related valuation of assets approach to determine the expected return on assets, which is a component of net
periodic benefit cost recognized in the Congolidated Statements of Income. This approach
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recognizes 20% of any gains or losses in the current year's value of market-related assets, with the remaining 80% spread over the next four years. As this approach
recognizes gains or losses over a five-year period, the future value of assets and therefore, our net periodic benefit cost will be impacted as previously deferred
gains or losses are recorded. As of December 1, 2015 , the market-related value of assets was $2.1 billion . We do not use the market-related valvation approach
to determine the funded status of the U.S. plans recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Instead, we record and present the funded status in
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position based on the fair value of the plan assets. As of December 31, 2015, the fair value of plan assets was $2.0 billion

QOur non-U.8. plans use fair value to determine expected return on assets,
Rate of return on plan assets and asset allocation

The following table summarizes the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for filfure pension expense and the related target asset mix as of
December 31, 2015

UK, LIX-R Other
Expoctod teturm (tofal) - - o . oo oo o L. 455% . 781% . 347-495% -
Expected return on equities (1) 6.7% ' 98%  58-75%
Expected rewm on fixed income . - : L L o A% o 64% . - A0-41% 1
Asset mix: 7 E o .
Target equity (1) - _ B S 8% COT00% . 31.4-400%
Target fixed income O 82.5% 30.0% 60.0 - 68.6%

(1) Includes investments in infrastructure, real estate, limited partnerships and hedge funds,

In determining the expected rate of return for the plan assets, we analyzed investment community forecasts and current market conditions to develop
expected returns for gach of the asset classes used by the plans, In particular, we surveyed multiple third-party financial institutions and consultants to obtain long-
term expected returns on each asset class, considered historical performance data by asset class over long periods, and weighted the expected returns for each asset
class by target asset allocations of the plans,

The 1.S. pension plan asset allocation is based on approved allocations following adopted investment guidelines. The actual asset allocation at December 31,
2015 was 66% equity and 34% fixed income securities for the qualified plan.

The investment policy for each LK, and non-U.8. pension plans is generally determined by the plans' trustees, Because there are several pension plans
maintained in the UK. and nen-U.S. category, our target allocation presents a range of the target allocation of each plan. Further, target allocations are subject to
change. As of December 31, 2615 , the U.K. and non-U.S. plans were invested between 23% a..3 34% in equity and between 77% and 66% in fixed income
securities, respectively.

Impact of changing economic assumptions
Changes in the discount rate and expected return on assets can have a material impact on pension obligations and pension expense,

Holding all other assumptions constant, the following table reflects what a twenty five basis point increase and decrease in our estimated discount rate would
have on our projected benefit obligation at December 31, 20135 (in millions):

Estimated liability discount rate 25 Basis Point Change In Discount Rate
Increase (decrease) in projected benefit obligation of December 31, 2015 (1) Inerease Decrease

U K. plans B L s 19y B
U.S. plans ) o m
Other plans ' o o e 0y s

(1) Increases to the projected benefit obligation reflect increases to our pension cbligations, while decreases in the projected benefit obligation are recoveries
toward fully funded status. A change in the discount rate has an inverse relationship to the projected benefit obligation.
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Holding ali other assumptions constant, the following table reflects what a twenty five basis point increase and decrease in our estimated discount rate would
have on our estimated 2016 pension expense (in millions):

25 Basis Point Change in Discount Rate

Increase (decrease) in expense Increase Decrease

UK. plans i ' ' , ' $ 5y $ 4
U.S. plans 1 )
Otherptans - .. : . R o ¢} 1

Holding other assumptions constant, the following table reflects what a twenty five basis point increase and decrease in our estimated long-~term rate of
return on plan assets would have on our estimated 2016 pension expense (in millions):

25 Basis Point Change in Long-Term Rate
of Return on Plan Assets

Increase (decrease) in expense Increase Decrease
UKoplans . - L e e . } : % BN 15
U.s. plaﬁs . . . (8)

Otherplans .~ - S o o (3)

Estimated future contributions

We estimate contributions of approximately $150 million to our pension plans in 2016 as compared with $194 million in 2015 .

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asscts

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair marke value of the net assets acquited. We classify our intangibie assets acquired as either tradenatnes,
customer relationships, technology, non-compete agreements, or other purchased intangibles.

Goodwill is not amortized, but rather tested for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter. [n the fourth quarter, we also test the acquired tradenames
(which also are not amortized) for impairment. We test more frequently if there are indicators of impairment or whenever business circumstances suggest that the
carrying value of goodwill or trademarks may not be recoverable. These indicators may include a sustained significant decline in our share price and market
capitalization, a decline in our expected future cash flows, or a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate, among others, No events
occurred during 20135 that indicate the evistence of an impairment with respect to our reported goodwill or tradenames.

We perform impairment reviews at the reporting unit level. A reporting unit is an operating segment or ong level below an operating segment (refetred to as
a"component™), A component of an opetating segment is a reporting unit if the component constitutes 2 business for which discrete financial information is
avaitable and segment management regularly reviews the operating results of that component. An operating segment shall be deemed to be a reporting unit if all of
its components aro similar, if none of its components is a reporting unit, or if the segment comprises only a single component.

The goodwill impairment test is initially a qualitative analysis to determine if it is "more likely than not" that the fair value of each reporting unit exceeds the
carrying value, including goodwill, of the corresponding reporting unit, If the "mote likely than not" threshold is not met, then the goodwill impaitment test
becomes a two step analysis. Step One requires the fair value of each reporting unit to be compared to its book value. Management must apply judgment in
determining the estimated fair vaiue of the reporting units. If the fair value of & reporting unit is determined to be greater than the careying value of the reporting
unit, goodwill and trademarks are deemed not to be impaired and no further testing is necessary. IF the fair value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying value,
we perform Step Two. Step Two uses the caleulated fair value of the reporting unit to perform a hypothetical purchase price allocation to the fair value of the assets
and liabilities of the reporting uait. The difference between the fair value of the reporting unit caleulated in Step One and the fair value of the underlying assets and
liabilities of the reporting unit is the implied fair vatue of the reporting unit's goodwill. A charge is recorded in the financial statements if the carrying value of the

reporting unit's goodwill is greater than its implied fair value.

In determining the fair value of our reporting wnits, we use a discounted cash flow ("DCF") model based on our most current forecass. We discount the
related cash flow forecasts using the weighted-average cost of capital method at the date of
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evaluation. Preparation of forecasts and selection of the discount rate for use in the DCF model involve significant judgments, and changes in these estimates could
affect the estimated fair vaiue of one or more of our reporting units and could result in a goodwill impairment charge in a future period. We also use market
multiples which are obtained from quoted prices of comparzble companies to corroborate our DCF model results. The combined estimated fair value of our
reporting units from our DCF model eften results in a premium over our market capitalization, commonly referred to as a control premium. We believe the implied
control premium determined by our impairment analysis is reasonable based upon historic dats of premiums paid on actual transactions within our industry, Based
on tests performed in both 2015 and 2014 , there was no indication of goodwill impairment, and no further testing was required.

We review intangible assets that are being amortized for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that their carrying amount may not
be recoverable. There were no indications that the carrying values of amortizable intangible assets were impaired as of December 31, 2015 . If we are required to
record impairtnent charges in the future, they could materially impact our results of operations.

Contingencices

We define a contingency as an existing condition that involves a degres of uncertainty as to a possible gain or loss that will ultimately be resolved when one
or more fiture events occur or fail to occur, Under U.S, GAAP, we are required to ¢stablish reserves for loss contingencies when the loss is probable and we can
reasonably estimate its financial impact, We are required to assess the likelihood of material adverse judgments or outcomes, as well as potential ranges or
probability of losses. We determine the amount of reserves required, if any, for contingencies after carefully analyzing each individual item. The required reserves
may change due to new developments in each issue. We do nof recognize gain contingencies until the contingency is resolved and amounts due are probable of
coilection,

Share-based Payments

Share-based compensation expense is measured based on the estimated grant date fair value and recognized over the requisite service period for awards that
we ultimately expect to vest. We estiate forfeitures at the time of grant based on our actual experience to date and revise our estimates, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Restricted Share Units

Restricted share units ("RSUs") are service-based awards for which we recognize the associated compensation cost on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period. We estimate the fair value of the awards based on the market price of the underlying share on the date of grant, reduced by the present value of
estimated dividends foregone during the vesting period where applicable.

Performance Share Awards

Performance share awards ("PSAs™) are performance-based awards for which vesting is dependent on ihe achievement of certain objectives. Such objectives
may be made on a personal, group or company level. We estimate the fair value of the awards based on the marke( price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant, reduced by the present value of estimated dividends foregone during the vesting period.

Compensation cost is recognized over the performance period. The number of shares issued on the vesting date will vary depending on the aciual
performance objectives achicved. We make assessments of futire performance using subjective estimates, such as long-term plans. As aresult, changes in the
underlying assumptions could have a material impact on the compensation expense recognized.

The largest performance-based share-based payment award plan is the Leadership Performance Plan ("LPP"), which has a three-year performance petiod.
The 2013 to 2015 performance period ended on December 31, 2013, the 2012 te 2014 performance period ended on Decernber 31, 2014 and the 2011 to 2013
performance period ended on December 31, 2013. The LPP currently has iwo open performance periods: 2014 to 2016 and 20135 to 2017. A 10% upward
adjustment in our estimated performance achievement percentage for both LPP plans would have increased our 2015 expense by approximately 32,7 million, while
a 10% downward adjustment would have decreased our expense by approximately $6.9 million. As the percent of expected performance increases or decreases, the
potential change in expense can go from 0% to 200% of the targeted total expense.

Income Taxes

We earn income in numerous countries and this income is subject to the laws of taxing jurisdictions within those countries,
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The caerying values of deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the application of our income tax accounting policies, and are based on management's
assumptions and estimates about future operating results and levels of taxable income, and judgments regarding the interpretation of the provisions of curent

accounting principles.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowances if, based on the consideration of all available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of
the deferred tax asset will not be realized., In this assessment, significant weight is given fo evidence that can be objectively verified.

We assess carryforwards and tax credits for realization as a reduction of future taxable income by using a "more likely than not" determination. We have not
recognized a deferred tax liability for permanently reinvested earnings of certain subsidiaries. Additional income taxes could be recorded {or incurred) if we
change our investment strategy relating to these subsidiaries, which could materially affect our future effective fax rate.

We bage the carrying values of liabilities and assets for income taxes currently payable and receivable on management's interpretation of applicable tax laws,
and incorporate management's assumptions and judgments about using tax planning strategies in various taxing jurisdictions. Using different estimates,
assumptions and judgments in accounting for income taxes, especially those that deploy tax planning strategies, may result in materially different carrying values
of income tax assets and labilities and changes in our results of operations,

We operate In many jurisdictions where tax laws relating to our businesses are not well developed. In such jurisdictions, we typically obtain professional
guidance, when available, and consider existing industry practices before using tax planning strategies and meeting our tax obligations. Tax returns are routinely
subject to audit in most jurisdictions, and tax liabilities are frequently finalized through negotiations, In addition, several factors could change the future level of

unicertainty over our tax Habilities, including the following:
¢ the portion of our overall operations conducted in non-U.S, tax jurisdictions has been increasing, and we anticipate this trend will continue,

+  to deploy tax planning strategies and conduct global operations etficiently, our subsidiaries frequently enter into transactions with affiliates, which
are generally subject to complex tax regulations and are frequently reviewed by tax authorities, and

s+ tax laws, regulations, agreemens and treaties change frequently, requiring us to modify existing tax strategies to conform to such changes.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Note 2 "Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and Practices" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contains a summary of our
significant accounting policies, including a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements and their impact or future potential impact on our financial

results, if determinable.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to potential fluctuations in earnings, cash flows, and the fair value of certain of our assets and liabilities due to changes in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates. To manage the risk from these exposures, we enter into a variety of derivative instruments. We do not enter into derivatives ot financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The following discussion describes our specific exposures and the strategies we use to manage these risks. See Note 2 "Summary of Significant Accounting
Principles and Practices" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a diseussion of our accounting policies for financial instruments and derivatives.

Foreign Exchange Risk

We are subject to foreign exchange rate risk. Qur primary exposures include exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the eurg, the British pound, the
Canadian dollar, the Australian dollar, and the Indian rapee. We use over-the-counter options and forward contracts to reduce the impact of foreign currency risk to

our financial statements.

Additionally, some of our non-U.S. brokerage subsidiaries receive revenues in currencies that differ from their functional cutrencies. Our UK, subsidiaries
earn a portion of their revenue in U.S. dollars and eures, but most of their expenses are iricurred in British pounds. At December 31, 2015, we have hedged
approximately 45% of our U.K. subsidiaries' expected exposures to both 11.S. dollar and euro transactions for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2017,
respectively, We generally do not hedge exposures beyond three years.
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We also use forward confracts to economically hedge foreign exchange risk associated with monetary balance sheet exposures, such us inter-company notes
and short-term assets and liabilities that are denominated in a non-functional currency and are subject to remeasurement,

The potential loss in future eamnings from foreign exchange derivative instruments resulting from a hypothetical 10% adverse change in year-end exchange
rates would be $32 million and $14 million at December 31, 2016 and 2017 respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

Qur fiduciary investment income is affected by changes in internationgl and domestic short-term interest rates. We monitor our net exposure to short-term
interest rates, and as appropriate, hedge our exposure with various derivative financial instruments. This activity primarily relates to brokerage funds held on behalf
of clients in the North America, continenial Europe, and the Asia Pacific region. A hypothetical, instantancaus parallel decrease in the year-end yield curve of 100
bagis points would cause a decrease, net of derivative positions, of $§39 million and $41 million to 2016 and 2017 pretax income, respectively. A corresponding
increase in the year-end yield curve of 100 basis points would canse an inzrease, net of derivative positions, of $39 million and $41 million to 2016 and 2017
pretax income, respectively.

We have long-term debt outstanding with a fair market value of $5.4 billion and $5.3 billion at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. This fair value
was greater than the carrying value by $0.2 billion at December 31, 2015 , and $0.5 billion greater than the carrying value at December 31,2014 . A hypothetwal
1% increase or decrease in interest rates would change the fair value by a decrease of 10% or an increase of 11%, respectively, at Dcccmber 31,2015

We have selected hypothetical changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and equity market prices to illustrate the possible impact of these
changes; we are not predicting market events.
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Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementaxy Data,

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Bbard of Directors and Shareholders
Aon ple

We have audited the accompanying consolidated staiements of financial position of Aon plc as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2015 | These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a kst basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosutes in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 4

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Aon ple at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 , and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015,

in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stateg), Aon ple's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 , based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commissien (2013 Framework) and our report dated February 22, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Enmit ¥ MLL?

Chicago, Illinois
February 22, 2016
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Aon plc
Consolidated Statements of Income

(millions, except per share data) Years enned December 31 2015 2014 2013
Revenue S ' ' S ' R R S
Commissions, fees and othef § 11,661 § 12,019 % 11,787
Fiduciary investient ingome. - e S S . : 26 28
Total revenus 11,682 12,045 11,815

Compensation and benefits 6,837 7,014 6, 945
Other generalexgenses R ' : | S : R o R 2’997 3:'065-:'_-'_ S
Total opetating expenses _ _ _ _ _ 9,834 10,079
Operating iicome .+ . - I T e T T T R
Interest income ' 7 14 10
Interest expense T R e e gy (o
Other income ' ‘ 100 Y
Income before income taxes -~ T o R I L
Income taxes 267 334 380
Net income I s ' N e 1422 L4310 LA
Less: Net income attnbutable to noncontmlhng mterests . 37 34 35 .
' ‘ ' o 1385 8§ 1397 LY

493 4.73 3.57
C4887 8 466§ 0353
Cash dividends per share paid on ordinary shares 115 0.92 0.68
Weighted average ordinary shares ontstanding - basic S T age g 9085 TR
Weighted average ordinary shaves outstanding - diluted 283.8 299.6 3154

Net income attributable to Aon shareholders

Basic net income per share aftributable to Aon shareholders
Driluted net income per Siimﬂs_- at_t_rlbutahle to Aon shareholders -

e es]es]en

leonlee| e |as
des|oalenies

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Aon ple
Consclidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(ml'llians) Years Ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Net mcome o S T ' EE 1422 S - 1431 § . L148
Less Net income attrlbutable to noncontrollmg mterests Y 34 35
Net income attnbutable to Aen shareholders: - % 1,385 § 1397 §° L3
Other comprehenswe {loss) gain, net of tax:
) :Cﬁl_ange in_fair value_ of financial mst_ru;nente g (8 4 7
Foreign currency translation adjustments (442) (507) (65)
-+ "Postretirement bénefit obligation 155 (260) 293
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (295) (763) 235
Less Ometeﬂmprehenswe oss attnbutabie to noncontrolling interests ©) 3 )
Total other comprehenswe (ioss) income attr:butable fo Aon shareholders (289) (760) 236
Cumprehenswe incoms’ attributabie o Aon shareho!ders : P $ 1006 % 637 § - 1,349

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Aon plc
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(rnillions, except nominal valug) As of December 31 2015 2014 -

ASRETS - -
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash équivalents - . s 384 R 75
Short-term investments 356 394
“Receivables, net ) 7 S 2815
Fiduciary assets 9,932 o 11,638
Other current assets C8E T e

Total Current Assets 13,972 15,823

Goodwill 8448 UUES60
Intangible assets, net 2180 2,520
Fixed assets, not 765765
Non-current deferred tax assets 144
Propaid pension ' L 933
Other non-current assets 7.2'7

TOTAL ASSETS $ 27064 - $ . 29772

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Fichiciary liabilities Sl : $ 9,932$ 51,638
Short-term debt and current portlon of long-term debt 7 783
Agocounts payable and acerued liabilities 1,_8_05 :
Other current liabili-ties 788
~ Total Current Liabilities 15,014
Long-term debt 7 4,79‘)
Non-current deférted tax liabilities . 313"--
Pension, other post retirement, and post employment Ilabﬂmes 2,141
Other non-current liabilities : 76T g
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,001 23,141
Ordinary shares - $0. 01 nominal value
Authorized: 750 shares (1ssued 2015 - 269.8; 2014 280 0) 3 3

. Additional paid-in capital 0, 097 5
Retained earnings ' 4,605

- Aceumulated ofher comprehensive foss. S @134
TOTAL AON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 6,571
Noncontrolling interesis 60
TOTAL EQUITY 6,631

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY o i :29,'272,. :

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Aon ple
Consolidated Statemenis of Shareholders' Equity

Ordinary Accumulcced
Shares and Other
Additional Retained Comprehensive Logs, Noncontrolling
(mitllians) Shares Paid-in Capital Earnings Net of Tax Interests Total
Baluce e Jandiry 1, 2013 3EF § - 443§ 59M . § 260) % 43§ 7805
Net mcome — —_ 1L,113 — 35 1,148
“Btiares 1ssued—employee benefit plans SR L w7 - (4] o - 27
Shares 1ssued_employee compensanon o ) 59 (50} = — —m (50)
‘Shares puirchased LT o 16.8) 0y = = (1.102)
Tax betefit— emplcyee benafit plans ] — 74 — — — 74
i: ensaﬁonexpen_se U el ‘ e - o w00 — i _ 200
Dlvsdends o shareholders e — 212) — — (212)
Net change’i m falrvalue‘ of finghgiat insirumenis o i B ' — — — I — 1
Net foreigt currency translation adjustments — -— — (64) (1) (65)
Net. post—retlremeﬁtbeneﬁt obl!ganon - ' S _: T o e 293 - i 23
Purchase of subsldmry shares from non-contreliing interest — 3 v — (8) (11}
4y uon-contmlhng mterests on 3ub51d1ary cummon
: S e e i — {19) (19
Balalu:e at December 3! 2013 ) 300.7 4,788 5,731 {2,374) 30 8,195
Netmcome : LT _. o ) . : *" - “Lagy o 34 1;4.3]
Sha.res issued — emp[oyee benefit plans o 04 26 —_ — —_ 26
Sharés msugdf_employeecum_pens_at_ion_ o S a7 (131} — L — (131y
Shares purchased _ (25.8) e (2,250) e —_— (2,250)
T’éx—heneﬁtA«_-:énb'l'o_ireie'benéﬁt plang: - " L - 8 - — 89
Shage-based compensation expense o — 328 — - — 328
Dividends to shareholders R S - - &) — — (73)
Neat change in lair vajue of financial mslruments ) — — — 4 — 4
Net forelgn cuirency tfans]aunn adjustmems S e —_— e {504) ' 3) (507}
Net post-retirement benefit obligation — — — (260) — (260)
Sale of subsidiary shageérﬁdm ron-caniroiling '.int,t-;:;eat —_ — — -— 3 3
Dividends paid to nen-controlling interests on subsidiary common
stock — — — — (24) (24)
Bﬁln’né’e‘At.n'e_:i;en;b_er_*'_si-,.26,14 2800 5,100 4,605 (3,134) 60 6,631
Net income — —_ _ 1,385 nm 37 1,422
Shares 1ssued--—employeabeneftplans : . 0.5 3 — an — 33
Shares 1ssued——employee compensatmn . o ) 5.3 (188) — — — o (188
Shares purchased - _ o (169) . (1,350) - — (1,550}
Tax benef‘ t— employee benef t pla.ns ] ] ] - 126 — — — 126
Sha:e—nased Gorhpensation expense . - e g — - — 340~
Dmdends to sharehelders o — — (323) e — (323)
Net chanige mfauva_:eof financial instruments’ e I - o ® —— . (8)
Net forelgn currency translatmnadjustments L _ e — —_ {436} (6) (442)
Netpost—rellremem beneﬂtobhgahon 7 S : N i ) _— 135 . 155
Sales of subsidiaty shares to non- controllmg interest _ — 1 — —_ (7 6}
DMdends paid tof n—controllmg mtercsts on submdlary common . . ’ )
Jstogk-, ] S o _ — T e = 27) . n
Balauce at December 31, 2015 2698 % 5412 § 4,117 § 3423 % 57 $ 6,163

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

54




Aon ple
Consolidated Statgments of Cash Flows

(rarillions) Years ended December 31 2015 W4 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ' ' , Lo LRI e
Net income $ 1422 8 1431 $ 1,148
-Adjustments to reconeile net income to cash pravided by operafing activitie: . R R T
Gain from sales of businesses and investments, net (81) (44) ' (65)
Depreciation of fixed assets ' 29 - 247 240,
Amortization of intangible assets 314 352 395
Share-based compensation expense T340 e 328 et 300
Deferred income taxes (223) . (I35) (I4j
Change in assets and liubiities: : - S L
Fiduciary receivables 599 (19} (4)
Short-tetm investments — funds held on behalf of clients . IR0 (DR 186
Fiduciary liabilitics (949) 22 (152
Receivables, net [ SR ) R R VT B
Accounts payable and accrued l:abn]mes 87 4 110
Restructuring reserves’ R R '(ﬁ)};_ SR V() MR 15
Current income taxes 7 1‘16 .
- Pension, other post-retirement dnd other ﬁﬁst-ertﬁblqymenfl_iabil'ities' ’ '(239} RN EY 1)
Other assets and Iiabilitiés 149 -
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES S2009 T ERIZ LI 1753
C ASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from investments -
Payments for investments (266)
Net salés (purchases) of shori-term i'nvesunén;ts ~—non-fidueiary S . ' s g Ll
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (16)
Proceeds from sale of busingsses I R :
Capital expenditures (2'90-)' - (256) (229)
CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES C(138) - (548) T {339y
CASI—I FLOWS FROM FINAN CING ACTIVITIES
Share repurchase . 1,550) (22505 0 (1,102)
Issuance of shares for employee benefit plans 30) {105) - (22)
Issuance of debt 5351 52390 10 4906
Repayment of debt (5, 098) (3,918) {4,679)
Cash dividends to shareholders L@y -y
Noncontrolling interests and other financmg activities 39 4 27
CASH USED FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES C(1,689) " ¢ (IL,SB_B) T . (E136)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS a7 67 (92)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVA__LENTS SIS [ ER ¢ SR £ 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 374 . 477 29l
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR . o S8 384§ 3§ 4T
Supplemental diselosures:
Interest paid - : o _ L L8 254§ 245 % 208
249 337 445

Income taxes paid, net of refunds

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1, Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidaled Financial Statements and Notes thereto have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles ("U.S. GAAP™), The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Aon plc and all of its controlled subsidiaries ("Aon” or the "Company").
All intereompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The Consolidated Financial Statements include, in the opinion of management, afl adjustments
necessary to present fairly the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows for all periods presented.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in prior years' Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes have been reclassified to conform to the 2G15 presentation,

In prior periods, long-term invesiments were included in Investments in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, These amounts are now included
in Other non-current assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as shown [n Note 3 to these Consolidated Financial Statements. Long-term
investments were $135 million at December 31, 2015 and $143 miltion at December 31, 2014 .

in prior periods, prepaid pensions were included in Other non-current assets in the Consolidated Stalement of Financtal Position. These amounts are tiow
separately disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Prepaid pensions were §1,033 million at December 31, 2015 and $933 miliion at
December 31, 2014 .

Upon vesting of certain share-based payment arrangements, employees may elect to use a portion of the shares to satisfy tax withholding requirements, in
which case Aon makes a payment to the taxing authority on the employee’s behalf and remits the remaining shares to the employee, The Company has
historically presented amounts due to taxing authorities within Cash Flows From Operating Activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The amounts
are now included in “Issuance of shares for employee benefit plans” within Cash Flows From Financing Activities. The Company belisves this presentation
provides greater clarity into the operating and financing activities of the Company as the substance and accounting for these transautions js that of a share
repurchase, It also aligns the Company’s presentation to be consistent with industry practice. Amounts reported in Issuance of shares for employee benefit plans
were $227 million , $170 million , and $120 million , respectively, for the years ended Decernber 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. These amounts, which were
reclassified from Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and Other assets and liabilities, were $85 miltion and $85 million in 2014, and $62 miltion and $58
million in 2013, respectively.

Changes to the presentation in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for 2014 and 2013 were made related to certain line items within financing
activities. The following line items and respective amounts have been aggregated in a new ling item titled “Noncontrelling interests and other financing
activities” within financing activities,

Years Ended December 31, 2014 2013
‘Purchases of shares from noncontrofling lnterésts R : . O ) 3 ®
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests 24} (19
Proceeds from sale-leaseback . S ' I o 25 -
Use of Estimates

The pteparation of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.8. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of reserves and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are based on management's best estimates and judgments, Management evaluates its
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, including the current economic environment. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable given the current facts available. Aon adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts ad circumstances dictate. Miquid credit
markets, volatile equity markets, and foreign currency exchange rate movements increase the uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions. As future
events and theit effects cannot be determined, among other factors, with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment would, if applicable, be reflected in the financial statemnents in future periods.
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Summ f Significant Accounting Principles and Practices

Revenue Recognition

Risk Solutions segment revenues primarily include insurance commissions and fees for services rendered and investment income on funds held on behalf of
clients. Revenues are recognized when they are earncd and realized or realizable, The Company considers revenues to be earned and realized or realizable when all
of the following four conditions are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) the arrangement fee is fixed or determinable, (3) delivery or
performance has ocourred, and (4) collectability is reasonably assured. For brokerage commissions, revenue is typically recognized at the completion of the
placement process, assuming all four criteria required to recognize revenue have been met. The placement process is typically considered complete on the effective
date of the related policy. Commission revenues are recorded net of allowances for estimated policy cancellations, which are determined based on an evaluation of
historical and current cancellation data.

HR Solutions segment revenues consist primarily of fees paid by clients for consulting advice and outsourcing contracts. Fees paud by clients for consulting
services are lypically charged on an hourly, project or fixed-fee basis. Revenues from time-and-materials or cost-plus arrangements are recognized as services are
performed, assuming all four criteria to recognize revenue have been met. Revenues from fixed-fee contracts are recognized as services are provided using a
proportional-performance model or at the completion of a project based on facts and circumstances of the client arrangement, Revenues from health care exchange
arrangements are typically recognized upon successful enrellment of participants, net of a reserve for estimated cancellations, assuming all four criteria to
recognize revenue have been met, Reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses are recorded ag a component of revenues. The Company's outsourcing
contracts typically have three ~to-~ five year terms for benefits services and five ~to- ten year terms for human resources business process outsoursing ("HR BPO")
services. Thie Company recognizes revenues as services are performed, assuming all criferia to recognize revenue have been met. The Company may also receive
implementation fees from clients either up-front or over the ongoing services period as a component of the fee per participant, Lump sum implementation fees
received from a client are typically deferred and recognized ratably over the ongeing contract services period. If a client terminates an outsourcing services
arrangement prior to the end of the contract, a loss on the contract may be recorded, if necessary, and any remaining deferred implementation revenues would
typically be recognized over the remaining service period through the termination date.

In connection with the Company's long-term outsourcing service agreements, highly customized implementation efforts are often necessary to set up clients
and their human resource or benefit programs on the Company's systems and operating processes. Qualifying costs of implementation incurred prior to the services
commencing are generally deferred and amortized over the period that the related ongoing services revenue is recognized. Deferred costs are assessed for
recoverability on a periodic basis to the extent the deferred cost exceeds related deferred revenue.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

Share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee share options, restricted shares and restricted share units ("RSUs"), performance share
awards ("PSAs") as well as employee share purchases related to the Employee Share Purchase Plan, are measured based on estimated grant date fair value, The
Company recognizes compensation expense over the requisite service period for awards expected to ultimately vest. Forfeitures are estimated on the date of grant
and revised if actual or expected forfeiture activity differs mawerially from original estimates.

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

The Company records net period cost relating to its pension and other post-retirement benefit plans based on calculations that include various actuarial
assumptions, including discount rates, assumed rates of return on plan assets, inflation rates, mortality rates, compensation increases, and turnover rates. The
Company reviews its actuarial assumptions en an annual basis and modities these assumptions based on current rates and trends. The effects of gains, losses, and
prior service costs and credits are amortized over future service periods or future estimated lives if the plans arc frozen. The funded status of each plan, calculated
as the fair value of plan assets less the benefit obligation, is reflected in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Financial Position using a December 31
measuremeni date.

Net Income per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to ordinary shareholders by the weighied-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, including participating securities, which consist of unvested share awards with non-forfeitable rights te dividends. Diluted net income per share is
computed by dividing net income available 1o ordinary shareholders by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding, which have been adjusted for
the dilutive effect of potentially issuable ordinary shares (excluding those that are considered participating securities), including certain
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contingently issuable shates. The diluted eatnings per share calculation reflects the more dilutive effect of either (1} the two-class method that assumes that the
participating securities have not been exercised, or (2) the treasury stock method.

Certain ordinary share equivalents, related primarily to options, are not included in the computation of diluted income per share if their inclusion would be
antidilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investinents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances and all highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months or less, Short-tertn investments
include certificates of deposit, money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with initial maturities in excess of three months but less than one
year and are casried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

At December 31, 2015, Cash and cash equivalents and Short-term investtnents totaled $740 million compared to $768 million at December 31, 2014 . Of the
total balance, $105 million and $169 million was restricted as to its use at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively, Included within the December 31, 2015 and
2014 balances, respectively, were £43.3 million { $64.6 miltion at December 31, 2015 exchanges rates) and £42.0 million ( 365.3 million at December 31, 2014
exchange rates) of operating funds required to be held by the Company in the U.K. by the Financial Conduct Authority, a U.K -based regulalor, which were
included in Short-term investments. In addition, Cash and cash equivalents included additional restricted balances of $40 million and $104 million at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

In its capacity as an insurance agent and broker, Aon collects premiums from insureds and, after deducting its commission, remits the premiums to the
respective insurers. Aon also collects claims ot refunds from insurers on behalf of insureds. Uncollected premiums from insureds and uncollected claims of refunds
from insurers are recorded as Fiduciary assets in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Unremitted insurance premiums and claims are
held in a fiduciary capacity and the obligation to remit these funds is recorded as Fiduciary liabilities in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position. Some of the Company's outsourcing agreements also require it to hold funds te pay certain obligations on behalf of clients. These funds are also recorded
as Fiduciary assets with the related obligation recorded as Fiduciary liabilities in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Financial Position,

Aon maintained premium trust balances for premiums collected from insureds but not yet remitted to insurance companies of $3.4 billion and $4.0 billion at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. These funds and a corresponding liability are included in Fiduciary assets and Fiduciary l!abll]tl.ES respectively, in the
accomparnying Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

Allowance for Donbiful Accounts

The Company's allowance for doubtful accounts with respect to receivables is based on a combination of factors, including evaluation of historical write-
offs, aging of balances and other qualitative and quantitative analyses. Receivables, net included an allowance for doubtful accounts of $58 million and $74 million
at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, Included in this catego:y is internal use software, which is software that is acquired, inte:nally
developed or modified solely to meet internal needs, with no plan to market externally, Costs related to directly obtaining, developing or upgrading internal use
software are capitalized. Depreciation and amertization are computed using the straight-ling method over the estimated vseful lives of the assets, which are
generally as follows:

Asset Description Asset Life

Software . .. . © - Lesser of the lifsof an associated license, or 410 7 years . =
Leasehold improvements Lesser of estimated useful life or lease tenﬁ, not to exceed 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .. dwl0years ' ' ST
Computer equipment 4 to 6 years

Buildings o T 33 yoars

Automobiles 7 6 years

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of the net assets in the acquisition of a business, Goodwill is allocated to various
reporting units, which are one reporting level below the operating segment. Upon disposition of a business entity, goodwill is ailocated to the disposed entity based
on the fair value of that entity compared to the fair value of the reporting unit in which it was included. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for
impairment at least annually. The goodwill impairment test is performed at the reporting unit level. The Company initially performs a qualitative analysis to
determine if it is more likely than not that the goodwill balance is impaired. If such a determination is made, then the Company will perform a two-step quantitative
analysis. First, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared to its carrying vatue. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its catrying value, the
Company performs & hypothetical purchase price allocation based on the reporting unit's fair value to determine the fair value of the repotting unit's goodwill. Any
resulting difference will be a charge to Other general expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the determination is made. Fair
value is determined using a combination of present valug techniques and market prices of comparable businesses.

Intangible assets include customer related and contract based assefs representing primarily ciient relationships and non-compete agreements, tradenames, and
marketing and technology related assets. These intangible assets, with the exception of tradenames, are amortized over periods ranging from ! to 16 years, with a
weighted average original lifs of 11 years Tradenames are not amortized when such assets have been determined o have indefinite useful lives, and are tested at
least annually for impairments using an analysis of expected future cash flows. Interim impairment testing may be performed when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the intangible asset may not be recoverable.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at fair value. Where the Company has entered into master netting
agreements with counterparties, the derivative positions are netted by counterparty and are reported accordingly in other assets or other labilities. Changes in the
fair value of derivative instruments are recognized in earnings each period, unless the derivative is designated and qualifies as a cash flow or nef investment hedge.

The Company has historically designated the following hedging relationships for certain transactions: (i) a hedge of the change in fair value of a recognized
assef or liability or firm commitment ("fair value hedge"), (ii) a hedge of the variability in cash flows from a recognized variable-rate asset or liability or forecasted
{ransaction ("cash flow hedge"), and (iii) a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation ("net investment hedge").

In order for a derivative to qualify for hedge accounting, the derivative must be formally designated as a fair value, cash flow, or a net investment hedge by
documenting the relationship between the derivative and the hedged item. The decumentation must include a description of the hedging instrument, the hedged
item, the risk being hedged, Aon's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the method for assessing the effectiveness of the hedge, and
the method for measuring hedge ineffectiveness. Additionally, the hedge relationship must be expected to be highly effective at offsetting changes in either the fair
value or cash flows of the hedged item at both the ingeption of the hedge and on an ongoing basis. Aon assesses the ongoing effectiveness of its hedges and
measures and records hedge ineffectiveness, if any, at the end of each quarter or more frequently if facts and circumstances require.

For a derivative designated as a hedging instrument, the changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or [iability or a firm commitment (a fair value hedge),
the gain or loss is recognized in earnings it the period of change together with the offsetiing loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged.
The effect is to reflect in earnings the extent to
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which the hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value. For a cash flow hedge that qualifies for hedge accounting, the effective portion of the
change in fair value of a hedging instrument is recognized in Other Comprehensive ineome ("OCH") and subsequently reclassified to earnings in the same period
the hedged item impacts carnings. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value is recognized i mediately in earnings. For a net investment hedge, the
effective portion of the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recognized in OCI as part of the cutnulative transtation adjustment, while the ineffective
portion is recognized immediately in earnings.

Changes in the fair value of a detivative that is not designated as part of a hedging relationship (commonly referred to as an "economic hedge") are recorded
in Other income in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when (1) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, (2) the qualifying criteria are
no longer met, or (3) management removes the designation of the hedging refationship.

Forelgn Currency

Certain of the Company's non-US operations use their respective local currency as their functional currency. These operations that do not have the U.S.
dollar as their functional currency translate their financial statements at the current rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses
using rates that approximate those in effect during the period. The resulting translation adjustments are included in net foreign currency translation adjustments
within the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity. Gains and losses frotn the remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
non~furictional currency are included in Other income within the Consclidated Statements of Income, The effect of foreign exchange gains and losses on the
Consclidated Statements of Income wete gain s of $11 million , $1 million , and $3 million in 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 , respectively. Included in these amounts
were hedging losses of $19 million in both 2015 and 2014 and hedging losses of 10 million in 2013

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the effect of temporary differences between financial reporting and tax basis of agsets and linbilities and are
measured using the enacted marginal tax rates and laws that are curtently in effect, The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities from a change in {ax rates is

recognized in the period when the rate change is enacted.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation atlowances if, based on the consideration of all available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of
the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified. Deferred tax assets are realized by having
sufficient future taxable income to allow the related tax benefits to reduce taxes otherwise payable, The sources of taxable income that may be available to realize
the benefit of deferred tax assets are future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary differences
and carry-forwards, taxable income in carry-back years and tax planning strategies that are both prudent and feasible.

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if sustaining those positions is more likely than not. Tax positions that meet the more likely
than not recognition threshold but are not highly certain are initially and subsequently measured based on the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement with the taxing authority. Ortly information that is available at the reporting date is considered in the Company's
recognition and measurement analysis, and events or changes in facts and circumstances are accounted for in the period in which the event or change in
circumstance occurs. '

The Company records penalties and interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in Income taxes in the Company's Consolidated Statements of [ncome.
New Acconnting Pronouncements

Presentation of Deferred Taxes

In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")} issued new accounting guidance on the balance sheet presentation of deferred
taxes, which require that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent. The guidance is effective for Aon in the first quarter of 2017, however, the
Company is expecting to early adopt this guidance in 2016 and retrospectively apply its requirements to all periods presented. The adoption of this guidance is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Debt Issuance Cosis
In April 2015, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on the presentation of debt issuance costs, which requires debt
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issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the asseciated debt liability. This guidance will also be applied to Aon's debt issyance
costs related to its ling-of-credit arrangements, The new guidance will be applied on a retrogpective basis effective in the first quarter of 2016, The adoption of this
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidations

In February 2015, the FASE issued new accounting guidance on congolidations, which will eliminate the deferral granted to investment companies from
applying the variable interest entities guidance and make targeted amendments to the current consolidation guidance, The new guidance applies to all entities
involved with limited partnerships or similar entities and requires re-evaluation of these entities under the revised guidance, which could change previous
consolidation conclusions. The guidance is effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2016. The adoption of this guidance will not have a material impact on
the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on revenue from contracts with customers, which, when effective, will supersede nearly all
existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The core principal of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue when it fransfers promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
guidance also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including
significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The guidance is effective for Aon in the
first quarter of 2018 and early adoption is permitted beginning the first quarter of 2017. The guidance permits two methods of transition upon adeption: full
retrospective and modified retrospective, Under the full retrospective method, prior periods would be restated under the new revenue standard, providing a
comparable view acrass all periods presented. Under the modified retrospective method, prior periods would not be restated, Rather, revenues and other disclosures
for pre-2018 periods would be provided in the notes to the financial statements as previously reported under the current revenue standard, The impact from the
adoption of this guidance on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements cannot be determined at this time as the standard is still undergoing changes. The
Company is also determining the appropriate method of transition to the guidance and the timing of adoption of the guidance,

her Fi i
Conselidated Statements of Income Information

Other Income

Other income consists of the following {in millions);

Years ended December k)| 2015 2014 2013

Equltyearmngs S g T S R S13 $ 12 : LA

Net gain on disposals of businesses o . 82 24

Foreign currency femeastitement gain .~ .t aoens e s S gt e g

(Loss) income on financial instruments 24) [15) 18
$ 100 § 44 8 68
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position Information

Atlowance for Donbtful Accounts

An analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follews (in millions):

Years ended December 31, 2015 2014 2013
Balange at beginning of year. . L C ' ' $ 4§ - 9 § 118
Provision cllargéd to operatidns ‘ 13 12 9
Accounts written. of(; niet of recoverios : ' . B¢y 33 (38)
Foreign cﬁrren.cy- transtation 5 5 |
Balance atendofyear - - o ' - _ S 58§ 74§ 90
Other Current Assets
The components of Other current assets are as follows (in millions):
As of December 31 2015 2014
Taxesreceivable, . oL oot Lot L nho o s § 99
Deferred tax assets " 7 7 . - 232 212
Prepmd sxpenses’ -1';' B DEEER Ll R T s R | & 164
Deferred pmject costs o 92 102
Other T ot _ : _ . 18 25
L) 566 § 602
Fixed Assets, net
The components of Fixed assets, net are as follows (in millions):

As of December 31 2015 2014
Software - . - L R $ LS 8 1,020
Leasehold lmprovements 422 413
Computer equipment . . . . ) i : 358 - 347
Fumiture, fixtures and equtpment ' 315 313
Construcnonmprogress RO L . AT : o S 76 94
Other ' 115 124

ST e e R Ce 2,381 2,31
Less Accumulated deprematlon ' ' 1,616 1,546
leedassets get et .. s R LT -8 765 % 765

Depreciation expense, which includes software amortization, was $229 million , $242 million , and $240 million for the years ended December 31, 2015,

2014 , and 2013 , respectively.
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Other Non-Current Assets

The components of Other non-current assets are as folluws (in millions).

As of December 31 2015 2014
Deferred project costs EREEENE TT IR 250 :
Investments 135
Taxés receivable Coos oL
Other 198 233
R 2k
Other Current Liabilities
The components of Other current liabilities are as follows (in millions):
As of December 31 2015 2014
Deferred revenue . - Ll 394 %
Taxes payable 94
Deferred tax liability ) L2
Other 331 314
U820 S IRE
_Other Non-Current Liabilities
‘The components of Other non-current liabilities are as follows (in mitlions);
As of December 31 2015 2014
Taxgs payable BRI 2]0
Leases 166 184
Deferred revenue 159 . 187
Compensation and benefits 59 37
Other 162 - 236
769 874
4. Acquisitions and Dispositions
The number of acquisitions completed within each business segment is as follows:
Years ended December 31 2018 2014
Risk Solutions ' KN TR
HR Solutions 4
13




The following table includes the aggregate consideration transferred and the preliminary value of intangible assets recorded as a result of the Company's

acquisitions (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014
Consideration - - _ . ' o _ : $ 27 461
Intangible assets:
CcGeodwill o o A s 18 292
Other intangible assets . ' 1 328
. Tatal intangible assets = - o : 8 24 620

The resulis of operations of these acquisitions are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements as of the acquisition date. The results of operations of
the Company would not have been materially different if these acquisitions had been reported from the beginning of the period in which they were acquired.

Dispositions

The nuimnber of dispositions completed within each business segment is as follows:

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
RiskSelutions =~ oo o _ o 4 2 7
2

HR Solutions - 3 —

Total pretax gains, net of losses, recognized were $82 million , $24 million , and $10 million , respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014,

and 2013. Gains and losses recognized as a result of a disposition are included in Other income in the Conselidated Statements of Income.
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5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively, are as follows (in
millions):

Risk HR
Solutions Solutions Total

Balance as of Janvary 1,2014 . R o F 02008 291 8 8907
Goodwill related to current year acquisitions 287 5 292
Goodwill related to disposels . - L e L e
Goodwill related to prior year acquisitions &
Transfor S S R S @
Foreign currency translation - (372)
Balance as of December 31, 2014 : ' o N TR X T I
Goodwill related to current year acquisitions 2
Goodwill related to disposals _ S T Ty
Goodwill related to prior year acquisitions ' -
Transfer e o : _ R S e
Foreign currency translation 319
Balanee ss of December 31, 2015 S g 53938

Other intangible assets by asset class are as follows (in millions):

As of December 31
2015 2014
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets with indefinite lives: - ' R e
Tradenames $ 1,019 § — 8 1,019 § 1019 § — % 1019
Intangible asséts with finite lives: - - _ R S RO e S el RS
Customer related and contract based 2,886 1,809 o 2952 1,579 1373
_ Technology and other - R S AT R L T . e e v
$ 4,446 § 2,266 $ 2,180 § 4542 % 2022 3% 2,520

Amortization expense from finite-lived intangible assets was $314 million , $352 millien and $395 miilion during 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

The estimated future amortization for finite-lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2015 is as follows (in millions):

Risk HR
Solutions Solutions Total
2016 T S TS SRR IS e i)
2017 90 136 226
2018 o A B, | S 2
2019 66 72 138
2020 L B T ERCIR S NI kSR 1| SR PR I
Thereafter . 120 120 240
' T : - -0 510§ . 650 .§ 1160
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6. Debt

The following iz a suminary of outstanding debt (in millions):

As of December 31 2015 2014
5.00% Semor Notas du September 2020- i ' ' ' _ 599 599
4.75% Senior Nﬂtes due 2045 598 —
3.50% Senior Notes dugune 2024 o o 597 ' 597
4.60% Senior Notes due June 2044 ' ' ' ' 549 549
2875% Senior Notes due May 2026 (EUR S00M) - . |~ . [ _ B 7 605
8 205% Junior Subordinated Notes due January 2027 . ' 521 521
3.125% Senior Notes dugMay 2016~ =~ 0 T Co A T 80 . o500
2.80% Senior Notes due 2021 ' ' N e —
400% SemcrNotes dug November 2023 T 3 o o ' .. o R . g 348
6.25% Senior Notes due September 2040 ‘ 298 298
4 76% SemorN‘utes dud March 2018 (CAD 33My ' S - : - b) | s 322
4.45% Senior Notes due May 2043 249 248
425% SemorNotes due_D_e_cember 2042 - o _ . _ = S R . 196 196
3.50% Senior Notes due September 2015 — 599
Commercml pape1 QL 50 168
Other . 16 31
Totaldebt =~ & - 1 .. e _ e N Y )
Less short-term and current pomon uf long-—term debt 562 783
thallong-term debt.’ TR R IR o o ' b C5175 0§ 4,799

Revolving Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2015, Aon ple had two committed credit facilities outstanding; its $400 million U.S. credit facility expiring in March 2017 (the "2017
Facility") and $900 million multi~currency U.S. credit facility expiring in February 2020 (the "2020 Facility"). The 2020 Facility was entered into on Febraary 2,
2015 and replaced the previous €650 million Buropean credit facility.

Effective February 2, 2016, the 2020 Facility terms were extended for 1 year and will expire in February 2021.

Each of these facilities included customary representations, warranties and covenants, including financial covenants that require Aon ple to maintain
specified ratios of adjusted consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense and consolidated debt to adjusted consolidated EBITDA, in each case, tested
quarterly. At December 31, 2015, Aon ple did not have borrowings under either the 2017 Facility or the 2020 Facility, and was in compliance with these financial
covenants and all other covenants contained therein during the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 .

Notes
On November 13, 2015, Aon ple issued $400 million of 2.80% Senior Notes due March 2021. We used the proceeds of the issuance for general cotporate
purposes.

On September 30, 2015, $600 million of 3.50% Senior Notes issued by Aon Corporation matured and were repaid.

On May 20, 2015, the Aon ple issued $600 million of 4,750% Senior Notes due May 2045, The Company used the proceeds of the issuance for general
corporate purposes.

On August 12, 2014, Aon plc issued $350 million of 3.50% Senior Notes due June 2024, The 3.50% Notes due 2024 constitute a further issuance of, and
were consolidated to form a single series of debt securities with, the $250 million of 3.50% Notes due June 2024 that was issued by Aon ple on May 20, 2014
concurrently with Aon ple's issuance of $550 million of 4.60% Notes due June 2044, Aon ple used the proceeds from these issuances for working capital and
general corporate purposes,
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On May 7, 2014, Aen plc issued €500 million of 2.875% Senior Notes due May 2026, Aon plc used the proceeds of the issuance for, ambng other purposes,
the repayment at maturity of Aon ple's then cutstanding €500 million of 6.25% Notes due July 2014,

Each of the notes issued by Acn ple and described above is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Aen Corporation, The 5.00% Senior Notes due 2020,
3.125% Senior Notes due 2016, 6.25% Senior Notes due 2040, and 8.205% Junior Subordinated Notes due January 2027 identified in the table above were issued
by Aon Corporation and are fully and unconditicnally guaranteed by Aon ple. Similarly, the 3.50% Senior Notes repaid in 2015 had been issued by Aon
Corporation and were fully and uncenditionally guaranteed by Aon ple. The 4.76% Senior Notes due March 2018 identified in the table above were issued by a
Canadian subsidiary of Aon Corporation and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Aon ple and Aon Corporation. Each of the notes described above and
identified in the table above contains customary representations, warranties and covenants, and we were in compliance with all such covenants as of December 31,
2015,

During the year ended December 31, 2015, Aon Corporation's $500 million 3.125% Senior Notes due May 2016 were classified as Short-term debt and
current pottion of long-term debt in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as the date of maturity is less than one year,

Commercinl Paper

Aon Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aon ple, has established a U.S, commercial paper program, which provides for commercial paper to be
issued in an aggregate principal amount of up to $900 million , and Aon plc has established a European multi-currency commercial paper program that provides for
commercial paper to be issued in an aggregate principal amount of up to €300 millien . The U.S. commercial paper program is fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by Aon ple and the European commercial paper program is fully and un¢onditionally guaranteed by Aon Corporation. In the aggregate, the Company
had $50.0 million and $168.0 million of commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively, which was included in Short-term debt and
current portion of long-termt debt in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. The weighted average commercial paper autstanding for 2015
and 2014 was $402.0 millicn and $308.0 million , respectively. The weighted average inferest rate of the cominercial paper outstanding during 2015 and 2014 was
0.50% and 0.35% , respectively,

Repayments of total debt are as follows (in millions}:

2016 o : c - _ o . R . ATER 56
2017 N ' 3
2019 —
2020 . o - ' S _ S T e sy
Thereafter 4,302

7. Lease Commitments

The Company leases office facilities, equipment, and antomobiles under non-cancelable operating leases. These leases expire at various dates and may
contain renewal and expansion options. Tn addition to hase rental costs, cccupancy lease agreements generally provide for rent escalations resulting from increased
assessments for real estate taxes ang other charges. The Company's lease obligations are primarily for the use of office space.
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Rental expenses (including amounts applicable to taxes, insurance and maintenance) for operating leases are as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013

Rental egpense. . - -~ . . . o - i L " 54 5 455 % 520

Less: Sub lease rental income 33 (75) (N
Mettentabexpense. o . . L S. . 3§ . . 380 8 443

At December 31, 2013, fature minimum rental payments required under operating lecases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess
of one year, net of sublease rental income, are as follows (it millions):

2006 . o : o _ E ' $ 325
2017 291
2019 235
20207 e b e T S S 199
Thereafter N . ' ) 828

I i, - - : - XTE

Total minimui paytnents reguired. . -

. Ing Ta

Income before income tax and the provision for income tax consist of the following (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Incdme before incorme taxos: S : ' - o :
UK. 5 149 § 47§ 96
U8 e - RER) 349
Other R e R . . . . st 473 1093
otal e e 8 1,680 § 175 $ 1,538
Income tax expense (bene fit):
Current Cunie o R : : _ :
UK. ' ' 8 4 s 1 8 (18)
US.federal -~ - e e e : B 137 156 R Y
USS. state and focal ' ' ' 54 7 52
Other o LR o o _ o _ i 236 ' 259
Total current tax expense $ 490 § 468 % 404
Deferred tax expense {benefity; -~ - I : ' '
UK. $ (39 3 38§ 43
CUSfederal o oo B R oAy a3 (48)
~ U.S. state emd local . . . (14) 24 10
Othet S S : @ 15 (19)
Totat deferred tax benet‘ t hJ (223} $ (134) § (14)
‘Total income tax expense. LT L o % 26T 8 34§ 390

Income before income taxes shown above is based on the location of the business unit to which such earnings are attributable for tax purposes. In addition,
because the earnings shown above may in some cases be subject to taxation in more than one country, the income tax provision shown above as UK., U.S. or
Other may not correspond to the geographic attribution of the eamings.
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A reconciliation of the income tax provisions based on the Company's domicile and statutory rate at each reporting period is performed. The 2015, 2014 and
2013 reconciliations are based on the UK. statutory corporate tax rate of 20.3%, 21.5% , and 23.0% , respectively. The reconciliation to the provisions reflected in
the Consolidated Financial Statements-is as ‘ollows:

Years ended December 31

2018 2414 2013
Statutory tax rafe 20.3% T215% T280%
U.S. state income taxes, netof u.s. federai beneﬁt 0.5 1.5 26
Tanes on international operatmns (1) - (6.6) L (8 9) (4 4}
Nondeductible expenses 2.2 1.7 L4
"Adjustments o prior year tax requirements o RN ) RN £ SR 01 e
Deferred tax adjustments, including statutory rate changes {0.1) 0. . 1.4
Deferred tax acl]ustments, interriationzll camings o w« B S s i S
Adjustments to valuation allowances ' (0.6) 06 L7
Change in.uncerfain tax positions 1.4 im 03
Other — net — 0.4 —
Effective tax rate T I58% CABO% T IS

(1) The Company determines the adjustment for taxes on international operations based on the difference between the statutory tax rate applicable to egrnings
in each foreign jurisdiction and the enacted rate of 20.3% , 21.5% and 23.0% at December 31, 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively, The benefit to the
Company's effective income tax rate from faxes on international operations relates to benefits from lower-taxed global operations, primarily due to the use

of global funding structures.

The components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in millions):

As of December 31

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets: G
Employee benefit plans 635 % 739
- Net operating/capital Toss and tax credit cﬁal;ryforwards - o 3119 s
Accrued interest 293 303
Other accrued expenses 9% : 44
Deferred revenue 65 40
Investment basis differences B 45
Other 56 6
Total 1552 i 1472
Valuation allowance on deferred tax ascets (175) (205)
Total ' 1377 % 1,267
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles and property, plant and equipment U6l % _ T -058}
QOther accrued expenses @9 (40)
Deferred costs ey B ¢3!
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (29) a4
Unremitied sarnings 18y _;_"("28')_,
Other 44) (28)
Total 1808 . (1,226)
Net deferred tax asset % 3 41
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Deferred income taxes (assets and liabilities have been netted by jurisdiction) have been classified in the Consolidated Statements of F inancial Positicn as
foltows (in millions):

As of December 31, 2015 . 2014
Deferredtax assofs — current (1) . - L . : ' § 22§ 212
Deferred tax assets — noti-current . o 141 144
‘Defarred tax liabilitios — current (1) . . ' . T N ¢ @
Deferred tax liabilities — non-current . ' (176) (313)
Net defbrred tax asset . o S S - | 196§ . 41

(1) Inchuded in Other current assets and Other current liabilities.

Valuation allowances have been established primarily with regard to the tax benefits of certain net operating loss, capital loss and interest expense
carryforwards. Valuation allowances decreased by $30 million as of December 31, 2015 when compared to December 31, 2014, primarily attributable to the

reversal of a valuation allowange and the impact of foreign currency translation.

The Company recognized, as an adjustment to additional paid-in-capital, income tax benefils aftributable to employee stock compensation of $126 million ,
$89 million and $74 million in 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

U.S. deferred income taxes of $20 million wete accrued in 2015 on undistributed earnings that are not permanently reinvested. Undistributed earnings of
non-17.8. entitles were approximately $2.2 billion at December 31, 2015 . U.S. income taxes have not been provided on these undistributed earnings because they
are considered to be permanently reinvested in those subsidiaries. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of unrecognized deferred tax ligbitities, if any, for

these undistributed foreign earnings.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had UK. operating [oss carryforwards of $449 million and $154 million and capital loss carryforwards of
$360 million and $380 million , respectively. In addition, at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Compeny had U.S, federal operating loss carryforwards of $7.5
million and $18 million , and U.S. state operating loss carryforwards of $443 million and $451 millien , respectively. In other non-U.S, jurisdictions, the Company
had operating loss carryforwards of $245 million and $325 million and capital loss carryforwards of $206 million and $223 miliion as of December 31, 20 15 and
2014, respectively, The U.K. operating losses and capital losses have an indefinite carryforward. The federal operating loss carryforwards as of Decembet 31, 2015
expire at various dates from 2020 to 2035 and the state operating loss carry furwards as of December 31, 2015 expire at various <ates from 2016 to 2035. Operating
and capital losses, in other non-U.8, jurisdictions have various carry forward periods and will begin to expire in 2019.

During 2012, the Company was granted a tax holiday for the period from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2022, with respect t withholding taxes and
certain income derived from services in Singapore. This tax holiday and reduced withholding tax rate may be extended when certain conditions are met or may be
terminated early if certain conditions are not met. The henefit realized was approximately $23 millien , $7 million , and $3 milton during the years ctded
December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. The impact of this tax holiday on diluted earnings per share was $0.08 , $0.02, and $0.01 during the years ended

December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.
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Uncertain Tax Positions

The following is a recongiliation of the Company's beginning and ending amount of uncertain tax positions (in milliuns):

2018 2014
Balance at January | : - - B e O U T
Additions based on tax positions refated to the current year k) | 31
Additions for tx positions of prior years. . - _ o BN IR RO e« RS [
Reductions for tax positions of ptior yeats . o 7 (18} . .(6')
Sstilernents e _ . i @
Business combinations - 5
Lapse of statute of limitaticns o s IR - _ : Do o :._ S 'f‘(S)f B (,;';_)"
Foreign currency translation @ o 2)
Balance at December 31 T e S e S T T )

The Company's liability for uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 | includes $180 million , $154 million , and $141 million,
respectively, related to amounts that would impact the effective tax rate if recognized. It is possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits may change in the
next twelve months; however, we do not expect the change to have a significant impact on our consolidated statements of income or consolidated balance sheets.
These chainges may be the result of settlements of ongoing audits. At this time, an estimate of the range of the reasonably possible outcomes within the twelve
months cannot be made.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its provision for income taxes. The Company accrued potential interest and
penalties of $2 million , $4 million , and $2 million in 2015, 2014, and 2013 , respectively. The Company recorded a liability for interest and penalties of $33
million , $31 million , and $27 million as of December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 , respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries file incore tax returns in their respective jurisdictions, The Company has substantially concluded all U.S. federal income
tax matters for years through 2007, Material 1.8, state and local income tax jurisdiction examinations have been concluded for years through 2005, The Company
has concluded income tax examinations in its primary non-U.8, jurisdictions through 2003.

9. hareholders' it

Pistributable Reserves

As a UK, incorporated company, the Company is required under UK. law to have available "distributable reserves” to make share repurchases or pay
dividends to shareholders. Distributable reserves may be ¢reated through the earnings of the UK. parent company and, amongst other metheds, through a reduction
in share capital approved by the English Companies Court. Distributable reserves are not linked to a U.S. GAAP reported amount {e.g., retained earnings). As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 , the Company had distributable reserves in excess of $2.1 billion and $4.0 billion , respactively.

Ordinary Shares

In April 2012, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program under which up to $5.0 billien of Class A Ordinary Shares may be
repurchased ("2012 Share Repurchase Program™). In November 2014, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a new $5.0 billion share repurchase program in
addition to the existing program (2014 Share Repurchase Program" and, together, the "Repurchase Programs”). Under each program, shares may be repurchased
through the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, based on prevailing market conditions, funded from available capital,

During 2015 , the Company repurchased 16.0 million shares at an average price per share of $97.04 for a total cost of $1.6 billion under the Repurchase
Programs, During 2014 , the Company repurchased 25.8 million shares at an average price per share of $87,18 for a total cost of $2.3 billion under the 2012
Share Repurchase Plan. In August 2015, the $3 billion of Class A Ordinary Shares authorized under the 2012 Share Repurchase Program was exhausted. At
December 31, 20135, the remaining authorized amount for share repurchasc under the 2014 Share Repurchase Program is $4.1 billion . Under the Repurchase
Programs, the Company repurchased a total of 78.1 million shares for an aggregate cost of $5.9 billion .
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Net Income Per Share

Weighted average shares outstanding are as follows {in miil:ons):

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
‘Shares for basic earnings pershare’ - . e 2808 295.5 3114
Common stock equivalents . 3.0 4.1 4.0
Shares for diluted earnings per share . © .. g o o 28338 - 299.6 3154

Certain ordinary share equivalents may be excluded from the computation of diluted net inceme per share if their inclusion would be antidilutive. There were
no shares excluded from the calculation for in 2015, 2014 , or 2013 .

Dividends

During 2015, 2014, and 2013, the Company paid dividends on its Class A Ordinary Shares of $323.1 million , $273.0 million , aud $212.0 million ,
respectively. Dividends paid per Class A Ordinary Share were $1.15, $0.92 and $0.68 for the vears ended December 31, 2015, 2014 , and 2013 respectively.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Changes in Accumulated other comprehensive loss by component, net of related tax, are as follows (in millions):

Change in Fair Foreign Curvency  Post-Retirement
Value of Financiz] Transiation Benefit
. Instruments (1) Adjustments Obligation {2) Total
Balance at January 1,2013 e I 28 % 238 2815 ¥610)
Other comprehensive toss before reclassifications;
Other comprehenisive lods before reclassifications =~~~ _ . 15 esy o Be 86
Tax benefit o ) ' ] (136) (143)
Other somprehensive loss before reclassifications, net - . T ST Ay 00 143
Amvunts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss: . o -
- Amounts reclassified from accimulated other comprehensive loss - - I E TR Y182
Tax bencfit ' ' B - ' ) — (38) - (39)
Amounts reclassifiod from aceumulated other comprehensive loss, net L e T T
Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income 7 (64) 293 236
Balance at December 31, 2013 - L @nt 189 @Sy (2374,
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications:
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications LT sy ey T se3) o (1.0e8y
Tax benefit 4 (12) 29 221
Other comprehensive toss before teclassifications, nét o IR ) R = BRI - 1) R ¢ 1)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss: . . . . .
* Amounts eeclassified from accunwilated other comprobensive loss L 20 T = T 06 126
Tax benefit . t?) I . (32) (39)
‘Amounts reclassified from accumulated oﬂm_cr-c.omprehensive loss, net ' ' - 13 R e LTRSS RY
Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income 4 (504) (260) {760}
Balance st December 31,2004~ R Sy R3S) . (a8 B134).
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications: _
_Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications .~ B TR SN (SRR, ' 7 s f S (380)
Tax benefit 1 a N 23
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifioations, net . L T @y T e TF S (366)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss: - - . o )
Amounts rechassified fom accumulated other comprehensive loss S e s 128
Tax benefit a6 _ (35 51)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other cémpréh‘er_:sive Tpss, net s e gy 77
Net current period other comprebensive .(loss) income 3) (436) 1585 289
Balance at December 31,2015 o L 8 (@88 (M) $ 0 @em §aan

(1) Reclassifications from thig category included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss are recorded in Other income
{2) Reclassifications from this category included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss are recorded in Compensation and benefits
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10, Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Savings Pluns

Aon maintains defined contribution savings plans for the benefit of its U 8., UK., Netherlands and Canada employees. The expense recognized for these
plans is included in Compensation and benefits in the Consolidated Statements of Income, as follows (in millions):

Yecars ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
B _ - B 3 133§ 123§ 123
e AT AL _ e - .
Netherlands and Chgada .~~~ o - - T - - 18
5 200 $ 195 § 186

Penslon and Other Post-retirement Benefits

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension and post-retirement health and welfare plans that provide retirement, medical, and life insurance benefits.
The post-retitement healthcare plans are contributory, with retiree contributions adjusted annually, and the life insurence and pension plans are generally
noncontributory. The significant U.S., U K., Netherlands and Canadian pension plans are closed to new entrants.
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Pension Plans

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the projected benefit obligations and fair value of assets for the years ended Devember 31,
2015 and 2014 and a staterment of the funded status as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, for the material UK. plans, U.S. plans and other major plans, which are
located in the Netherlands and Canada, These plans repregent appmxnmately 93% of thc Company's projected benefit obligations.

U.K. U.s. Other

{millions) 2018 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Change in projected benefii obligation o o DR T e R
At January | $ 559 § 5106 § 3,350 § 2744 $ 1399 § 1252
Service cost S DU R e R W : o
Interest cost 198 230 131 47
Participant contributions ~ R i R = T
Plan amendment 27 - - — (10} —_
Curtailmers - — e — = - {16)°
Plan transfer and acqulsmons ) -— (18) 13 —_— —
Actuarial Toss (gain) - (83) @D - @) o265 Mo (8)
Benefit payments @17 (192) (133) (130) (38 (51)
Actual cxponses - — Vs e e g o))
Change in discount rate (247) 902 (145) ' 327 (66) 324
Foreign ourrency impact @1 - @D = 168y L (150)
At December 31 $ 4985 $ 5529 $ 3160 F 3350 § L1777 0§ 1,399
Accumulated benefit obligation at etid of year 8 4983 % 05529 % 360 0§ . 3350 $- KIS § - 1316
Change in fair value of plan assets
At Jatuary 1 $ 6224 § 5398 § 2,036 $ 1,855 § CLI6IC S 1,06
Actual return on plan assets 91 1,199 (60) 190 3 253
Parti¢ipant contributions’ — _ — Ca e — -
Employer contributions 65 166 108 121 21 28
Plan transf.; and acquisitions RE)] i Lo S -- e -_—
Benefit payments (217) (192) {133) (130 (38) (63}
Actual Expenses . o : e B R (2)'
Foreign currency impact 257) 347 —_ — 133) (128)
AtDecembor 31 _ 5903 $ 6224 § E9SL $ 2036 8 1019 § L6l
Market related value at end of year 5993 % 6224 § 2064 3 1,950 §$ 1,019 § 1,161
Amount recognized in Stetement of Financial Position at December 31 o L R
Funded status $ 918 § 695 $ (1,209 $ (1314 §  (158) §  (238)
Unrecognized prior-service cost 46 - 22 e - 11 B ' - Sy
Unrecognized loss 1,465 1,687 1,723 1,737 456

U8 2429 % 2404 § . R308 4348 M8 20

Net amount recogniged
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Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position consist of (in millions):

UK. U.S, Other
2015 2014 2015 2014 2018 2014
Prepaid benefitcost (1) .~ . = o $ 1012 8§ 018§ -— 3% = 85 - 3 —
Accrued benefit liability (2) (94) (223) (1,209) (1,314) (158) {238)
Accuntulated other comprehensivedoss © . ‘1511 1,709, 1,732 1,748 o382 459
Net amount recognized $ 2429 % 2404 § 523 §% 434 § 224 % 221

(1) Included in Prepaid pension
{2) Included in Other current liabilities and Pension, other post retirement, and post employment liabilities

Amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive loss (income) that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of (in millions): :

UK. Us. Other

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Netfoss = . o o '$ 1468 § 187 § L7233 § 1737 § 389 § - 456
Prior service cost (.incnme) ‘ 46 22 - 9 BT ()] 3

$ LSEL 8 1709 0§ 1,732 0§ 1748 5§ 38 5 459

In2015, U.S, plans with a projected benefit obligation ("PBO") and an accumulated bonefit obligation ("ABQ"} in excess of the fair value of plan assets had
a PBO of $3.2 billion , an ABO of $3.2 billion , and plan assets of $2.0 billion . UK. plans with a PBO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had a PBO of $1.2
billion and plan assets with a fair value of $1.1 billion , and plans with an ABO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had an ABO of $1.2 billion and plan assets
with a fair value of' $1.1 billion . Other plans with a PBO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had a PBO of $1.2 billion and plan assets with a fair value of $1.0
billion , and plans with an ABO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had an ABO of $1.1 billion and plan assets with a fair value ot $1.0 billion .

In 2014, U.S. plans with a PBO and an ABO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had a PBO of $3.3 billion , an ABO of $3.3 billion, and plan assets of
$2.0 billion . U.X. plans with a PBO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had a PBO of $1.3 billion and plan assets with a fair value of $1.1 billion , and plans
with an ABO in excess of the fair value of plan assets had an ABO of $1.3 billion and plan assets with a fair value of §1,1 billion . Other plans with a PBO in
excess of the fair value of plan assets had a PBO of $1.4 billion and plan assets with a fair value of $1.2 biltion , and plans with an ABO in excess of the fair value
of plan assets had an ABO of $1.3 billion and plan assets with a fair value of $1.2 billion .

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit (income} cost for the plans (in millions):

UK. . U.S. " Other
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Servicocost - o8 1 s 18 18— § 2§ 78— %5 — $ 18
Interest cost 198 230 210 131 129 114 33 47 45
Ex_p'ected'remrﬂ:bi@p[mi‘as',se:ts:;-ﬁe't-of- g et o o R _ : .
adminisirationexpenses ... (07 . (326) . (362) a8y 1sn (139) (50) (39) (59)
Amottization of prior-service cost ' ' 1 ‘ 1 1 2 2 — —_ — —
Amiortization of nél actuadafloss-—~ o OTAE - 820 49 B4 A2 s 1D 2.
Curtailment gam and other — - — o _— — — (2) -
Vel periodic beneli (mcome) Gost 8 66) 5. () 5 @D 5 B 5 188 M 5 ® 3 @ %

Effective December 31, 2015 and for 2016 expense, the Company has elected to utilize & full yield curve approach in the estimation of the service and
interest cost components of net periodic pension and post-retirement benefit cost for our major pension and other post-retirement benefit plans by applying the
specific spot rates along the vield curve used in the determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. In 2013 and prior years, the
Company estimated
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these components of net periodic pension and post-retirement benefit cost by applying a single weighted-average discount rate, derived from the yield curve used
to measure the benefit obligation at the beginning of the period. The Company made this change to improve the correlation between projected benefit cash flows
and the corresponding yield curve spot rates and to provide a more precise measurement of service and inferest costs. This change does not affect the measurement
of the projected benefit obligation as the change in the service cost and interest cost is completely offset in the actuarial {gain) loss recorded in other
comprehensive income. The Company accounted for this change as a change in estimate and, accordingly, will account for it prospectively,

The weighied-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations are as follows:

UK. UsS. Other
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Discountrate 5 o ooB96% L U URWY%. T 369443% . 33T-408% o 2A3-396%. . 2.03:391%
Rate of compensation increase 3.63-4,13% 3.35-4.05% NA N/A 200-350%  2.25-3.50%
Underlying price inflation .~~~ 1.88% % TN NG 20040.80% 2002509

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

U.K. U.Ss. Other
2015 2014 2013 2015 ' 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Discount rate 3.70% 4.55% 445%  337-408% 397-487% 373-405% 2.03-391% . 3.60-4.71% .3.25-3.89%
Expected return

on plan assets,

net of

administration

expenses 5.09% 6.00% 6.30% 7.96% 8.80% §.80% 3.99-_5.21% 4.70-06.50% 4.60-6.50%
Rate of . L ER _ R T SR
comnpensation : _ : . S 7 L L T
increase 355-4.05% 370-4.40% 3.25-3.85% NA NA . N/A 0 225-350%  225-350% 225-3.50%

The amounts in Accumulated other comprehensive loss expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost during 2016 are $52 million in
the U.S. and $47 million outside the 1.8,

Expected Return on Plan Assets

To determine the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, the historical performance, investment community forecasts and current market conditions
are analyzed to develop expected returns for each asset class used by the plans. The expected returns for each asset class are weighted by the target allocations of
the plans. The expected return on plan assets in the U.S. of 7.96% reflects a portfolio that is seeking asset growth through a higher equity allocation while
maintaining prudent risk levels. The portfolio containg certain assets that have historically resulted in higher returns and other financial instruments to minimize
downside risk,

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Company during 2016 .
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Fair value of plan assets

The Company determined the fair value of plan assets through numerous procedures based en the asset class and available information. See Note 15 "Fair

Value Measurements and Financial Instruments" for a description of the procedutes performed to determine the fair value of the plan assets.

The fair values of the Company's U.S. pension plan assets at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 , by asset category, are as follows (in milliens):

Falr Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Significant Other

Significant

Balance at Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
Asset Category December 31, 2015 {Level 1) (Level 2) (T.evel 3)
Cash and cash cquivalents (1) - g % S S 33 B e
Equity investments: {;”.). . .
- Large cap doriéstic 299 99 - —
Small cap domestic 88 30 58 —
Anternational - 262 52 210 -
Equity derivatives 203 170 33 —
Fixed iricone {vestments: (3) ’ ' e
Corporate bonds 484 — 148 336
: Governmsnt and'aget;by bbnd_is - 128 52 76 -
Asset-backed securities — — — —
- Fixedinicome derivatives 69 47 22 —
Other investmen'ts: '
Alternative fnvestments (4~ 305 — — 303
Commodity derivatives (5) 13 — 13 -
Real estate and REITS (6) 61 67 - -
Total 3 1,951 % 750 560 641

(1) Consists of cash and insilutional short-term investment funds,

(2) Consists of equity securities, equity derivatives, and poeled equity funds.

(3) Consists of corporate and government bonds, asset-backed securities, and fixed income derivatives.

(4) Consists of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds.

(5) Consists of long-dated options and swaps on a commodity index.

{6) Consists of exchange traded real estate investment trusts ("REITS").
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
. Balance at Identical Assets Obscervable Inputs Unochservable Inputs
Asset Category December 31, 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) - (Level 3)
Cash and cash equivalents (1) $ .68 8 : B T T
Equity investments; (2) 7 V
Large cap domestic : I 3290 iy w
Small cap domestic 85 22 63
International . . BT Lo 88 e T 14 - R 144 A
Equity derivatives . 285 209 76
Fixed income investinents; (3) R S T PR
Corporate bonds . 503 — 151
Gavernment and agency bonds . om0 e T e
Asset-backed securities 20 — 20 —
Fixed income derivatives T e R 49 o —-— e 49 _- =,
Other investments: . _ . - .
Alternative investments (4) T o 272 U Ees i — CI o212
Commodity derivatives (5} (® _ — _ _ . . (8) - - =
Realestate and REFTS (6) .. 66 66 o = e
Total $ 2,036 $ 837 % 575 % 624

(1) Consists of ¢ash and institutional short-term investment funds.

(2) Consists of equity securities, equity derivatives, and pooled equity funds.

(3) Consists of corporate and glovernment bonds, asset-backed securities, and fixed income derivatives.
(4} Congists of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds.

{5) Consists of long-dated options on a commodity index.

{6) Consists of exchange traded REITS.
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The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair-value category in the Company's U.S. pension plang for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 (in miltions):

Fair Value Measurement

Using Level 3 Inputs

Balance o Janvary 1,2014 : ' , . s 266
Actual return on plan assets:

Rglating._tb_ pssets still held at December 31,2004 o : ' o . : 32

Relating to assets sold during 2014 5
Puschases, sales and'.ser{l_enieﬁfs%net- e e : S . 321
Transfer in/(out) of Level 3 ' L
Balance at December 31,2014~ S o j T 624
Actual return on pl.an assets:

‘Relating to-assets stitl held'at December 31,2015 -~ . - o _ )

Relating to assets sold during 2015 3)
Purcliases; Salés and setilements-—net - o : , - : 24
Transfer in/(out} of Level 3 —
Balance at Decetnber 31,2015~ 0" R s T e
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The fair values of the Company's major UK. pension plan assets at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 , by asset category, are as follows (in
millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Acfive Markets for Significant Other Significant
Balance at Identical Assels Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
December 31, 2015 (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and cash equivalents S § o 159 % o 159 § L —$ i e

Equity investments: N

Boioled fimids: (1) B L o TR Co e T e
Global ' ' 360 61 209 —

Equity sceurities — global (2) . - 133 133 —

Derivatives (2) ' S . L RS -:66 S e S e 66 _,7:_._‘;; o

Fixed income investments, . - ' . 4

Pooled funds: (13- _ . o . 7 . E i
Fixed income securitics 283 e 259 7 24

Fixed income securitics (3) T 3,145 .. A R B _' Dok el

Annuities 827 — . — . 827

Derivatives (3) ' : WL

Other investments: ' '

Pooled funds; (1) _ . T _ ST, o e A AT
Real estate (4) _ 65 — - . 65
Aliernative investments (5) o o o L 17 - S e Lo 13

Real estate 20 — —_ 20

Total o B T R ; 5903 § 0 28l § 1633 §. oL 649

(1) Consists of various equity, fixed income, commeodity, and real estate mutual fund type investment vehicles,
(2) Consists of equity securities and equity derivatives.

(3) Consists of corporate and government bonds and fixed income derivatives.

(4) Consists of property funds and trusts holding direct real estate investments.

(5) Consists of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds,
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Marlets for Significant Other Significant
Balance at Identical Assets Obseryable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
December 31, 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and cash equivalents $ RS TI | 224§ — —
Equity investments:
Pooled fuinds; (1) ©

Global 203 — 203 —

Burepe . . L. L6 - 16 —
Equity securities — global (2 127 127 — —
Detivatives(2). —_ - — —
Fixed income investments:

Pooled funds: (1) "

Fixed income securities 279 — 279 —
Fixed ingome-secyrities (3) 3,202 4,292 _— —
Annuities 836 — — 836
Derivatives (3) oo o — 233 —
Other invéstnr'lents:'

Pooled inds: (1)

Real estate )] 39 — — 39

'A=ltémé1ﬁye investiments (5)- 968, —_ — 968
Real estats 7 — -— 7

“Tiotal $ 6224 § 3,643 $ 731 1,850

(1} Consists of various equity, fixed income, commodity, and real estate mutual fund type investment vehicles.

(2) Consists of equity securities and equity detivatives.

{3} Consists of corporate and government bonds and fixed income derivatives.

(4} Consists of property funds and trusts holding direct real estate investments.

(5) Consists of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds.
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The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair-value category in the Company's UK. pension plans for the years ended December 31, 2015 and

December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using Level 3 Inputs

Real Alternative
Annuities Estate Investments Fixed Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 $. 0 sed 5. 23 . 546§ — % 1_,1‘43—3_"
Actual return on plan assets: -

Relating to assels still held ut December 31,2014 - - {13 3 U - 309

Relating to assets sold during 2014 — 1 5 — 6
Purchases, sales and settlementg—net U338 ' s 21 - 350 s N3
Transfers in/(out) of Level 3 — — {206) —
Foreign exchange i ,(4«&)' @ (55) '
Balance at December 31, 2014 836 46 268 _—
Actual return on plan assets: ] ) ' : e

Relating to assets still held at December 31, 2015 (32) 11 an mn

Relating to assets sold during 2015 — an I m
Purchases, sales and settlements—net 58 41 65 9
Transfors infout) of Level 3 —_— RN (266) - g 24 G
Foreign exchange (35) 3) (34) m
Balange at Decsmber 31, 2015 § - 821 8 - - 8§ M3 s M
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The fair values of the Company's Other major pension plan assets at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 | by asset category, are as follows (in
milliotts):

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant
Balance at Identical Asscts Observable Inputs Unohservable Inputs
December 31, 2015 (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Cashand cashequivalents R T EETHE - § ' -
Eéui'ty i.ﬂve;sn;leﬁts:m . . . . .
Pooled funds: (1y & o :

il DR N . 270 - B 270 _
NowwAmerea - - _ ¥ e 5T —
Fixed income investments: - . . o
Pﬂﬁlﬂd funds: (1) _

Fixed income secuntles ' ' ' 576 — 576 —

Derivatives: -0 oo -4 —- SRRV ' =
leed income secuntles (2} - - 30 — 30 —
Other mvcstments . ' '

Pooled. funds: (1) Cius

Commodities - - . 2 — -
CREITS@)Y T ' 3 . TR 3 —

Alternative mvestments (4) o 9 —_ — 9
Derivatives .~ _ R 21 o - _ u —

Total 3 1,019 § 1% %99 § 9

(1} Consists of various equity, fixed income, commodity, and real estate mutual fund type investment vehicles.
(2) Consisi of corporate and goverament bonds and fixed income derivatives,

{3) Consists of property funds and trusts holding direct real estate investments,

(4) Consists of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds.
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Fair Value Measurements Using.

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant Unobservable
Balance at Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inpuis
December 31, 2014 {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Cash and eash ¢quivalents _ : 5 L1208 " 1% S'_ R m 7.$ = ._f; , .,_

Equity investments: . .

Pooled funds: (1) _ : - _ o S C e T L
Global 295 - 71—
Morth America : ' A v P I ; 42 e

Fixed income investments:

Pooled funds: (1) _ 7 _ _ b _ _ . _
Fixed income securities 629 e 629 —
Derivatives - _4 e T kR B T T

Fixed income securities (2) 35 —_ 35 —

Other investments:

Pooled funds: (1) _ : ;
Commodities 21 — 21 —
Alternative investments (4) : e " —

Derivatives o N . : = : ¢ : : 2T L S N y --:-: e 24

Total $ 1,161  § 12 % 1,141 %

(1) Consists of various equity, fixed income, commodity, and real estate mutnal fund type investment vehicles.
(2} Consists of corporate and government bonds and fixed income derivatives.

(3) Consists of property funds and trusts holding direct real estate investments,

(4) Consists of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds.
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The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair-value category in the Company's other pension plans for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using Level 3 Inputs

Real Alternative
Estate Investments Total
Balance at Janyary 1, 2014 $ 17 T 25
Aetual return on plan assets: . .
“Rel atitig to pssefs still hetd at Decomber 31,2014~ _ R 3 1
Relatmg to assets sold during 2014 . . . —_ — —
Purchases, sales atd settlements—net T o Lo an - : s ’ o (an
Transfers m/(out) of Level 3 — — —
Forelgn exchange . SR o ' ' — . W BT )
Balance at December 31,2014 — 8 8
Actual reurn on plan assets R N ' L C _ R
Relating to assets st1]1 held at December 31, 2015 — . 2 2
 Relafing to assets sold during 005 T T e D e ; —
Purchases, sales and settlements—net — — —
Transfers in/(out) ofLeve13 P T L I _ —
Foreign exchange ’ — (1) 1)
Balanice at December 31,2015~~~ _ ) — $ 9§ ' 9

Investment Policy and Strategy

The U.S. investment policy, as established by the Aon Retirement Plan Governance and Investment Committee ("RPGIC"), seeks reasonable asset growth at
prudent risk levels within target allocations, which are 49% equity investments, 30% fixed income investments, and 21% other investiments. Aon believes that plan
assets are well-diversified and are of appropriate quality. The investment portfolio asset allocation is reviewed quarterly and re-balanced to be within policy target
allocations. The investment policy is reviewed at least annually and revised, as deemed appropriate by the RPGIC. The investment policies for international plans
are generally established by the local pension plan trustees and seek to maintain the plans' ability to meet liabilities and to comply with local minitnum funding
requiretnents. Plan assets are invested in diversified portfolios that provide adequate levels of r~turn at an acceptable level of risk. The investment policics are
reviewed at least annually and revised, as deemed appropriate to ensure that the objectives are being met, At December 31, 2015 | the weighted average targeted
allocation for the UK. and non-U.S. plans was 20% for equity investments and 80% for fixed income investments.

Cash Flows
Contributions

Based on current assumptions, in 2016 , the Company expects to contribute approximately $79 million , $54 million , and $17 million to its UK., U.5. and
other gignificant international pension plans, respectively,
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Estimated future benefit payments for plans are as follows at December 31, 2015 (in millions):

UK. US. Cther
2016 N : % .. 438 e § - 38
2017 149 1m 39
2019 170 9 4
2021 - 2025 1048 0 952 227

U.S. and Canadian Other Post-Retivement Benefits

The following table provides an overview of the accumulated projected benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, funded status and net amount recognized
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 for the Company's other significant post-retirement benefit plans located in the 1.8, and Canada (in millions):

2015 2014
Accumulated projected benefit obligation . .. ST e 08 g
Fair value of plan assets | . T - g BT
Funded status e 9T
Unrecognized prior-service eredit (4)
Unrecognized loss - .. R L e Lo % K EEOPE
Net amount recognized $ 83 $§ (86}

Other information related to the Company's other post-retirernent benefit plans are as follows:
2015 2014 2013

Net periodic benefit cost recognized (millions) N T 86 $3 -0 L s
Weighted-average discount rate used to dstermine future benefit obligations 3.99-4.33% 383-408  444- 4.95 ‘
Weighted-average discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit costs - 3.83-4.08% A AA4-495 - 3’..6.7.-:4;0(_}_: =

Amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost at December 31,
2015 are $7 million and $3 million of net loss and prior service credit, respectively. The amount in Accumulated other comprehensive income expected to be
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost during 2016 is $0.1 million and $0.3 million of net gain and prior service credit, respectively.

Based on current assumptions, the Company expects:
«  To contribute $4 million to fund significant other post-retirement benefit plans during 2016 .
+  Estimated future benefit payments will be approximately $6 mitlion each year for 2016 through 2020, and $30 million in aggregate for 2021-2025,

The accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation is increased by $6 million and decreased by $5 million by a respective 1% increase or decrease to the
assumed healtheare trend rate. The service cost and interest cost components of net periodic benefits cost is increased by $0.6 million and decreased by $0.5
million by a respective 1% increase or decrease 10 the assumed healthcare trend rate,

For most of the participants in the U.S. plan, Aon's Hability for future plan cost increases for pre-65 and Medical Supplement plan coverage is limited to 5%
per annum, Although the net employer trend rates range from 4% to 9% per year, because of this cap, these plans are effectively limited to 5% per year in the
future.
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11. Share-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income in Compensation and benefits (in
mitlions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013

Restricted shareunits CRSUs™ -~ o 0 R R T T 174
Performance share awards ("PSAS") 127 132 117
Shate optlons Sl e . T — R : o — — 2
Employee share purchase plans . . . . 11 9 7
Total share-ha iod cmnpensatmh expense TR EE ' - C 339 328 300
Tax benefit 95 94 81
Shiare-based compensation expense, net of tax ' L R T '™ R 24 % 219

Restricted Share Units

RSUs genetally vest between three and five years. The fait value of RSUs is based upon the market value of Aon ordinary shares at the date of grant, With
certain limited exceptions, any break in continuous employment will cause the forfeiture of all non-vested awards, Compensation expense associated with RSUs is
recoghized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Dividend equivalents are paid on certain RSUs, based on the initial grant amount,

A summary of the status of the Company's RSUs is as follows (shares in thousands):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Fair Fair Fair
Shares Value (1) Shares Value (1) Shares Value (1)

Non-vested at beginning of year . - . 8381 § , 63 9759 § o5t 10432 $ 44
Granted - 2,459 97 2,844 84 3,714 62
Vested - .. Y .- I 58 B.732) T (3,945) : 44
Fnrfelted (288) 7 (490) 58 (442) : 47
Non-vested atend of year - - - . 1,167 T Twam 63 9739 51

(1) Represents per share weighted average fair value of award at date of grant.

The fair value of RSUs that vested during 2015 , 2014 and 2013 was $196 million, $183 million and §172 million , respectively.

Performance Share Awards

The vesting of PSAs is contingent upon meeting a cumulative level of earnings per share performance over a three -year period. The actual issue of shares
may range from 0 - 200% of the target number of PSAs granted, based on the terms of the plan and level of achievement of the refated performance target. The
grant date fair value of PSAs is based upon the market price of an Aon ordinary share at the date of grant. The performance conditions are not considered in the
determination of the grant date fair value for these awards. Compensation expense is recognized over the performance period based on management's estimate of
the number of units expected to vest. Management evaluates its estimate of the actual number of shares expected to be issued at the end of the programs on a
quarterly basis. The cumulative effect of the change in estimate is recognized in the period of change as an adjustment to Compensation and benefits expense, if
necessary. Dividend equivalents are not paid on PSAs.
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Information regarding the Company's target PSAs granted and shares that would be issued at current performance levels for PSAs granted during the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, is as follows (shares in thousands, dollars in millions, except fair value);

2015 2014 2013
Target PSAs granted R | e 993 s o816 o 1135
Weighted average fair value per share at date of grant ' o ' o $ % 3 81 58
Number of shares that would be issued based on current performance levels L T _ CTeEser L Uaer
Unamortized expense, based on current performance levels ' 8 67 % 45 8 B

During 2015 , the Company issued approximately 1.6 million shares in connection with performance achievements related to the 2012 Leadership
Performance Plan ("LPP") eycle. During 2014, the Company issued approximately 0.8 million shares in connection with performance achievements related to the
2011 LPP cycle and 0.2 million shares related to other performance plans. During 2013, the Company issued approximately 0.6 million shares in connection with
performance achievements related to the 2010 LPP ¢ycle and 0.1 million shares related to other performance plans.

Share Options
The Company did not grant any share options for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,

A summary of the status of the Company's share options and related information is as follows (shares in thousands);

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Per Exercise Price Per Exercise Price Per-

Shares Share Shares Share Shares Share

Beginning outstanding 3300 8. 3 3462 8 3. Usel § o T 32
Granted — — o . e - - —
Exercised <. : (450 R ANRTN ¢ B 1) EENRIP < MR 4 | () SRS 7
Forfeited and expired ) 39 0 @3y 34
Outstanding at end of ysar o 8T - - 2,360 R
Exerecisable at end of year 837 40 2,273 32 3,270 3R
Shares available for grant 12179 N s T :

A summary of options cutstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2015 is as follows (shares in thousands);

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Remaining Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Shares Coniractual Exercise Price Shares Contractual Exercise Price
Prices Outstanding Life (years) Per Share Exercisable Life (years) Per Share
19.54 - 25.51 R 7 T 218°% - 20.18 - 7% 218 8. 0 2048
2552 -32.53 25 1.93 29.15 25 1.93 29.15
32.54-3688 . S0 114 35.71 e S 15 T O L &
36.89 -43.44 247 312 39.32 247 312 3932
43.45 - 52.93 326 o 246 . 48260 . 326 U 246 . 426
837 337

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on options with an exercise price less than the Company's closing shate price of
$92.21 as of December 31, 2015, which would have been received by the option holders had those option holders exercised their options as of that date. At
December 31, 2015, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding was $44 million , of which $44 million was exercisable.
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Other information related to the Company's share options is as follows (in millions):

2015 2014 2013
Aggregaty intrinsic value of stock options exercised ~ ‘ _ o : $ 14§ 61 § 73
Cash received from the exercise of stock optious o 40 38 61
Tax benefit realized from the exerdise of stock options. Ce ' L e 3. . . 14 15

Unamortized deferred compensation expense, which includes both options and RSUs, amounted to $378 million as of December 31, 2015, with a remaining
weighted-average amortization peried of approximately 2.1 years .

Employee Share Purchase Plan

United States

The Company has an employee share purchase plan that provides for the purchage of & maximum of 7.5 million shares of the Company's ordinary shares by
eligible U.S. employees, The Company's ordinary shares were purchased at 6 -month intervals at 85% of the lower of the fair market value of the ordinary shares
on the first or last day of cach 6 -month period. In 2015, 2014, and 2013 , 411,636 shares, 439,000 shares and 556,000 shares, respectively, were issued to
employees under the plan. Compensation expense recognized was $9 million in 2015 , $7 million in 2014, and §6 million in 2013 ,

United Kingdom

The Company also has an employee share purchase plan for eligible UK, employees that provides for the purchase of shares after a 3 -year period and that is
similar to the U,S. plan previously described. Three-year periods began in 2015, 2014, 2013, allowing for the putchase of a maximum of 100,000 , 300,000 , and
350,000 shares, respectively. In 2015, 2014, and 2013 , 2,779 shares, 642 shares, and 172,110 shares, tespectively, were issued under the plan. Compensation
expense of $2 million was recognized in 2015 and 2014, as compared to $1 million of compensation expense in 2013.

12, Derivatives and Hedging

The Company is exposed to market risks, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. To manage the risk related to these
exposures, the Compatiy eniters into various derivative ingttuments that reduce these risks by creating offsetting exposures. The Company does not enter into

derivative transactions for trading or speculative purposes.
Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk when it earns revenues, pays expenses, or entets into monetary intercompany transfers denominated in a
currency that differs from its funictional cutrency, or other transactions that are denominated in a currency other than its functional currency, The Company uses
foreign exchange derivatives, typically forward contracts, options and cross-currency swaps, to reduce its overall exposure to the effects of currency fluctuations on
cash flows, These exposures are hedged, on average, for less than two years. These derivatives are accounted for as hedges, and changes in fair value are recorded
each period in Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive [ncome.

The Company also uses foreign exchange derivatives, typically forward contracts and options to economically hedge the currency exposure of the
Company's global liguidity profile, including monetary assets or liabilities that are dénominated in a non-functional currency of an entity, typically on a rolling 30-
day basis, but may be for up to one year in the fiture. These derivatives are not accounted for as hedges, and changes in fair value are recorded each period in
Other income in the Consolidated Statements of Income,
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The notional and fair values of derivative instruments are as follows (in mitlions):

Notional Amount Derivative Assets (1} Derivative Liabilities (2)
As of December 31 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Foreign exchange contracts: : L - o T
Accounted for as hedges 778 1,200 32 ' 46 18 58
Not accounted for as hedges (3) o L2380 168 o el TR UL LR gt
Total ' $ 1,058 § 1,365 8 K 7 46 $ 13 3% 58

{1} Included within Other current assets ( $13 million in 2015 and $24 million in 2014, respectively) or Other nen-current assets { $17 million in 2015 and $22

millien in 2014 , respectively)
{2) Included within Other current liabilities ( $13 miltion in 2015 and $52 million in 2014 , respectively) or Other non-current liabilities ( §5 million in 2015 and

$6 million in 2014 , respectively)
(3) These contracts typically are for 30 day durations and executed close to the last day of the most recent reporting month, thereby resulting in nominal fair
values af the balance sheet date.

Offsetting of financial assets and derivatives assets are as follows {in millions);

Gross Amounts Offset in the Statement Net Amounts of Assets Presented in the
Gress Amounts of Recognized Assets of Financial Position Statement of Financial Position (1)

Deerivatives accounted for as hedges: 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

{1} Included within Other current assets ( $6 million in 2015 and $12 million in 2014 , respectively) or Other non-current assets { $13 miltion in 2015 and $20
million in 2014 , respectively)
Offseiting of financial liabilities and derivative liabilities are as follows (in millions):

Gross Amounts Offset in the Statement Net Amounts of Liabilities Presented In
Gross Amounts of Recagnized Liabilities of Financial Position the Statement of Financlal Position {2)

Derivatives accounted for as hedges: 2015 2014 2015 2044 2015 2014

Foreign exchange contracis R R R R e T

(2) Included within Other current liabilities ( $4 million in 2015 and $40 million in 2014, respectively) or Other non-current liabilitiva { $1 million in 2015 and §4
million in 2014 , respectively)
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The amounts of derivative gains (losses) recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as follows (in millions):

Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Cash Flow Hedge - Foreign Exchange Accumulated Other

Contracts Location of future reclassification from Aceumulated Other Comprehensive Loss  Comprehensive Loss:
Campensation and  + Other General Other Income ’
Benefits Expenses Interest Expense (Expense) Total
2018 R 4 @ + (1) %)
014 11 3) — (10) @)
i S . - = 13 )

Cash Flow Hedge - Foreign Exchange

Contracts
Gain (Loss) Rectassified from
Accuinulated Other Comprehensive Loss Compensation and Other Generszl
into Income (Effective Portion): Benefits Expenses Interest Expense | Other Income Total
2005, o oo LTy . @ oan T
2014 (5) 3 am (2) (14)
A3 T e ® S (0)

The amount of gain (loss) recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements is as follows (in millions):

Twelve months ended December 31,

Amount of Gain (Loss) Amount of Guin (Loss)
Recognized in Income on Recognized in Income on
Derivative (1) Related Hedged Item
2015 2414 2013 2015 2014 2013
Foreign exchange contracts (2) $ — ¥ 9 % (8) § —  § 9 % 8

(1) Included in interest expense
(2) Relates to fixed rate debt

The Cotnpany estimates that approximatety $7 million of pretax losses currently included within Accumulated other comprehensive loss will be reclassified
into earnings in the next twelve months.

The amount of gain {loss} recognized in income on the ineffective portion of derivatives for 2015, 2014 and 2013 was not material,

The Company recorded a loss of $8 million , $18 million , and $18 million in Other income for foreign exchange derivatives not designated or qualifying as
hedges for 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.

13 i ur Fi ents
Accounting standards establish a three tier fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values as follows:
+  Level 1| — observable inputs such as queted prices for identical assets in active markets,
*  Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices for identical assets in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

+  Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data which requires the use of valuation technigques and the development of
assumptions.
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The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of the Company's financial instruments:

Money market funds and highly liquid debt securities are carried at cost and amortized cost, respectively, as an approximation of fair value, Based on marke.
convention, the Company considers cost a practical and expedient measure of fair value,

Cuash, cash equivalents, and highly liguid debt instruments consist of cash and institutional short-term investment funds. The Company reviews the short-
term investment funds to obtain reasonable assurance the fund net asset value is §1 per share.

Equity investments consist of domeastic and international equity securities and exchange traded equity derivatives valued using the closing stock price on a
national securities exchange. Over the counter equity derivatives are valued using observable inputs such as underlying prices of the equity security and volatitity.
The Company reviews the listing of Level 1 equity securities in the portfolio and agrees the closing stock prices to a national securities exchange, and on a sample
basis, independently verifies the observable inputs for Level 2 equity derivatives and securities.

Fixed income invesiments consist of certain categories of bonds and derivatives, Corporate, government, and agency bonds are valued by pricing vendors
who estimate fair value using recently executed transactions and proprictary models based on observable inputs, such as intercst rate spreads, yield curves and
credit risk. Asset-backed securities are valued by pricing vendors whe estimate fair value using discounted cash flow models utilizing observable inputs based on
trade and quote activity of securities with similar features. Fixed income derivatives are valued by pricing vendors using observable inputs such as interest rates
and yield curves. The Company obtains a detailed understanding of the models, inputs, and assumptions used in developing prices provided by its vendors. This
understanding includes discussions with valuation resources at the vendor. During these discussions, the Company uses a fair value measurement questionnaire,
which is part of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting, to obtain the information necessary to assert the modei, inputs and assumptions used
comply with U.S. GAAP, including disclosure requirements. The Company also obtains observable inputs from the pricing vendor and independently verifies the
observable inputs, as well as assesses assumptions used for reasonableness based on relevant market conditions and internal Company guidelines. If an assumption
is deemed unreasonable, based on the Company's guidelines, it is then reviewed by management and the fair value estimate provided by the vendor is adjusted, if
deemed appropriate. These adjustments do not occur frequently and have historically not been material to the fair value estimates used in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Pooled funds consist of various equity, fixed income, commodity, and real estaie mutual fund type investment vehicles, Pooled investment funds fair value
is estimated based on the proportionate share ownership in the underlying net assets of the investment, which is based on the fair value of the underlying securities
that trade on a national securities exchange. Where possible, the Company reviews the listing of securities in the portfolio and agrees the ¢losing stock prices to the
price quoted on a national securities exchange, The Company gains an understanding of the investment guidelines and valuation policies of the fund and discusses
fund performance with pooled fund managers. The Company obtains audited fund manager financial statements, when available. If the pooled fund is designed to
replicate a publicly traded index, the Company compares the performance of the fund to the index to assess the reasonableness of the fair value measurement,

Alternative invesiments consist of limited partnerships, private equity and hedge funds. Alternative investment fair value is generally estimated based on the
proportionate share ownership in the underlying net assets of the investment as determined by the general partner or investment manager, The valuations are based
on various factors depending on investment strategy, proprietary models, and specific financial data or projections. The Company obtains audited fund manager
financial statements, when available, The Company obtains a detailed understanding of the models, inputs and assumptions used in developing prices provided by
the investment managers {or appropriate party) through regular discussions. During these discussions with the investment managers, the Company vses a fair value
measurement questionnaire, which is part of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting, to obtain the information necessary to assert the model,
inputs and assumptions used comply with U.S. GAAP, including disclosure requirements, The Company also obtains observable Inputs from the investment
manager and independently verifies the observable inputs, as well as assesses assumptions used for reasonableness based on relevant market conditions and
internal Company guidelines, If an assumption is deemed unreasonable, based on the Company's guidelines, it is then reviewed by management and the fair value
estimate provided by the vendor is adjusted, if deemed appropriate. These adjusiments do not oceur frequently and have historically not been material to the fair
value estimates in the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Derivatives are carried at fair value, based upon industry standard valuation techniques that use, where possible, curient market-based or independently
sourced pricing inputs, such as interest rates, currency exchange rates, or implied volatilities.

Annuity contracts consist of insurance group annuity contracts purchased to match the pension benefit payment stream owed to certain selected plan
parti¢ipant demographics within a few major UK. defined benefit plans. Annuity contracts are
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valued using a discounted cash flow model utilizing assumptions such as discount rate, mortality, and inflation. The Company mdependently verifies the
observable inputs.

Real estate and RE[Ts consist of publicly traded real estate investment trusts ("REITs") and direct real estate investments. Level 1 REITs are valued vsing
the closing stock price on a national securities exchange. The Level 3 values are based on the proportionate share of ownership in the underlying net asset value as
determined by the investment manager. The Company independently reviews the listing of Level 1 REIT securities in the portfolio and agrees the closing stock
prices to a national securities exchange. The Company gains an understanding of the invesument guidetines and valuation policies of the Level 3 real estate funds
and discusses performance with the fund managers, The Company obtains audited fund manager financial statements, when available. See the description of
"Alternative investments” for further detail on valuation procedures surrounding Level 3 REITs,

Guaraniges are carried at fair value, which is based on discounted estimated cash flows using published historical cumulative default rates and discount
rates cormnmensurate with the underlying exposure.

Debt is carried at outstanding principal balance, less any unamortized discount or premium. Fair value is based on quoted market prlces or estimates using
discounted cash flow analyses based on current borrowing rates for similar types of botrowing arrangetnents,

The following tables present the categorization of the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31,
2015 and 2014 , respectively (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets Other Unobservable
Balance at for Identical Observable Inputs
December 31, 2015 Assets (Level 1)} Inputs (Level 2} (Level 3)
Assets: e R B S T _ o
Money markct ﬂmds ¢} $ 1,396 § 1,396 % 8 —
Other mvestments : TR ' o - - S g ’ -
Corporate bonds o E — — — —
- Gavernmentbends . . o L N T = . —
. Equity investments 10 6 4 —
‘Derivatives (2): - I R : : - _ _
Interest rate contracts _ ' L ' — : —
© . Foreigngxchange contracts . - : 32 o= R —
Liabilities: B . '
Denvatlves ) S . s -
Foreign exchange contraots . 18 — 18 —

(1) Includes $1,596 million of money market funds that are classified as Fiduciary assets, Short-term investments or Cash and cash equivalents in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Pesition, depending on their nature and initial maturity,
(2) See Note 12 "Derivatives and Hedging" for additional information regarding the Company's derivatives and hedging activity.
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets {Other Unobservable
Balance at for Identical Observable Inputs
Deeember 31, 2014 Assets (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3)
Money market funds (1) $ 1,850 § 1,850 % — 3 —
Other investments: R o I E - : : :_' L ._ E _ : L :
Corporate bonds . 1 - — ’ —_ ) 1
Government bonds. . s Gl e B ST S oy
Equity investments 11 6 5 —

Detrivatives (2): ‘ : _ R 7 _ e N D
Interest rate contracts — - — —

Foreign exchatige contracts - R LoA6 SRR T e SRR 415 s
Liabilities:
Derivatives: . k ] RS . : . : - R A
Foreign exchange contracts ' 58 -_ 58 ' —

(1) Includes $1,850 million of money market funds that are classified as Fiduciary assets, Short-term investments or Cash and cash equivalents in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, depending on their nature and initial maturity.
(2) See Note 12 "Derivatives and Hedging" for additional information regarding the Company's derivatives and hedging activity,

There werg no transfers of assets or liabilities between fair value hierarchy levels during 2015 or 2014 . The Company recognized na realized or unreatized
gains ot Josses in the Consolidated Statements of Income during 2015 related to assets and liabilities measured at fair value using unobservable inputs, There were
no realized or unrealized gains or losses recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income during 2014 related to assets and liabilities measured at fair value

_using unobservable inputs. There were $6 million of realized gains and no unrealized losses recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income during 2013
related to assets and liabilities measure at fair value using unobservable inputs.

The fair value of Long-term debt is classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The following table discloses the Company's financial instruments where
the carrying amounts and fair values differ (in millions):

As of December 31 2015 2014
Carrying Fair Coarrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Longdeemdebt - - . - oot g 8198 8 75386 $ 4799 $° 5768
14, Commitm n ntingencies
Legal

Aon and its subsidiaries are subject to numerous claims, tax assessments, lawsuits and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business, which
frequently include errors and omissions ("E&O") claims. The damages claimed in these matters are or may be substantial, including, in many instances, claims for
punitive, treble or extraordinary damages. While Aen maintains meaningful E&Q insurance and other insurance programs to provide protection against certain
fosses that arise in such matters, Aon has exhausted or materially depleted its coverage under some of the policies that protect the Company and, consequently, is
self~insured or materially self-insured for some claims. Aceruals for these exposures, and related insurance receivables, when applicable, are included in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and have been recognized itr Other general expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to the extent that
losses are deemed probable and are reasonably estimable. These amounts are adjusted from time to time as developments warrant. Matters that are not probable
and estimable are not accrued for in the financial statements.

We have included in the matters described below certain matters in which (1) loss is probable (2) loss is reasonably
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possible; that is, more than remote but not probable, or (3) there exists the reasonable possibility of loss greater than the accrued amount. In addition, we may from
time to time disclose matters for which the probability of loss could be remote but the claim amounts associated with such matters are potentially significant. The
reasonably possible range of loss for the matters described below, in excess of amounts that are deemed probable and estimable and therefore already accrued, is
estimnated to be between: $0 and $0.3 billion , exclusive of any insurance coverage. These estimates are based on currently available infermation. As available
information changes, the matters for which Aon ig able to estimate may change, and the estimates themselves may change. In addition, many estimates involve
significant judgment and uncertainty, For example, at the time of making an estinate, Aon may only have limited information about the facts underlying the claim,
and predictions and assumptions about future court rulings and outcomes may prove to be inaccurate.

Although management at present believes that the ultimate outcome of all matters described betow, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of Aon, legal proceedings are subject to inherent uncertainties and unfavorable rulings or other events.
Unfavorable resolutions could include substantial monetary or punitive damages imposed on Aon or its subsidiaries. If unfavorable outcomes of these matters were
to occur, future results of operations or cash flows for any particular quarterly or annual period could be materially adversely affected.

Current Matters

A retail insurance brokerage subsidiary of Aon was sued on September 14, 2010 in the Chancery Court for Davidson County, Tennessee Twentieth Judicial
District, at Nashville by a client, Opry Mills Mall Limited Partnership ("Opry Mills") that sustained flood damage to its property in May 2010. The lawsuit seeks
$200 million in coverage from numerous insurers with whom this Aon subsidiary placed the client's property insurance coverage, The insurers contend that enly
$50 million in coverage (which has already been paid) is available for the loss because the flood event oceurred on property in a high hazard flood zone. Opry
Mills is seeking full coverage trom the insurers for the loss and has sued this Aon subsidiary in the alternative for the same $15¢ million difference on various
theories of professional liability if the court determines there is not full coverage. In addition, Opry Mills seeks prejudgment interest, attorneys' fees and enhanced
damages which could substantially increase Aot's exposure, In March 2015, the trial court granted partial sumumary judgment in favor of plaintiffs and against the
insurers, holding generally that the plaintiffs are entitled to $200 million in coverage under the language of the policies. In August 2015, a jury returned a verdict in
favor of Opry Mills and against the insurers in the amount of § 204 million . Aon understands that the insurers intend to appeal both of these trial court decisions.
Aon believes it has meriforious defenses and intends to vigorously defend itself against these claims,

A pensions consulting and administration subsidiary of Hewitt before its acquisition by Aon provided advisory services to the Trustees of the Philips UIC
pension fund and the relevant employer of fund beneficiaries. On January 2, 2014, Philips Pension Trustees Limited and Philips Electronics UK Limited {together,
"Philips"} sued Aon in the High Court, Chancery Division, London alleging negligence and breach of duty. The proceedings assert Philips' right to claim damages
related to Philips' use of a credit default swap hedging strategy pursuant to the supply of the advisory services, which is said to have resulted in substantisl damages
to Philips. Philips sought approximately £189 million { $282 million at December 31, 2015 exchattge rates), plus interest and costs. In June 2015, the High Court
ordered Philips to clarify several aspects of its claim. In its clarification, Philips increased the amount of its claim to £290 million { $432 million at December 31,
2015 exchange rates), plus interest and costs. Aon believes that it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously defend itself against these allegations.

On June 1, 2007, the International Road Transpert Union ("IRU") sued Aon in the Geneva Tribunal of First Instance in Switzerland. IRU alleges, among
other things, that, between 1995 and 2004, a business acquired by Aon and, later, an Aon subsidiary (1) accepted comumissions for certain insurance placements
that violated a fee agreement entered between the parties and (2) negligently failed to ask certain insurance carriers to contribuie to the IRU's risk management
costs. [RU sought damages of approximately CHF 46 raillion ( $47 million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates) and $3 million , plus legal fees and interest of
approximately $30 million , On December 2, 2014, the Geneva Tribunal of First Instance entered a judgment that accepted some, and rejected other, of IRU's
claims. The judgment awarded IRU CHF 17 million ( $17 million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates) and $3 million , plus interest and adverse costs. The entire
amount of the judgment, including interest through December 31, 2014, totaled CHF 28 million ( $28 million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates) and $5 miHion
. On January 26, 2015, in return for IRU agreeing not to appeal the bulk of its dismissed claims, the Aon subsidiary agreed not to appeal a part of the judgment and
to pay TRU CHF 13 million ( $13 million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates) and §5 million without Aon admitting liability. The Aon subsidiary appealed those
aspects of the judgment it retained the right to appeal. IRU did not appeal. The Aon subsidiary's maximum liability on appeal is limited to CHF 9 million ( $9
million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates) and $115,000 (plus interest and costs) beyond what the subsidiary has already paid. The appeal is now under
submission.

A pensions consulting and administration subsidiary of Aot provided advisory services to the Trustees of the Gleeds pension fund in the United Kingdom
and, on occasion, to the relevant employer of the fand. In April 2014, the High Court,
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Chancery Division, London found that certain governing documents of the fund that sought to alter the fund's benefit structure and that had been drafted by Aon
were pracedurally defective and therefore invalid. No lawsuit naming Aon as a party has been filed, although a tolling agreement has been entered. The High
Court decision says that the additional liabilities in the pension fund resulting from the alleged defect in governing documents amouwt to approximately £45
million { $67 million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates). In December 2014, the Court of Appeal granted the employer leave to appeal the High Court decision.
The Court of Appeal hearing was set for October 2015, but has been postponed to permit the parties fo discuss possible setilement. Aon believes that it has
mezitorious defenses and intends to vigorously defend itself against this potential claim.

On June 29, 20135, Lyitelton Port Company Limited {"LPC") sued Aon New Zealand (Aon) in the Christchutch Registry of the High Court of New Zealand.
LPC alleges, among other things, that Aon was negligent and in breach of contract in arranging LPC’s property insurance program for the period covering June 30,
2010, to June 30, 2011, LPC contends that acts and omissions by Aon caused LPC to recover less than it otherwise would have from insurers for losses suffered in
the 2010/2011 Canterbury Earthquakes, LPC claims damages of approximately NZD $184 million ( $126 million at December 31, 2015 exchange rates) plus
interest and costs. Aon believes that it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously defend itself against these claims.

Settled/Closed Matters

As described more fully in our Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2015, in the second quarter of 2015, we settled legacy litigation with Huntington
Ingalls Industries, Inc. in exchange for a payment of $150 million made by Aon during the same period, and an arbitral panel issued an award that rejected claims
made by AXA Versicherung Aktiengesellschaft (*“AXA™) and ordered AXA to reimburse Aon for its legal fees and costs in the amount of €2 million { $2 million
at June 30, 2015 exchange rates),

In addition, from time to time, Aon's clients may bring claims and take legal action pertaining to the performance of fiduciary responsibilities. Whether
client claims and legal action related to the Company's performance of fiduciary responsibilities are founded or unfounded, if such claims and legal actions are
resolved in a manner unfavorable to the Company, they may adversely affect Aon's financial results and materially impair the market perception of the Company
and that of its products and services.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

In connection with the redomicile of Aon's headquarters (the "Redomestication”), the Company on April 2, 2012 entered into various agreements pursuant to
which it agreed to guarantee the obligations of its subsidiaries arising under issued and ountstanding debt securities, Those agreements included the (1) Amended
and Restated Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Corporation, Aon ple, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N A,, as trustee (the
"Trustee") (amending and restating the Indenture, dated as of September 10, 2010, between Aon Corporation and the Trustee), (2) Amended and Restated
Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Corporation, Aon ple and the Trustee (amending and restating the Indenture, dated as of December 16, 2002,
between Aon Corporation and the Trustee), {3) Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Corperation, Aon ple and the Trustee
(amending and restating the Indenture, dated as of January 13, 1997, as supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Januvary 13, 1997), and
(4} First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Finance N.8. 1, ULC, as issuer, Aon Corporation, as guarantor, Aon plc, as guarantor, and
Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as trustes.

The Company provides a variety of guarantees and indemnifications to its customers and others. The maximu.. potential amount of future payments
represents the notional amounts that could become payable under the guarantees and indemnifications if there were a total default by the guaranteed parties,
without consideration of possible recoveries under recourse provisions or other methods. These amounts may bear no relationship to the expected future payments,”
if any, for these guarantees and indemnitications. Any anticipated amounts payable are included in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements, and are
recorded at fair value.

The Company expects that, as prudent business interests dictate, additional guarantees and indemnifications may be issued from time to time.

Letters of Credit

The Company had total letters of credit ("LOCs") outstanding of approximately $58 million at December 31, 2015 , compared to $95 million at
December 31, 2014 . These letters of credit cover the beneficiaries related to certain of Aon's U.S. and Canadian non-qualified pension plan schemes and secure
deductible retentions for Aon's own workers compensation program. The Company has also issued LOCs to cover contingent payments for faxes and other
business obligatigns to third parties, and other guarantees for miscellaneous purposes at its international subsidiaries.
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Commitments

The Company has provided commitments to fund ceriain limited partuerships in which it has an inferest in the event that the general partners request
funding. Some of these commitments have specific expiration dates and the maximum potential funding under these commitments was $12 million at
December 31, 2015 compared to $14 million at December 31, 2014 . During 2015 , the Company funded $2 million of these commitments,

Premiam Payments

The Company has certain conlractual contingent guarantees for premium payments owed by clients to certain insurance companies. The maximum exposure
with respect to such contractual contingent guarantees was approximately $104 million at December 31, 2015 compared to $! 12 million at December 31, 2014

15. Segment Information

The Company has two reportable segments: Risk Solutions and HR Solutions, Unallocated income and expenses, when combined with the operating
segments and after the elimination of interseginent revenues and expenses, equal the amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reportable operating segmenits have been determined using a management approach, which is consistent with the basis and manner in which Aon's chief
operating decision maker ("CODM") uses financial information for the purposes of allocating resources and gvaluating performance. The CODM assesses
performance based oh operating income and generally accounts for inter-segment revenue as if the revenue were from third parties and at what management
believes are curtent market prices. The Company does not present net assets by segment as this information is not reviewed by the CODM.

Risk Solutions acts as an advisor and insurance and reinsurance broker, helping clients manage their risks, via consultation, as well as nepotiation and
placetnent of insurance risk with insurance carriers through Aon's global distribution network.

HR Solutions partners with organizations to solve their most complex benefits, talent and related financial challenges, and improve business performance by
designing, implementing, communicating and administering a wide range of human capital, retirement, investment management, haalth care, compensation and
talent management strategies.

Aon's total revenue is as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013
Risk Solutions = =" , L E _ $ 7426 5 . 7834 3 7,789
HR Solutions - ' ' 4,303 4,264 4,057
Intersegment elfiinations 0 o : SR ... 63 31
Total revenue 8§ 11,682 % 12,045 % 11,815

Commissions, fees and other revenues by product are as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013

Rotzil brokerage . . S B Y T XTI 6334 § 6,256
Reinsurance brokerége . ' 1,361 1,474 1,505
. Total Risk Solutions Segment - .= ..~ T S 408 7808 . 7,761
Consulting services 1,686 1,700 1,626
Outsoureing = =~ .. R o 2,658 2,607 2,469
Intrasegment ' o ' (1) . (43) (38)
-~ Total HR Sofutions Segment. .~ S S o 4303 4264 - 4,057
Intersegment ' @ (53) 3D
" Total commissions, fees and other revenue’ - SR B ' I 11,661 § 12019.°§ 11,787
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Fiduciary investment income by segment is as follows (in millions);

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013

Risk Selutions -~ T T I T s, um s 2% e

HR Solutions — — —
Total fidugiary investmentincome ., 0 0 o T g TR g g g gy

A reconciliation of segment operating income before tax to income before incoms taxes is as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31 2015 2014 2013

Risk Selutions . . S ST U L% 106 8 1648 §0 1540

HR Solutions ' - ' 536 485 318
Segment income before fhoome taxes™ . T T L e 0 a8 U888

Unallocated expenses . . . - {194) . (167)—” - (1875

Interest expense ' - 273 (255) (210}

Other income ' ' S : e B S L 100"--:_ SR 44 TR
Income before income taxes $ 1,689 § 1,765 § 1,538

Unallocated expenses include administrative or other costs not attributable to the operating segments, such as corporate governance costs. Interest income
represents income earned primarily on operating cash balances and certain income producing securities. Inferest expense represents the cost of debt obligations.

Other income consists of equity earnings, realized gains or [osses on the sale of investments, gains or losses on the disposal of businesses, gains or losses on
derivatives, and gains or losses on foreign currency remeasurement,

Revenues are generally attributed to geographic areas based on the location of the resources producing the revenues. Intercompany revenuss and expenses
are eliminated in consolidated results.

Consolidated revenue by geographic area is as follows (in millions):

Americas Europe,
United other than United Middle East, Asia
Years ended December 31 Total States s, Kingdom & Africa Pacific
2015 ' ' o $ 11682 § 6063 § O LOS3 $ 15275 - 1909 .§ 1,130
2014 - 12,043 5,824 1,176 1,623 2,189 1,233
2013 : o L8185 5574 ¢ L34 1544 T 2304 - 1079
Consolidated non-current assets by geographic area arc as follows (in millions):
Americas Europe,
United other than United Middle East, Asia
As of December 31 Total States uUs. Kingdom & Africa Pacific
2015 : S0 813081 8 7012 5 416 8 LM 8 . 22M & 57
2014 13,805 7,793 493 2,700 2,179 640

16, Guarantee of Register, ecuriti

As deseribed in Note [4, in connection with the Redomestication, Aon pic entered into various agreements pursuant to which it agreed to guarantee the
obligations of Aon Corporation arising under issued and outstanding debt securities, inciuding the 3.125% Notes due May 2016, the 5.00% Notes due
September 2020, the 8.205% Notes due January 2027 and the 6.25% Notes due September 2040 (collectively, the "Aon Corp Notes™). Aon Corporation is a 100%
indirectly owned subsidiary of Aon ple, All guarantees of Aon ple are full and unconditional. There are no other subsidiaries of Aon pl¢ that ate guaraniors of the
Aon Corp Notes,

In addition, Aon Corporation entered into an agreement pursuant to which it agreed to guaraniue the obligations of Aon ple arising under the 4.250%
Notes due 2042 exchanged for Aon Corporation's outstanding 8,205% Notes due January
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2027 and also agreed to guarantee the obligations of Acn ple arising under the 4.45% Notes due 2043, the 4.00% Notes due Movember 2023, the 2.875% Notes dus
May 2026, the 3.50% Notes due June 2024, the 4.60% Notes due June 2044, the 4.75% Notes due May 2045, and the 2.80% Notes due March 2021 (collectively,
the "Aan ple Netes"). In each case, the guarantee of Aon Cotperation is full and unconditisnal. There are no subsidiaries of Aon ple, other than Acn Corperation,
that are guarantors of the Aon pic Notes. As a result of the existence of these guarantees, tiie Company has elected to present the financial information set sorth in
this foatnote in accordunce with Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X.

The following tables set forth condensed consolidating statements of income, condensed consolidating statements of comprehensive income for the years
ended Decentber 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 , condensed eonsolidating statements of financial position as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 , and
condensed consolidating statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 , and 2013 in accordance with Rule 3-10 of Regulation $-X. The
condensed consolidating financial information includes the accounts af Aon ple, the accounts of Aon Corporation, and the combined accounts of the non-guarantor
subsidiaries. The condensed consolidating financial statements are presented in all periods as a merger under common control, The principal consolidating
adjustments are to eliminate the investment in subsidiaries and intercompany balances and transactions.

In Januaty 2015, Aon ple transferred its ownership of all of its directly held subsidiaries to Aon Global Holdings Limited, an intermediate holding company.
The finaneial results of Aon Global Holdings Limited are included in the Other Non-Guarantor Subsidiaties eolumn of the Condensed Consolidating Financial
Statements. The Company has reflected the transter of Aon Corporation from Aon plc to Aon Global Holdings Limited below for all petiods presented.

Cettain amounts in prior year's consolidating statements of income have been reclassified and adjusted to conform to the 2015 presentation, [n prior periods,
other income (expense) from intercompany transactions were recognized in Compensation and benefits and Other general expenses. These amounts are now
included in Intercompany other income (expense) in the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income, The Company believes this provides greater clarity into
the income generated from operations and intercompany transactions.
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Condenscd Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Other
Non-Guarantor Consolidating
{millions) . Aon ple Aonr Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Revenue . S . . Sl R L - £ IR
Commissions, fees and other $ — % o — % B 1,661 § = 7
Fiduciary investment income . . T T T ) S e e A

Total revenue — —_ 11,682 —

Compensntjon and beneﬁ;s 136 32 6,669 —

S i

Total operating expenses 144 39 9,651 —

Operating (oss) income B Y < . T I R

Interest income (1% 1 - 19 —_

Interestexpense -+ - - oo (1) s (1—3.{}5"__""_ B >3 R b S R

Intercompany interest income {expense) 429 479 50 - o -

Intercotmpany ofher income fexponse) ~ 0302 T @) CILTR0) e L

Other Income {1 — . 101 —
Income (loss) before taxes Co e as L L0B6) 209 e e

Income tax expense (benefit) 45 (262) 484 —
¥ncome (loss) before equity in earnings . : Ceo T T L T e e
of subsidiaries ' 401 _ Loy St 1,818 I B

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of

tax 984 1,319 525 (2,828) —
Net income oo oo 1,388 0 - 525 : U240 - @28 U hane
Less: Net income attributable to - N .
noncontrolling interests —_ — 37 — 37

Net_incaméattniibutable'th_o'n;;"_' o L - R o R
sharcholders -~~~ 0 - % 138 § . - 528 § 0 2303 % (2828 §
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Other

_ Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(mi[lions} Aon ple Aon Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Revenue. : . L I ’ -

Commlssmns, tees and other — % — 12,019 % — 12,019

Fiduciary investment incoms . — L 26 — 26

Total revenue — — 12,045 — 12,045

Expénses _ _ - R '

Compensat:on and beneﬁts 140 16 . 6,858 . — 7,014

- Other general expenses . - ) ;3,057 e 3,063

Tota] operating expenses 143 21 9,915 — 10,079

Interest income )] . 2 17 — i
| Interestexpense v v T 75y (139} LDy o (255)
”Interoumpany 1nterest income (expense) 449 . (298). (151) e —
Intercumpany other mcome (expense) 342 B 1) 48 - —
 Other income 2 5 37 — 44
'Income (loss)hefore taxes 566 . {841y . 2,040 - 1,765

Income tax expense (beneﬁt) 14 (192) 452 —_ 334
Inconie (loss): befot‘e equity in earmngs : i .
ni’suhsldiarles ' o 492 B4 - 1,588 —_ 1,431

Equity in eammgs of sub51d1ar1es net of '

tax 205 1,214 565 (2,684) —
Net.i mcome S R L3970 565 . AR LN (2,684) 1,431
Less: Net income attrlbutable to . J .
noncontrolling interests — — 34 — k1]
Net income. att "'batable toAon 7 R oo L R ‘
.shareholders : C1397 % 0 565 . 2419 % (2,684) - § 1,357
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Other
Nen-Guarantor Consolidating

(millions) ' Aon ple Aon Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustment Consolidated
Revenue Do T T T S S e T R T R
Commissions, fees and other $ 3 08 — % T 11,784 $ s 11,787.
Fiduciary investment m@ma oo . o S T T T R R ;

Total revenue ' 3 —_— 11,812

Expenscs ) ) ] B SRR
Compensation and benef’ ts 111 50 6,784
Other general exponses - S e —_ o308

Total operating expenses 111 50 9,983
Operating (loss) income R R - N & -
Interest income .= 3 ' 6
“Interest expense R ' Co ey "{1333' T ';(52_-5):' o (2
Intercompany interest (expense) mcome 120 24 (144) I —
Tntercompany other (expense) income SRR 1 R ¢ U1 S 136 e R T el
Other income (expense) — 19 - 49 . —
(Loss) income bofore taxes - . 0 @Y T RRIE e
Income tax (benefit) expense 12 (T3] 442 —
(Loss) income hefore equity n earnings R N iaE E E S T R e T T
of subsidiaries 18 (246) - 1376 - _ T 1,148 -
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of ' -
tax 1,095 1,061 g15 (2,971 —_
Netinggme = .~ . o LB 1528 T @97 e
L.ess: Net income attrlbutable to ' ' ' - ' N B
noncontrolling interests — — 35 e

Netincomeattnbutabletvon : T T R R
shareholders - ' . $ L1ty % - . 815§ - - s 186 8 0 (297 &




Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 314, 2015

Other
Non-Guarantor Consolidating

(mllllons) Aon ple Aon Cerporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Nt ificome. - $ 138§ 0 s25 § 2340 § (2828 $ L4

Less: Net income aﬂrlbutable to

noncontrolling interests — — 37 — 37
Netmcoma atmbutable to Aon shareho]ders T8 1388, . 525 % 2,303 § (2,828 $ 1,385
Other Lomprehenswe {loss) income, net of tax:
© . Change in fair value of ﬁnanclal T :
C mstruments Lo _— - _ RS : — (8

Fore1gn currency translanon adjustments = (47) (395) — (442}
.. Post-retiremefitbenefit obligation - ... R T | IR 2. I T 155

Total other comprehenswe loss _ — (35) {260y —_ (295)
.in other, comprehenswe Ioss of “ - R R EEE S . _

mdlanes hetoftax. e @68 oo @y 860 o e

Less: Other comprehenswc loss

attributable to noncontrolling interests — — (&) — (6)
Total other comprehensive toss attnbutablc to it e : _ ' o
Aon'shareholders .~ S ST (289) {303) - ST ssTy 0 o 880 (289)
Comprehensive income attnbutab le to Aon
shareholders $ 1,096 § 22 8 1,746 § (1,968 § 1,096

104




Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprchensive Income

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Other
Non-Guarantor Consolidating
{millions) Aon ple Aon Cerporation Subsidiaries Ad justments Consolldatcd
Net income _ $ 1387 - - 5% $ LIS § REOXITIRE A U431
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests e —_ 34 — 34
Net income attributable to Aon shareholders —— § 1,397 § S 565 8 oI (2684), 8 s e 89T
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Change in. fair value arfﬁnanctm o o T e R
 instruments - 5 L N RS ey I
Foreign currency transtation adjustments —_— (31) {476)
Post-rotiretnent. henefit ohllgatmn e T BISY g
Total other comprehenswe loss — {349} {414}
Equity in othier comprehensive fncome of T L wtn T ey
subsidiaries, net of tax BRI v/:11)% ' @y e (e
Less: Other comprehensive loss
attributable to noncontrclling interests — — (3) —_
Total other comprehensive incorne. attnbutable A R B R
to Aon sharcheldats - o Clmety . (7603 - . S 193
Comprehensive income attributable to Aon
shareholders § 637 % (195) % 948  § {753) $ 637
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Condensed Consolidating Stateraent of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Other
Aon Non-Guarantor Consalidating
(millions) Aon plc Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Netincome =~ . R AR W 1 kI 815 8 219 % Q9T § 1,148
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — 35 —_ 35
Net income attributable to Aon shareholders . -'$.. - L,113 § Bty § CLon1se. L (2.971). " § . K13
Cther comprehenswe loss, net of tax:
. .-Changemfalr value Qf',ﬁ‘ﬂanmal - : . I ) .
o instruments: © ' ' — -1 o -2 o _ 7
Formgn currency translanon adjustments — (60) (5) — (65)
: :,Post-retlrement benéfit-obligation -~ . - o 2y - T 70 : S © 293
Total other comprehensxve loss — 168 67 — 235
- Equity in other comprehensive loss ef o s o . N
-~ subsidiaties, netoftax T £ © 689 : 237 ' 542y -
Less: Other comprehensive income
attributable te noncontrolling interests — e (0 — (1)
‘Total ather comprehensive loss atmbutable to R Lo o
‘Aon shareholders SRS B & 1+ 237 o308 L (542) 236
Comprehensive income attrlbutable to Aon
shareholders $ 1,349 % 1,052 § 2,461 § (3,513) § 1,349
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2015
Other
Aon Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(milliens) Acn ple Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Cash and cash equivalents — 2,083 % 1,242 % (2,941) -
Short<term investrients - 209 147 T AU e
Réceivables, net 1 — 2,733 ' —
Fiduciary assets - i o I 7 R e
Intercompany receivables 432 1,950 7,957 {10,339)
Other current assets : o 218 ST ST 'Y
Total Current Assets 436 4,460 22,358 (13,282)
Goodwill ' e e e 8,44?3'?' ' EER
Intangible assets, net —_— —_ 2,180 . —
Fixgd assets, net T e ’763 T
Deferred tax assets 154 558 107 (678)
Intercompany teceivables v/ 526 SO UREIsT o B,y
Prepaid Pension —_ 6 1,027 —
Other non-current assets 28 14 B Yy
Investment in subsidiary 11,804 16,534 369 (28,707)

TOTAL ASSETS

12,797 .8

27008 §°

(52285) 8

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Fiduciary liabilities

ST I

Shott-term debt and current portion of

long~term debt — 550 12 —

Aceounts payable and accroed Habilities 2,988 LS 1680 T (2,981

Intercompany payables 167 9,518 ) 654 (10,339)

Othor current liabilities 47 cs6 om0t @y
Teotal Current Liabilities 3,202 10,169 12,998 (13,283)
Long-term debt 3,482 1418 1278 TR

Deferred tax liabilitics — — 854 (678)

Pension, other post-retiremerit and other o : B SRR

post-cmployment lisbilities — 1,313 482 Dk

Intercompany payables — 8,799 735 (9,534) -

Other non-current liabilities: 7. R [/ AP 705 Y el
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,691 21,839 16,049 (23,578)
TOTAL AON SHAREHOLDERS® i B S e Y
EQUITY : 6,106 368 ) 28,5338 C (28,707)

Noncontrolling interests e — 57 —_—
TOTALEQUITY .« - . 6,106 369 CUI8395 0 (BT
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY § 12,797 22208 % 44444 % (52,285}
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Condensed Consolidating Staternent of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2014
Other
Aon Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(millions) Aon plc Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
ASSETS o T ‘ Lo _
Cash and cash equwalents — 3 2,727 1,361 3,714y § 374
‘Short-term tivestments. - 165 229 - 394
Receivables, net — — 2,815 — 2,815
Fiduciagy assets . e, L o— 11,638 - — 11,638
Intercumpany recewables 455 2814 9,156 (12,425) —
g Other curretit assets. 2 226 407 3% 602
Total Current Assets 457 5,932 25,606 (16,172) 15,823
~Qoadwill - o e " | B860 — | 8,860
Intﬂnglble assets net — — 2,520 - 2,520
Fixed asséts; net g - 165 - 765
Deferred tax assets 159 570 113 (698) 144
Intercompany recelvables S L 7,399 : 600 Ml 110 - _ —
Prepaid Pension — 6 927 — 933
- Othet rion-current assges . - 7 200 S 73 T IR 3 o) , 727
Investment in subsidiary 4,962 . 15,200 1,880 (22,042) —
TQTALASSETS = & - §7 . 13997 § 22420 0% CALAGD § (47,114)  § 29,772
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
."‘deumary hﬁhllltles ¥ e § — % (11,638 § _ o~ 11,638
Short-term debt and current portion of .
long-term debt — 767 16 — 783
- Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,755 . 58 : 1,706 By - 1,805
Intercompany payables 7 122 8,960 3,343 (12,425} —
k -.Other currenthahllltms Lo e ’ : 49 : 172 (3D ) 788
Total Current Llabllltles 3,877 9,834 17,475 (16,172) 15,014
. Ling-term debt C o 544 . 1,917 o 338 — 4,799
Deferred tax liabilities — — ' 1,011 (698) 313
_ _Pensmn, other -postsfetirement and other SRE o o o - .

- post- empioyment habllmes ST L . 1,396 o 745 - — . 2,141
Intercompany payables — 7,277 833 - {8,110) —
.- Other non-cuirrent labilities - N Y. 3 25 . - 836 ' LB 874
TOTAL LIABILI'I‘IES 6,426 20,549 21,238 (25,072) 23,141
SH‘ REHOLDERS . . = 0 U T

UL ; e : onenesglo - 1,880 S 20,062 . . oo (32,042 0 ..6,571,
Noncontrol[mg mterests ' — — e — 60
TOTALEQUITY N T . N T o 6631
TGTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 12,997 ¢ 22429 % 41460 § 47114 $ 29,772
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Linded December 31, 2015

Other
Aon Non-Guarantor Consolidating
(millions) Aon ple Corporation Subsidiarics ' Adjus‘ments Consolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OI’ERATING ' C ' S R TR s L
ACTIVITIES )

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR}

OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 695§ 464 8 2,523 . % (1,673 § 2,009
CASHI‘LOWSFROMINVESTING o L R R P A g
ACTIVITIES N

Proceeds from investments — 27 S 193
Payments for inveshments - SRR b AT : o {2-19)_' '
Net (purchases) sales of short-term investments -
non-fiduciary — {42) 51
Acquisition of businesses, iet of cash acquired e e TR 0 B IS A
Proceeds from sale of businesses = _ —_ 203
Capital expeudltures AT e o {200y
CASH USED FOR (PROVIDED BY)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13) (62} (76)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING R ' - Ll
ACTIVITIES _ S : - E
Share repurchase _ (1.550) — —
Advanzes from (io) alfitiates and other (1) o {326) o BN ¢ 11) R , s
Issuance of shares for employee benefit plans 29) — 7 (l) — 30}
Issuance of debt : o 1,318 7 402 . i S e 755351
Repayment of debt @30 (4,746) (22) — (5,098)
Cash dividends to shareholders o C {323y . B A ——-— N T (323
Noncontrolling interests and other financing
activities — — (3%
CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDEI BY S S S e
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - . - - . (682). : . _{1046) S (2,394),
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — — {172} —
NET INCREASE (PECREASE) IN CASH AND o IR e
CASH EQUIVALENTS. ‘ e Ty iy o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALLNTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR —_ 2,727 1,361 (3,714)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVAL]’JNTSATEND T S R Rt L
OF PERIOD . - . §. — %0 2083 0§ 1242008 U (2941 08

(1) Advances from (to) affiliates and other includes activity related to the Company's intercompany and cash pooling arrangements.
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Other
Aon Non-Guarantor Consolidating
{millions) Aon ple Corporation Subsidiaries Adjunstments Consolidated
CASH FLOWS. FROM OPERATJN G
ACT]VITIES‘ B
(,ASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 769 ©oxn % o7 % o 1,812
.CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING B : Lol
ACTiV!TIES : . o
Proceeds from mvestrnents — 39 13 — 52
ﬂ.rPayments Tor mvestments ] 5 — Qo e - - (20).
.Net purchases of short-term mvestments non- ' o
fiduciary — 3) 113 — 110
: _.AquSithﬂ of busmesses siet of cash aci]mred . — — 479} — (479)
Proceeds from sale of busmesses — —— 48 — 48
: Capltal expendltures o o e e {X56} —-— (256)
CASH USED FOR INVES T ING
ACTIVITIES — 16 (561) — (545)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCENG ' L
AC’I‘IVITIES o
Share repurchase - (2,250) — — — {2,250)
: Advances from (to) afﬁhates and otl‘ier (1) 19 3,215 (536) - 42,698) —
Issuance of shares for employee benefit plans (105} [ — — {1035)
Issuance of debt ) 2,908 2,326 8 — 5,239
Repayment of debt (1,068) (2,150) (700 — (3,918)
) ;Cash d1v1dends to: shareholders ) '(27-3)" ' — e —_ (273
Nnncomrollmg interests and other ﬁnancmg
activitics — — 4 — 4
“ CASH (USED FOR) PROVIBED BY o - © R
- FINANCING ACTiVITIES (76%) 3,391 (1227 12,658) {1,303
EFFECT OrF EXCHANGE RATE CHAN GES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — — (67) — 67)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE II" CASH AND Co Co S
CASH EQUIVALENTS B — 2,480 115 " (2,698) (103)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR _— 247 1,246 (1,016) 477
‘CASHAND € ASHE" QUIVALENTS ATEND _ ' N - ' '
» — 2927 8 1361 - % (3,714) 374

(1) Advances from (to) affiliates and other includes activity related to the Company's intercompany and cash pooling arrangements.
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* Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended Decetaber 31, 2013

Other
Aon Non-Guarantor - Consolidating
(millions) Aon ple Corporation Subsidiaries Adjustments Cansolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - o S ' B R R
ACTIVITIES . : -

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 70 44n 3 2,124 § — 3 1,753
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING e j E e L nica T
ACTIVITIES SN 7 s

Proceeds from investments — 8 85 — B
Payments for investments - — (18 - et o s
Net sales of short-term investments - non-

fiduciary —_ (74) (100)_ . —_ _ (1/4)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired e o 84y o, S5
Proceeds from sale of businesses - 7 33 - 40
Capital expenditures - Lo {229) s 29y

CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY

INVESTING ACTIVITIES — (14) (265) — (33%9)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING S ' e
ACTIVITIES o AR

Share repurchase (1,102) — — —_— 7 (1,102)
Advances from (to) affiliates . . 460 996 @ (977 ey
Issuance of shares for employee beneﬁt plal_ls (22_) o - —_ — ‘ (22}
Issuance of debt ' e 204 232 = 906
Repayment of debt ( 1,055) (3,37’{') 247) — (4,_679)
- Cash dividends to shareholders Loty B — B (219
Nongontrolling interests and other financing
activities — (27) — (27)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) S ) s e S CC L R
- FINANCING ACTIVIT‘IES o . AL L8563 v, (821 R 977).
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGE%
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —_ — (92} — 92)
NET I‘NCREA’SE (DECREASE) IN CASH . : — AR :
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (13D A8 1,246 {97 C186
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 131 199 — (39 291
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END ' B T TR e —
OF PERIOD — Y 1,246 & 1,016y &
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1_ . erly Financial Data (Unaudi

Selected quarterly financial data for the years enced December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows (in millions, except per share data):

Average monthly tradmg volume

1Q 2Q 3Q 40Q 2015
INCOME STATEMENT DATA _ . ' .
Commissions, fees and othter revenue 2842 % .2,800 b 2,736 3,283 11,661
TFIdueiary itivestotent mcome o 5 3. 6 ] 2
Total revenue 2,847 2805 % 2,742 3,28-8 11,682
Operatinig irigomé - M4 277 8 413 717 1,848
Netincome 34l 188 303 590 1,422
- Less: Net income attributable to-noncotirolting interests - 13 10 - g 6 R
Net income attrlbutable o Aon shareholders 328 § 178§ 295 584 1,385
PERSHAREDATA -~ - L R B -
Basic net income per share attrlbutable to Aon shareholders 115 5 063 § 1.05 2.12 4.93
_ Dllute(i netfnt;qme per share attributable 1o Aot shateha!ders 114§ 0.62 % 1,08 200 4.88
CLASS A ORDINARY SHARE DATA
- Dividends paid per share 025 $ . 030§ 038 - 0,30 115
Pfiee ra'nge: . -
H;gh - 107.08 .'$'_ 10470 % 103.38 9719 107.08
Low 8935 8 9532 % 87.58 86.38 36.38
Shares outstandmg 2817 2798 2739 . 269.8 269.8
Average monthly trading volume 245 24.9 26.5 26.6 25.6
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 2014
INCOME STATEMENT DATA L ' '
Commlss;ons fees and other revenue 2941 % 2913 % 2,873 3,292 12,019
Flducmry investment income .7 6 6 ST T 26
Total revenue 2,947 § 2919 % 2,880 3,299 12,045
 Operating fncore 469§ 445§ 417 . 635 1,966
Net income 336 313 315 467 1,431
Less: Net incotme attri'hutable to noncontrollmg mterests 11 -9 B 3 )
Net income attributable to Aon shareholders 325 % 304 8 309 459 1,397
PER’ SHARE DATA - . o e o _
Basic net moome per Share attrlbutable to Aon shareho!ders 1.07 § 1.02 3% 1.06 1.60 4.73
D1 luted net mcome per share atmbutable to Aon sharehalders 1.06 § 101§ 1.04 ~1.56 4.66
CLASS A ORDINARY SHARE DATA
 Dividends paid per shate A 018 % 025 $. . 02s 0.25 - 092
Price range: .
L UHgh L8745 % COLgT . 918§ 9810 98.10
Low 7649 $ 7860 $ 83.06 78.26 76.49
. Shares oulstanding 2965 - 2908 - 2851 280.0 280:0
326 285 26.3 34.1 304
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure,

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures,
Evaluation of Disclosure Controis and Procedures

We have conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(c) under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") as of the end of the period covered by this annual report of
December 31, 2015 . Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded as of December 31, 20135 that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective such that the information relating to Aon, including our consolidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed in our SEC
reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and is acoumulated and communicated te Aon's
management, including our chief executive officer and chiet financiai officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

Management of Aon ple is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reperting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company's internal contro] aver financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Because of
its inherent limitations, internal controf over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our senior management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 . In making this assessment, we vsed the criteria set forth by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cominission (COS0) in the Internal Conirol — Integrated Framework (2013 Framework) . Based on this
assessment, management has concluded our internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2015 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 has been audited by Ernst & Young, LLP, the Company's
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report titled "Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over
_Financial Reporting."

Changges in Internal Centrol Over Financial Reporting

No changes in Aon's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during 2015 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materiatly affect, Aon's internal control over financial reporting,
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Report of Independent Registered Fublic Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Aon plc

We have audited Aon plc's internal control over finangial reporting a3 of December 31, 2015 , based un criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) {the COSO criteria). Aon plc's management is
tesponsible for maintsining effective internal control over financial repotting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained ity all material
resnects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statetnents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accouitting principles. A company's internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and ptocedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasenable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unautherized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, Also, projactions of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject fo the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Aon plc maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on the COSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated statements of
financial pesition of Aon pl¢ as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 , and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 and our report dated February 22, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon,

M ¥ le

Chicago, lllinois
February 22, 2016
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Item 9B, Other Information,

Not applizable.
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PART I

Item 10, Directors, Executive Cfficers and Corporate Governance,

Information relating to Aon's Directors is set forth under the heading "Proposal | — Resolutions Regarding the Election of Directors" in our Proxy Statement
for the 2016 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders to be held on June 24, 2016 (the "Proxy Statement") and is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy
Statement. Information relating to the executive officers of Aon is set forth in Part I of this Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference. Information relating to
compliange with Section 16(s) of the Exchange Act is incotporated by reference from the discussion under the heading "Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance" in the Proxy Statement. The remaining information called for by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the infermation under the
heading "Cotporate Governance” and the information under the heading "Board of Directors and Committees” in the Proxy Statement.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to the Company’s directors, officets and etployees, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer and other persons performing similar functions. The text of our code of ethics, which we call our Code of
Business Condust, is available on our website as disclosed in Item 1 of this report, We will provide a copy of the code of ethics without charge upon request to the
Company Secratary, Aon ple, 122 Leadenhall Street, London EC3V 4AN, United ngdom We will disclose on our website any amendment to oF waiver from our
code of ethics on behalf of any of our executive officers or directors.

Item 11.  Execuative Compensation.

Information relating to director and executive officer compensation is set forth under the headings "Compensation Committee Report,” "Compensation
Discussion and Analysis," and "Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement, and all such information is incorporated herein by reference.

The material incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading "Compensation Committee Report” in the Proxy Staterment shall
be deemed futnished, and not filed, in this Form 10-K and shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Exchange Act as a result of this furnishing, except to the extent that it is specifically incorporated by reference by Aon,

Information relating to compensation committee interlocks and insider participation is incorporated by reterence to the information under the heading
"Compensation Discussion and Analysis - Compensation Commitiee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Proxy Statement.
Item 12.  Seeurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters,

Information relatifg to equity compensation plans and the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management of Aon's ordinary shares is set

forth under the headings "Equity Compensation Plan Information", "Principal Holders of Voting Securities" and "Security Ownership of Directors and Executive
Officers" in the Proxy Statement and all such information is incorporated herein by reference.

item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Aon hereby incorporates by reference the information under the headings "Corporate Governance — Director Independence” and "Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions" in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information required by this Item is included under the caption "Auditor Fees" in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorporated by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a} (1) and (2). The following documents have been included in Part IT, Ttem 8.

Repert of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, on Financial Statements
Consolidated Statements of Finangial Position.— As of December 31, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Income — Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income — Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity — Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ~— Years Ended December-S 1, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following document has been included in Part I1, Item 9.

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registergd Public Accounting Firm, on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

All schedules for the Registrant and consolidated subgidiaries have been omitted because the required information is not present in amounts sufficient to
require submission of the schedules or because the information required is included in the respective financial statements or notes thereto,

(2)(3). List of Exhibits (numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K)
Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession,

2.1% Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization by »ud among Aon Corporation and Market Mergeco Inc. dated Jarvary 12, 2012 —
incorporated by reference to Annex A of the Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (File No. 333-178991) filed by Acen Global Limited on
February 6, 2012,

Articies of Association,
3.1% Articles of Association of Acn plc — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Aen's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,
Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Indentures,

4.1* Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Corporation, Acn ple and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A. (amending and restating the Indenture, dated as of January 13, 1997, as supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture,
dated as of January 13, 1997) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

4.2* Capital Securities Guarantee Agreement dated as of January 13, 1997 between Aon and The Bank of New York, as Guarantee Trustee —
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Aon's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-21237) filed on February 6, 1997

4,3* Capital Securities Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 13, 1997 among Aon, Aon Capital A, Morgan
Stanley & Co. Incorporated and Goldman, Sachs & Co, — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to Aon's Registration Statement on
Form 8-4 (File No. 333-21237) filed on February 6, 1997,

4.4* Debenture Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement dated as of JTanuary 13, 1997 among Aon, Aon Capital A, Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated and Goldman, Sachs & Co. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to Aon's Registration Statement on Form 8-4 {Fite
No. 333-21237) filed on February 6, 1997,

4.5* Guarantec Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 13, 1997 among Aon, Aon Capital A, Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated and Goldman, Sachs & Co. —- incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to Aon's Registration Staterment on Form S-4 (File
No. 333-21237) filed on February 6, 1997.

4,6* Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Corporation, Aon ple and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as trustee (amending and restating the Indenture, dated as of December 16, 2002, between Aon Corporation and The Bank
of New York Mellon Trust Caompany, N.A.) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4,2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 2, 2012,
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4.7* Indenture dated as of April 12, 2006 among Aon Finance N.S.1, ULC, Aon and Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as Trustee —
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 18, 2006.

4.8* Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Corporation, Aon ple and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as frustee (amending and restating the Indenture, dated as of September 10, 2010, between Aon Corporation and The Bank
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 2, 2012,

4.9* Form of 3.50% Senior Note due 2015 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Acn's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 10, 2010,

4.10% Form of 5.00% Senior Note due 2020 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 10, 2010,

4.11* Form of 6.25% Senior Note due 2040 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 10, 2010.

4.12* Indenture dated as of March 8, 2011, among Aon Finance N.S. 1, ULC, Aon Corporation and Computershare Trust Company of
Canada. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 8, 2011,

4.13* First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, among Aon Finance N.S. 1, ULC, Aon Corporation, as guarantor, Aon plc, as
guarantor, and Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as trustee (supplementing the Indenture dated as of March 8, 2011 among Aon
Finance N.S,1, ULC, Aon Corporation, as guarantor, and Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as trustee)} — incorporated by
teference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

4.14* Form of 3.125% Senior Note due 2016 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aon's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on May 27,
2011,

4.15* Indenture, dated as of December 12, 2012 by and among Aon plc, Aon Corporation, The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2012,

4.16*% Form of 4.250% Senior Note Due 2042 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Aon's Registraiion Statement on Form S-4 (File No.
333-187637) filed on March 29, 2013,

4.17* Indenture, dated as of May 24, 2013, among Aon, Aon Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National
Association, as trustee {including the Guarantee) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K fited on
May 24, 2013,

4.18* Form of 4.45% Senior Note due 2043 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24,
2013.

4.19% Form of 4.00% Senior Note due 2023 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November
26, 2013,

4,20* Form of 2,875% Senior Note due 2016 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 13, -
2014,

4,21* Form of 3.500% Senior Note due 2024 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aen's Current Repert on Form 8-K filed on May 27,
2014,

4.22*% Form of 4.600% Senior Note due 2044 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Aon’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 27,
2014.

4.23* Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of May 20, 2015, among Aon plc, Aon Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee (including the Guarantee) - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aen's Cutrent Report on
Form 8-K filed on May 20, 2015.

4.24* Form of 4.750% Senior Note due 2045 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 20,
20135,

4.25* Indenture, dated as of November 13, 2015, among Aon ple, Aon Corporation and The Bank of New York Melion Trust Company, N.A., as
trustee (including the guarantee) - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November [3,
2015.
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4.26% Form of 2.800% Senior Note due 2021 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aott's Current Repott on Form 8-K filed on November
13, 2015.

Material Contracts.

10.1* Amended and Restated Agreement among the Attorney General of the State of New York, the Supetintendent of Insurance of the State of
New York, the Attarney General of the State of Connecticut, the [llinois Attorney General, the Director of the Illinois Department of
Insurance, and Aon Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliates effective as of February 11, 2010 — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K fited on February 16, 2010.

10.2* $400,000,000 Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of March 20, 2012 among Aon Corporation, Citibank, N.A. as Administrative Agent,
JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Bank of America, N.A., as Syndication Agents, The Royal Bank of Scotland Pl and Weils Fargo Bank,
National Association, as documentation agents and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., J.P, Morgan Securities LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner and Smith Incorporated, as joint lead atrangers and joitit book managers and the lenders party thereto — incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10,1 to Aon's Current Report on Forim 8-K filed on March 21, 2012,

10.3* Joinder Agreement exccuted by Aon ple u8 of April 2, 2012 (modifying the $400,000,000 Five-Year Credit Agreement, dated as of
March 20, 2012, among Aon Corporation, as borrower, Citibank, M.A., as administrative agent and the other agents and lenders party
thereto) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

10.4* Buropean Facility Amendment and Restatement Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2012, among Aon Corporation, Aon plc, the subsidiaries
of Aon Corporation party thereto as borrowers, Citibank International ple, as agent, and the other agents and lenders party thereto,
amending and restating the European Facility Agreement dated as of October 15, 2010 and amended on July 18, 2011 — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,3 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

10.5* $900,000,000 Five-Year Credit Agreement among Aon plc, Aon Corporation and Aon UK Limited with Citibank, N.A., as administrative
agent, the lenders party thereto, Bank of America, N.A. and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as syndication agents, and Citigroup
_ Global Markets, Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as joint lead arrangers
and joint book managers - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 4, 2015.

10.6*# Aon Corporation Outside Director Corporate Bequest Plan {as amended and restated effective January 1, 2010) — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010,

10.7*# Aon Stack Incentive Plan, as amended and restated — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 24, 2006,

10.8*# First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Aon Stock Incentive Plan — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{au) to Aon's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

10.9%# Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Aon Stock Incentive Plan, dated April 2, 2012 — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

10.10*# Form of Stock Option Agreement — incotporated by reference to Exhibit 99.D(7) to Aon's Schedule TO (File Number 005-32053) filed on
August 15, 2007.

10.11*# Acn Stock Award Plan (as amended and restated through February 2000) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Aon's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000,

10.12*# First Amendment to the Aon Stock Award Plan (as amended and restated through 2000) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{as) to
Aon's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembet 31, 2006.

10.13*# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Aon's Anaual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

10.14*# Aon Stock Option Plan as amended and restated through 1997 -~ incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Aon's Quarterly Report on
Formn 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1997,

10.15*# First Amendment to the Aon Stock Option Plan as amended and restated through 1997 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to
Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999,

10.16%# Second Amendment to the Aon Stock Option Plan as amended and restated through 1997 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.D(3)
to Aon's Schedule TO (File Number 005-32053) filed on August 15, 2007.
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10.17%# Third Amendment to the Aon Stock Option Plan as amended and restated through 1997 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(at) to
Aon's Annual Report o1 Form 10-K foi the year ended December 31, 2006,

10.18*# Aon Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated effective as of November 1, 2002) - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6
en Aon's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File Number 333-106584) filed on June 27, 2003.

10.19*# First Amendment to Aen Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated effective as of November 1, 2002) — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Aon's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007,

10.20*%# Seventh Amendment to the Aon Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated effective as of November 1, 2002) — incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Aon's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007,

10.21%# Aon Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated effective as of September 20, 2013) — incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013,

10.22*# Aon Deferred Compensation Plan (as Amended and Restated Effective as of January 1, 2008) - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 o
Post-Effective Amendment No, | to Aon's Registration Statement on Form §-8 (File Number 333-106584) filed on April 2, 2012,

10.23*# First Amendment to the Aon Deferred Compensation Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Aon's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015.

10.24%# Executive Committee Combined Severance and Change in Control Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Aon's Quarterly
Repott on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December I 1, 2015.

10.25%# Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors and Officers of Aon Corporation — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 5, 2009,

10.26%# Form of Deed of Indemnity for Directors of Aon ple — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 2, 2012.

10.27%# Form of Deed of Indemnity for Gregory C. Case — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,5 to Aon's Current Report on Ferm 8-K filed
on April 2, 2012,

10.28*# Form of Deed of Indemnity for Executive Officers of Aon ple — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Aon's Current Repott on
Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012.

10.29%# Aon Corporation Executive Special Severance Plan, as amended and restated April 2, 2012 and as assumed by Aon ple as of April 2,
2012 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,14 to Aon's Current Report on Form §-K filed on April 2, 2012,

10.30%# Employment Agreement dated April 4, 2005 between Aon and Gregory C. Case — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005.

10.31*# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of November 13, 2009 between Aon and Gregory C. Case ~— incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 17, 2009.

10.32*+# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of January 16, 2015, by and between Aen ple, Aon Corporation and Gregory C,
Case — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2015,

10.33*# Amended and Restated Change in Contro] Agreement dated as of November 13, 2009 between Aon and Gregory C. Case — incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 17, 2009.

10,34*# International Assignment Letter dated as of January 12, 2012 by and between Aon and Gregory C. Case — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Janwary 13, 2012,

10.35*# Amended International Assignment Letter with Gregory C. Case dated July 1, 2014 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Aon's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014,

10.36*# Employment Agreement dated as of October 3, 2007 between Aon Corporation and Christa Davies -— incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2007.

120




10.37%# Amendment effective as of March 27, 2012 to Employment Agreement between Aon Corporation and Christa Davies dated as of
October 3, 2007 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2012,

10.38*# Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2015, by and between Aen Corporation and Christa Davies -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 26, 2015,

10.39%# International Assignment Letter dated as of January 12, 2012 by and between Aon and Christa Davies — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 13, 2012

10.40*4# Amended International Assignment Letter with Christa Davies dated July 1, 2014 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Aon's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014,

10.41*# Change in Control Agreement entered into as of March 27, 2012 by and between Aon Corporation and Christa Davies — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2012.

10.42*# Employment Agreement dated December 7, 2010, between Aon Corporation and Stephen P. McGill — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10,1 to Aon's Cutrent Report on Fonm 8-X filed on December 13, 2010.

10.43*# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of July 8, 2015, by and between Aon Corporation and Steplien P, MeGill -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 14, 2015,

10.44*# Change in Control Agreement dated December 7, 2010 between Aon Corporation and Stephen P. McGill -— incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2010,

10.45*# International Assignment Letter dated as of January 12, 2012 by and between Aon and Stephen P. McGill — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 13, 2012,

10.46*# Amended International Assignment Letter with Stephen P. McGill dated July 1, 2014 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Aon's
Quatterly Report on Form 10-G for the quarter ended June 30, 2014,

10.47*# Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2014, by and between Aon Corporation and Peter M. Lieb. - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.46 to Aon's Annual Report on Fortm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

10.48*# Change-in-Control Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2014, by and between Aon Corporation and Peter M. Lieb. - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.47 to Aon's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

10.49*# International Assignment Letter, dated as of January 12, 2012, by and between Aon Corporation and Peter M, Lieb, - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,48 to Aon's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014,

10.50%# Amended International Assignment Letter with Peter M. Lieb dated July 1, 2014. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to Aon's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014,

10.51*# Employment Agreement dated as of September 30, 2010 between Aon Corporation and Kristi Savacool — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012,

10.52*¥% Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of May 16, 2011 between Aon Corporation and Kristi Savacool — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10~} for the quarter ended March 31, 2012,

10.53*# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of February 24, 2015, by and between Aon Corporation and Kristi Savacoo! -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 26, 2015.

10.54*# Change in Control Agreeﬁlent, dated as of February 24, 2015, by and between Aon plc, Aon Corporation and Kristi Savacool -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Februaty 26, 2015,

10.57*# Aon plc Leadership Performance Program for 2013-2015 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013,
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10.58*# Aon plc Leadership Performance Program for 2014-2016 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon'’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014,

10.59*# Aon plc Leadership Performance Program for 2015-2017 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015.

10.60*# Executive Committee Incentive Compensation Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, ‘

10.61*# Executive Committee Incentive Compensation Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2015,

10.62*# Amended and Restated Global Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan of Hewitt Associates, Inc, — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Hewitt's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2007 (Commission File No. 001-31351),

10.63*# First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Global Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan of Hewitt Associates, Inc., dated April 2,
2012 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

10.64*# Aon ple 2011 Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective June 24, 2014 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Aon's
Quarterly Repert on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 3¢, 2014,

10.65*# Deed of Assumption of Aon pic dated April 2, 2012 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Aon’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 2, 2012,

10.66%# Master Ainendment dated April 2, 2012 to the Aon Savings Plan, Aon Supplemental Savings Plan, Aon Corporation Supplemental
Employee Stock Ownership Plan, Aon Corpotation 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Aon Deferred Compensation Plan, Aon Stock
Award Plan, Aon Stock Option Plan and the Employment Agreement dated as of April 4, 2005, between Aon Corporation and Gregory C,
Case — incorporated by reference fo Exhibit 10,8 to Acn's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

10.67*# Form of Change in Control Agreement — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,15 to Aon's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2012

10.68*# Form of Assignment, Assumption and Amendment to Change in Control Agreement for Executive Officers of Aon ple — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,13 to Aon's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2012,

Statement re: Computation of Raties.

12,1, Statement regarding Computation of Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

21 List of Subsidiaries of Aon.

Consents of Experts and Counsel.

23 Consent of Ermst & Young LLP.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-t4(a} Certifications,

31.1. Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Aon in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

31.2. Rule 13a~14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Aon in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Section 1330 Certifications.

32.1. Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Aon in accordance with Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2. Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Acn in accordance with Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
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XBRL Exhibits.
Interactive Drata Files. The following materials are filed electronically with this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
10L.INS XBRL Report Instance Document,
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
10l.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.
10l.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document,
[OL.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.

10L.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.

*  Document has been previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is incorporated herein by reference herein. Unless otherwise indicated,
such document was filed under Commission File Number 061-07933,

# Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

The registrant agrees to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upen request a copy of (1) any long-term debt instruments that have been
omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii}(A) of Regulation S-K, and (2) any schedules omitted with respect to any material plan of acquisition, reorganization,
arrangement, liquidation or succession set forth above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be s'gned on
its hehalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. .

Aon ple

By:  /s/ GREGORY C. CASE -

Gregory C. Case, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Date:  February 22, 2016

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Signature Title Date

s/ GREGORY C. CASE

Gregory C. Case

President, Chief Executive Otfficer and
Director (Principal Executive Officer}

February 22, 2016

/sf LESTER B, KNIGHT Non-Executive Chairman and Director February 22, 2016
Lester B, Knight
s/ FULVIO CONTI Director February 22, 2016
Fulvie Conti
/s CHERYL A, FRANCIS Director February 22, 2016
Cheryl A. Francis
/s/ JAMES W, LENG Director February 22, 2016
James W, Leng
/st J. MICHAEL LOSH Director February 22, 2016
J. Michael Losh
/s/ ROBERT S. MORRISON Director February 22, 2016
Robert S, Morrison
/s/ RICHARD B, MYERS Director February 22, 2016
Richard B. Myers
fsf RICHARD C. NOTEBAERT Director February 22, 2016
Richard C. Notebaert
/s GLORTA SANTONA Director February 22, 2016
Gloria Santona
/sf CAROLYN Y. WOO Director February 22, 2016
Carolyn Y. Woo
fsf CHRISTA DAVIES Executive Vice President February 22, 2016
Christa Davies ) and Chief Financial Qfficer
(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ LAUREL MEISSNER Senior Vige President and February 22, 2016
Laurel Meissner Global Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 12.1

Aon ple and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Combined With Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Years Ended December 31,

(aillions cxcept ratia} 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Ingome from gontinuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling interests $ 168 % 1,765 % 1,538 § 1380 § 1388
Less: Equity in earnings on less than 50% owned entities 13 12 20 13 7
Add back fixed charges: : G L e R T T
Interest on indebtedness ' ' 273 255 210 28 U5
 nterest on incertain [a;( posmons . - | . :. e L . | .J | | __, o 4 5 o
Portwn of rents reprcsentatwe of i mterest factor ‘ . _ _ ' . 45 50 52
ncome as adjusted’ BRI R IR A ¥ 1994 ¥ 2062 § 1785 F 1,642$ 1681
Fixed charges:
Interest on indebtedness o o RE o R 1 Sl i S 255§ 21§ : 228$
Interest on uncertain tax pasmons — 4 5 -3 R
Portion of rents representative of interest factor ' R 45 B N . )
Total fixed charges $ 318 % 309 0§ 267§ 275 % 300
Ratio of earnings to fixed cﬁarges _ _ - 6.3 A R A T 56




Aon ple - Worldwide Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Name Country State/Province
Aon Angola Corretores de Segums Limitada Angola
Admtseg SA _ ] . ’ Argentina
Aon Affinity Argentina S.A. Argentina
Aan Assist Ar:genti'ﬁ'_a A Argentina
Aorn Benfield Argehtina S.A. Argentina
Aor Consuttmé Argentina S.A. _ Argenting
Aon Risk Services Argentina 8.A. Argeﬁtina
AsousiArgentin A, - v Argentina
Hewitt Associates, 8. A Argenﬂna
Marmaro Dundas S A Argenting-
SNReSA. Argentin.a
Swire Blanch MSTCIT 84 * Argeitina.
Swire B]anch MSTC SA Argéntina
Aon Aruba N V, s - Aruba
Aon Captwe Serwces Aruba N.V. Asuia
Aon Austrahan Holdco 1 Pty Ltd - Australia
Aon Austrahan Holdee 2 Pty Ltd Australia
“Aon Benf e!d Australia Limited Aiis‘tral‘ia' o
Aon Charitable Foundation Pty Ltd Australia
Aon Corporatlon Austraha Liiited Austratia
Aon Hewitt Financial Advice lelted Australia
Aon Bewitt Limited . Australia
Aon Holdings Australia Pty Limited Australia
Aon Prdduét Design & Dcveldpmenf Australia Pty Limited Austtalia
Aon Risk Semces Australla Lim lted Australia
Aon Serwces Pty Ltd. " Anstralia :
Aon Superannuatlon Pty le ited Australia
I-Iewitt Assamates Py Ltd Ausiralia.
HIA Insurance Services Pty Ltd. Australia
McDon'a'l'd & Company (Austraiasaa} Pty T - Australia '
One Underwrmng {AKA Freeman McMurrick Pty Ltd) Australia
Aon Austrla Verslcherungsmakler GmbH Austria
Aon Benﬂeld Ruckverslcherungsmakler GmbH Austria
Aon Hewltt GmbH ’ Ausiria
Aon E—loldmgs Ausma GmbH Austria
Aon: .Iauch & Hubener GmibH : - Ausiria-
Insurance Company of the Bahamns Lunlted Bahamas
5 8.1 ohitison & Cnmpany Limited " Bahamas
Aon Bahram W.LL. Bahrain
"Aon- lnsurance Managers (Barbadds) Ltd Barbados
Agenion N.V./SA Belgium
#onBelgium B,V BA. Belgium
Crion NV . Belgium
Piobabilitas .V./8A -Belgiun

e Bermuda

Anchor Underwriting Managers Ltd.




Jurisdiction of Incorporation ar Organization

Aon(Bermuda) Ltd,

Aon Benfield Group Limited

Aon Bermuda Holding Company Limited

Aon Bermuda QI Holdings Ltd,

Aon Delta Bermuda Ltd.

Aon Group (Bermuda) Ltd.

Acon Hewitt (Bermuda) Lid.

Aon Insurance Managérs (Bermuda) Lid

Aeon Underwriting Manaéers (Bermuda) Ltd.

Benfield Investment Holdings Limited

Benfleld Juniperus Holdings Limited

International Risk Management Group Ltd

White Rock Insurance (Americas) Ltd

White Rock Insurance (SAC) Lid.

Aon Bolivia 8.A. Corredores de Seguros

Aon Consulting Bolivia S.R.L.

Aon Re Bolivia 8.A. Corredores de Réas_e'g'uros

Aon Botswana (Pty) Ltd.

Aon Holdings BotsWana'(Pty) Ltd

Aon Risk Management (Pty} Ltd

Glenrand MIT Botswana (Ptyy Lid

Vassal Properties (Pty) Ltd.

Aon Affinity Administradora de Beneficios Ltda. e
Aon Affinity do Brasil Servicos o Corretora de Seguros Lida, .
Aon Affinity Servicos e Participagoes Lida. _ A
Aon Benfield Brasil Corretora de Resseguros Lila.

Aon Holdings Corretares de Seguros Lida,

Associagiio Instituto Aon

Benfield do Brasil Participacoes Lida. (dormant}

Hewitt Associates Administradora e Correlora de Seguros Ltda.

Hewitt Associates Servicos de Reeursos Humanos Etda, C
Aon Bulgaria Ltd. .
Aon Business Consulting Lid.

Andes Global Ltd.

Aon Group Limited

682465 Canada Ltd.

7193599 Canadalne. L
Alexander & Alexander Services Canada Inc.
Aon Benfield Canada ULC ' '
Aon Canada Holdings N.S, ULC

Aon Canada Inc, :

Aon Canada Intermediaries GP

Aon Diract Group Ine,

Aon Finance Canada 1 Corp.

Acon Finance Canada 2 Corp,

Aot Finance Canada 3 Corporation

Aon Finance Canada 4 Corporation.

Aon Finance N.&. 1, ULC

Aon Finance N.S. 2,ULC

L 'Botsw:sin_a"“' .
“Brazil

Bzl

- Brail

© Caneds - .

Bgmuda */
Bermuda

" Bermuda

Bermuda
Bermuda
Bermuda
Betmuda:
Bermuda
Bermudd
Bermuda

Bermuda

“Hermuda

Bermuda

" ‘Bolivig

Bolivia

Baivia

Botswana

: H‘_ﬁl‘;ﬁwana )

Botswana

Botswana

Brazil

Brazil

 Buudl-

Brazil

Brazil

' B;‘azii” .

Bulgaria

" Bulgaris

BVI

. BVI .

Canada
Canada
Canada

Cﬂl‘lad'ﬁi : ,:
Canada

Canada - '
Canada
Canada
Caﬁada

- Cari-t_ald‘a: g

Canada

" Cangda .

Canada




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Aun Finance N.8, 3, ULC

Aon Finance N.§, 4, ULG

Aon Finance N.S. 3, ULC

Ao Finco N S 20 12-1, ULE

Aon Fineo N.§, 2012-2, ULC

Aon _Fi'fe -i’rolept-ien Enéincgri'ng’-chorpm_‘ation_ o
Aon Hewitt Inc,

Aon Hewitt Tnvestrivent Managethent Ic.

Aon Pﬁrizeau [ne.

Aon Reed Stenhouse Ine,

'Aon Risk Serv:ces Canada Ing.

Aon Securities Investment Management Inc
Cales Hewitt Parmershlp _
Dominion Mutual Insurance Brokers Lid.
G;d_gpc-CdnSéiié,Aén Fe.

Hewitf Amaleo 1 ULC

Hewntt Amalco 2. ULC.V ;

Hewitt Amalco 3 ULC

Hewitt Amalco 4 ULC.

Hewitt Amalco 5 ULC

‘Hewitt- Associates Gdrporafi'on

Hewm Associates Partniership

'HBwttt Hoidmgs Canacta Company

Hewitt Maz;agement Ltd.

‘Hewitt Wes't'ém—fMan'agemenf Amalco Inc.
1A0 Actuarial Consultmg Services Canada Inc
T, Kllan Brown Consult&nts Inc.

K&K Insurance Brokers, [ne. Canada

L'inx Ujldérﬁritiﬁg-So[utibﬁé g,

M.A, Shakeel Management Ltd Amalco
Mmet Inc . .

Risk Management Consultants of Canada lelted
USLP Underwrmng Soluticms LP _

Aon Insurance Managers (Cayman} Ltd. 7
Abn Risk Solutions (Caymany L.~ -
Aoh Affinity Chile Ltda.

'Abti' Kﬁdi’iéﬁa'ﬁilﬁf&bﬂédar&s e Seguroy S A,

Aon Benfield {Chlle) Corredores de Reaseguros Ltda o

‘Aon Consultmg {Chl]&’) Limitadsa
Aon Risk Services (Chile) S.A.
Aun Rlsk Servtces Holdmgs (Chlle )Ltda L

Asevasa Chile Peritaciones e Ingenieria de Rlesgos S A.

Benfield Con'edores dé Reasepuro Lida.

Excess Corredores de Reaseguros SA
.Inversmnes Benf eld Chile Ltda. . '

Nikols Chlle SA

Aot Hewitt Consiitting (Shanghai) Co. Lid,
Aon-COFCQ Ihsurance Brokers Co., Lid.

Aot Aﬁim&y Cammbm Lida, Ag@m:m dé Ssguros

Canada
C_anéda
Canada
Casadd
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada ]
Ca.nada
Canada’
Canada

-Canada'

Cana&a

Canada

Canada

Canatle

Canada

) Canada

Canada
Canada
Canada

-Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada
Ca_anada

Canada

 Conada

Canada

Canada _
Cayman [slands
Cayman Islands -
Chile

" -Chils

Chile

- Chile

Chile

" Chile

Chile
Chiie
Chile

- Chile

Chile

- China .

China

Colombis




Jurisdiction of Incorperation or Organization

Aon Benfield Colombia Limitada Corredores de Reaseguros

Aon Risk Services Colombia SA Com:dores de Seguros - o

Salud, Riesgos y Recursos Humanos Consu]tores Lida. (former Aon Corporte Adwsors Ltda)
Tecsefin, 8.4, en liquidacion :

Aon Business Consultancy Ltd.

Aon Insurance Brokerage Lid,

Alexander lnsurance Managers (Nethertands Ant ]]es) N V

Aon Antillen N.V. ]

Aon Captive Services Antillcs N.V.
Aon-Holdings Antillen N.V.

Aon Insurance Managers (Antilles) N.V.

Awon Cyprus Insurance Broker Company Limited '

Aon Hewitt (Cyprus) Limited

Aon Central and Eastern Europe a.s.

Aon Denmark A/S

Aon Denmark Insurance Services A/S

Aon Private Consulting A/S

Optica A/S

Optica Insurance Agency AlS

Alkaoasesores Cia. Ltda.

Ao Consulting Ecuador 8.A. o _
Aon Risk Services Eeuador S.A, Agehcia Asesora Productora de Seguros .
Tecsefin Salvador (dormant) L
Riskikonsultaisioonid OU

Aon (Fiji} Ltd.

Aon Finland Qy

Aon Monia Oy

Aon France SAS

Aon Holdings France SNC

Hewitt Associates SAS

Intefuational Space Brokers France 8A
Kloud Sa.rl.

Aon Beteiligungsmanagement Deutschland GmBbH &_Cu KG _

Aon Credit lﬁtcrnational Insurance Broker GmbH

Aon Deutsehland Betefligungs GmbH )

Aon Hewitt GmbH

Aon Hewitt Trust Solutions GmbH

Aon Holding Deutschland GmbH

Aon Pensions Insurance Brokers GmbF

Aon Risiko & Versicherungsberatungs GmbH

Aon Versicherungsagentur Deutschland GmbH

Acn Versichernungsmakler Deutschland GmbH

Hemburger Gesellschaf} zur Forderung des Versicherungswes'ens mbI
Motor Versicherungsmakler GmbH

PRORICK Ruckversicherungs Aktiengesellschaft

UNIT Versicherungsmakler GmbH

WACUS Delkredere Management GmbH -

Aon Insurance Managers Gibraltar Lid,

Croatia_~
| Gumcao

) Curacao SIS

" Denmark. . .

 Germany -

. Germany

Colombia

_ Colombia

Colombia

Colombia -

Croatia

Curacao
Curacao

Curacao

" Cyprus

Cyprus
Czech Rep.
Dénmark
Denmark
Benmark -
Denmark

Ecuvador

Ecuador

© ElSalvador

Estonia
Fji
Finland
Finland
France
F;ﬁﬁcq. -
France
France
France

- Germany

Germany

- Grermany

Germany
.Germény .
Germatly
Germany

Germany
Germany
Germany

. Genntiny‘ :

Germany

Gibraltar




Jurisdictien of Incorporation or Organization

White Rock Tnsurance (Gibrelfar) Lid
Ach Greece S5.A.

Aon Hewitt S.4, _
Agostini Insurance Brokers Grenada Litd,
Aby Insurance Mictonesia (Guam) Inc
Tecsefin Guatemsla

Aon Insufance 'Managers‘ Gugrnsey) Lid,
Aon Insurance Managers (Holdmgs) Ltd.
_Aon PM1 intematlonal Limited -

Aon Services (Guernsey} Ltd

meolnshlre Insurance Cc;mpa.ny PeC Lln‘Ilfed

Lombard Trustee Company Limited
White Rock tnsurance (Guernisey) ICC Litnited
White Rock Insurance Company PCC Ltd.

Aon (CR} Insurance Agencles Company Lmuted

Aon Agenctes Hong Kong Limited

Aon Assuranoe Agencies Hong Kong Limited

Aon Benfleld China Limited

Ann Chevaller Rlsk Managcmem Hnng Kong lelted

Aon Entﬁrprlse Insurance Agenmes Hong K(mg lelted
Aon Hewitt Hoitg Kong Limited’

Aun Holdings Hong Kong Limited

Aun Hong Kong lelted

Aon Insurance Agenc1es (HK) L:mlted

Aun Insurance Management Agencies (HK) Lmnted -
Aon Insurance Underwriting Agenc;es Hong Kong lelted

Aon Life lnsu_rance Agencies (HK) Eimited (in Ilqu_ldatl_nn) :

Aon Product Risk Services Hong Kong Limited
‘Aon Sedurities (Hong Kong) Limited

Aon Services Hong Kong Limited

Aon Underwrmng Apencies (HK) lelted
Asian Remsurance Underwriters Limited
Cuntmgency Insurance Hrokers Linvited

Essar Insurance Sarwces L1m ited

EW B[anch Lumted

Aon Hungary Insurance Brokers Risk and Human Consultmg LLC

'Aon Absence Management India Private leited :
Aon Consu[tlng Private Limited

:Aon ‘Global Insurance B’rtrfcm?rlvate Eirndted
Aon RPO lndla Private Limited

'Arsn Servioes ’Indfa Private lelt@d

Aon Speclﬂllst Services Private Limited

Enms Knupp & Assuuates India Prwate Limitc(i -
Hewitt Human Resource Services Limited

Hew1tt Outsourcmg Ser\nces Trickir L:lmted

PT Aon Benfield Indonesia

_PTAonHew:ttIndonesna X S e

PT Aon Indonesia

‘Gibraltar

Greece

Gteece

Grenada

Guam (Micronesin)
Guatemala
Gu_eznéfs_y
Guernsey

- Guerhsey

Guernsey
Guem'séy '
Guemsey
Guemsey
Guemnsey
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Konp
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Koeng
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Heng Kang
Hong Xong
Heng Kong .
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Héng Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Heng Kong
Hong Kong
Hungary

" India

India

India
[ndla -
[ndia
India
India

India

Indonesia

Indbnesia

Indonesia




Aon Broking Techiology Limited

Aon Centre for Innovation and Analytics Ltd
Aon Commercial Services and Operations Ireland Limited
Aon Global Risk Research Limited

Aan Hewitt (Ireland) Limited

Aon Insurance Managers (Dublin) Ltd.

Aon Insurance Managers (Shannon) Limited

Acon Investment Holdings Ireland Limited

Aan MacDonagh Boland Group Ltd

Bacon & Woodrow Partnerships (Ireland) Limited
Beaubien Financs Ireland Linited B
Becketts (Trustees) Limited

Becketts Limited S

Beech Hill Pension Trustees Ltd

Benton Finance Iretand Limited

Delany Bacon & Woodrow Partnership
InsureForSure Lid, )
MacDonagh Boland Crotty MacRedmond Litd
Private Clignt Trustees Ltd, '
Randolph Finance Limited

Aon Risk Servicas (NT) Limited

Aon (Isle of Man) Limited

Aon Comorate Services (Isle of Man) Limited
Aon Holdings (Tsle of Man) Limited: '

Aon Insurance Managers (Isle of Man) Ltd,

White Rock Insurance PCC (Isle of Tian) Lim_ited

Aminim International Underwriters of Insurance Agencies (1990) Ltd.

Aon Benfield Tstael Limited

Aon Holdings Israef Ltd.

Aon Israel Insurance Brokerage Lid.

Delek Motots Insurance Agency (2003) Lud

I. Beek Incurance Ageney (1994) Lid.

National Insurance Office Lid,

Ronnie Elementary Insurance Agency Lid

Aon Benfield [talia Sp.A.

Aon Hewitt Risk & Cons(llti'ng S..r.I.

Aon ltalia S.r.1.

Aon Re Trust Broker S.r.l.

Aon S.p.A. Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers

Asscom Insurance Brokers S.rl. 7
Praesidium S.p.A. - Soluzioni Assicurative per il Management
1S Underwriting Solutions S.r.l. ' ' .
Aon Benfield Japan Ltd

Aon Hewitt Japan Ltd.

Aon Holdings Japan Ltd

Aon Japan Ltd

Y's Insurance Inc

Aon Consulting Kazakhstan LLP

Insurance Broker Aon Kazakhstan LLP

lreland

: ii‘claﬁ& s

Imlanﬁ S B

lorael < b

- aly

Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Ireland
Treland -
Ireland
Irelan_d :
Ireland
Ireland .
Ireland

: firﬁ’la_nél': e

Ireland _
Iral'ﬁnd

Ireland

“Troland.

Ireland
Trelang
Ireland

Ireland

Ireland

. Troknd (Northersy” "+

Isle of Man
Isle of Man
Istoof Man
Isle of Man
Isle of Man
Israel

Istael .
Israet

Israel

Israel
biel, < 1
Italy

Italy

ltaly

Iialy -
Ttaly

Japan
Tapan

Japan

Japan .

Japan
Kazakhsten
Kazakhstan

i




Jurisdiction of Incorperation or Organization

Aon Congfting Lid. -~~~

Aon Kenya Insurance Brokers Ltd

Mlnl&en- Properties Lid;

Aon Hewitt Consulting Korea Ing,

AonKoreaIng

SIA "Aon Consultmg"

Am Lcsefha (Pty)'l-«mi

Aon Insurance Managcrs {Lwchtenstem) AG
UADBBAonBaltlc LT T EE

Aon Finance Luxembaurg Sar l

Aonﬂleba.l Rmfk Lonsulting Luxenibourg $.4.1.1.

Aon Holdings Luxembourg S.a.rl.

Aon Insurange Managers (Luxenibourgy 8.4,

Aon Re Canada Hol.d-ings -SARL o

Puncelh & Ghezz: ]ntematsunal SA

Aon Insurance Agenmes (Macau) lelted

Aon Mala\m lened

Aon Benf’ eld Malayma lelted

Aon: Hawut Malaysla Sidn, Bhd

Aon [nsurance Brokers (Mal aysta) Sdn Bhd

Aon Insurance Managers(Mahal Boe tu_mlt_a'd AR
Aon Servwes (Malta) Litd - -

Whlte Rnck Insurarice’ (Eumpe) PCC Limited ¥
Whlte Rock lnsurance (Netherlauds) PCC Lumted
Acm Hcmlt Ltd : o
Aon Mauritius Holdmgs Ltd.

Glenrand MIB (Mauritius) (Pte) Ltd

Anr-i Afﬁ'm‘ty Mexicd Agente de Segurbs y de Fianzas, $.A. de C.V.

Aon Affinity Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

Ao Benfield Mexlco Intermadiario de Reasegiro SA de cv
Aon Lite, Agente de Seguros, S.A. de C.V,

Aon -México-BusinéSs Suppérﬁ 84 de CV

Aon Mexico Holdings, 8. de RL.de C.V.

Aot Risk Solutioty Agente de Seguros y de Ftanzas Bade CV
Asevasa Mexico, 5.A. de C.V.

Hewm Assoc;ates 8C. ‘ :

Hewitt Benefi clos Ageme de Seguros y de Fianzas, S. A de C V
Aoir Acore Sarl - ‘ el : :
Casabianca Intermedlatmn Company Sarl

AAon Mm;amblque Borretoreﬁe Segums, Ltnn‘tada

Glenrand M 1B (Mor;ambtquc) Corretcares de Seguros leltada
Aon Namlbla (Pty) i

Namibia Admlmstratmn Fulﬁllment Company (PtY) lelted
Alexander & Alexander B V L

Alexander & Alexander Holding B.V.

Aun 2008 B.V,

Aon Americas Holdmgs BV

Aon B: V L

Aon Benﬂeld Nether]ands c. V

Kenya
Keny-a
Kenya
Korea
Korea -

Latvia

' _ Lasutl‘le

Liechtenstein
Lithuania

Luxembourg
Luqéemb‘our-g

Luxembourg

. Luxembourg

Luxembourg
Luxembourg.
Magcau

- Malawi
Malaysia
- Malaysia

Malaysia

-Malta

Malta
Malta
Malta
Mauritivs
Mauritius
Mauritius
Mextca--
Mexico
Mexice
Mexico
Mexico-
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico

Mexico

Mexico

. Morocco

Morocco

Mozambique

-.- Nantibis -

Namibia
Netherlands
Netherlands

“Nethettands

Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands




Jurisdiction of [ncorporahon or Orgnmzatlon

Aon CANZ Holdmgs BV :
Aon Captive Services (Nederland) B. V
Aon Cash Management B.V.

Aan Consulting Nederland C.V.

Aon Carporation EMEA BV,

Aon Finance Netherlands B.V.

Aon Global Holdings 1 C.V.

Aon Global Holdings 2 CV.

Aon Global Risk Consulting B, V.

Aon Groep Nederland BV,

Aon Group Holdings International [ B.V,
Aon Group Holdings International 2 B.V.
Aot Group Infernationdt NV~ ;
Aon Howitt Risk & Financial Management B v.
Aon Haldings B. v,

Aon Holdings International B.V.

Aon Holdings Mid Eurbpe BV, )
Aon International Cobperatief U.A,

Aon Nederland C. V. ‘

Aon Netherlands Operations B.V.

Aon Nikols Chile BV,

Aon Participations BV,

Aon Restructuring BV,

Aon Risk Services EMEA BV,

Aon Southern Burepe BY,

Aon Trust Services B.V. o
B.V. Assuraniickantoor Léngcve]'dt-Schfuder :
Bekouw Mendes C.V.
‘Beursstrant 1A B.V:

Bonnikeplein 18-22 B.V.

Celinvest Amsterdam B.V.

COT Instituut voor Veitigheids-en Crisismanagement BY.

De Admiraal B.V.

Dorhout Mees Assurantien B.V.

Hewilt Associates B.V.

Hewitt Associates Oufsourcing BV,

lacobs & Brom BV,

Kerkenbos 1061 B.V.

Paalbergweg 2-4 BV,

Acon Benfield New Zealand Limited

Aon Holdings New Zealand

Aon New Zealand

Aon New Zealand Group

Aon Saver Limited :
Superannuation Management Nominees Limited
Aon Norway AS - )
Aon Majan LLC

Aon Insurance Brokers (Pvt) [4d,

Aon Benfield Panama, S.A.

: Netherlands -

- Netherlands: <10

_ Netherlands B

e Netherlands'-- '

Netherlands
Nethtlanids
Netherlands

* “Netherlands

Netherlands

Nithorlands ‘

Netherlands

Netherlands

Netherlands

'-Nﬂthefiands:_:j‘.;' o

Netherlands
Netherlands =
Netherlands
Netharlands] R
Netherlands

- Netherlands

Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands

© Netherends

Netherlands

- Nefhetlandy:

Netherlapds

" Wetherlands

Netherlands

_ Neiherlands £

Nethcrlands
Netherlands

Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
MNetherlands
Metherlands

o Netharla_nds :

Netherlands

_:New Zealand

New Zealand

New Zea]and

New Zealand

- NewZedland

New Zealand
Norway
Oman

"% Pakistan 7.

Panama




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

MonBrokngSemesA L . Peams
Tecsefin Centroﬁmerica; S.A. ' . . Panama
Ann-Benﬁsld Peru Corradotos de Rcas.égums:SA S e ' Peru

Aon Grafla Peru Corredorés de Seguros SA . Peru
Grafta Asoeludos Seluéiones,SAQ T : o . Pem

Aon Insurance and Remsurance Brokers Phll:ppmes Inc. Philippines
Aoh Hewitt PNGYEM, 0 T B .. PNG

Aon Risk Services {PNG) Ltd. PNG

Avh Supéiaiustion PNG) Limited . - .o B o PNA

Aon Hevﬁtt Sp. z 0.0, Poland
ApnPolska Services Spwoa L oo Lo , . “Poland
Aon Polska Services Sp Z0.0. Potand
AonPo]skaSp 200 7 o S _' ' o .. Poland
Aon Palska 8p. z 0.0, - Poland
.Carstens 1Scht1es E’olaud Sp. zoo S TR o o : " . Poland
Aon Motor Gestao E Consultoria de Frotas Umpessaol Ltda Portugal

-Cnnsultures Umpessoai Lda AR A ’ S . - Portugal -

Aon Portugal Corretores de. Seguros, S.A. Portugal

_Aon Re Bertofdx Corretagem de Resseguros SA. : . R _' o Y Pertugal

‘Aon Qatar LLC o . . Qatar

"Asesores y ﬁpfﬁederés de Segurog sA : o - ] " Rep. Dominica
Aon Romania Breker de Asigurare - Reasigurare S-RL . Romania
Business RiﬁkColmultanrs-tBrisk)'S.R';L'. ' : . Romania

Aon Rﬁs Insurance Brokers LLC Russia

Aon’ Rus LLC 2 L ST L . _ Russia.
Agostml Insurance Brokers St. Luc1a Ltd 7 7 7 Saint Lucia
__Aon Smt MaartenN V L ‘_ " ' ,- e ) o 7 - Boini Martin
Aon [nsurance Micronesia (Salpan) Inc . . Saipan (Micmnesi.a)
Aon Hewztk.Saudl Arabla LLC .. e I : SR ... - Suudi Arabia
Aon Saudi Arabia LLC o o . Saudi Arabia
Atexander & Alexandér {As;a) Holdings Pig Litd o e A o L : Sirg'gapom-

Aon Benfield Asia Pte. Lid. - 7 Singapore
.Aun-_He@fii‘t 5‘¥ﬁgﬁj}dr¢ pte, Ltd. L S T ' - . Singapore
Aon Hewitt Wealth Managément Pte, Ltd. Singapore

Aot Insurance Agencies Pte Ltd Singapore

Aun Insurance Mmagers (Smgapore) Prelid . . o ) = : K .Singaponé; .

Aon Singapore (Broking Centre) Pte. Lid. . . Singapore

Aon Smgapore Center for Irmovatlon Stmtegy and Management Ple. d B o . . Singapors

Aon Smgapore Pte. Ltd. . Singapore
'Stenhouse (South East Aéi‘a) anate le i) e e “‘S’in’gapére ’
Aon Benfield Bratislava s.r.0, Slovak Repubhc
A6n Consulting Soush Africa (Pty) Lad "~ o Lo S SouthAftica
Aon Holdmgs Sub-Sahara Afrlca (Pty) Ltd . . South Africa
Ao’ lepopo (Pty) Lad: : L ol R e South Aftica
Aon Re Africa (Pty) Limited N .  South Afnca
AonSowhAfriea Py)Ltd. D . SouthAfrica
Aon Worldaware (Ply) Lid. S ' South Africa
Claims Fulfilént Company (P)Lid. .-~~~ .o’ So .0 o SowhAfrica

Cyborg Systems (Africa) Pty Ltd. South Africa




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Mafube Risk and Insurance Consultants (Py) Led. -~ - = UL Seuth Afrlea e o

TM Insurance Brokers (Pty) Lid. South Africa

Aon Benfield Iberig Correduria de Reasegurus,.S.A‘U. : : -$;')ain o

Acon Cover Agencia de Suscripcion, S.L.U. * Spain

Aon Gil y Carvejal, $.A.U. Correduria de Seguros o R R L Spéi}_l - 7
Aon Hewitt Espafia S.A.U. . ' Spain

Aon Management Solutions, 8.A.1L o L R -, Bpain e

Aaon Marketing Directo, S.AU. Spain

Aon Re Iberia Cover Holder, 5.L. ) o . _ ' - Spain.

Aon Southern Europe v Cia SC Spain

Aon Southern Holding Spain, 8.L. B ol Spain -

Asevasa Asesoramiente y Valoraciones S.A U, Spain

Caontrol de Riesgos, 8.L. ) c Lo o : o 7 : Spa‘m’i»_' -

Fundacién Aon Espafia Spain

Aon Swaziland (Pty) Ltd : ‘ T R Swaziland - ™

Aon Glabal Risk Consulting AB Sweden

Aon Hewitt AB - o _ . B ©Sweden’

Aon Sweden AB Sweden

SINSER Holding AB . . S Y S e
Aon Insurance Managers (Switzerland) AG Switzerland 7

Aon Schweiz AG : DR - '_ _ o Switgerland

Inpoint Switzerland GmbH Switzerland

Aon Management Consulting Taiwan Lid, o ' Teiwdn

Aon Taiwan Ltd. Taiwan

Aaon Tanzania Limited - s ' o ' o Tanzania

Aon (Thailand) Limited Thailand

Aon Consulting (Fhailand) Limited = S i * . Theiland

Aon Group (Thailand) Limited Thailand

Aon Howitt (Thailand) Lid. o o _  “Thaitand

Aon Re (Thailand) Limited ' Thailand

Aon Risk Services (Thailand) Limited o E . ' e S ___Thailand_'__f_;_ R

AB Insurances Ltd. Co. Trinidad and Tobago

Agostini Insurance Brokers Lid, - SR B .. Frinidad and Fobago .
AIB Services Limited : . Trinidad and Tobago

Aon Energy Caribbean Limited : _ SR _ " Trinidad and Tobago

Cardea Health Solutions Limited . Trinidad and Tobago

Aon Tunisia So.car.gest 8.A., Société Anonyme de Conseil en Assurances et Réassurances et de Gestion - Tunisia CE

Aon Danismanlik Hizmetleri AS Turkey

Aon Sigorta ve Reasurans Brokerligi ve A.S. Turkey

1,5. Johnsen & Company (Turks & Caicos) Lid. * _ _ o ) - 'T.t-lr:i't_?}:-&'.taibm_ h .
Aon Uganda Limited Uganda

Aloxander & Aloxander Sorvicos UK Limited (in liquidationy -~~~ - S pRs

Alexander Clay . UK

Alexander Stenhouse & Partners Limited (i liquidation) - e UK ' g

Aon 120412 Limited (in liquidation) ' ' UK

Aon 2007 Limited (in liquidation) . . . - B o ST TR - =
Aon Adjudication Services Limited UK

Aen ANZ Holdings Limited N _ S R UK




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Qrganization

Aon Benfield Limited

Aon. Ccmstﬂtmg (Beneﬁts) I:Imdmgu imited
Aon Consulting (Benefits) Limited

Aon Consulting (Pensions) Limited -

Aon Consu{tmg Financial Services Lm‘uted
“Aon Consuitmg lelted

Aon DC Pension Trustee le lted

Aon De!ta UK lelted

Aon Figcal Representatlves Lumted

Aon Giobal Holdmgs lelted '

Aon Global Operatlons Lumted

Aon Hewitt lelte.d

Aon Hewitt US Hold:ngs L1m1ted

Acm Hutdings Lmuted ) o
Aon Holdings UK (m Ilqurdatlon)

‘Ao Kloud Limited T

Aon Overseas Holdmgs lelted R

Aon Pensxon Trustees leited

Aon Rlsk Services UK lelted {m hqmdatlon)

Aon R]Sk Serv1ces US Ho!dmgs lelted
Aon Sccurmes Limited

Aon SIPP Trustees Lumted (i llqmdatmn}
Aon Trust Corporatlen Limited

-Aon UK Groyp Limited

Aon UK i—Iuldmgs Intermedlanes lelted
Aon UK lelted R

Aon UK Trustees le:ted

Aon US & Intematlenal Holdings Lamﬁed
Bacon & Woodrow Eimited

E‘adqﬁ-é quﬁdfoi"'@f Partierships Limited
Bain Hogg Group Limited (in liquidation)
Bankasﬁ_uf_é In'surance"Sewice“é;L‘in‘_lifed
Beaubien Finance Limited

Beaﬁbien UK 'Fiﬂ%imc; I;im?i'ted o
Benfield Grelg Holdings Limited

Benﬁeld Group Lmnted (m hquldatlon)
Benton Finance L1mlted

CoBec 2@@0 Lumted

Crawley Warren Group lelted (in llquldatlon)

Doveland Servnces%mmed R tatir

E. W, Blanch Holdmgs Limited
E. W. Blanch Investments L;m:ted

Hewitt Assoctates (Europe) Limited (m llqmdatmn)
Hew1tt Associates Financial Services lelted (in hquldatlon)

Hewitt Assnclates Outsou:cmg leited

Hewitt Risk Management Serwces L:mlted
Hogg Group Lmuted o o
International S pace Brokere Europe lelted

'lntematlonat Space Bmkers Limued

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK.
UK

- UK

UK
UK. -




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Tenner Fenwon Slade Limited

Leslie & Godwin (UK) Limited (in liquidation)
McLagan (Aon) Limited

Minet Conaultancy Services Ltd

Minet Group '

NBS Nominees Limited

Nicholson Leslie Investments Limited (in liquidation)
Randelph Finance Limited '
Rasini Vigano Limited

Ringley Investments Limited

Scorpio Partnership Limited

SLE Worldwide Limited-

The Aon MasterTrustee Limited

Aon Ukraine LLC

Aon {DIFCY Guif LLC

Aon Hewitt Middle Bast Limited .

Aon Middle East Co LLC

Aon Benfield Middle East Limited

Aon Benfield Latin America SA

Asevasa Caricam, 8.A.

Asevasa Panamag, S.A,

Marinare Dundas SA

Access Plans USA, Inc.

Adftinity Insurance Services, Ine.

AIS Affinity Insurance Agency, Inc.

AIS Insurance Agetey, .Inc.,- ]

Alexander Reinsurance Intermediaries, Inc.

Allen Insurance Associates, Ine,

Alliance HealthCard of Florida, Inc,

Alliance HealthCard, Inc.

Allied Group Holdings LLC

Allied North Amerfoa _Insufancel Brokerage of _Cah’forﬁia, LLC
Allied North America Insurance Brokerage of New Yoric, LLC
Adllied Notth America Tnsuranee Brokerage of T’e’xas:, LLG
Allied Risk Solutions, LL.C

Amsrican Tnsuranes Services Corp: -

American Safety Consultants, LLC

American Special Risk Insurance Cdmpany

AMXH, LLL.C

Aon Advisors, Inc,

Aon Advisory Services Inc.

Aon Aviation, Inc.

Aon Benefit Solutions Inc.

Aon Benfield Fae Inc.

Aoy Benfield Global, Inc.

Aon Benfield Inc.

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK -

EEEEEY

Ukraine
United Arab Emirates
United Arab Emirates
United Arab Emirates
Uﬁ'j’fcd‘ Arab Emirates -
DIEC - . :
Uruguay

' Uruguay -

Uruguay )

USA

SusA

UsA
USA:
USA

UsA -

USA
USA
USA
USA.
USA

CUSA T

USA

USA

USK.

USA
USA,
USA

- USA-

UsA
USA .
UsA

USA

- Californi

Okiahoma

o '__P:_e_hnsylya'ﬁié_

California

New York

Georgia

Delaware
Delaware, ..

Delaware

‘Delaware -

Delaware

" Texas

Delaware

T Delawate 0 s

Delaware

Wiginlg e ot

Delaware
Tllingls ., 0,
Oklahoma

Mfinois -

Delaware

. Hlinois - "




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Aon Benfield Puerto Rico Inc.

Aon Brazil Holdings, L1.C

Aon Capital Manégeré LLC

Aon Capital Parmers, Inc.

Aon Chlle Holdmgs LDG

Aon Consultmg & Insurance Services

Ao C.‘onsultmg Wor{dwrde, Tnc,

Aon Consultmg, Inc. .

Aon Consult'ng, lnc

Aen Corporation

Aon Fisanee US 1, LLC

Aon Finance US 2, LLC

Aon Finanéé-US 3 LLC

Aon Finance US LP

Aon Fmancml % Insurance Sﬂlutmns inc.
Aon Fire Protection Engineering Corporatlon
Aon F ire Prutectmn Engmeeﬂng m“ Hlinois.P, C..
Aon Global Market Solutions, 1nc

Aoni Group Inc R e

Aon Hewitt Benefit Payment Serwces, LLC
'Aon Hewnt Fmanclal Adv1sors* LLEG

Aon Hewm [—lealth Market Insurance Solutlons Ing,
_Aon Hatht Iﬂtel:medzanea ne.

Aon Hewitt Investment Consultmg, Inc

Aon Hewm LLC £ ’

Aon Human Capltal Servmes LLC

Aon_lnsura_nce Management Services - Vifgin' Isla!_ids, e, -

Aon [nsurance Managers {Puerto Rico) Ine.

Aon Insurance Managers I(USA') Inc,

Aon Insurance Managers (USVI) Inc.

Kot Iniernatmnai Energy, Inc.:

Aon Intemaﬂonal Holdmgs Inc o

Aot sze Agency of Texas; The.

Aon Life Insurance Company

'Aon Mexlco Holdlngs LLC

Aon Natlonal Flood Serwces Ine.

A0 NFS ITdldings, o, © " .

Aon PHI Acqumtion Corporatlon of Cahfurma '
Aot Premmm Finance, LLC". o

Aon Private Risk Management Insurance Agency, lnc

“Aon Private Risk Managemment of Catifornie Insurance Ageney, Ine, -

Aon Property Risk Consultlng, Enc.

“Aon Réalty Scmlces, Ing..

Aon Recovery, Inc.,

AcnRetirement Plan Advisors, 1LC

Aon Risk Consultants, Inc,

:Acm Rtsk Insurance Serwces West Ing, "

Aon Risk Services (I-[oldmgs) of Latin Amenca Ine.
Aoq RJsk _S_grv;ccs_-(Ho_!d_mgs) of the A_mencas, Ine.

UsA
uUsA
Usa
UsA
UsA
UsA
USA
USA

USA

USA
U3A
USA
USA
USA

uUsa

USA
USA
USA

USA

Usa
USA
USA
USA
USA

USA 7

UsA
USA
USA
USA
USA
LSA
USA

L USA

Usa
Usa
Usa

USA

USA

- USA

USA

USA -
USA

USA
USA

SUSA

UsA

UEA

SA

UsA

Puerto Rivo
Delaware
Drelaware
Deiaware
Delaiware
Cali fornia
Mawl.ah'c:l
New Yotk

" New Jersey

Delaware

‘Delaware

Delaware
Diglaware -
Delaware
Califortia
Delaware
Hlinois
Indiana
Maryland
Hlinois
Delaware
Catifornia
Deléwaré .

[lineis

" Delavare

Delaware
US Virgin Tstands
Puerto Rico

. Vermont

US Virgin Islands
Texas

Maryland

Texas.

Vermont

“Balaware

Delaware

" Belaware |

California
Delaware
Iltinois
California
New York
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Hlinois
California

Deiaware

Hlinois -




Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Aon Risk Services Central, Inc.

Aen Risk Services Companies, Tnc, -

Acen Risk Services International (Holdings) Inc.
Aeon Risk Services Northesst, Ing. - - -

Aon Risk Services South, Inc.

Aon Risk Services Southwest, Inc.

Aon Risk Services, In¢, of F-lf)ridé

Aon Risk Services, Inc. of Hawaii

Aon Risk Serviees, Inc. of Maryland

Acon Risk Services, Inc. of Washington, D.C.
Aon Risk Solutions of Puerta Rico, Inc.

Aon Risk Technologies, Inc.

Aon Securities Ing.

Aon Service Corporation

Aon Services Gréup, Inc.

Aon Special Risk Resources, Inc,

Aon Trust Cempany

Aon Underwriting Managers, Inc.

Aon US Holdings, Inc. .

Aon Ward Financial Corporation

Aon/Albert G. Risben Insurande Services, T,
ARM International Corp,

ARM International 'Insuran_ds Agen(_:y'r Corp..- "
ARMRISK CORP, - o
ASPN Insurance Ageniey, LLE h

Association of Rural and Small Town Americans

Assurance Licensing Services, Inc,
Atlantic Star Administrators LLC
Adlgntic Star Intermediarics, LLC

B E P International Corp.

Benefit Marketing Solutions, L..L.C.
Benfield Advisery Inc.

Benfield Finance (Londen) LLC
Benfield Finance (Westport) LLC
Blanch Americas Ine. N

BMS Insurance Agency, L.L.C.

Bowes & Company, Ing,, of New York
Cananwill Corporation

Cananwill, Ine, - '

Cananwill, Inc.

CICA SPE, LLC _

Citadel Insurance Managers, Inc.
Coalition for Benefits Equn]ity' and Choiee
Corporate Investigative Solutions, Inc.
Crawley, Warren (U.8.A.) Inc.

E.W. Blanch Capital Risk Solutions, Inc.
E.W. Blanch Insurance Services Inc. -
E. W, Blanch Intemational Inc,

Ennis Knupp Secondary Market Services, LLC

USA

YsA

USA

. USA -

USA
USA
USA
USA

UsA

USA

usA

USA

L USA”

Now Yoik.

* Deliswate -

 calii
Pennsylvania

" Massachusetts

Ilinois

Delaware

North IC.aroI iﬁa

Texas

- Bloridas i

Hawaii

: M;ctfyland

District of Columbia

Delaware

Iliinois

' Belawiite

Delaware

* Minois

Delaware

New.]ersey”
C Delavare T S

Missouri
Nlinofs *
Delaware
Delaware * - .:; o
New Jersey
Oklahonii . -
Delawﬁre

Delaware”

Delawarg

Oklahoma

Delaware

o . -'Diéié..i;varé PENRRLOUNEE
California
California T

New fersey

Delaware

:'ZII)eiawal;.'e_i. _: St el

Delaware

‘Delaviare ="\




Jurisdiction of Incorporation ot Organization

Financial & Professional Risk S(}IU'[OI'IS Ine, usa Nlinois
Futumy Group, Tne, e . ' USA . Nefa_da
Gateway A]ternanvcs L.L. C USA Delaware
‘Global Infirance Steategies, LLC . : : : _ USA . . Delaware
Gront Park Capitel, LLC ' USA Delaware
Hgalthy_ PéWs.Eet_ Insurance LLC R . _ ’ USA ] ) o Wﬁshingfnn
Hewitt Associates Caribe, lnc, ' USA Puerto Rico
Hew:tt Assocites International Servicos, Ine. = - : o ' . UsA Delaware
Hewitt Associates LLC USA HHlinois
Hewitt Associates Public Sector Consultmg LLC USA Illinois
HememanclaI Services: LLC SN Lo T B S --USA Nlinpis-
Hewitt Insurance Brokerage LL(, - USA Delaware
-Hewtﬂlnsurance, Inc.. - : Do . - . usa S Puctto Rico _
Hewitt International Holdmgs LLC USA Delaware
'Hoggqum_smNorthAm_encg;-Ir_i_fs;_ Lol ' _ ' ' UsA ' ) Delaware
Holdw #1, Inc. - . Usa Delaware
Holdoo #2 Ine o . " ’ o ’ S S USA S Delaware
Huntmgton T, Block [nsurance Agency, Inc . . USA District of Calumbia
Impact Forecastmg, LLC. 0. S Lo o ’ o UsA : - . Hlinois
INPOINT, INC. - ' USA Hlinois
lntema"t!oﬁal Accndent Failities; i, S . . - USA R . ‘Massachusetts
International Claims Administrators, Inc. 7 . . USA Kansas
International RJskManagement {Almr_m,as); Ine. S o _ USA . Ohio
International Space Brokers, Inc. . . LSA Virginia
IRM/GRC. I-loldmg]nc L LT E _V ; o USA . Delaware

T H Minet Puerto RICO Inc . USA Puerto Rico
fohnson Roonay. Vloh, g . Sl o USA o California
K & K Insurance Group of Floride, Inc. ' USA Florida
'K&Klnsurance Group,Inc: - ° o T _ _ usa Indiana

K2 Technologles [ne. usa California
MecLagan Pariners Asia, Inc.  © - I L ' USA Delawsre
McLégan Partners, Inc. . . Usa Delaware
Membership Leasing Trust ~ . S : UsA ‘ Delaware
Minet Holdings Inc. ' Usa New York
'MmetReNorthAmerxca Inc, B e o o usa T 'Gea_rgla _
Mmrfield Undcrwnters Ltd. . 7 7 USA Delaware
NES Bdge Insurarice Ageney, Ine. o T o T A 0 Flarida
Pamgon Strategic Solutimf'sr Ine. 7 USA Delaware
PremlerAuto Firiancs, Inc T - RS _ o o ) e - UsA . " - ,.Déjaware
Private Bquity Partnershlp Structures I, LLC USA Délawa.re
Project Techno]eg;eslﬁtematipnalLLCM_ S i) L o usa - - * Pelaware
Protective Marketmg Enterprises Inc. 7 USA . Tcnnéssce
Redwoods Demal Uﬂderwnters Ine. - o B ' . USA . North Carolina
Rewards Plus of America Carporation USA Maryland
SINSER Management Services {Vermont), In¢. . E e B 177 G . Vertont
Spec1alty Beneflts, Ine. ' USA . Indiana
TIE Managemetiy LLC = 0 T I C . UBA . Minneseta
The Capella Group, Ine, 7 o USA . Texas ‘

UsA : ... Lovisiana .

,Underwnters Marme Serwces Inc




Jurisdiction of Incorperation or Organization

VSC SPE, LLC USA Delav_:are

Ward Financial Group, Ine. _ o TR S O UsA e 0‘“" B
Wexford Underwriting Managers, Inc, USA Delaware
White Rock USA Lid . EETEE Lo ) USA Vertriofit. .
William Gallagher Associates of New Jersey, Inc. USA . New Jeréey
Worldwide Infegrated Services Company . wae o o i ) L USA T Texas :l.- S
Wrapid Specialty, Inc. USA 7 California

Aon (Vanvat) Lid, L e Ve R
Administradora Aon, C.A, Venezuela

Aon Group Venezueld, Corfétéjé de Reaseguro CA. .. EEE L e ~ Venezela: i

Acon Risk Services Venezuela, Corretaje de Seguros C.A. Venezuela
Aon Vietnam Limited : o . L : : o Vmetnam
Aon Zambia Limited Zambia
Aaon Zambia Pension Fund Adminisirators Limited Zambia




Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

Registration Statement

Form Number Purpaose
S-8 333-55773 Pertaining to Aon's stock award plan, stock option plan, and employee stock purchase plan
94 313-168320 Pertaining to the registration of 4,545,566 shares of commion stock registered on Post Effective Amendment No, | related to the
_ Amended and Restated Global Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan of Hewitt Associates, Inc.
88 333-103344 Pertaining to the Aon Stock Incentive Plan
5-8 333-106584 Pertaining to Aon's deferred compensation plan
5-8 333-145928 Pertaining to the Aon Stock Incentive Plan
S-3 333-145930 Portaining to the registration of common stock underlying equity securities issued to Aon's president and chief executive officer
S-8 333-174788 Pertaining (o Aon's 2011 stock incentive plan and 2011 employee stock purchase plan
5-8 333-178%06 Pertaining to Aen's savings plan
54 313-178991 Pertaining to the registration of 355,110,708 Class A Ordinary Shares of Aon Global Limited, and in the refated Proxy Statement
/ Prospectus of Aon Global and Aon Corporation contained therein
3-8 333-184999 Pertaining to Aon ple Company Share Save Plan
Pertaining to the registration of an additional 9,000,000 Class A Ordinary Shares to be issued pursuant to the Aon ple 2011
5-8 333-199759 .
Incentive Plan
53 133-206759 Pertaining to the registration of debt securities, guarantees, preference shares, Class A Ordinary Shares, Convertible Securities,

share purchase contracts and share purchase units of Aon ple and debt securities and guarantees of Aon Corporation

of our reports dated February 22, 2016 , with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Acn ple and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting of Aon ple, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2015 .

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 22, 2016



Exkibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

1, Gregory C. Case, the Chief Executive Officer of Aon ple, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Acn plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any uitrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financtal information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report,

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have;

(@)

(b)

(c)

)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repott) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The regisirant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent gvaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directers (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

(a)
to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting,
/s GREGORY C, CASE
Date: February 22, 2016 Gregory C. Case

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Christa Davies, the Chief Financial Cfficer of Aon plc, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form [0-K of Aon ple;,

Based on my knowledge, this report does fiot contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the petiod covered by this repott,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information inciuded in this report, fairly present in all matesial respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control aver financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 13d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

()

(b

(©

CH

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedurss to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within these entities,
particularly duting the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that ocourred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrani's internal control over financial reporting; and

The regisirant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internat control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All sipnificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of interial control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, suminarize and report financial information; and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting,
/s{ CHRISTA DAVIES
February 22, 2016 Christa Davies

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code

I, Gregory C. Case, the Chief Executive Officer of Aon plc (the "Company"), certify that (i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2015 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and (i) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

s/ GREGORY C. CASE

Gregory C. Case
Chief Executive Officer

February 22, 2016



Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to Sectfion 1356 of Chapter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code

1, Christa Davies, the Chief Financial Officer of Aon plc (the "Company"), certify that (i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 20135 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a} or 15(d}, as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/sf CHRISTA DAVIES

Christa Davies
Chief Financial Officer

February 22, 2016



Appendix 1,

Certificate of Compliance

In compliance with Local Law 1-2006, as amended (the “Law™), the Contractor hereby certifies the
following:

. The officer of the Contractor is:

Seymour Adler, Ph.D.
I

2. .The Contractor agrees to either (1) comply with the requirements of the Nassau County
Living Wage Law or (2) as applicable, obtain a waiver of the requirements of the Law
pursuant to section 9 of the Law. In the event that the contractor does not comply with the
requirements of the Law or obtain a waiver of the requirements of the Law, and such
contractor establishes to the satisfaction of the Department that at the time of execution of
this agreement, it had a reasonable certainty that it would receive such waiver based on
the Law and Rules pertaining to waivers, the County will agree to terminate the contract
without imposing costs or seeking damages against the Contractor

3. In the past five years, . Contractor has X hasnot been found by a court or a
government agency to have violated federal, state, or local laws regulating payment of wages or
henefits, labor relations, or cccupational safety and health, If a violation has been assessed against
the Contractor, describe below;

With respect to Contractor's operations in the New York City office from which this work will be
performed,

4. In the past five years, an administrative proceeding, investigation, or government body-initiated
Jjudicial action __ X__ has (see below) has not been commenced against or relating to the
Contractor in connection with federal, state, or local laws regulating payment of wages or
benefits, labor relations, or occupational safety and health. If such a proceeding, action, or
investigation has been commenced, describe below:

With respect to Contractor's operations in New York City from which this will be performed,
From time to time, the Contractor has responded to routine audits and/or wage claims by
employees,

5. Contractor agrees to permit access to work sites and relevant payroll records by authorized
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County representatives for the purpose of monitoring compliance with the Living Wage Law and
investigating employee complaints of noncompliance,

I hereby certify that | have read the foregoing statement and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
trug, correct and complete, Any statement or representation made herein shall be accurate and true as of

the date stated below.,

“'K/ o / {6o

Dated

Sworn to before me this

/ 5!"““& day of /4@'3 ;/ = 2016,

Notary Public e

S
-

Mg

Signature of Chief-Exccutive-OfficerAlor e d Sigpdry

Mﬂ‘? Mlu LA

Name of Ehief-Exeeutive-Offiver Aull o) R:{\xm.j@m,

Official Seal )
Ann M Olszewskl

¥ Fublic State of flinois X

> My ggmrny\ission Expives 051061'213
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Business History Form

Business History Form

The contract shall he awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by
the County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the
firm, corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NCTE: All questions require a response, even if response is “none” or “not-applicable.” No blanks.
{USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TC FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: April 13, 2016 '

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Aon Consulting, Inc. operating as Aon Hewitt

2) Address of Place of Business: e

List alt other business addresses used within last five years:

For a full_global office ligting, please vigit our website at http:/iwww.aon.com/site/aonworldwide.jsp.

3) Mailing Address (if different)._NA

Phone: t +1.212.441.2085; m +1.201.681.8623

Does the business own or rent its facilities? rent

4) Dun and Bradstreet numbcr:_12-999-4104

5} Federal .D. Number: 22-2232264

8) The proposer is a (check one): [] Sole Proprietorship  [] Partnership Corporation
[[] Other (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?
Yes[] No If Yes, please provide details:

'8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes[] No[d  If Yes, please provide
details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other
business? Yes[X] No[J If Yes, please provide details: Aon plc is parent

MNassau County | 04-2016 Aw
Propriefary & Confidontial
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Business History Form

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any
other government entity terminated? Yes [] No If Yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a
bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such canceliation or forfeiture: or details regarding the
termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes[] No[X  If Yes, state
date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business,
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or locai
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any
affiliated business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any
federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities
performed at, for, or on behalf of an affiliated business.

Yes No [  if Yes, provide details for @ach such investigation._In an orqanization the size and
complexity of Aon pic and our subsidiaries there is a range of litigation pending in the ordinary course of
business. Details of litigation filed against Aon are available in Aon plc's annual Form 10-K filing (Note 16)

and Aon ple's guarterly Form 10-Q filing (Note 14} which is available on Aon’s website (www.aon.com),
Although the ultimate outcome of all such matters cannot be ascertained, it is the position of Aon plc that the

disposition or ultimate determination of such ¢laims will not have a material effect on the financial position of

Aon ple or any of our subsidiaries nor impact our ability to perform services.

13} In the past 5 years, has this business andfor any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and
local regulatory agencies? Andfor, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business, Yes[ ] No If Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either
before or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges peitained to events that
allegediy occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the
conduct of that business:

in_an grganization the size and complexity of Acn plc and our subsidiaries there is a range of litigation
pending in the ordinary course of business. Details of litigation filed against Aon are available in Aon plc's
annual Form 10-K filing (Note 16) and Ach ple’s guarterly Form 10-Q filing (Note 14) which is available on
Aon’s website (www.aon.com), Although the ultimate cutcome of all such matters cannot be ascertainad, it is
the position of Aon plc that the disposition or ultimate determination of such claims will not have a material
effect on the financial position of Aon plc or any of our subsidiaries nor impact our ability to perfortm services,

a) Any felony charge pending? Yes[[] No If Yes, provide details for each such charge.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending? Yes[ ] No If Yes, provide details for each such charge.___

Nassau Gounty | 04-2016 Aw
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Busingss History Form

c) Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after triaf or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of
business? Yes ] No[X] If Yes, provide detaiis for each such conviction

d) Inthe past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor? Yes[] No X
If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

e) Inthe past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
Yes[ ] No[<{ If Yes, provide details for each such occurrence.

18) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had
any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional
license held? Yes[] No[X: If Yes, provide details for each such instance. In an organization the size
and complexity of Aon plc and our subsidiaries there is a range of litigation pending in the ordinary course of
business. Details of litigation filed against Acn are available in Aon plc's annual Form 10-K filing (Note 16)
and Aon plc's quarterly Form 10-Q filing (Note 14) which is available on Aon's website (www.aon.com).
Although the ultimate cutcome of ali such matters cannot be ascertained, it is the position of Acn plc that the
disposition or ultimate determination of such claims will not have a materlal effect on the financial position of
Aon ple or any of our subsidiaries nor impact cur ability to perform services.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer
charges? Yes[] No If Yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all
guestions checked 'YES', If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the
questionnaire,

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate
page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17) Conflict of Interest;

a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please
expressly state '"No conflict exisis.”

{Iy Any material financlal relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict
_cf interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

We are not aware of any conflict of interest.

(i} Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau
County, '

To our knowledge, there are no known current relationships, including former colleaques of either
company that would materially affect our us doing business together. However., if there are any
concemns regarding the possibility of an existing relationship between the parties, then the parties
should discuss and decide whether to establish mutually agreed upen steps to move forward with the
RFP/contract process,
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Business History Form

(iii} Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

We are not aware of any conflict of interest.

b} Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.

Aon has implemented a Global Conflicts of Interest Policy and mandated training to ensure that all
employees understand and observe the policy. If a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest is
observed, employees have several compliance meghanisms that allow appropriate steps to be taken to
disclose and resolve any conflict of interest, up to and including client nhotification.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer’s professional gualifications, demonstrating
extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these
experiences, must be identified.

Please see the proposal package.

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

iy Date of formation;

i) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including
shareholders, members, general or limited partner;

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company;,
iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);

v) The number of employees in the firm;

vi) Annual revenue of firm,

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments

viiiy Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

With roots that date back to the 1680s, Aon has grown from an insurance partnership into the leading global
provider of risk management services, insurance and reinsurance brokerage, and human capital consuiting.
Recoqnizing specific client needs for advisory services in Human Resources (HR), Aon began offering HR-
related consulting services in 1934 through Acn Consulting (incorporated in New Jersey in 1979). Aon Hewitt
was created in 2010 through the merger of Agn Consulting and Hewitt Associates (incorporated in [lingjs in
2002). Both companies have strong and prominent histories in delivering human capital solutions to

Aon Hewitt, the HR arm of Aon plc, is the leading human capital firm with 30,000 professionals and staff
serving 20 000 clients worldwide, including hundreds of city, state, and federal government clients, and the
maijority of the Fortune 100, 500, and 1,000. We have over 300 coffices in more than 90 countries where we
rovide end-to-end HR solutions in Talent, Health, and Retirement services, With the ability to provide a
comprehensive range of HR services, the guality and depth of our services is unmatched in the industry.

Aon Hewitt is registered, and we currently do business in all U.S. states. Given the size of Aon Hewitt, we
maintain a signhificant number of licenses. We typically do not list out or provide copies of every license that
we have with any governmental authority to provide our services as it is not practical to de so. We are happy

to provide proof of our autherity to conduct business in a particular state, if needed. In addition, we would be
happy to discuss Nassau Gounty reviewing copies of specific licenses, should Nassau County like to do so.
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Proprietary & Confidentiaf







Business History Form

Greg Case is Aon's President and CEQ and Kristi Savacool is Ao Hewitt's CEQ. A list of our board of
directors can be found on our website at http://www.aon.com/about-aon/corporate-
governancefcorporate/board-of-directors.jsp.

As of April 7, 2015, the shareholders who own 5% or more of Agn pic's Ordinary Shares entitled to vote at the
Annual Meeting and known to us were:

BlackRock, Inc. 15,438,567 5.4
The Vanguard Group ‘ 15,099,363 5.3
State Street Corporation 15,125,282 5.3
Eagle Capital Management L.L.C. (New York) 14,520,034 5.1

No shareholder owned moere than 10% of Aon pic's Ordinary Shares as of that date,
In our fiscal year 2015 (January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015), Aon reported total revenues of $11.7

billion. For additicnal information regarding Aon Hewitt's financials, below is a link o Aon's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, as well as preceding years starting from 2004:
http:/fir.aon.com/.

For more information, please visit achhewitt.com. Please also see the proposal package for more information,

B. Indicate number of years in buginess,

More than 80 years.

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity
and reliability to perform these services.

Please see the proposal package.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than thres references for whom the Proposer has provided similar
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer’s capability to perform this work.

Company Federal Bureau of Investigation

Contact Person  Amy Grubb /0 Psychologist

Address 935 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW

City/State Washington, DC 20535

Telephone 302-594-4349

Fax# NA

E-Mail Address Amy.Grubb@ic.fbi.gov
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Business History Form

Company Transperiation Security Administration

Contact Person  Keith Malley, Director Recruitment & Field Hiring

Address 601 12th St

City/State  Ardington, Virginia 22202

Telephone 571-227-1241

Fax# NA

E-Mail Address  Keith.malley@dhs.qov

Company Nassau County Clvil Service Commission

Contact Person  Karl Kampe

Address 40 Main Street

City/State Hempstead, NY 11550

Telephone 516-572-1873

Fax# NA

E-Mail Address KKempe@nassaucountyny.qov
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Business History Form
CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID CR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE
PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

I, Seymour Adler, being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the items contained in the foregoing
pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to
each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any
change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this guestionnalire and before the execution of the
contract: and that alt information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. |
understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this questionnaire as additional inducement to
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

\L "ﬂ\‘
-“agp"lf 't‘gﬁ;}’@ S me this 13th day of April, 2016
S LRy A1 day o1 ARl 220 CAROLYN T. WILSON
 HRES % T NOTARY PUBLIC DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
 §, i EXP Y . My Commission Expires Oclober 31, 2016
2wt 1p-3 H [)
Tty 3
%A N Notary PURES VAN & wiﬂéﬂt\)
Ty, |
“'.‘ or G“\‘f\“ i
’ %

"”'an',lfm““‘
Name of submitting business: Aon Hewitt

By: Seymour Adler, PhD
Print name

‘57%« Ay

Signature

Parther

Title

04/13/2016
Date
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Page 1 of 4
COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR™S AND VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

f. Name of the Entity:___Aon Consulting, Inc. (N])

Address: 200 East Randolph Street

City, State and Zip Code:__ Chicago, L 60673-1230

2, Entity’s Vendor [dentification Number:_ 22-2232264

L. Liability Co ____Closely Held Corp Qther (specify)

4, List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, alt partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties
of Joint Ventures, and afl members and officers of limited liability companies (attach additional
sheets if necessary);

- SEE Attached Annual Report, the 2015 10-K Report

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm, If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation, include a copy of the 10K in Heu of completing this section.

See Attached Annual Report, the 2015 10-K Report
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6, List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line

1. above (if none, enter “None™). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or
subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall
be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate
in the performance of the contract.

See the 2015 10-k Report. No other Aon will support this contract,

7. List all fobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid,

bid, post-bid, ete.}. I none, enter “None,” The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or
organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter
before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or
committees, inctuding but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and
Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements., The
term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trastee, employee, counsel or agent of the
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties,

{a) Name, title, business address and tefephone number of lobbyist(s):

None,
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete
description of lobbying aectivities.

None,

(¢} List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g.,
Nassau County, New York State):

N/A

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant,
contractor or Vendor authorized as g signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts,

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statemnents and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.
Dated: __ April 13,2016 Signed: a4 ('( %ﬁ&«

Print Name: fa“‘ VAL b wl Aﬂ*ﬂf‘m,

Title: L ?J """" (1 B /
o
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legistation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, inciuding
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any ageneles,
boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the courty of any interest in real property, with respect to 4 license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, ot with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or refection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.
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Business History Form

Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into
consideration the reliabiiity of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by
the County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shali complete and submit this guastionnaire. The
guestionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of 2 sole prepristorship or by an authorized represantative of the
firm, corporation ar partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, aven if response is "none” or “not-applicable.” No planks.,
(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: April 13, 2016

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Aon Consulting. Inc. operating as Aon Hewi

2} Address of Place of Business: %%

List all other business addresses used within last five yaars:

ror a full globa! office listing, pleasa visit cur websits at nito:/fwww, on.comysiteacnworldwids, isp.

3) Mailing Address (if different): NA

Phone, { +1.212.441.20685; m +1.201.681.8623

4} Dun and Bradstreat number_12-958-4104

5y Federal 1.D, Number: 22-2232284

8) The proposeris a {check one): [ Sole Propristorship ] Partnership [ Corporation
[] Other (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipmeht expenses with any other business?
Yes[ ] Nol{ ¥ Yes. please provide details:

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?  Yas 0 No If Yes, please provide
details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other
business? YesBJ No[] If Yes, please provide details: Aon plc is parent

Nassau County | 04-2016
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10} Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any
other government entity terminated? Yes [} No If Yes, siate the name of bonding agency, (if a
bond). date. amount of bond and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the
termination (if a contract). '

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes[]  No If Yes, state
date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12} In the past five years, has this business andfor any of its owners and/or officers andlor any affiliated business,
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or loca!
prosecuting or investigative agency? Andlor, in the past 5 years, have any owner andfor officer of any
affillated business been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a civil antitrust investigation by any
federal, state of local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to aciivities
performed at, for, or on behaif of an affiliated business,

Yes No(] If Yas, provide details for each such investigation. Jn an organization the sive and
complexity of Aon plc and our subsidiaries thers is & range of litigation nending in the ordinary course of
business, Details of litioation filed against Aon are availabls in Aon pi¢'s annuat Form 10-K filing {Note 16)
and Aon plic's guarterly Form 10-Q filing {Note 14) which is availabls an Aon's website (www.aon.com).
Although the ultimate outcome of all such matters cannot be ascertained. # is the position of Aon plc that the
disposition or ultimaie determination of such ciaims will not have a material effect on the financial postion of
Aon pic or any of our subsidiarizs nor impact our ability to perform sarvices,

In the past § years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affifiated business
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not imited to federal, state and
local regulatory agencies? Andfor, in the past 5 years, has any owner andfor officar of an affiliated business
been the subject of an investigation by any governmant agency, including but not imited to federal, state and
tocal regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affliated
business. Yes[] Nol  1fYes provide details for each such investigstion.

13

~—

14} Has any current or formar director, owner or officer or managerial employae of this business had, eithar
before or during such persen's employment, or since such employment i the charges pertained to evenis that
allegedly occurred during ths time of employment by the submitting business, and allegediy related to the
conduct of that businsss:

In an organization the size and complexity of Aon pic and our subsidiaries there is a range of jitigation
pending in the ordinary course of business. Details of litigation filed against Aon are gvatlable in Aon plc's
annua) Form 10-K fling (Note 16) and Aon pic's quarerly Forrn 10-0 filing {Note 14) which is avaitable on
Aon’s website (www.aon.com), Although the uliimate outcome of afl such matters cannct be ascertained. itis
the position of Aon pic that the disposition or ultimate detarmination of such claims will not have a material
efiect on the financial position of Aon pic or any of our subsidiaries nor impact our ability to perform senvices.

a) Any felony charge pending? Yes[] No i Yes, provide details for each such charge.

b} Any misdemeanor charge pending? Yes[ ] No If Yes, provide details for 2ach such charge.

Massau County | 04-2016
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<) Inthe past 10 vears, you daen convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony andfor any other crime, an
element of which relates 1o fruthfulness or the underlying facts of which related o the conduct of
business? Yes | Nao If Yes, vrovide details for each such conviction

d) Inthe past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of 2 misdemeansr?  Yes ] No
if Yes, provide details for each such conviction,

) Inthe past 5 years, been found in viclation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
Yes[] No If Yes, provide details for each such occurrence.

13} In the past {5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had
any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or adminisirative proceedings with respect to any professional
license held?  Yes (! No X If Yes, provide details for each such instance. In an organization the size
and comolexity of Acn ple and our subsidiares there is a range of ltigation pending in the ordinary course of
business. Detalls of iitigation filed against Aon are available in Aon ple's annual Farm 10-K filing (Note 16)
and Aon plc's quarterty Form 10-Q filing (Note 14) which is available on Aon's website (www.aon.com).
Althouah the ultimate outcomne of =il such matters cannot be ascerfaiped, it is the position of Aon pic that the
disposition or yltimate determination of such claims will not have a material offect on the financial pogition of
Aon plG or any of our subsidiaries nor impact our ability to perform sarvices,

18) For the past (5) tex years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, siate or local taxes or cthar assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer
charges? Yes{] No If Yes, provide detalls for each such year. Provide a detailed response to sl
questions checked "YES" If you nesd mora space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the
questionnaire,

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate
page and altach it {o the questionnaire.

17} Conflict of Interast:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please
expressly state “No conflict exists.”

(i) Any materia! financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County,

We are not aware of any conflict of interest,

() Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau
County.

To.our knowledge, there are no known current relationships, including former colleagues of either
company that would materially affect our us doing business togather, However, if there are any
concerns reqarding the pogsibility of an existing relationshin between the parties, then the parlies
should discuss and decide whether to establish mutually aqreed upon steps to move forward with the
RFP/eontract process.
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(iliy Any other matter that your firm believes may create a confiict of interest or the appearance of a
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau Couny.

We are not awars of anv confiict of interest,

b} Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of
interest would not axist for vour firm in the future.

Aon has implemented a Global Conflicts of Interast Policy and mandated training to ansure that all
employees understand and observe the policy, If a conflict of interest or notential conflict of interest is
observed. emplovees have several complience mechanisms that aliow appropriate steps io be tlaken fo
disclose and resoive any conflict of interest. up to and including client notification.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer’s professional qualifications, demonstrating
extensive experience In your profession. Any prior similar experiances, and the results of these
experiences, must be identified,

Please see the pronosal package,

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

iy Date of formaticn;

i) Name, addresses, and position of ali persons having a financial interest in the company, including
shareholders, members, general or imited partner;

i) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company,
vy State of incorporation {if applicable):

v} The number of employees in the firm:

vi} Annual revenug of firm;

viiy Summary of relevant accomplishments

will) Copies of ell state and local licenses and permits, . o

With roots that date hack to the 1680s. Aon has grown from an insurance padnershio into the leading alohal
crovider of risk management services, insurance and reinsurance brokerage. and human capital consuliing.
Recognizing specific clieni neads for advisory services in Human Resources (HR), Aon beaan offering HR-
refated consulting services in 1934 throuah Aon Censulting {incornorated in Mew Jersev in 1879}, Aon Hewitt
was created in 2010 through the merger of Aon Consulling and Hewiit Associates {incorporated in lilinois in
2002}, Both companias have strong and prominent histories in delivering human capital solutions to
organizations.

Aon Hewitt, the HR arm of Aon ple_is the leading human capital firm with 30.000 professionals and staff
senving 20,000 clients worldwide. including hundreds of city. state. and federal govemnment clisnts. and the
mafority of the Fortune 109, 500. and 1.000. We hava over 300 offices in more than 90 countries where we
provide end-to-end HR solutions in Talent. Health. and Retirement services. With the ability to provide a
comprehensive range of HR services. the quaiity and depth of our services is unmatched in the industry.

Aon Hewitt is reaistered. and we currently do business in all U.S. states. Given the size of Aon Hewitt, we
maintain a significant number of licenses. We typically do not list out or provide copies of every license that
we have with any qovernmentat authority to provide our services as it is not practical to do so. We are hapoy
to provide proof of our authority to conduct business in a particular staie, if needed. In addition, we would be
happy to discuss Nassau County reviewing copies of specific ticenses, should Nassau County like to do so.
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Grea Case is Aon's President and CEQ and Kristt Savacoal iz Aon Hewitt's CEO. A list of our board of
directors can be found on our website at hitp:/fwww.aon. comiabout-aon/corporate-
aovernance/corporate/board-of-directors.jsp.

As of April 7. 2015, the shareholders who own 5% or more of Aon ple’s Ordinary Shares entitied to vote at the
Annual Meeting and known to us ware:

s ¥ g L 5 A ¥
BlackRock, Inc. 15,438,567 .54
The Vanguard Group ~ ...15bee363 83
State Streat Corporation ‘ 15,125,282 B o 53

Eagle Capital Management L.L.C. (New York) 14,520,034 . 5.1

No shareholder owned more than 10% of Aon ple’s Ordinary Shares as of that date,

in_our fiscal vear 2015 {Januery 1. 2015 through Dacember 31, 20151, Aon reported fofal revenues of 5117
billion. For additional information regarding Aon Hewitt's financials, befow is a fink to Aon's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended Dacember 31, 2014, as wel as preceding years starting from 2004:

hitp:/fir.aon.com/.

For mere informalion, please visit sonhewitt.com, Pleass also see the propesal packaoe for more information.

Indicate number of vears in business.

More than 80 vears.

Pravide any othar information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Propaser's capacity
and reliability to perform these services.

Please see the pronesal package.
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services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Telephon N

Fax# NA

£-Mail Address #
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Telephonw

Fax# NA

E-Mall Address

Company Nassau County Civil Service Commission

Contact Person il ENENGG.G

Address 4N

City/State

Telephone .

Fax# NA

&-Mall Address

Nassau Gounty | 64-2015
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE
PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

alt the items containad in the foregoing

I, Seymour Adler, being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand
pages of this quastionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that | supplied full and complete amswers to
gach item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that 1 will notify the County in wiiting of any
change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of the
contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowiedge, information and belief, |
understand that the Ceunty will rely on the information supplied in this questionnaire as additional inducement to

enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.
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Name of submitting business: Aon Hawitt

By: Sevmour Adler, PhD
Print name e

970%« AWy

Signature

rPartner

Title

04/13/2018
Date
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RULES RESOLUTION NO. -2016

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE
TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT AND AON CONSULTING, INC.

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agreement
with a Aon Consulting, Inc. for-services in connection with the development
and validation of an examination for the selection of incoming police
officers and promotion to Sergeant, a copy of which is on file with the Clerk

of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it

RESOILVED, that the Rules Commitiee of the Nassau County
Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement

with Aon Consulting, Inc.






CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

. THIS AGREEMENT, dated as of . 2016 (together with
the schedules, addendums, appendices, attachments and exhibits, if any, this “Agreement™), is
entered into by and between (i) Nassau County, a municipal corporation having its principal
office at 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, New York 11501 (the “COUNTY™), acting for and on
behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT, 1490 Franklin Ave,, Mineola, NY
11550 (the “DEPARTMENT”) and the CIVIL, SERVICE COMMISSION OF NASSAU
COUNTY, 40 Main St., Hempstead, NY 11501 (the “COMMISSION™), and (ii) Aon Consulting,
Inc., @ New Jersey corporation, having its principal office at 200 E. Randolph Street, Chicago, IL
60673-1230 (hereinafter referred to as “AON HEWITT” and/or “the Contractor”).

WITNESSETH;

WHEREAS, COUNTY and DEPARTMENT, acting through the COMMISSION,
intend to (i) update as necessary a previously completed job analysis; (i) design, develop and
validate a written examination for use in screening candidates for sefection as entry level police
cfficers and a promotional examination for the COUNTY; and (iii) obtain scheduling and
support services to administer the examination; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the DEPARTMENT entered into a Consent
Decree with the U.S. Department of Justice on April 21, 1982, in United States v. Nassau
County, et _al., 77 Civ. 1881 (BE.D.N.Y), which provides that the COUNTY and the
DEPAKTMENT will develop and administer written cxaminations for entry level police officers
and promotional examinations that either: (i) do not have discriminatory impact upon African-
Americans, Hispanics, or females, or (ii) have been validated in gecord with Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the Federal Uniform Guidelines on Employee
Selection Procedures; and

WHEREAS, AON HEWITT designed and developed the police officer
examinations administered by the COUNTY in 2003, 2007 , and 2013 to applicants for selection
as entry level police officers, and in 2003, 2008, and 2013 for the promotional examination for the
rank of Sergeant, which designs and development involved services substantially similar to those
contemplated by this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION expects to have approximately 23,000 people
apply during the period for open civil service competitive examinations in 2017 for law
enforcement and police officer positions within various police departments in Nassau County, New
York; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY needs scheduling and development support services
for the testing process, and .






WHEREAS, AON HEWITT, due fo its background and expertise, is uniquely
qualified to provide all of the services required by the COUNTY; and

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to hire AON HEWITT to perform the services
described in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, AON HEWITT desires to perform the services described in this
Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants
contained in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. Term. This agréement will commence upon execution by all parties and terminate
upon two (2) years of execution by all parties. This Agreement may be renewed, at the County’s
sole discretion, for up to two (2) years additional years, subject to County’s right of early
termination as provided in the Agreement,

2. Services. The services (“Services™) to be provided by AON HEWITT under this
Agreement shall consist of (a) preparation and administration of a written examination to
incoming police officers consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended,
which Services are more fully described in Addendum A attached hereto and made a part hereof}
and (b) preparation and administration of a written examination to police officers for promotion
to the tank of, Police Sergeant(*Promotional Examination™) consistent with Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which Services are more fully described in Addendum C
attached hereto and made a part hereof.

3. Payment. (a) Amount of Consideration. The Maximum Amount to be paid to
AON HEWITT for Services under this Agreement shall be One Million One Hundred Ninety
Seven dollars ($1,197,000.00) in accordance with the fee schedule in Addendum A, Addendum
B and Addendum D attached hereto and made a part hereol. Accordingly, the Contractor
acknowledges that the County will partially encumber funds to be applied toward the Maximum
Amount throughout the Term of this Agreement as the scope of work set forth in paragraph 2
suprd, progresses,

(b) Youchers; Vaucher Review. Approval and Audit, Payments shall be made to AON
HEWITT in arvears and shall be contingent upon (i) AON HEWITT submitting a claim voucher
(the “Youcher™) in a form satisfactory to the COUNTY, that (g) states with reasonable specificity
the services provided and the payment requested as consideration for such services, (1) certifies
that the services rendered and the payment requested are in accordance with this Agreement, and
(©) is accompanied by documentation satisfactory to the COUNTY supporting the amount
claimed, and (i) review, approval and audit of the Voucher by the Department, Commission
and/or the County Comptrolier or his or her duly designated representative (the “Comp troller”).







(¢) Timing of Pavment Claims. AON HEWITT shall submit claims no later than three
(3) months following the COUNTY’S receipt of the services that are the subject of the claim and
no more frequently than once a month,

(d) No Duplication of Pavments, Payments under this Agreement shall not duplicate
payments for any work performed or to be performed under other agreements between AON
HEWITT and any funding source including the COUNTY.

(&) Payments in Connection with Termination or Notice of Termination. Unless a
provision of this Agreement expressly states otherwise, payments to AON HEWITT following the
termination of this Agreement shall not exceed payments made as consideration for services that
were (i) performed prior to termination, (i) authorized by this Agreement to be performed, and (iii)
not performed after AON HEWITT received notice that the COUNTY did not desire to receive
such services.

4, Independent Contractor, AON HEWITT is an independent contractor of the
COUNTY. AON HEWITT shall not, nor shall any officer, director, employee, servant, agent or
independent contractor of AON HEWITT (an “AON HEWITT Agent™), be (i) deemed a
COUNTY employee, (i) commit the COUNTY to any obligation, or (iii) hold itself, himself, or
herself out as a COUNTY employee or Person with the authority to commit the COUNTY to any
obligation. As used in this Agreement the word “Person” means any individual person, entity
(including partnerships, corporations and limited liability companies), and government or
political subdivision thercof (including agencies, bureaus, offices and departments thereof).

5. No Arrears or Default. AON HEWITT is not in arrears to the COUNTY upon any
debt or contract and it is not in default as surety, contractor, or otherwise upon any obligation 10
the COUNTY, including any obligation to pay taxes to, or perform services for or on behalf of,
the COUNTY.

, 6. Compliance With Law. (1) Generally, AON HEWITT shall comply with any and all
applicable Federal, State and local Laws, including, but not limited to those relating to contlicts of
interest, discrimination, and disclosure of information, in connection with its performance under this
Agreement, In furtherance of the foregoing, AON HEWITT is bound by and shall comply with the
terms of Appendices [, and EE attached hereto. As used in this Agreement the word “Law” includes
any and all statutes, local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, applicable orders, and/or decrees, as
the same may be amended from time to ime, enacted, or adopted.

- (b) Nagsau County Living Wage Law, Pursuant to LL 1-2006, as amended, and to the
extent that a waiver has not been obtained in accordance with such law or any rules of the
County Executive, AON HEWITT agrees as follows:

)] AON HEWITT shall comply with the applicable requirements of the .
Living Wage Law, as amended;

ity  Failure to comply with the Living Wage Law, as amended, may constitute
a material breach of this Agreement, the occurrence of which shall be
determined solely by the COUNTY. AON HEWITT has the right to cure






such breach within thirty days of receipt of notice of breach from the
COUNTY, In the gvent that such breach is not timely cured, the COUNTY
may terminate this Agreement as well as exercise any other rights
available to the COUNTY under applicable law.

(i) It shall be a continuing obligation of AON HEWITT to inform the
- COUNTY of any material changes in the content of its certification of
- compliance, attached as Appendix L, and shall provide to the COUNTY
any information necessary to maintain the certification’s accuracy.

{c) Records Access. The parties acknowledge and agree that all records,
information, and data (*Information™) acquired in connection with performance or administration
of this Agreement shall be used and disclosed solely for the purpose of performance and
administration of the contract or as required by law, in each case in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. AQN HEWITT acknowledges that AON HEWITT s
Information in the COUNTY’S possession may be subject to disclosure under Article 6 of the
New York State Public Officer’s Law (“Freedom of Information Law™ or “FOIL"). In the event
that such a request for disclosure is made, the COUNTY shall notity AON HEWITT of such
request prior to disclosure of the Information so that AON HEWITT may take such action as it
deems appropriafe.

Ad) Protection of Client Information. (i) Each party acknowledges and agrees that
all records, information, and data disclosed by or on behalf of a party (the “disclosing party™) to
the other party (the “receiving party™) in connection with performance under this Agreement will
be strictly confidential, held in the strictest confidence, and used solely for the purpose of
performing Services under this Agreement (Confidential Infmmauon} The recewmg party shall
maintain the Confidential Information of the dmclo'smg party in confidence using at least the
same degree of care s it employs in maintaining in confidence its own proprietary and
confidential information, but in no event less than a reasonable degree of care,  Access to
Confidential Information shall be restricted to receiving party’s personnel with a need to know
and engaged in a permitted use, A party’s legal counsel may request confidential treatment of
information provided to such counsel to preserve attorney work product and/or attorney client
privilege. In that event, any information provided in response to such a request by counsel shall
be deemed confidential information hereunder. Receiving party shall not disclose Confidential
Information to third parties except (A) as permitted under this Agreement; (B) with the written
consent of the disclosing party (and then only to the extent of the consent); or (C) to-the extent
required by an order of 4 court of competent jurisdiction, administrative agency or governmental
body, or by. any law, rule or regulation, or by court ordered subpoena, summons or other
administrative or legal process, or by applicable regulatory or professional standards, or in
connection with any judicial or other proceeding involving receiving party and the disclosing
party relating to AON HEWITT’s Services for the COUNTY or this Agreement.

(i1} The foregoing shall not prohibit or limit receiving party’s use or disclosure of
information (including but not limited to ideas, concepts, know-how, techniques and
methodologies) (A) previously known to recciving party, (B) independently developed by
receiving party, (B) acquired by receiving party from a third party without continuing restriction






on use, or (C) which is, or becomes, publicly available through no breach by receiving party of
this Agreement.

(iif) All data or other materials furnished by the COUNTY for use by AON
HEWTTT under this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the COUNTY and will be held
in confidence in accordance with this Agreement. Such data and materials will be returned to the
COUNTY upon completion of the Services.

(iv) The provisions of this subsection shall survive the termination of ‘this
Agreement.

7. Minimum Service Standards. Regardless of whether required by Law: (a) AON
HEWITT shall, and shall cause AON HEWITT’s Agents to, conduct its, his or her activities in
connection with this Agreement so as not to endanger or harm any Person or property.

(b) AON HEWITT shall deliver services under this Agreement in a professional manner
consistent with generally acceptable practices of the industry in which AON HEWITT operates.
AON HEWITT shall take all actions necessary or appropriate to meet the obligation described in
the immediately preceding sentence, including obtaining and maintaining, and causing all AON
HEWITT agents to obtain and maintain, all approvals, licenses, and certifications (“Approvals™)
necessary or appropriate in connection with this Agreement.

(¢) In connection with the termination or impending termination of this Agreement AON
HEWITT shall, regardiess of the reason for termination, assist the COUNTY in transitioning
AON HEWITT’s responsibilities under this Agreement. For transition services not set forth in
this Agreement, Aon Hewitt shall perform such transition services that are within AON HEWITT s
then-current capacities and capabilities, subject to AON HEWITT and COUNTY agreeing in writing
upon the scope of such transition services and the other terms under which they will be provided,
including compensation payable to AON HEWITT. The provisions of this subsection shall survive
the termination of this Agreement.

8. Right to Works.
(a) Except as noted in subsection (b) below, upon execution of this Agreement, any

reports, document, data, designs, drawings, photographs and/or any other material produced
pursuant to this Agreement expressly described as a County-owned deliverable in Addendum A
and Addendum C (“Deliverables™) shall become the exclusive property of the COUNTY. AON
HEWITT will in no event use any such Deliverables in such a way as to jeopardize the
COUNTY’S examination program,

(b) Contractor Property or Works. Unless otherwise agreed upon between the parties in
this Agreement, AON HEWITT retains all right, title and interest, including all copyrights,
patent rights and trade secret rights, in any pre-existing AON HEWITT property or work,
including all intellectual property interests thercin. Upon payment of all amounts due therefore,
AON HEWITT shall grant the COUNTY a non-exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free,
perpetual internal use license to use such AON HEWITT Works that are incorporated into the
Deliverables. As used in this Agreement, the term "Contractor Works" means any of the
following: (i) any software program, algorithm, process, methodology, documentation, report,






data, flow diagram, document, or other maierial owned, generated, or distributed by Contractor
prior to or separately from this Agreement; or (if) any teols or utilities developed by or on behalf
of AON HEWITT or used by AON HEWITT,

(¢) Upon payment of all amounts due therefore, AON HEWITT shall grant to the
COUNTY a non-transferable, nonexclusive, United States license to use any such Contractor
Works solely for the COUNTY s internal use in conneetion with the Services or the
Deliverables. The COUNTY may make reasonable copies of such Contractor Works for back-up
and archival purposes in accordance with applicable law. The COUNTY shall reproduce such
material accurately and include all original copyright and trademark notices, claims of
confidentiality or trade secrets, and other proprietary rights notices on all back-up or archival
copies. Subject to the other provisions in this subsection 8(¢), any copies that COUNTY makes
of such Contractor Works shall remain AON HEWITT s sole property.

(<) Nothing in this Agreement shall constrain AON HEWITT or third parties who may
contribute their intellectual property to the formulation of the COUNTY examinations (“Third
Party Property”) from the commercial or research use of said Third Party Property.

9, Patent/Copyright/Trademark/Trade Seerets Claims:

(a) AON HEWITT will indemnify, defend and hold the COUNTY harmless for any claim
for any infringement by AON HEWITT of any copyright, trade secrets, trademark or patent
rights of design systems, drawings, graphs, charts, specifications or printed matter furnished or
used by AON HEWITT in performance of this Agreement. The COUNTY shall give AON
HEWITT: (i) prompt writlen notice of any action, elaim or threat of infringement suit, or other
suit, (ii) the opportunity to take over, settle or defend such action, ¢laim or-suit at AON
HEWITT's sole expense, and (iii) assistance in the defense of any such action at the expense of
AON HEWITT.

(b) (i} In addition to the foregoing, if the use of any item(s) or part(s) thereof shall be
enjoined for any reason or if AON HEWITT believes that it may be enjoined, AON HEWITT
shall have the right, at its own expense, to take action in the following order of precedence: (A}
to procure for the COUNTY the right to continue using such item(s) or part (s) thereof, as.
applicable; (B) to modify the component so that it becomes non-infringing equipment of at least
equal quality and performance; or (C) to replace said item(s) or part(s) thereof, as applicable,
with non-infringing components of at least equal quality and performance, or (D) if none of the
foregoing is commercially reasonable, then provide monetary compensation to the COUNTY up
to the dollar amount with respect to the infringing item or party. (i) The preceding remedies are
in addition to and not in lieu of AON HEWITT s obligation to indemmfy and defend the
COUNTY. (iii) Time is of the essence with respect to every provision of this Agreement in
which time of performance is a factor,

(c) The foregoing provisions shall not apply to any infringement occasioned by
modification by the COUNTY that is (i) not contemplated by AON HEWITT; (ii} made without
AON HEWITT’s approval; or (iii) caused by the use of any deliverable with any adjunct device
by the COUNTY, unless such use was contemplated or consented to by AON HEWITT.






(d) In the event thal an action at law or equity is commenced against the COUNTY
arising out of a claim that the COUNTY"s use of a Deliverable under this Agreement infringes
any patent, copyright or proprietary right and, upon notice of such action by COUNTY, AON
HEWITT is of the opinion that the allegations in such action in whole or in part are not covered
by the indemnification and defense provisions set forth in this Agreement, AON HEWITT shall
immediately notify the COUNTY in writing and shall specify to what extent the AON HEWITT
believes it is obligated to defend and indemnify under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,

10, Works Made for Hire, AON HEWITT acknowledges that all of the Deliverables
{other than Contractor Works contained therein) are works made for hire and the property of the
COUNTY, including any copyrights, patents, or other intellectual property rights pertaining
thereto. 1f it is determined that any such works are not works made for hire, AON HEWITT
hereby assigns to the COUNTY all of AON HEWITT s right, title, and interest, including all
rights of copyright, patent, and other intellecinal property rights, to or in such Deliverables (other
than Contractor Works contained therein),

11, Indemnification: Defense; Cooperation. (a) AON HEWITT shall be solely
responsible for and shall indemnify and held harmliess the COUNTY, the DEPARTMENT, and
the COMMISSION and their officers, employees, and agents (the “Indemnified Parties™) from
and against any and all. liabilitdtes, losses, costs, expenses (including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements) and damages (“Losses™), arising out of or in
conngclion with any breach of this Agreement by AON HEWITT or an AON HEWITT agent,
including Losses in connection with any threatened investigation, litigation or other proceeding
or preparing a defense to or prosecuting the same; provided. however, that AON HEWITT shall
not be responsible for that nortion, if any, of a Loss that is caugsed by the negligence of the
COUNTY.

(b) AON HEWITT shall indemnify and hold the COUNTY harmless against any and all
Losses arising out of or in connection with any breach of warranty by AON HEWITT and any
claim for any infringement of intellectual property rights as indicated in Section 9
“Patent/Copyright/Trademark/Trade Secrets Claims.”

(c) AON HEWITT ghall, upon the COUNTY'S demand and at the COUNTY’S direction,
promptly and diligently defend, at AON HEWITTs own risk and expense, any and all suits,
actions, or proceedings which may be brought or instituted against one or more Indemnified
Parties for which AON HEWITT is responsible to indemnify such Indemnified Party under thig
Agreement and, further to AON HEWITT’s indemnification obligations, AON HEWITT shall
pay and satisfy any judgment, decree, loss or settlement in connection therewith, subject to the
limitations set forth herein,

(d) AON HEWITT shall, and shall cause AON HEWITT Agents to, cooperate with the
COUNTY and the Department in connection with the investigation, defense or prosecution of
any action, suit ot proceeding in connection with this Agreement, including the acts or.omissions
of AON HEWITT and/or a AON HEWITT agent(s) in connection with this Agreement;
provided, however, if such investigation, defense or prosecution arises from the COUNTY’S






breach of this Agreement or breach of law, COUNTY shall reimburse AON HEWITT for its out-
of-pocket expenses,

(¢) In no event will AON HEWITT or COUNTY be liable to the other for any indirect,
incidental, special, consequential, exemplary or reliance damages (including, without limitation,
lost business opportunities or lost sales or profits) arising out of AON HEWITT'S services to
COUNTY, regardiess of whether either party is advised of the likelihood of such damages. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, and except {or damages resulting from fraud or intentional
misconduct by AON HEWITT, in each Service Year (as defined hereafter), the total aggregate
liability of AON HEWITT, including its affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, officers, directors,
employees, and agents (collectively, “Aon™), to Client for any and all damages, costs, and
expenses (including but not limited to atiorneys’ fees), whether based on contract, tort (including
negligence), or otherwise, in connection with AON HEWITT'S performance of services for
COUNTY, shall be limited to the amount of available insurance required under this Agreement
(*Liability Ilmrtamn") A “Service Year” is each sequential 12-month period in which this
Agreement is in effect, commencing as of the first day of the provision of services hereunder,
This Liability Limitation shall apply to COUNTY'S agencies, boards, subdivisions and other
related parties wherever located that seek to assert claims against AON HEWITT with respect to
the services provided under this Agreement; however, nothing herein shall imply, or operate as
an admission, that AON HEWITT owes or accc,pis any duty or I‘e%ptm‘%!blilty to any such
entities.

(fy The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

12, Insurance. (a) Types and Amounts, AON HEWITT shall obtain and maintain
throughout the term of this Agreement, al its own expense: (i) one or more policies for
commercial general liability insurance, which policy(ies) shall name “Nassau County” as an
additional insured and have a minimwm single combined limit of liability of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggrepate
coverage, (i) if contracting in whole. or part to provide professional services, one or more
policies for professional liability insurance, which policy(ies) shall have a minimum single
combined limit lability of not less than one million dollars ($1,000 00()) per occurrence and two
million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate coverage, (i) compensation insurance for the benefit of
AON HEWITT’s employees (“Workers' Compensation Insurance™), which insurance is in
compliance with the New York State Workers’ Compensation Law, and (jv) such additionat
insurance as the COUNTY may from time to time specify.

- {b) Acceptability; Deductibles: Subcontractors. All insurance obtained and maintained
by AON HEWITT pursuant to this Agreement shall be (1) written by one or more commercial
insurance. carriers licensed 1o do business in New York State and acceptable to the COUNTY,
and (ii) in form and substance acceptable to the COUNTY., AON HEWITT shall be solely
responsible for the payment of all deductibles to which such policies are subject,. AON HEWITT
shall require any subcontractor hired in connection with this Agreement to carry insurance with
the same limits and provisions required to be carried by AON HEWITT under this Agreement.







(¢) Delivery: Coverage Change: No Inconsistent Action, Prior to the execution of this
Agreement, copies of current certificates of insurance evidencing the insurance coverage
required by this Agreement shall be delivered.to the DEPARTMENT. Not less than thirty (30)
days prior to the date of any expiration or renewal of, or actual, proposed or threatened reduction
or cancellation of coverage under, any insurance required hereunder, AON HEWITT shall
provide written notice to the DEPARTMENT of the same and deliver {0 the DEPARTMENT
renewal or replacement certificates of insurance, AON HEWITT shall cause all insurance to
remain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement and shall not take or omit
to take any action that would suspend or invalidate any of the required coverage’s. The failure of
AON HEWITT to maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance shall render this contract void
and of no effect, The failure of AON HEWITT to maintain the other required coverages shall be
deemed a material breach of this Agreement upon which the COUNTY reserves the right fo
consider this Agreement terminated as of the date of such failure.

: . Except as set forth in Schedule A, AON HEWITT is
and shall remain primarily liable for the successtul completion of all work in accordance this
Agreement irrespective of whether AON HEWTTT is using an AON HEWITT Agent to perform
some or all of the work contemplated by this Agreement, and irrespective of whether the use of
such AON HEWITT Agent has been approved by the COUNTY. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, AON HEWITT may assign this Agreement to an affiliate of AON HEWITT in
connection with an internal reorganization.

14,  Assignment; Amendment: Waiver; Subcontracting. This Agreement and the
rights and obligations hereunder may not be in whole or part (i) assigned, transferred or disposed
of, (ii) amended, (ili) waived, or (iv) subcontracted, without the prior written consent of the
County Executive or his or her duly designated deputy (the “County Executive™, and any
purported assignment, other disposal or modification without such prior written consent shall be
null and void. The failure of a party to assert any of its rights under this Agreement, including
the right to demand strict performance, shall not constitute a waiver of such rights,

15, Termination. (a) Generally. This Agreement may be terminated (i) for any reason
by the COUNTY upon thirty (30} days’ written notice to AON HEWITT, (ii) for “Cause” by the
COUNTY immediately upon the receipt by AON HEWITT of written notice of termination, (iif)
upon mutual written Agreement of the COUNTY and AON HEWITT, (iv) immediately by the
COUNTY in the event of the termination or impending termination of federal or state funding
for the services to be provided under this Agreement, and (v) in accordance with any other
provisions of this Agreement expressly addressing termination.

 As used in this Agreement the word “Cause” includes: (i) a breach of this Agreement;
and (ii) the faiture to obtain and maintain in full force and effect all Approvals required for the
services described in this Agreement (0 be legally and professionally rendered.

(b) By AON HEWITT. This Agreement may be terminated by AON HEWITT if
performance becomes impracticable through no fault of AON HEWITT, where the
impracticability relates to. AON HEWITT s ability to perform its obligations and not to a







judgment as to convenience or the desirability of continued performance, Termination under this
subsection shall be effected by AON HEWITT delivering to the Commissioner of the
DEPARTMENT and the Commissioner of the COMMISSION or other head of the Department
(the. “Cammi-ssion-er”), at least sixty {(60) days prior to the termination date (or a shorter period if
sixty days’ notice is impossible), a notice stating (i} that AON HEWITT is terminating this
Agrmment in accordance with this subsection, (i) the date as of which this Agreement will
terminate, and (iii). the facts giving rise to AON HEWITTs right. to terminate under this
subsection. A copy of the notice given to the Commissioner shall be given to the Deputy
COUNTY Executive who oversces the administration of the Department (the “Applicable
DCE™) on the same day th'n notice is given to the Commissioner.

16, A{:cqgmgipg Procedures; Records, AON HEWITT shall maintain and retain, for a
period of six (6) years following the later of termination of or final payment under this
Agreement, complete and accurate records, documents, accounts and other evidence, whether
maintained electronically or manually (“Recoids™), pertinent to performance under this
Agreement. Records shall be maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. Such Records shall at all times be available for audit and inspection by the
Comptroller, the Department, any other governmental authority with jurisdiction over the
provision of services hereunder and/or the payment therefore, and any of their duly designated
representatives.  The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.
Any audit condueted pursuant 1o this Section 16 shall be at the sole cost and expense of the
COUNTY.

17, Limitations on Actions and Special Proceedings Against the COUNTY. No action
or special proceeding shall lie or be prosecuted or maintained against the COUNTY upon any
claims arising out of or in connection with this Agreement unless:

(@) Notice. At least thirty (30) days prior to seeking relief AON HEWITT shall have
preserited the demand or claim(s) upon which such action or special proceeding is based in writing
10 the Applicable DCE fer adjustment and the COUNTY shall have neglected or refused 10 make-
an adjustment or payment on the demand or claim for thirty (30) days after presentment. AON
HEWITT shall send or deliver copies of the documents presented to the Applicable DCE under
this Section to each of (i) the DEPARTMENT and the (i) the COUNTY {(at the address specified
above for the COUNTY) on the same day that documents are sent or delivered to the Applicable
[CE. The complaint or necessary moving papers of AON HEWITT shall allege that the above-
described actions and inactions preceded AON HEWITT’s action or spcmal proceeding against the
COUNTY.

(b) Time Limitation. Such action or special proceeding s commenced within the earlier of
(i) one (1) year of the first to occur of (A) final payment under or the termination of this
A&,teement and (B) the accrual of the cause of action, and (if) the time specified in any other
provision of this Agreement.

18. Congent to Jurisdiction and Venue; Governing Law. Unless otherwise specified in
this Agreement or required by Law, exclusive original jurisdiction for all claims or actions with







respect to this Agreement shall be in the Supreme Court in Nagsau County in New York State or
in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York and the parties expressly
waive any objections to the same on any grounds, including venue and forum non conveniens.
This Agreement is intended as a contract under, and shall be governed and construed in
accordance with, the Laws of New York State, without regard to the conflict of laws’ provisions
thereof.

19, Notices. Any notice, request, demand or other communication required to be given
or made in connection with this Agreement shall be (g) in writing, (b) delivered or sent (i) by
hand delivery, evidenced by a signed, dated receipt, (i) postage prepaid via certified mail, return
receipt requested, or (iii) overnight delivery via a nationally recognized courier service, (g}
deemed given or made on the date the delivery receipt was signed by a County employee, three
{3) business days afler it is mailed or one (1) business day afier it is released to a courier service,
as applicable, and (d)(1) if to the Department, 1o the attention of the Commissioner at the address
specified above for the Department, (i) if to an Applicable DCE, to the attention of the
Applicable DCE (whose name AON HEWITT shall obtain from the Department) at the address
specified above for the COUNTY, (iii) if to the Comptroller, to the attention of the Comptroller
at 240 Old Country Road, Mineola, NY 11501, and (iv) if to AON HEWITT, to the attention of
the person who executed this Agreement on behalf of AON HEWITT at the address specified
above for AON HEWITT, or in each case to such other persons or addresses as shall be designated
by written notice. - : :

20.  All Legal Provisions Deemed Included: Severability; Supremacy. (a) Every
provision required by Law to be inserted into or referenced by this Agreement is intended to be a
part of this Agreement. 1f any such provision is not inserted or referenced or is not inserted or
referenced in correct form then (i) such provision shall be deemed inserted into or referenced by
this Agreement for purposes of interpretation and (i) upon the application of either party this
Agreement shall be formally amended to comply strictly with the Law, without prejudice to the
rights of either party.

(b) Inthe event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in
any way be affected or impaired thereby.

{c) Unless the application of this subsection will cause a provision required by Law to be
excluded from this Agreement, in the event of an actual conflict between the terms and
conditions set forth above the signature page to this Agreement and those comtained in any
schedule, exhibit, appendix, or attachment to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth
above the sighature page shall control. To the extent possible, all the terms of this Agreement
together with any schedules, exhibits, appendices or attachments should be read together as not
conflicting.

(d) Each party has cooperated in the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement.
Therefore, in the event that construction of this Agreement occurs, it shall not be construed
against either party as drafier, :






21, Section and Other Headings. The section and other headings contained in thig
Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

, 22. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the full and entire understanding and
agreement between the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof and supercedes all prior
agreements (whether wriiten or oral) of the parties relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement. ' ' g

23. Administrative Service Charge. AON HEWITT agrees to pay the County an
administrative service charge of Five Hundred and Thirty-Three Dollars ($533.00) for the
processing of this Agreement pursuant to Ordinance Number 74-1979, as amended by Ordinance
Number 201-2001<1¢l:201-2001> and 128-2006<tel:128-2006>, The administrative service
charge shall be due and payable to the County by the Contractor upon signing this Agreement.
Contractor checks for the administiative service charge should be payable to the order of
“Nagsau County.”

24.  Executory Clause. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement:

(8) Approval and FExecution. Neither the COUNTY nor AON HEWITT shall have any
liability under this Agreement (including any extension or other modification of this Agreement)
to any Person unless () all requisite COUNTY approvals have been obtained, including, if
required, approval by the County Legislature, and any other governmental authorities, and (ii)
this Agreement has beén executed by the County Executive (as defined in this Agreement).

(b) Availability of Funds. The COUNTY shall have no liability under this Agreement
(including any extension or other modification of this Agreement) to any Person beyond funds
appropriated or otherwise lawfully available for this Agreement, and, if any portion of the funds
for this Agreement are from the state and/or federal governments, then beyond funds available to
the COUNTY from the stale and/or federal governments, In the event funds are not appropriated
or available to pay AON HEWITT for any portion services hereunder, AON HEWITT shall be
under no obligation to render such services. _

12






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, AON HEWITT and the COUNTY have executed this
Agreement as of the date first above written.

AON CONSULTING, INC,

By &ﬁ%

Name:__fa, 1 o, b o fogg Mo
Title: L AP e o |
Date:___+//177/ b

NASSAU COUNTY

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

PLEASE EXECUTE TN BLUE INK
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

)55,
COUNTY OF LAKE )
; ()n th@ W ;/ day of /1/; Iy in the year 2016 before me personally came
Foproiee Loyt o e personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose
and say that he or she resides i nL thu Cnunty of £ fi S ; that he or she i3 the
Ve v Lod of o fansorbon.  Tinc “the corpotation deseribed herein

and which executed the above mstrumem and that he or she mgpm,d his or her name thereto by

apthority of the board of direptors of said corporation.
,,.”»-fm/x /{ 9 ’ )
k(;"’jw.» il - /)/ P W&a’/»é.éfi;gf?f' AP

NOTARY PUBLIC ~._ 07

. fﬂcl&l Baal

Ann i Olszm?;“mm
Notary Pubic State O !
¥ My ﬂemgiasmn Expims nsmafzow b

STATE OF NEW YORK)

Y58,
C,()UN TY OF NASSAU)

Onthe  dayof in the year 2016 before me personally came

‘ to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose
and say that he or she resides in the County of . that he or she is a Deputy
County Executive of the County of Nassau, the municipal corporation described herein gnd
which executed the above instrument; and that he or she signed his or her name thereto pursuant
to Section 2035 of the County Government Law of Nassau County.

NOTARY PURLIC






Addendum A

A) SCOPE OF SERVICES: Entry-level Examination

_ 1. COUNTY hereby retains AON HEWITT to develop a written examination

procedure consistent with (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42
US.LC. § 2000e, el seq. (hereinafter referred to as “Title VH”), (i) the Uniform
Guidelines for Emplovee Selection Procedures, 28 C.F.R. Part 50.14, 29 CF.R. Part
1607, 31 C.F.R. Part 51.53 (hereinafter referred to as the “Uniform Guidelines™ or
successor guidelines, and (iii) the Consent Decree entered in United States v. Nassau
County, et al,, 77 Civ, 1881 (E.D.N.Y.), on April 21, 1982, (the “1982 Consent Deeree™),
for use in screening candidates for the entry level position of police ofticer which will
focus on and measure basic entry skilis, abilities and personal atiributes necessary 1o
perform the job of police officer.

2, AON HEWITT will develop the selection procedures and the
administrative procedures necessary to introduce the candidate to the writien
examination, summarize and score candidate performance, provide the COUNTY with
summary of each candidate’s qualifications, and provide a means for archiving test data.

3. AON HEWITT will provide the COUNTY with (i) a written examination
for the entry level position of police officer, (i) procedures to administer the wriiten
examination, (iii) scoring interpretation and record keeping associated with use of the
new written examination, (iv) recommendations for using the tests as part of the overall
selection process, (v) technical documentation to address the Uniform Guidelines
requirements, including the completion of a validation study and written report on that
study, (vi) descriptions of all technical phases of the project should they be challenged by
individual applicants or by any Tederal or Stai¢c enforcement agency, and (vii)
reasonable defense of any claims, actions, suits or any litigation brought in connection
with the services desceribed heretn.

4, The parties agree that the COUNTY will have the sole responsibility for
establishing minimum qualifications and requirements for entry-level police officers,
including the establishment of cut-off scores.

5. AON HEWITT acknowledges that the current civil service list for the
position of police officer in Nassau County expires on Police Officer Exam No. 2000
on June 24, 2018 and may be extended at the diseretion of the Civil Service Commission,
and with the approval of a Court of competent jurisdiction, The parties agree to make
best efforts to ensure that the examination herein described is administered before June
15, 2017 which is contingent upon the timely efforts and cooperation by COUNTY,
DEPARTMENT, and COMMISSION to provide all required resources and suppeort to
enable AON HEWITT to meet the timeframes. AQON HEWITT will dévelop and deliver
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a written examination for the position of police officer to be administered by COUNTY
in sufficient time for the COUNTY to fulfili its obligations under the {a) Consent Decree
with the U.8. Department of Justice, dated Aprif 21, 1982, and (b) Consent Order dated
April 29, 2002, entered in Upited States v, Nassau County, et al., 77 Civ. 188}
(E.D.N.Y.), and to obtain approval from the United States District Court for the Fastern
District of New York to use the results of the new examination. It is agreed that specific
deadlines for the key events under this eontract including examination announcement
date, examination administration date, delivery of candidate score roster and delivery of
technical report to the Commission will be established through negotiation after the
project commences and as it develops. AON HEWITT agrees to meet the schedules and
time lines as set forth above, and as negotiated between the parties, but AON HEWITT
shall not be liable for delays caused by COUNTY, DEPARTMENT, or COMMISSION,
or due to any other cause beyond the reagsonable control of AON HEWITT,

4. Work Plan

Step 1:  Update the Arcliival Databases

a. Work together with personnel within the COMMISSION and the DEPARTMENT
identified by the COUNTY to serve as liaison to AON HEWITT, and assist in the
identification and collection of records and data, scheduling of DEPARTMENT
personnel, and other activities to facilitate project work,

b, Using data or records previously provided by the COMMISSION or the
DEPARTMENT, retrieve data pertaining to applicants who were appointed to the
Police Academy, as part of the 2003, 2007, and 2013 COMPLIANCE PROJECTS,
whether for the COUNTY or other Nassau County police agencies; code-in
appointment date, appointing agency, graduation date, ete. Also retrieve Academy
performance results for all recruits (e.g, test scores, unit exam results, drop-out
information, class rank, ete,)

¢. For all Nassau County Police Department appointees identified in b, above, retrieve
from COMMISSION or DEPARTMENT data or records cach individual’s dates of
service with DEPARTMENT,; if currently employed, each individual’s current rank
and assignment; or if no longer employed, circumstances or reasons for termination
of employment. Use this information to supplement the database for appointees as
noted in b above.

d. Update the DEPARTMENT, the COMMISSION, and the COUNTY ATTORNEY on
progress and upcoming steps.

e, Confirm plans for exam administration date, recruitment efforts, venues, and support
personnel. ‘






Step 3.

Peoduce and provide to the COUNTY ATTORNEY for review the draft of a project
technical report chapter documenting the study’s scope and objectives and research
approach,

Update and Lxpand Nassau County Job Analysis Documentation

Retrieve all 2012 job analysis instruments, data and results.

Review the 2012 job analysis results with a representative focus group of job content
experts in the DEPARTMENT, identify any areas of job changes. Revise job
analysis instruments as required to reflect these changes.

Revise the job analysis methodology by increasing the focus of rating formats on
abselute frequency of task performance and time spent by officets in performance of
these tasks, In addition, add a formal “linkage” process between important job tasks
and important skills, abilities and personal characteristics (SAPCs), with the objective
of augmenting evidence for content validity of SAPCs.

Collect ratings data from representative focus groups of job incumbents, supervisors
and trainers, Compare these ratings to those obtained prior to the 2007 examination,
Verify that the 2012 job analysis results, which formed much of the basis for validity
of that examination, continue to be relevant fo the current police officer job. In
addition, if the revised job analysis methodology described in ¢. above suggests that
development of additional or different examination content may be warranted for the
current examination, documert the relevant findings, and with the agreement of all
parties, proceed with the optional work deseribed below as Step 3.

Review the updated job analysis results with representatives of the DEPARTMENT,
the COMMISSION and the COUNTY ATTORNEY and review upcoming steps,
Produce and provide the COUNTY ATTORNEY for review the draft of a project
technical report chapler documenting the study’s job analysls approach, data
gathering strategy, data analysis and data integration results.  Document AON
HEWITT’s conclusions regarding the relevance and job-relatedness of the
examination as used in 2012 for re-administration in Nassau County in 2017, and as
appropridte, the justification for pursuing the activities described in Step 3 below..

(Optional) Develop Additional Examination C:
a. If, as described in Step2-d above, it agreed that the job analysis supports the
development of specific examination content in addition fo the current

composition of the examination, AON HEWITT will draft new items or
examination %ghon(q) to meet this specification,

b. The newly developed examination materials will be systematically rcv:ewed with
relevant content matter experts (o evaloate content validity, As necessary based
upon this review, materials wiil be revised and reevatuated.

ontent

¢. New material as finalized will be incorporated into the 2016 examination on a
drafl basis, and test booklets and answer documents will be appropriately updated.






d. Subsequent to examination administration and scoring (Steps 5 and 6), item
analysis will be performed on all new content based on candidate responses.
Based cn the outcomes of this analysis, certain of the newly incorporated items
may be found to have technical or statistical characteristics that would preclude
their use, Such items will be eliminated from the scoring key. Remaining items
will be statistically summarized, and the results compared and contrasted with
candidate outcomes for the previously existing sections of the examination.

e. Review this research with representatives of the DEPARTMENT, the
COMMISSION and the COUNTY ATTORNEY.

f. Produce and provide to the COUNTY ATTORNEY for review the draft of a
project technical report chapter dosumenting the research methodology, analyses

and findings obtained in addressing the objectives of this Step 3.
Step 4 Analyze Criterion-Related Validity of Recent Nassan County Police Officer

a. .Use a criterion-related validation study design to-evahiate the Nassau County exam as
used in 2003, 2007, and 2012 against criteria of on-the job perfortnance and atirition
from the force for the large number of NCPD members appointed based on these
examinations. Colleet performance ratings from these Officers’ current supervisors,
using instruments originally developed in the validation of the 1994 examination,
Measure attrition based on archival data for Officers no longer employed, Compare
the results to sirilar research conducted with the 1994 Nassau County examination,
and with AON HEWITT's Protective Services Profile (PSP). Answer the following
questions:

i) Do these recent exams, or their specific individual components, relate
significantly (p<.05) to measures of Officer performance, or to atirition?

i) What weighting of examination components would optimize the critetion-
related validity of the overall examination for these criteria?

iii) How do results of the Nassau County 2003, 2007 and 2012 exams
validated against Qfficer performance criteria compare to corresponding results
for the 1994 exam and the PSP? s there significant difference in the predictive
validity of these exams with respect to forecasting officer performance outcomes?

b, Produce statistical data to document results of the preceding analyses; prepare a
summary of findings and recommendations.

c. Review recommendations for test administration with representatives of the
DEPARTMENT, the COMMISSION and the COUNTY ATTORNEY,

d. Produce and provide to the COUNTY ATTORNEY for review the draft of & project
technical report chapter documenting the research methodology, analyses and
findings obtained in addressing each of the research questions posed in this Step 4.

e, If necessary, meet with the U,S, Department of Justice to review the technical report
materials produced during project steps 1, 2, 3 and 4.

Step 5:  Develop Exam Administration Support Materials







Step 6:

a.
b,

Asgist COMMISSION in preparing materials that describe the content and format of
the examination for the orientation of applicants.

Produce Test Administrator training and support procedures.

Provide on-site assistance with Test Administrator training and preparation, and make
consulting staff available for telephone consultation during testing session hours.

Score the Written Fxam and Report Results

Score and database all applicant exam responses.

Use the applicant database to evaluate adverse impact, produce'appropriate range
restriction corrections to the Step 4 validation results, and make final statistical
displays.

Produce ¢candidate score rosters and technical report documentation,
Report on  project results to  representatives of the DE,}’ARIMENT the

’ COMMISSION, and the COUNTY ATTORNEY.

h,

8.

As a separate endeavor AON HEWITT shall remain available to provide fechnical
support if outside parties challenge exam results. Requests for such support shall be
on a time and expense basis separate from this agreement, and shall be additional
billables at AON HEWITT'S then applicable rates.

Produce and provide to the COUNTY ATTORNEY for review the draft of a project
technical report chapter sumnarizing the results of all candidate testing activity.
Provide in the report AON HEWITT's recommendations for examination
implementation and use in candidate processing.

Produce and provide to the COUNTY ATTORNEY the final project technical report.

If necessary, upon request of the COUNTY or the DEPARTMENT meet with the
U.Ss. Dcpartment of Justice. Provide and/or interpret such information or data as their
expert reviewers may request,

AON HEWITT agrees that it will deliver the candidate scores and the project

technical report to the COUNTY no later than seventy-five (75) days after completion of
examination administration provided that the COUNTY has met its payment obligations set forth
in Addendum B, for phases (i) through (iv) above, and payment obligations for optional services
outlined in Section B.

9, Upon the request of the County, at additional cost to be determined at the time of
request, AON HEWITT shall perform all acts deemed reasonably necessary by the County to
assisl the County in making an application to the court to terminate the Consent Decree with the
U.S. Justice Department. Such acts may include, but not be limited to, providing expert
testimony, the making of statements and affidavits, attendance at hearings and trials, production
of documents, and assistance in securing and giving evidence, This Section 9 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.






B. OPTIONAL TEST SCHEDULING AND SUPPORT SERVICES TO BE
PROVIDED WITH WRITTEN PRE-APPROVAL OF THE DEPARTMENT OR
COMMISSION.,

1. The COUNTY will be cunductmg testing at various testing sites throughout the
Nassau County area. AON HEWITT will provide support services for the test scheduling
process.  AON HEWITT agrees to provide the COUNTY with law enforcement testing
schcduling, and support services for to the Term of this Agreement and after the Term, continuin
services my be nepotiated between the parties subject to para wgranh 2 herein (the “Term™),

2. Ium Frfunc and bcom of Services

a) A minimum of twelve (12) weeks prior to the first day of the testing the
COUNTY will provide to AON HEWITT the master examination schedule and list of all
testing sites and session info including Facility name, room/class number(s), location
acklress, dates, and times.

h) A minimum of twelve (12) weeks prior to the first day of testing the COUNTY
will provide AON HEWITT with template wording for the scheduling letter, directions to
the testing sites, and parking information {or inclusion in the packets. AON HEWITT
will help refine as requested, and will be 1eﬁponmble for formatting and copymg ary
material provided by the COUNTY for inclusion in the packet.

o) Eight (8) weeks prior to the first day of testing, AON HEWITT shall provide to
the County  for review and approval the Frequently Asked Questions, and a sample test
study manual, both of which will be included in the packet,

d) Eight (8) weeks prinr to the first day of testing, AON HEWITT shall create
custom scheduling database with information provided by the County with respect to
master examination schedule, tesling sites, and session information,

€) Eight (8) weeks prior 10 the first day of testing, the COUNTY shall provide to
AON HEWITT importable data (Access, Excel or a Text File - comma or tab delimited
format) of their prescreened candidate contact information (name, address, phone, social
security number, Sabbath requirements, military duty) of those applicants desired to be
scheduled by AON HEWITT for the COUNTY testing

f) Six (6) weeks prior to the first day of testing, AON HEWITT shall generate a
custom letter packet with a total of 6 sheets that provides notice of the exam schedule to
candidates and provides additional materials. The letter shall include the assigned testing
gite ‘location, room number, examination date and time, requirements, check-in and
identification procedures. The custom letter packet shall also include 2 sample test study
manual, Frequently Asked Questions, directions to the test sites, and parking information.

2) Eight (8) weeks prior to the first day of testing AON HEWITT will import the

data provided by the County, merge information listed above into the database, and create
individual candidate testing schedules, AON HEWITT will also gencrate a random
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match between the candidaie and the test site, room, date, and time of the examinaticn for
that candidate.

{1 When generating the scheduling for candidates, AON HEWITT will
offer a re-schedule telephone number for candidates that may be scheduled
for days that observe the Sabbath; for Friday evening through Saturday
afternoon fest sessions

(u) (,andldau,s who are in the mllﬁary and 11c>t1fy the COMMIS&!ON they
are, not available on the examination date will not be scheduled for an
exammatmn This information must be provided to AON HEWITT,

h) Five (5) weeks prior to the first day of tcstmg AON HEWITT will send 8 master
schedule list to the COUNTY.

i)

3

Three (3) weeks prior to the first day of testing, AON HEWITT shall mail by first-
class mail, the custom letter packets to all the candidates simultaneously. AON
HEWITT will notify the COUNTY of the number of latter packets to be sent, the
COUNTY will provide AON HEWITT with stationery letterhead, and COUNTY will
provide the 9x12 envelopes for that purpose

Fees for Optional Scheduling and Support Serviegs, - For purposes of test

scheduling and support services, the COUNTY agrees to pay AON HEWITT as services are
provided, and as outlined below:

&,

Project Initiation and Technology Fee: Eighteen thousand doliars ($18,000.00) will
be billed by AON HEWITT to the COUNTY upon exccution of this agreement.
Charges related to the project which shall be covered by this fee shall include:
project management and coordination; AON HEWITT transition work; set up of
communications; creation of the custom scheduling database; obtaining and merging
candidate contact data, test sites, dates, times, etc. from the COUNTY info AON
HEWITTs database; creation of an informational and tracking database to be used
by AON HEWITT call center agents fielding candidate inquiries and for the
generation of the custom letter packet and rosters,

. In addition, AON HEWITT will bill $3.00 per candidate, plus first-class postage &

materials for the Scope of Services deseribed in Section B. (2) (i), which will be
invoiced on a monthly basis as these services are provided.

Ongoing law enforcement test scheduling optional support services, as destribed in
Section B.4 will be invoiced on a monthly basis as these services are provided. AON
HEWITT will bill $5.25 per inbound call and $6.75 per re-schedule call that is
taken from the AON HEWITT ecall center.

In addition to the product and service fees set forth in Addendum B of this
agreement, the COUNTY will reimburse AON HEWITT for the following business
expenses incurred by performing the services in this agreement. Reimbursement is
due upon submission of the inveices:
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(i) Postage; and shipping by express courier (if necessary, and upon prior
approval by the DEPARTMENT or the COMMISSION), for any items will be
billed back at standard USPS rates.

(ii) Supplies, printing and printed materials,
-~ (iii) Storage/handling for records (82.50/box per month)

(iv) Travel expenses including: Car rental; Mileage at IRS stated rate; Airfare;
Lodging; and meals,

Additiona, ' Approval in Wriling by
the COMMISSION or DEPARTMENT. = . : .

a. AON HEWITT will mail out test results and/or a follow-up letter ina 1+
page mailing on County letterhead to all tested candidates on behalf of the COUNTY at a
cost of $4.00 per letter, plus first-class postage, invoiced on a monthly basis as these
services are provided. The COUNTY will supply letter-size window envelopes and
letterhead for results notification.

b. Any additional IT programming/development, including IT redesign,
modifications, changes, programming changes, ete. will be billed at $150.00 per hour.

¢ Proposed billing for any additional responsibilities requested that are
outside of those outlined in the Scope of Services in Section B herein will be provided by
AON HEWITT to the COUTY in advance of the performance of these responsibilities
and the requested activities performed only with prior written approval by the COUNTY,

d. Any additional reports, custom reports, or modification of existing reports

for services outlined in Scction B herein that are not aleeady contemplated by this
Amended Agreement will be billed at. $80.00 per hour.
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Addendum B — Entry-level Examination-Payment Schedule

1. For all professional services and charges related to the project outlined in
Addendum A, except travel-related expenses and where otherwise noted, the COUNTY
shall pay to AON HEWITT {a) a project fee (hereinafier the “Project Fee) based upon
the number of documented candidates who attend and sit for the written examination as
specified below, or (b) the amounts indicated in Paragraph 2 below, whichever amount
is greater.

(i) First 5,000 Candidates $20.00 per candidate
{1 - 5,000)

(if) Next 5, 000 Candidates $15.00 per candidate
(5,001-10,000)

(iii) Next 10,000 Candidates $12.00 per candidate
(10,001-20,000)

(iv) All additional candidates $10,00 per candidate
(20,0001 and above)

8. “Charges related to the project outlined in Section A” which shall be
covered by the Project Fee shall include:

(1) clerical services, including but net lmited to, word processing proofing,

copying and related project support activities;

(ii) printing and copying of testing materials, reports, and related project support
activities; ,

(iii) computer services, including but not limited to data base development (other
than development costs related to the optional services in Addendum A, statistical
analysis, and related aspects of project research;

(iv) telephone, postage and shipping, ineluding but not limited to direct charges
for telephone, postage, express mail, rapid delivery services, and facsimile
transmissions, gther than for those items described in Section B below and as
noted in optional services in Addendum A.

b. “Travel-related expenses,” ineluding reasonable direct out-of-pocket
expenses associated with air and ground travel, meals and lodging, expended in
completing project work shall not be included in the foregoing fee schedule and will be
charged separately upon submisgion of claim forms and supporting documentation on a
monthly basis to the County Controtier which have been approved by the
DEPARTMENT cértifying that said expenses were necessarily incurred, AON HEWITT
estimates that the “travel-related expenses™ which will be incurred in completing the
project will be $20,600, but billing shall be based on actual expenses.
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2. The COUNTY shall pay AON HEWITT the Project Fee upon submizsion
of claim forms to the County Controller that have been approved by the COMMISSION
certifying that the professional services have been rendered by AON HEWITT according
to the following schedule. Payment terms are net sixty (60) days from date of '
invoice/claim fc:rm The Project Fee schedule is as follows:

(i) Upon formal initiation " $35,000
of project work '

(if) Upon completion and --$35,000
submission of the draft - _
Technical Report chapter

described in Work Plan

Step 1 {scope, objectives)

(iii) Upon completion and  $35,000
submission of the draft

Technical Report chapter

described in Work Plan

Step 2 (job analysis)

(iv) Upon completion and  $35,000
submission of the draft

Technical Report chapter

described in Work Plan

Step 4 (Validation report)

{v) Close of candidate 40% of Project Fee, less

registration payments made under (i)
through (iv}

{vi) Completion of 35% of Project Fee

examination

administration

(vii) Delivery of candidate  $45,000
scores and completed
project Technical Report

(viii) Completion of 25% of Project Fee, less
project payment made under
(vit)

The Payments under (v) and (vi) shall be based on the number of candidates who register
to sit for the examination, The final payment under (viii) shall be based on the number of
candidates who attend and sit for the examination, and shall be adjusted to account for any
differences in the amounts of payments under (v) and (vi) which will have been based on the
number of candidates registered to sit for the examination. The total Project Fee shall be the






greater amount based on the number of candidates who attend and sit for the examination or total
amount under (i), (ii), (iiD), (iv), and (vii}.

Should the parties to this agreement conclude that development of additional examination
content is appropriate and justified, AON HEWITT will carry out the work described in Step 3
of the Workplan as previously described as a separate undertaking. Professional fees for
completion of this work will be $90.000. Travel-related expenses pettaining to this work will be
invoiced in addition to this amount.

will promde zmy invoices for Developmeut %rvxces to the Di« PAR r Mf:,N T for approval review,
The COMMISSION will review for approval invoices for Administrative Services,

F-'inai payment under (vii) will be contingent upon completion of the Project, Completion
will be determined by and in the sol¢ and absolute discretion of the COUNTY and/or the
DEPARTMENT, The determination of completion will be primarily based upon the Justice
Department deeming the test valid, and such determination will not be unreasonably withheld.
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Agdendum C- Promotional Examination Scope of Services

1. Scope of Services: COUNTY hercby retains AON HEWITT to develop a
written examination procedure consistent with (i) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended, 42 U.8.C. § 2000e, et seq. (hereinafter referred to as “Title VII™), (i1
the Uniform Guidelines for Emplovee Selection Procedures, 28 C.F.R. Part 50,14, 29
C.ER, Part 1607, 31 CFR. Part 51.53 (hercinafter referred to as the “Uniform
Guidelines™ or successor guldelines, and (iii) the Consent Decree entered in United
States v, Nassau County, et al., 77 Civ, 1881 (E.D.N.Y.), on April 21, 1982, {the *1982
Consent Decree™), for use in screening police officers for promotion to the rank of Police
Sergeant (“Promotional Examination™),

2. AON HEWITT will develop the selection procedures and the
administrative procedures necessary to introduce the candidate to the written
examination, summarize and score candidate performance, provide the COUNTY with
summary of each candidate’s qualifications, and provide a means for archiving test data.

3, AON HEWITT will provide the COUNTY with (i) a written examination
for the promotional examination, (i) procedures to administer the written examination,
(ii1) scoring interpretation and record keeping associated with use of the new written
examination, (iv) recommendations for using the tests as part of the overall selection
process, (v) technical documentation to address the Uniform Guidelines requirements,
including the completion of a validation study and writlen report on that study, (vi)
descriptions of all technical phases of the project should they be challenged by individual
applicants or by any Federal or State enforcement agency, and (vii) reasonable defense
of any claims, actions, suits or any litigation brought in comnection with the services
described herein,

4, The parties agree that the COUNTY will have the sole responsibility for
establishing minimum qualifications and requirements for the promotional examination,
including the establishment of eut-off scores, based upon the recommendations of AON,
which will factor in the feedback from the Department of Justice,

5. AON HEWITT acknowledges that the current civil service list for the
position of Sergeant in Nassau County No. 3015 expires on June 12, 2018 and most
likely will be exhausted prior to its expiration, The current list may be gxtended at the
discretion of the Civil Service Commission, and with the approval of a Court of
competent jurisdiction. The parties agree to make best efforts to ensure that the
examination herein described is administered before March 1, 2017 which is contingent
upon the timely efforts and cooperation by COUNTY, DEPARTMENT, and
COMMISSION 1o provide all required resources and support to enable AON HEWITT to
meet the timeframes, AON HEWITT will develop and deliver a wriiten examination for
the promotional examination to be administered by COUNTY in sufficient time for the
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COUNTY to fulfill its obligations under the (a) Consent Decrce with the 1.8,
Department of Justice, dated April 21, 1982, and (b) Consent Order dated April 29, 2002,
entered in United States v. Nassan County, et al., 77 Civ. 1881 (E.D.N.Y.), and to obtain
approval from the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York to
use the results of the new examination, It is agreed that specific deadlines for the key
evenis under this contract including examination announcement date, examination
administration date, delivery of candidate score roster and delivery of technical report to
the Commission will be established through negotiation afier the project commences and
as it develops. AON HEWITT agrees to meet the schedules and time lines as set forth
above, and as negotiated between the parties, but AON HEWITT shall not be liable for
delays caused by COUNTY, DEPARTMENT, or COMMISSION, or due to any other
cause beyond the reasonable control of AON HEWITT.

Phase 1; Project Initiation

1.1

Select a Client Advisory Committee (CAC) representing the Police Department
and Civil Service Commission of Nassau County. Draw upon this group
during initial project stages to learn of any revisions in overall Police
Department or Civil Service Commission practices since the prior
examination. Draw upon the Civil Service Commission members during later
stages of the project as planning for examination administration commences.

1.1.1  Meet with and brief the CAC. Identify specific individuals who will
serve as liaisons within the Police Idepartment and Civil Service
Commission concerning scheduling, data collection, file information
retrieval, Police Department communications, and related project
needs.

1.1.2  Meet with DOJ {0 receive 1DOJ input into the project plan, examination
design, and validation approach.

1.1.3 Confirm a project calendar, indicating all project milestones, work
product development targets, and a target date for exam
administration,

1.1.4  Confirm a final project work plan with input from DOJ and CAC.

Develop a communication piece [or dissemination within the Police
Department, announcing commencement of the project and providing a
general summary of the work to be executed to all Department members. Use
this device to communicate to potential candidates the targeted test
administration date, within thirty (30} days of execution of this Agreement.
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1.3

1.4

1.5

1.2,1  As necessary, provide an cverall project briefing to members of
County management, bargaining units, and any other individuals identified by
the County and counsel, within thirty (30) days of execution of the Agreement,

Retrieve all work paper documentation produced during the course of the
2012 exam development project. Also recover the full data base of 2012
applicant test information, test administration materials, et¢c. Retain the item-
level test score clata for further evaluation using statistical methods focused
upon analysis of psychometric quality and potential test item bias,

Identify Subject Matter Expert (SME) groups and roles of consultants and
NCPD with respect to scheduling SME interviews and meetings.

Review updated project plan with COUNTY and DOJ.

Phase 2: Joh Analvsis Update

2.1

22

2.3

2.4

2.5

Review the results of the 2012 examination's job analysis to identify the key
job activity components and key requirements of the Sergeant position.

Conduct interviews with the Police Commissioner or his designee, 3-4 senior
cormmand-level personnel, and 1-2 training personnel focusing upon the
primary mission of Nassau County Police Sergeants in today's Departmental
organization. Use these interviews to identify the Department's priorities
concerning expectations of Sergeants, and to identify any changes in job
priorities or external factors that have influenced the position since execution
of the 2012 project's job analysis study,

Summarize the results of the above interviews to identify basic responsibility
arens of the current Sergeant’s position and to highlight any changes that have
affected the position over recent years, Use the results of the summary to
prepare a specification of the Sergeant’s position primary roles and
responsibilities,

Identify a job expert focus group composed of ten to twelve Patrol Sergeants
drawn from each of the County's precinets. Targets for membership in this
group would be current Sergeants, each with at least two years in the Sergeant
position, to include a range of racial, ethnic and gender groups. In addition,
Sergeants who have had instruction in training subordinates and, where
posmbiﬁ who have served across multiple precinet assignments in a
supervisory capacity would be desired as participants. An additional member
of this focus group should be a trainer in the Sergeant Academy.

Meet w1th the job expert focus group for three one- day sessions, during which
the group reviews, refines and expands upon the 2012 project’s job task,
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kuowledge, skill and ability inventory., Also, use these sessions as a basis for
identifying reference or source materials for job knowledge requirements, and
identifying critical incidents that typify the leadership/managerial components
of the position,

2.5.1 In the first session, direct the job éxpert focus group in a systematic
review of the 2012 project’s job analysis instruments, as well as input
provided by senior Police Department personnel (see tasks 2.2, 2.3).
The objective of this session will be to edit and add to lists of job
tasks, job knowledge , and leadership challenges to assure complete
and accurate coverage of all potential Sergeant job activities or-
requirements in subsequent data colleclion sessions. In addition this

© first session would generate & list of critical incidents and challenges
that typify the leadership/managerial components of the position, and
mn particular incidents those that are seen as most commonly
presenting challenges to effective job performance, especially early in
a Sergeant’s tenure in role.

2.5.2  Once updated job task and job knowledge, skill and ability listings
have been prepared based upon the first session, the second session
will focus on collecting the job expert focus group’s judgments
concerning both job task content, job knowledge, and
leadership/managerial requirements of the current Nassau County
Sergeant position. A job analysis inventory will be used to collect
ratings by focus group members. Job lasks will be rated on
importance to the performance of the job, frequency of performance,
and whether task performance is required “Day One™ after promotion,
Knowledges and leadership/managerial capabilitics will similarly be
rated by job experts on importance to the job, frequency of use and
wlhether the knowledge or capability is required Day Cne of the job for
effective performance in the role. Additionally, items based on
knowledge of particular material items will be rated on the material’s
source and tinting of proficiency attainment, whether knowledge areas
must be applied without reference to source materials, and the
typicality and criticality of performance in a range of critical incidents,

2.5.3  Analyze and summarize the job analysis inventory information to
identify the position’s key “Day One™ {asks and its key “entry-level”
requirements.

2.5.4 Meet for the third day of focus group activity, During this session,
fead the group through a "linkage” exercise in order to document the
gonnections between key job tasks and Jeadership/managerial
challenges and the knowledge, abilities, and skills requisite fo
perfermance. :
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2.6 Meet and confer with the Police Commissioner or his designee, and the
executive staff to review the results of the work condueted in section 2.5.

2.7 Summarize the results of the total focus group exercise. Prepare a job analysis
update report, including tabular and graphic summaries of the job analysis
data, highlighting the key job task components of the current Nassau County
Sergeant position. Also produce summaries for purposes of comparing the
results of the current job analysis with results obtained in the 2012 exam
development praject.

2.8 Draw upon the job analysis results to produce a specification of the capability
areas to be addressed in the updated Sergeant's promotional examination. For
each key knowledge, skill and ability area, provide recommendations
coneerning the assessment medium to be used in evaluating applicant skills,

2.9  Present the results of the job analysis to the CAC and to DOJ and provide
recommendations concerning the scope and content of the promotional
examination.

2,10 Summarize results of the job analysis process in a written Technical Report
chapter, comparing results to those obtained in 2012 and specifying steps to
be followed in prometional procedure design phases of the project.

3.1 Use the job analysis data and information concerning the relative importance
of each capability area to establish a relative weighting for each component of
the promotional procedure. Review the resulting material with counsel and
DOJ representatives, as appropriate.

32 Identify assessment medium most appropriate for development of the current
exam, _

3.3 Draw upon the current job analysis data and test design specification to
determine areas where items written for the 2012 examination could be adapted or
serve as templates for items for the 2016 examination, without using any questions
from the 2012 examination, Preliminary to design of any promotional procedure
content, obtain systematic judgments from the Test Development Commitiee (see
Task 3.7) to identify all appropriate source documents (laws, procedures,
Departmental training materials, etc,) that pertain to each knowledge area to be-
addressed by the examination,

3.4  Draw upon the applicant data base produced by the 2012 examination to
evaluate item-level psychometric characteristics of the items identified in task
3.3. Apply psychometric techniques to evaluate the professional agceptability
of each test item. Identify any test iters for which psychometric data indicate
the need for revision or deletion, Prepare a developmental specification,
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indicating areas where additional examination development work will be
necessary,

3.5  Produce a draft document produced by the current job analysis.

3.6 Identify the key jobr arcas where situational judgment test questions should be

' used in order to appropriately evaluate the underlying constructs that are
premised upon all appropriate source documents (laws, procedures,
Departmental training materials, ete.} that pertain to each knowledge or
managerial/leaderskip capabilily area to be addressed by the examination,

3.7 Identify a group of 10 to 12 current Lieutenant and Captain-level personnel
(Test Development Commiitee) to participate in a review of the retained 2012
test items. Structure the review to ensure that each item is held against the
most recent job analysis data base and evaluated with respect to its linkage
with key job requirements, its clarity, the appropriateness of the "keyed”
answer, and the extent to which the item measures a knowledge required at the
time of entry 1o the Sergeant’s position. In the event of changes in the content
or context of the knowledge base underlying item(s), (such as a change in law,
procedure or training doctrine) also review the item(s) for corrency. As
necessary, revise or adapt 2012 items to address any shortcomings identified
by the review, and subject these items to a second review,

3.8 Summarize the results of the above group’s work to identify 2012 examination
content that the group considers current, relevant, linked to specific job
knowledge, skill and ability requirements, keyed correctly, and necessary
upon entry to the Sergeant position.

3.9 Use results of the preceding step to identify any important job areas resulting
from the most recent job analysis, that are unaddressed or under-addressed by
the retained content of the 2012 examination items,

310 Draft Sitvational Judgment Jtems based on critical incidents gathered in
Phase 2. Meet with Test Development Commiittee review items, draft scoring
and determine proposed weightings. Revise or draft additional items based on
TDC input,

3.11  Make provisions to ensure complete security of all draft design work and
ensure appropriate "confidentiality agreements” with Nassau County
personnel participating in the exam development process. Subdivide project
work so that any given individual within the County has access to only a
relatively smail component of any new design work.

3.12 Continue with design work until an overall dratt for the new promotional
program has been produced. Review of complete item pool and recommended
weightings that are tentative and are contingent upon the review after full
administration of the examination, with Test Development Committee (FDC),
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Review the resulting material with counsel and DOJ representatives, as
appropriate.

Phase 4: Promotional Procedure Validation

4.1 Assemble an additional job expert review panel of 10 to 12 Lieutenants and
Captains (Test Review Committee) whose role will be to evaluate the content
of all draft promotional procedures. The group'’s role will be to review all
components of the draft procedures and to link its items to job analysis
findings concerning key job requirements. In addition, the panel will use
established procedures (e.g., Angoft ratings) to set an appropriate and
supportable cut-score. '

4.1.1  Conduct an item-by-item review of all components of the premotional
procedures. Focus the group's attention on documenting the linkage
between the project's job analysis and the content of the new
promotional components. Produce rating scale formats, and provide
for narrative evaluations regarding the content validity of each item.

4.1.2  Summarize the results of the group's evaluations and undertake
revisions to the promotional procedures necessary to satisfy both
technical and professional review of the procedure, Prepare any final
revisions to instructions, practice exercises, time frames, ete., indicated
by the expert panel review procedures,

4.2 Meetand confer with the Police Commissioner or his designee, and the
executive staff to review the results of the work conducted in section 4.1.

43  Prepare a written Technical Report chapters concerning results of the
-promotional procedure design, content validation and cut-score establishment
processes that are tentative and contingent upen review after full
administration of the examination, Present the report to the CAC.

5. Prepare necegsary administrative support materials, such as the examination
announcement, Study Guide reading list specifications, exam preview
materials for interested candidates, ete. Provide to, and review these materials
with, representatives of the Civil Service Commission. Arrange printing and
delivery of the finalized Study Guide to the Department, so the Stmdy Guide
may be distributed by the County at least ninety (90) days prior to the
examination date, .
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52

5.3

Prepare all training materials necessary o insteuct Test Administrators in
standard procedures including administration scripts and candidate
instructions. Work with the Civil Service Commission to review testing
site(s) and to arrange for all materials necessary for proper administration of
each promotional procedure component.

Tixecute administration of the process, ensuring lhat all test security
zequzrementg are bﬁllhf' ed.

53.1  Provide assistance in planning for, and oversight of the test
administration session{s). :

5.3.2  Provide for secure printing and transportation of exam materials to the
Civil Service Commission.

Phase 6. Post-Administration Activities

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Execute examination scoring, and tabulate both component and overall
promotional procedure scores, Enter all item-level data onto computer data
base Tor statistical analysis.

Undertake item-level analysis, using the same psychometric methods applied
in evaluating the 2013 examination results. Identify any items that present
unacceptable psychometric characteristics (e.g., unacceplable item-total
correlation, extreme difficulty, etc.).

As appropriate and factoring in fecdback from the DOJ, delete any
promotional procedure items that do not satisty technical criteria,

Prepare materials to facilitate a “key review” process for candidates. Respond
to any issues arising out of this review process.

Respond to any post-examination inquiries or protests by candidates regarding
examination item content or scoring. Assist in a formal review by Department
experts of any such inquiries. If appropriate. rekey any items in need of
adjusiment,

Analyze the procedure’s validity and its adverse impact upon racial, ethnic
and gender minorities.

Confer with County and DOJF on procedures for caleuiating final scores,
Prepare final applicant scores and ranking.

Prepare a summary report of prometional pmcedm e scoring and present the
project results to the CAC,






6.9

6.10

6.11

Provide to the Civil Service Commission a listing of all candidates, their
promotional procedure scores and other identifying information requested by
the Commission,

Preparc a final Technical Report documenting all promotional procedure
design, validation and implementation work. Provide the report to Nassau
County management within one hundred and twenty (120) days after
administration of the examination and meet, if appropriate, with DOJ
representatives to discuss the results of the process and to deseribe the planned
implementation strategy.

Prepare a complete data base of all project work products, data and
promotional procedure scoring information. Archive this information for

future use.






Addendum D- Promotional Examination Payment Scliedule

1. For all professional services and charges related to the project outlined in Addendum
C, the COUNTY shall pay to AON HEWITT SIX HUNDRED AND THIRTY EIGHT
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($638,000.00), to be carried out as a firm, fixed-price contract. This
fee shall be inclusive of all professional and reimbursable expenses and in addition shall include
the following:

¢ All professional consulting time devoted to the project (estimated at approximately 1350
hours)

¢ All clerical and administrative time required o produce the project deliverables
(estimated at approximately 840 hours)

o All travel expenses incurred by AON HEWITT personnel in the completion of project
work

o All expenses for the printing, binding and shipping of test booklets, answer documents,
questionnaires, study guides, reports, and other printed materials required for both the
completion of the research phases of the project and the implementation of testing

o All time and expenses associated with answer sheet scanning and with scoring of the
examination

o All other miscellaneous expenses incurred in association with the project
2, Payments shall be in accordance with the completion of specific project inilestones
detailed in five {5) Phases of the Project Technical Plan as set forth in Addendum C, as foliows:

s MILESTONE ONE: One Hundred TWENTY FIVE Thousand Dollars ($125,000. O{})
upon satisfactory completion of Phase 1 *“Project Initiation”.

s MILESTONE TWO: One Hundred TWENTY FIVE Thousand Dollars
(8$125,000.00) upon satisfactory completion of the Phase 2 “Joh Analysis”.

s MILESTONE THREE: One Hundred TWENTY FIVE Thousand Dollars
($125,000.00) vpon satisfactory completion of Phase 3 “Promotional Procedure
Design™.
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¢  MILESTONE FOUR: One hundred TWENTY FIVE Thousand Dollarg
($125,000.00) upon administration of the examination and satisfactory completion of
Phase 4 through Phasn, 5,

» MILESTONE FIVE: One Hundred THIRTY EIGHT Thousand Dollars
($138,000.00) upon submission and acccprance of the final Technical Report and
satisfactory completion of Phase 6. '
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Appendix EE
Equal Employment Opportunities For Minorities and Women

The provisions of this Appendix EE are hereby made a part of the document to which it is
attached.

The Contractor shall comply with all federal, State and local statutory and constitutional
anti-discrimination provisions. In addition, Loocal Law No. 14-2002, entitled *Participation by
Minority Group Members and Women in Nassau County Contracts,” governs all County

ontracts as defined by such title and solicitations for bids or proposals for County Contracts. In
accordance with Local Law 14-2002:

(a) The Contractor shall not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital
status in recruitment, employment, job assignments, promotions, upgradings, demotions,
transfers, layoffs, terminations, and rates of pay or other forms of compensation. The
Contractor will undertake or continue existing programs related to recruitment,
employment, job assignments, promotions, upgradings, transfers, and rates of pay or
other forms of compensation to engure that minority group members and women are
afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination,

(b) At the request of the County contracting agency, the Contractor shall request each
employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a
collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, to furnish a written statement that
such employment agency, union, or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race,
creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or marital status and that such employment
agency, labor union, or representative will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of the
Contractor’s obligations herein,

(¢} The Coniractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for
employees, that, in the performance of the County Contract, all qualified
applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without
discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age,
disability or marital status,

(d) The Contractor shall make Best Efforts to solicit active
participation by certified minority or women-owned business enterprises
“Certified M/WBEs™) as defined in Section 101 of Local Law No, 14-2002,
including the granting of Subcontracts.

(¢) The Contractor shall, in its advertisements and solicitations for
Subcontractors, indicate its interest in receiving bids from Certified M/WBEs
and the reguirement that Subcontractors must be equal opportunity
emplioyers,
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(f) Contractors must notify and receive approval from the respective
Department Head prior to issuing any Subeontracts and, at the time of
requesting such authorization, must submit a signed Best Efforts Checklist,

(%) Contractors for projects under the supervision of the COUNTY’S
Department of Public Works shalf also submit a utilization plan listing all
proposed Subcontractors so that, to the greatest extent feasible, all
Subcontractors will be approved prior to commmencement of work. Any
additions or changes to the {ist of subcontractors under the utilization plan
shall be approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works
when made. A copy Of the utilization plan any additions or changes thergto
shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Office of Minority Affairs
simultaneously with the submission to the Department of Public Works,

{h) At any time after Subcontractor approval has been requested and
prior to being granted, the contracting agency may require the Contractor to
submit Documentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to Obtain Certified
Minority or Women-owned Business Enterprises. In addition, the contracting
agency may require the Contractor to submit such documentation at any time
after Subcontractor approval when the contracting agency has reasonable
cause to believe that the existing Best Efforts Checklist may be inaccurate,
Within ten working days (10) of any such request by the contracting agency,
the Contractor must submit Documentation.

(i) Inthe case where a request is made by the contracting agency or a
Deputy County Executive acting on behalf of the contracting agency, the
Contractor must, within two (2) working days of such request, submit
evidence to demonstrate that it employed Best Efforts to obtain Certified
M/WBE participation through proper documentation,

(i) Award of a County Contraet alone shall not be deemed or
interpreted as approval of all Contractor’s Subcontracts and Contractor’s
fulfiltment of Best Efforts to obtain participation by Certified M/WBEs.

(k) A Contractor shall maintain Documentation Demonstrating Best
Efforts to Obtain Certified Minority or Women-owned Business Enterprises
for a period of six (6) years. Failure to maintain such records shall be deemed
failure to make Best Efforts to comply with this Appendix EE, evidence of |
false certification as M/WBE compliant or considered breach of the County
Contract.. :

1y The Contrak;tor.sha,ﬂ be bound by the provisions of Section 109 of
Local Law No. 14-2002 providing for enforcement of violations as follows:

Upon receipt by the Executive Director of a complaint from a contracting
agency that a County Contractor has failed to comply with the provisions of
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Local Law No. 14-2002, this Appendix EE or any other contractual provisions
included in furtherance of Local Law No, 14-2002, the Executive Director
will try to resolve the matter.

b. If efforts to resolve such matter to the satisfaction of all parties are
unsuccessiul, the Executive Director shall refer the matter, within thirty days
(30} of receipt of the complaint, to the American Arbitration Association for
proceeding thereon, : '

¢, Upon conclusion of the arbitration proceedings, the arbitrator shall submit to
the Executive Director his recommendadtions regarding the imposition of
sanctions, fines or penalties. The Executive Director shall either (i) adopt the
recomimendation of the arbitrator (i) determine that no sanctions, fines or
penalties should be imposed or (iif) modify the recommendation of the
arbitrator, provided that such modification shall not expand upon any sanction
recommended or Impose any new sanction, or increase the amount of any
recommended fine or penalty. The Executive Director, within ten days (10) of
receipt of the arbitrators award and recommendations, shall filea
determination of such matter and shall cause a copy of such determination to
be served upon the respondent by personal service or by certified mail réturn
receipt requested. The award of the arbitrator, and the fines and penalties
imposed by the Executive Director, shall be final determinations and may only
be vacated or modified as provided in the civil practice law and rules
(“CPLR™),

{m) The contractor shall provide contracting agency with information regarding all
subcontracts awarded under any County Contract, including the amount of compensation paid
to each Subcontractor and shall complete all forms provided by the Executive Director or the
Department Head relating 1o subcontractor utilization and efforts to obtain M/WBE
participation,

Failure to comply with provisions (a) through (m) above, as ultimately determined by
the Executive Director, shall be a material breach of the contract constituting grounds for
immediate termination. Once a final determination of failure to comply has been reached by the
Fxecutive Director, the determination of whether toterminate a contract shall rest with the
Deputy County Executive with oversight responsibility for the contracting agency.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “Best Efforts Checklist” shall mean a list
signed by the Contractor, lisiing the procedures it has undertaken to procure Subcontractors in
accordance with this Appendix EE.

As used in this Appendix EE the term *County Contract” shall mean (i) a written
agreement or purchase order instrument, providing for a tolal expenditure in excess of twenty-
five thousand dollars ($23,000), whereby a County contracting agency is committed to expend or
does expend funds in return for labor, services, supplies, equipment, materials or any
combination of the foregoing, to be performed for, or rendered or furnished to the County; or (if)
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a written agreement in excess of one liundred thousand dollars ($100,000), whereby « County
contracting agency is commitied to expend or does expend funds for the acquisition,
construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and
improvements thereon. However, the term “County Contract” does not include agreements or
orders for the following services: banking services, insurance policies or confracts, or contracts
with g County contracting agency for the sale of bonds, notes or other securities.

As used in this Appendix EE the term *County Contractor” means an individual, business
enterprise, including sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, not-for-profii corporation, or
any other person or entity other than the County, whether a contractor, licensor, licensee or any
other party, that is {i} a party to a County Contract, (ii) a bidder in connection with the award of a
County Contract, or {iii) a proposed party to a County Contract, but shall not include any
Subcontractor. ‘ ‘

As used in this Appendix EE the term “County Contractor” shall mean a person or firm
who will manage and be responsible for an entire contracted project.

As used in this Appendix EE *Documentation Demonstrating Best Efforts to Obtain
Certified Minority or Women-owned Business Enterprises” shall include, but is not limited to the
following:

a. Proof of having advertised for bids, where appropriate, in minority
publications, trade newspapers/notices and magazines, trade and union
publications, and publications of general circulation in Nassau County and
surrounding areas or having verbally solicited M/WBEs whom the County
Contractor reasonably believed might have the qualifications to do the work. A
copy of the advertisement, if used, shall be included to demonstrate that it
contained language indicating that the County Contractor welcomed bids and
quotes from M/WBE Subcontractors. In addition, proof of the date(s) any such
advertisements appeared must be included in the Best Effort Documentation, 1If
verbal soligitation is used, a County Contractor’s affidavit with a notary’s
signature and stamp shall be required as part of the documentation,

b. Proof of having provided reasonabie time for M/WBE Subcontractors to
respond to bid opportunities according to industry norms and standards, A
chart outlining the schedule/time frame used to obtain bids from M/WBEs is
suggested 1o be included with the Best Effort Documentation

C, - Proof or affidavit of follow-up of telephone calls with potential M/WBE
subcontractors encouraging their participation. Telephone logs indicating such
action can be included with the Best Effort Documentation

d. Proof or affidavit that M/WBE Subcontractors were allowed to review bid
specifications, biue prints and all other bid/RFP related items at no charge to
the M/WRBEs, other than reasonable docurmentation costs incurted by the
County Contractor that are passed onto the M/WBE.
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e. Proof or affidavit that sufficient time prior to making award was allowed for
M/WRBESs to participate effectively, to the extent pra qcucablc given the
timeframe of the County Contract,

f. Proof or affidavil that negotiations were held in Best Efforts with interested
M/WBEs, and that M/WBEs were not rejected as unqualified or unacceptable
without sound business reasons based on (1) a thorough investigation of
M/WBE gualifications and capabilities reviewed against industry custom and
standards and (2) cost of performance The basis for rejecting any M/WBE
deemed unqualified by the (I‘ounty Contractor shall be included in the Best
Effort Donumentauon

g. If an M/WBE is rejected based on cost, the County Contractor must submit a

list of all sub-bidders for each item of work solicited and their bid prices for the
work,
h. The conditions of performance expected of Subcontractors by. the County

Contractor must also be included with the Best Effort Documentation

i. County Contraciors may include any other type of documentation they feel
necessary to further demonstrate their Best Efforts regarding their bid
documents.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “Executive Director” shall mean the Executive
Director of the Nassau County Office of Minority Affairs; provided, however, that Executive
Director shall include a designee of the Exccutive Director except in the case of final
determinations issued pursuant to Section () through (1) of these rules.

As used in this Appendix EE the term “Subcontract” shall mean an agreement consisting
of part or parts of the contracted work of the County Contractor. :

As used in this Appendix EE, the term “Subcontractor” shall mean a person or firm who
performs part or parts of the contracted work of a prime contractor providing services, including
construction services, to the County pursuant to a county contract.  Subcontractor shall include a
person or firm that provides labor, professional or other services, materials or supplies fo a prime
contractor that are necessary for the prime contractor to fuifill its obligations to provide services
to the County pursuant to a county contract. Subcontractor shall not include a supplier of
materials to a contractor who has contracted to provide goods but no services to the County, nor
a supplier of incidental materials to a contractor, such as office supplies, tools and other items of
nominal cost that are utilized in the performance of a service contract. :

Provisions requiring contractors to retain or submit documentation of best efforts to
utilize certified subcontractors and requiring Department head approval prior to subcontracting
shall not apply to inter-governmental agreements, In addition, the tracking of expenditures of
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County dollars by not-for-profit corporations, other municipalities, States, or the federal
government is not required.
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